Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A.

(incorporated as a joint stock company (societa per azioni) in the Republic of Italy)
€ 20,000,000,000 Covered Bond Programme
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed as to payments of interest and principal by
MPS Covered Bond S.r.l.

(incorporated as a limited liability company (societa a responsabilita limitata) in the Republic of Italy)

Except where specified otherwise, capitalised words and expressions in this Prospectus have the meaning given to them in the section
entitled "Glossary".

Under this € 20,000,000,000 covered bond programme (the "Programme™), Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. ("BMPS" or the
"Issuer" or the "Bank™") may from time to time issue covered bonds (Obbligazioni Bancarie Garantite) (the "Covered Bonds")
denominated in any currency agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s). The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all
Covered Bonds from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed € 20,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other
currencies calculated as described herein). The Covered Bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer and will rank pari passu without preference among themselves and (save for any applicable statutory
provisions) at least equally with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer from time to time
outstanding. In the event of a compulsory winding-up of the Issuer, any funds realised and payable to the Bondholders will be collected
by the Guarantor on their behalf. MPS Covered Bond S.r.l. (the "Guarantor™) has guaranteed payments of interest and principal
under the Covered Bonds pursuant to a guarantee (the "Guarantee™) which is collateralised by a pool of assets (the "Cover Pool")
made up of Residential Mortgage Loans and Asset-Backed Securities assigned and to be assigned to the Guarantor by the Principal
Seller and the Additional Seller(s), and of other Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets. Recourse against the Guarantor under the
Guarantee is limited to the Cover Pool.

This Prospectus has been approved as a base prospectus issued in compliance with the Prospectus Directive 2003/71/EC (the
"Prospectus Directive") by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF"), which is the competent authority in
the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive. In accordance with article 7.7 of the Prospectus Law,
the CSSF assumes no responsibility as to the economic and financial opportuneness of any transactions under the Programme or the
quality or solvency of the Issuer. Application has been made for Covered Bonds to be admitted during the period of 12 months from
the date of this Prospectus to listing on the official list and trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which
is aregulated market for the purposes of Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 2014/65/UE (MiFID II) as subsequently amended.
The Programme also permits Covered Bonds to be issued on the basis that (i) they will be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation
by such other or further competent authorities, stock exchanges and/or quotation systems as may be agreed with the Issuer or (ii) they
will not be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by any competent authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system.

Interest amounts payable under the Covered Bonds may be calculated by reference to EURIBOR, which is provided by the European
Money Markets Institute ("EMMI") and to LIBOR, which is provided by ICE Benchmark Administration Limited ("ICE"), in each
case as specified in the relevant Final Terms. At the date of this Prospectus, ICE is authorised as a benchmark administrator, and
included on, whereas EMMI is not included on, the register of administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by the
European Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA") pursuant to article 36 of Regulation (EU) No. 2016/1011 (the "Benchmarks
Regulation™). As far as the Issuer is aware, the transitional provisions in article 51 of the Benchmarks Regulation apply, such that
EMMI is not currently required to obtain authorisation or registration (or, if located outside the European Union, recognition,
endorsement or equivalence).

An investment in Covered Bonds issued under the Programme involves certain risks. See ""Risk Factors" for a discussion of
certain factors to be considered in connection with an investment in the Covered Bonds and the section entitled ""Banca Monte
dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A."".

From their relevant issue dates, the Covered Bonds will be issued in bearer and dematerialised form or in any other form as set out in
the relevant Final Terms. The Covered Bonds issued in bearer and dematerialised form will be held on behalf of their ultimate owners
by Monte Titoli S.p.A. ("Monte Titoli") for the account of the relevant Monte Titoli account holders. Monte Titoli will also act as
depository for Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (“Clearstream"). The Covered
Bonds issued in bearer and dematerialised form will at all times be evidenced by book-entries in accordance with the provisions of
the Financial Laws Consolidation Act and with the joint regulation of the Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e la Borsa
("CONSOB") and the Bank of Italy dated 13 August 2018 and published in the Official Gazette No. 201 of 30 August 2018, as
subsequently amended and supplemented. No physical document of title will be issued in respect of the Covered Bonds issued in
bearer and dematerialised form.

The Covered Bonds of each Series or Tranche will be subject to mandatory and/or optional redemption in whole or in part in certain
circumstances (as set out in Condition 9 (Redemption and Purchase)). Unless previously redeemed in full in accordance with the
Conditions and the relevant Final Terms, the Covered Bonds of each Series or Tranche will be redeemed at their Final Redemption
Amount on the relevant Maturity Date (or, as applicable, the Extension Determination Date), provided that if:



0} a Guarantee Enforcement Notice has been served on the Issuer and the Guarantor as a result of the Issuer having failed to
pay, in whole or in part, the Guaranteed Amounts on the Maturity Date for such Series of Covered Bonds and, on the
relevant Extension Determination Date, the Guarantor has insufficient funds to pay, in accordance with the Guarantee
Priority of Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in respect of such Series of Covered Bonds; or

(i) a Guarantee Enforcement Notice has been served on the Issuer and the Guarantor following the occurrence of an Issuer
Event of Default (other than the Issuer Event of Default referred to in paragraph (i) above) and, on the Maturity Date for
such Series of Covered Bonds, the Guarantor has insufficient funds to pay, in accordance with the Guarantee Priority of
Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in respect of such Series of Covered Bonds,

then the relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds shall become a Pass Through Series.

Investors should also consider that if, on any Test Calculation Date following the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice (and, in
case of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice delivered as a result of an Article 74 Event, prior to the service of an Article 74 Event Cure
Notice), the Calculation Agent notifies, through the Test Performance Report, the Issuer, the Sellers, any Additional Seller and the
Guarantor that the Amortisation Test is not met, then all Series of Covered Bonds shall become Pass Through Series.

As at the date of this Prospectus, payments of interest and other proceeds in respect of the Covered Bonds may be subject to
withholding or deduction for or on account of Italian substitute tax, in accordance with Italian Legislative Decree No. 239 of 1 April
1996 (the "Decree No. 239"), as amended and supplemented from time to time, and any related regulations. Upon the occurrence of
any withholding or deduction for or on account of tax from any payments under any Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds, neither the
Issuer nor any other person shall have any obligation to pay any additional amount(s) to any holder of Covered Bonds any Series or
Tranche. For further details see the section entitled "Taxation".

Each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds may or may not be assigned a rating by one or more Rating Agencies.

Each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds issued under the Programme, if rated, is expected to be assigned, unless otherwise stated
in the applicable Final Terms, the following credit ratings: Al by Moody's Investors Service Limited ("Moody's"), A+ by Fitch
Ratings Ltd. ("Fitch") and AA (low) by DBRS Ratings Limited ("DBRS" and, together with Moody's and Fitch, the "Rating
Agencies" and, each of them, a "Rating Agency"). A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be
subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency. The Covered Bonds issued under the
Programme may also not be assigned a rating. If the Covered Bonds issued under the Programme may be assigned a rating, the credit
rating applied for in relation to the Covered Bonds will be issued by credit rating agencies established in the EEA and registered under
Regulation (EU) No 1060/2009 (as amended from time to time, the "CRA Regulation"). Please refer to the ESMA webpage
http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified- CRAs in order to consult the updated list of registered credit rating
agencies Any websites included in the Prospectus are for information purposes only and do not form part of the Prospectus.

JOINT-ARRANGERS FOR THE PROGRAMME

Morgan Stanley Banca Monte dei Paschi di NatWest Markets
Siena S.p.A.

DEALERS

Morgan Stanley MPS Capital Services NatWest Markets
Banca per le Imprese
S.p.A.

The date of this Prospectus is 22 January 2019.
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This Prospectus is a base prospectus for the purposes of article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive
and for the purposes of giving information which, according to the particular nature of the
Covered Bonds, is necessary to enable investors to make an informed assessment of the assets
and liabilities, financial position, profit and losses and prospects of the Issuer and of the
Guarantor and of the rights attaching to the Covered Bonds.

The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in this
Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of the Issuer and the Guarantor (having taken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this Prospectus
is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such
information.

This Prospectus is to be read and construed in conjunction with any supplements hereto, with
all documents which are incorporated herein by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by
Reference™) and, in relation to any Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds (as defined herein),
with the relevant Final Terms (as defined herein).

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other
than those contained in this Prospectus in connection with the issue or sale of the Covered
Bonds and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as
having been authorised by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Representative of the Bondholders or
any of the Dealers or the Joint-Arrangers. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale
made in connection therewith shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there
has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the Guarantor since the date hereof or the
date upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or supplemented or that there
has been no adverse change in the financial position of the Issuer or the Guarantor since the
date hereof or the date upon which this Prospectus has been most recently supplemented or
that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time
subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document
containing the same.

IMPORTANT — EEA RETAIL INVESTORS If the Final Terms in respect of any Covered
Bonds includes a legend entitled "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors”, the Covered
Bonds are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic
Area ("EEA"). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of:
(i) aretail client as defined in point (11) of article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU ("MiFID I11');
or (i) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would
not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of article 4(1) of MIFID I1.
Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the
"PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Covered Bonds or otherwise making them
available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the
Covered Bonds or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be
unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.

MiIFID 11 PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / TARGET MARKET The Final Terms in respect of
any Covered Bonds may include a legend entitled "MiFID Il Product Governance™ which will
outline the target market assessment in respect of the Covered Bonds and which channels for
distribution of the Covered Bonds are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling
or recommending such Covered Bonds (a "distributor™) should take into consideration the



target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for
undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Covered Bonds (by either
adopting or refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution
channels. A determination will be made at the time of issue about whether, for the purpose of
the product governance rules under EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the "MiFID Product
Governance Rules"), any Dealer subscribing for a Tranche of Covered Bonds is a
manufacturer in respect of that Tranche, but otherwise neither the Arranger nor the Dealers
nor any of their respective affiliates will be a manufacturer for the purpose of the MiFID
Product Governance Rules.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer,
the Guarantor, the Joint-Arrangers or the Dealers to subscribe for, or purchase, any Covered
Bonds.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering or sale of the Covered Bonds in certain
jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes
are required by the Issuer, the Dealers and the Joint-Arrangers to inform themselves about
and to observe any such restriction. The Covered Bonds have not been and will not be
registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act").
Subject to certain exceptions, Covered Bonds may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or to US persons. There are further restrictions on the distribution of this
Prospectus and the offer or sale of Covered Bonds in the European Economic Area, including
the United Kingdom and the Republic of Italy, and in Japan. For a description of certain
restrictions on offers and sales of Covered Bonds and on distribution of this Prospectus, see
"Subscription and Sale".

The Joint-Arrangers and the Dealers have not separately verified the information contained in
this Prospectus. None of the Dealers or the Joint-Arrangers make any representation, express
or implied, or accept any responsibility, with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any
of the information in this Prospectus. Neither this Prospectus nor any other financial
statements are intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not
be considered as a recommendation by any of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Representative of
the Bondholders, the Joint-Arrangers or the Dealers that any recipient of this Prospectus or
any other financial statements should purchase the Covered Bonds. Each potential purchaser
of Covered Bonds should determine for itself the relevance of the information contained in this
Prospectus and its purchase of Covered Bonds should be based upon such investigation as it
deems necessary. None of the Dealers, the Representative of the Bondholders or the Joint-
Arrangers undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer or the Guarantor
during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this Prospectus nor to advise any investor
or potential investor in Covered Bonds of any information coming to the attention of any of the
Dealers, the Representative of the Bondholders or the Joint-Arrangers.

In this Prospectus, unless otherwise specified or unless the context otherwise requires, all
references to "£" or "Sterling™ are to the currency of the United Kingdom, "Dollars" are to the
currency of the United States of America and all references to "€", "euro” and "Euro" are to
the lawful currency introduced at the start of the third stage of the European Economic and
Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended
from time to time.
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For the avoidance of doubt, the content of any website referred to in this Prospectus does not
form part of the Prospectus.

Figures included in this Prospectus have been subject to rounding adjustments; accordingly,
figures shown for the same item of information may vary, and figures which are totals may not
be the arithmetical aggregate of their components.

In connection with any Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds, one or more Dealers or Managers
may act as a stabilising manager (the "Stabilising Manager™). The identity of the Stabilising
Manager will be disclosed in the relevant Final Terms. References in the next paragraph to
"the issue" of any Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds are to each Series or Tranche of
Covered Bonds in relation to which any Stabilising Manager is appointed.

In connection with the issue of any Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds, the Dealer(s) or the
Manager(s) (if any) named as the Stabilising Manager(s) (or any person acting on behalf of
any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable Final Terms may over-allot Covered Bonds or
effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Covered Bonds at a level
higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there can be no assurance that the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or any person acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will
undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which
adequate public disclosure of the final terms of the offer of the relevant Series or Tranche of
Covered Bonds is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end no later than
the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds
and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.
Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising
Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with
all applicable laws and rules.



CONTENTS

RISK FACTORS ... 1
SUPPLEMENTS, FINAL TERMS AND FURTHER PROSPECTUSES.............ccccoviienne 136
STRUCTURE OVERVIEW .......oiiiiiiii e 137
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME ..o 143
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE ..o 168
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE COVERED BONDS..........ccccoiiiiiiicece 171
RULES OF THE ORGANISATION OF THE BONDHOLDERS. ..o 234
FORM OF FINAL TERMS ... 262
PURPOSE OF FINAL TERMS ... ..t 270
USE OF PROCEEDS .......cooiiii 274
BANCA MONTE DEI PASCHI DI SIENA S.P.A. ..o 275
MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK ..ot 356
CREDIT AND COLLECTION POLICY ..ot 367
THE GUARANTOR ...t 376
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME DOCUMENTS ..o 379
CREDIT STRUCTURE.......oiiiiii e 406
CASHFLOWS ... 418
DESCRIPTION OF THE COVER POOL.......ccoiiiiiiiiiiicciee e 424
THE ASSET MONITOR ..ot s 445
DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN RELEVANT LEGISLATION IN ITALY ..cccovviiiiiiinne 447
TAXATION .o 453
SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE ......oi i 468
GENERAL INFORMATION .....ooiiiiiiii e 473
GLOSSARY it 478

-Vi -



RISK FACTORS

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor believes that the following factors may affect their ability
to fulfil their obligations under the Covered Bonds issued under the Programme. All these
factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor
is in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring. In
addition, factors which the Issuer and the Guarantor believe may be material for the purpose
of assessing the market risks associated with Covered Bonds issued under the Programme are
also described below.

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor believes that the factors described below represent the
principal risks inherent in investing in the Covered Bonds issued under the Programme, but
the inability of the Issuer or the Guarantor to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in
connection with any Covered Bonds may occur for other unknown reasons and neither the
Issuer nor the Guarantor represents that the risks of holding any Covered Bonds are
exhaustive. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere
in this Prospectus (including any document incorporated by reference) and reach their own
views prior to making any investment decision.

This section describes the principal risk factors associated with an investment in the Covered
Bonds. Prospective purchasers of Covered Bonds should consider carefully all the information
contained in this Prospectus, including the considerations set out below, before making any
investment decision. This section of the Prospectus is split into two main sections — General
Investment Considerations and Investment Considerations relating to the Issuer and the
Guarantor.

1. GENERAL INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS
1.1 Issuer liable to make payments when due on the Covered Bonds

The Issuer is liable to make payments when due on the Covered Bonds. The obligations of the
Issuer under the Covered Bonds are direct, unsecured, unconditional and unsubordinated
obligations, ranking pari passu without any preference amongst themselves and equally with
its other direct, unsecured, unconditional and unsubordinated obligations.

The Guarantor has no obligation to pay the Guaranteed Amounts payable under the Guarantee
until the occurrence of an Issuer Event of Default, after the service by the Representative of
the Bondholders on the Issuer and on the Guarantor of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice. The
occurrence of an Issuer Event of Default does not constitute a Guarantor Event of Default.
However, failure by the Guarantor to pay amounts due under the Guarantee would constitute a
Guarantor Event of Default which would entitle the Representative of the Bondholders to
accelerate the obligations of the Issuer under the Covered Bonds (if they have not already
become due and payable) and the obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee. Although
certain of the Assets included in the Cover Pool are originated by the Issuer, they are transferred
to the Guarantor on a true sale basis and an insolvency of the Issuer would not automatically
result in the insolvency of the Guarantor.

1.2 Obligations under the Covered Bonds

The Covered Bonds will not represent an obligation or be the responsibility of any of the Joint-
Arrangers, the Dealers, the Representative of the Bondholders or any other party to the



Programme, their officers, members, directors, employees, security holders or incorporators,
other than the Issuer and, after the service by the Representative of the Bondholders of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor will be liable
solely in their corporate capacity for their obligations in respect of the Covered Bonds and such
obligations will not be the obligations of their respective officers, members, directors,
employees, security holders or incorporators.

1.3 Bondholders are bound by Extraordinary Resolutions and Programme Resolution

A meeting of Bondholders may be called to consider matters which affect the rights and
interests of Bondholders. These include (but are not limited to): instructing the Representative
of the Bondholders to take enforcement action against the Issuer and/or the Guarantor; waiving
an Issuer Event of Default or a Guarantor Event of Default; cancelling, reducing or otherwise
varying interest payments or repayment of principal or rescheduling payment dates; extending
the Test Remedy Period; altering the priority of payments of interest and principal on the
Covered Bonds; and any other amendments to the Programme Documents. Certain resolutions
are required to be passed as Programme Resolutions, passed at a single meeting of all holders
of Covered Bonds, regardless of Series. A Programme Resolution will bind all Bondholders,
irrespective of whether they attended the Meeting or voted in favour of the Programme
Resolution. No Resolution, other than a Programme Resolution, passed by the holders of one
Series of Covered Bonds will be effective in respect of another Series unless it is sanctioned
by an Ordinary Resolution or an Extraordinary Resolution, as the case may require, of the
holders of that other Series. Any Resolution passed at a Meeting of the holders of the Covered
Bonds of a Series shall bind all other holders of that Series, irrespective of whether they
attended the Meeting and whether they voted in favour of the relevant Resolution.

In addition, the Representative of the Bondholders may agree to the modification of the
Programme Documents without consulting the Bondholders to correct a manifest error or an
error established as such to the satisfaction of the Representative of the Bondholders or where
such modification (i) is of a formal, minor, administrative or technical nature or to comply with
mandatory provisions of law or (ii) in the sole opinion of the Representative of the Bondholders
is expedient to make, is not or will not be materially prejudicial to Bondholders of any Series
or Tranche.

It shall also be noted that after the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the protection
and exercise of the Bondholders' rights against the Issuer will be exercised by the Guarantor
(or the Representative of the Bondholders on its behalf). The rights and powers of the
Bondholders may only be exercised in accordance with the Rules of the Organisation of the
Bondholders. In addition, after the delivery of a Guarantor Default Notice, the protection and
exercise of the Bondholders' rights against the Guarantor and the security under the Guarantee
is one of the duties of the Representative of the Bondholders. The Conditions limit the ability
of each individual Bondholder to commence proceedings against the Guarantor by conferring
on the meeting of the Bondholders the power to determine in accordance with the Rules of
Organisation of the Bondholders, whether any Bondholder may commence any such individual
actions.



1.4 Representative of the Bondholders' powers may affect the interests of the holders of
the Covered Bonds

In the exercise of its powers, trusts, authorities and discretions the Representative of the
Bondholders shall only have regard to the interests of the holders of the Covered Bonds and
the Other Guarantor Creditors but if, in the opinion of the Representative of the Bondholders,
there is a conflict between these interests the Representative of the Bondholders shall have
regard solely to the interests of the Bondholders. In the exercise of its powers, trusts, authorities
and discretions, the Representative of the Bondholders may not act on behalf of the Seller.

If, in connection with the exercise of its powers, trusts, authorities or discretions, the
Representative of the Bondholders is of the opinion that the interests of the holders of the
Covered Bonds of any one or more Series or Tranche would be materially prejudiced thereby,
the Representative of the Bondholders shall not exercise such power, trust, authority or
discretion without the approval of such holders of the Covered Bonds by Extraordinary
Resolution or by a direction in writing of such holders of the Covered Bonds of at least 75 per
cent. of the Principal Amount Outstanding of Covered Bonds of the relevant Series or Tranche
then outstanding.

1.5  Extendible obligations under the Guarantee

The Guarantor's obligations under the Guarantee to pay the Guaranteed Amounts of the
relevant Series of Covered Bonds on their Maturity Date may be deferred pursuant to the
Conditions until the Extended Maturity Date. Such deferral will occur automatically:

@ in respect of a Series of Covered Bonds (each such Series, a Pass Through Series) if (i)
a Guarantee Enforcement Notice has been served on the Issuer and the Guarantor as a
result of the Issuer having failed to pay, in whole or in part, the Guaranteed Amounts
on the Maturity Date for such Series of Covered Bonds and, on the relevant Extension
Determination Date, the Guarantor has insufficient funds to pay, in accordance with the
Guarantee Priority of Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in respect of such Series of
Covered Bonds, or (ii) a Guarantee Enforcement Notice has been served on the Issuer
and the Guarantor following the occurrence of an Issuer Event of Default (other than
the Issuer Event of Default referred to in paragraph (i) above) and, on the Maturity Date
for such Series of Covered Bonds, the Guarantor has insufficient funds to pay, in
accordance with the Guarantee Priority of Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in
respect of such Series of Covered Bonds; and

(b) in respect of all Series of Covered Bonds, which all become Pass Through Series, if, on
any Test Calculation Date following the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
(and, in case of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice delivered as a result of an Article 74
Event, prior to the service of an Article 74 Event Cure Notice), the Calculation Agent
notifies, through the Test Performance Report, the Issuer, the Sellers, any Additional
Seller and the Guarantor that the Amortisation Test is not met.

To the extent that the Guarantor has received a Guarantee Enforcement Notice in sufficient
time and has sufficient moneys available to pay in part the Guaranteed Amounts corresponding
to the relevant Final Redemption Amount in respect of the relevant Series or Tranche of
Covered Bonds, the Guarantor shall make partial payment of the relevant Final Redemption
Amount in accordance with the Guarantee Priority of Payments and as described in Condition
9 (Redemption and Purchase) and payment of all unpaid amounts shall be deferred



automatically until the applicable Extended Maturity Date, provided that any amount
representing the Final Redemption Amount due and remaining unpaid on the Extension
Determination Date or the Maturity Date (as the case may be) may be paid by the Guarantor
on any Guarantor Payment Date thereafter, up to (and including) the relevant Extended
Maturity Date, in accordance with the applicable Priority of Payments. The Extended Maturity
Date will fall 38 years after the Maturity Date.

Interest will continue to accrue and be payable on the unpaid amount in accordance with
Condition 9 (Redemption and Purchase) and the Guarantor will pay Guaranteed Amounts,
constituting interest due on each Guarantor Payment Date and on the Extended Maturity Date.
In these circumstances, except where the Guarantor has failed to apply money in accordance
with the Guarantee Priority of Payments, failure by the Guarantor to make payment in respect
of the Final Redemption Amount on the Maturity Date (subject to any applicable grace period)
(or such later date within the applicable grace period) shall not constitute a Guarantor Event of
Default. However, failure by the Guarantor to pay the Guaranteed Amounts corresponding to
the Final Redemption Amount on or the balance thereof or prior to the Extended Maturity Date
and/or Guaranteed Amounts constituting interest on any Guarantor Payment Date will (subject
to any applicable grace periods) be a Guarantor Event of Default.

1.6 Limited secondary market

There is, at present, a secondary market for the Covered Bonds but it is neither active nor liquid,
and there can be no assurance that an active or liquid secondary market for the Covered Bonds
will develop. The Covered Bonds have not been, and will not be, offered to any persons or
entities in the United States of America or registered under any securities laws and are subject
to certain restrictions on the resale and other transfer thereof as set forth under "Subscription
and Sale". If an active or liquid secondary market develops, it may not continue for the life of
the Covered Bonds or it may not provide Bondholders with liquidity of investment with the
result that a Bondholder may not be able to find a buyer to buy its Covered Bonds readily or at
prices that will enable the Bondholder to realise a desired yield. If, therefore, a market does
develop, it may not be very liquid, and investors may not be able to sell their Covered Bonds
easily or at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that
have a developed secondary market. This is particularly the case for bonds that are especially
sensitive to interest rate, currency or market risks, are designed for specific investment
objectives or strategies or have been structured to meet the investment requirements of limited
categories of investors. These types of bonds generally would have a more limited secondary
market and more price volatility than conventional debt securities. Illiquidity may have a
severely adverse effect on the market value of the Covered Bonds.

1.7  Exchange Rate Risks and exchange controls

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Covered Bonds in the Specified Currency.
This presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor's financial activities
are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the "Investor's Currency") other
than the Specified Currency. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly
change (including changes due to devaluation of the Specified Currency or revaluation of the
Investor's Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency
may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor's
Currency relative to the Specified Currency would decrease; (1) the Investor's
Currency-equivalent yield on the Covered Bonds, (2) the Investor's Currency-equivalent value



of the principal payable on the Covered Bonds, and (3) the Investor's Currency-equivalent
market value of the Covered Bonds.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange
controls that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may
receive less interest or principal than expected, or no interest or principal.

1.8 Priority of Payments

Should any swap counterparty have its registered office in United Kingdom or United States
of America, it is to be considered that the validity of contractual priorities of payments such as
those contemplated in this transaction has been challenged in the English and U.S. courts. The
hearings have arisen due to the insolvency of a secured creditor (in that case a hedging
counterparty) and have considered whether such payment priorities breach the "anti-
deprivation" principle under English and U.S. insolvency law. This principle prevents a party
from agreeing to a provision that deprives its creditors of an asset upon its insolvency. It was
argued that where a secured creditor subordinates itself to bondholders in the event of its
insolvency, that secured creditor effectively deprives its own creditors. The Supreme Court of
the United Kingdom in Belmont Park Investments PTY Limited (Respondent) v BNY
Corporate Trustee Services Limited and Lehman Brothers Special Financing Inc. [2011] UK
SC 38 unanimously upheld the decision of the Court of Appeal in dismissing this argument and
upholding the validity of similar priorities of payment, stating that, provided that such
provisions form part of a commercial transaction entered into in good faith which does not have
as its predominant purpose, or one of its main purposes the deprivation of the property of one
of the parties on bankruptcy, the anti-deprivation principle was not breached by such
provisions.

In parallel proceedings in New York, Judge Peck of the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern
District of New York granted Lehman Brothers Special Finance Inc.'s ("LBSF") motion for
summary judgement on the basis that the effect was that the provisions infringed the anti-
deprivation principle in a U.S. insolvency. Judge Peck acknowledged that this resulted in the
U.S. courts coming to a decision "directly at odds with the judgement of the English Courts".
In New York, whilst leave to appeal was granted, the case was settled before an appeal was
heard.

This is an aspect of cross border insolvency law which remains untested. Whilst the priority
issue is considered largely resolved in England and Wales, concerns still remain that the
English and the U.S. courts may diverge in their approach which, in the case of an unfavourable
decision in the U.S. may adversely affect the Issuer's ability to make payments on the Covered
Bonds.

There remains the issue whether in respect of the foreign insolvency proceedings relating to a
creditor located in a foreign jurisdiction, an English court will exercise its discretion to
recognise the effects of the foreign insolvency proceedings, whether under the Cross Border
Insolvency Regulations 2006 or any similar common law principles. Given the current state of
U.S. law, this is likely to be an area of continued judicial focus particularly in respect of multi-
jurisdictional insolvencies.

Additionally, there can be no assurance as to how such subordination provisions would be
viewed in other jurisdictions such as Italy or whether they would be upheld under the
insolvency laws of any such relevant jurisdiction. If a subordination provision included in the



Programme Documents was successfully challenged under the insolvency laws of any relevant
jurisdiction and any relevant foreign judgement or order was recognised by the Italian courts,
there can be no assurance that these actions would not adversely affect the rights of the
Bondholders, the rating of the Covered Bonds, the market value of the Covered Bonds and/or
the ability of the Issuer to satisfy all or any of its obligations under the Covered Bonds.

1.9  Ratings of the Covered Bonds

The ratings that may be assigned by Moody's to the Covered Bonds address the expected loss
posed to the Bondholders following a default. The ratings that may be assigned by Fitch to the
Covered Bonds incorporate both an indication of the probability of default and the probability
of recovery following a default of such debt instrument. The ratings that may be assigned by
DBRS to the Covered Bonds evaluates both qualitative and quantitative factors when assigning
ratings.

The expected ratings of the Covered Bonds will be set out in the relevant Final Terms for each
Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds. Any Rating Agency may lower its rating or withdraw its
rating if, inter alia, in the sole judgment of that Rating Agency, the credit quality of the Covered
Bonds has declined or is under evaluation. If any rating assigned to the Covered Bonds is
lowered or withdrawn, the market value of the Covered Bonds may be reduced. A security
credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to
revision, suspension or withdrawal at any time.

Each of Moody's, Fitch and DBRS is established in the EEA and is registered under the
Regulation (EU) No 1060/2009 (as amended from time to time, the "CRA Regulation™). In
general, European regulated investors are restricted from using a rating for regulatory purposes
if such rating is not issued by a credit rating agency established in the EEA and registered under
the CRA Regulation (or is endorsed and published or distributed by subscription by such a
credit rating agency in accordance with the Regulation) unless the rating is provided by a credit
rating agency operating in the EEA before 7 June 2010 which has submitted an application for
registration in accordance with the CRA Regulation and such registration is not refused. (Please
refer to the ESMA webpage http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-
CRAs in order to consult the updated list of registered credit rating agencies).

1.10 Covered Bonds issued under the Programme

Covered Bonds issued under the Programme will either be fungible with an existing Series of
Covered Bonds (in which case one or more Tranche of Covered Bonds will form part of such
Series) or have different terms to an existing Series of Covered Bonds (in which case they will
constitute a new Series).

All Covered Bonds issued from time to time will rank pari passu with each other in all respects
and will share in the security granted by the Guarantor under the Guarantee. Following the
service on the Issuer and on the Guarantor of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice (but prior to a
Guarantor Event of Default and service of a Guarantor Default Notice on the Guarantor) the
Guarantor will use all monies to pay Guaranteed Amounts in respect of the Covered Bonds
when the same shall become Due for Payment subject to paying certain higher ranking
obligations of the Guarantor in the Guarantee Priority of Payments. In such circumstances, the
Issuer will only be entitled to receive payment from the Guarantor of interest, Premium and
repayment of principal under the Term Loans granted, from time to time, pursuant to the
Subordinated Loan Agreement, after all amounts due under the Guarantee in respect of the
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Covered Bonds have been paid in full or have otherwise been provided for. Following the
occurrence of a Guarantor Event of Default and service of a Guarantor Default Notice on the
Guarantor, the Covered Bonds will become immediately due and repayable and Bondholders
will then have a claim against the Guarantor under the Guarantee for an amount equal to the
Principal Amount Outstanding plus any interest accrued in respect of each Covered Bond,
together with accrued interest and any other amounts due under the Covered Bonds, and any
Guarantor Available Funds will be distributed according to the Post-Enforcement Priority of
Payments.

In order to ensure that any further issue of Covered Bonds under the Programme does not
adversely affect existing holders of the Covered Bonds:

@ any Term Loan granted by the Issuer and/or any Additional Seller(s) to the Guarantor
under the terms of the Subordinated Loan Agreements, may only be used by the
Guarantor (i) as consideration for the acquisition of Eligible Assets and of the Top-Up
Assets from the Principal Seller, or any Additional Seller(s) pursuant to the terms of
the Master Assets Purchase Agreement and the Cover Pool Management Agreement;
and (ii) in certain specific circumstances and in respect of the Floating Interest Term
Loan or Fixed Interest Term Loan, for the purpose of reimbursing (also in part) any
Term Loan for an amount equal to the Corresponding Series or Tranche of Covered
Bonds;

(b) the Issuer must always ensure that (i) prior to delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement
Notice, the Mandatory Tests and the Asset Coverage Test, and (ii) following the
delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Mandatory Tests and the Amortisation
Test are satisfied on each Test Calculation Date or, as applicable, Quarterly Test
Calculation Date (when required by Programme Documents) in order to ensure that the
Guarantor can meet its obligations under the Guarantee; and

(c) on or prior to the date of issue of any further Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds, the
Issuer will be obliged to obtain a Rating Agency Confirmation.

1.11 Controls over the transaction

The Bank of Italy Regulations require that certain controls be performed by the Issuer aimed
at, inter alia, mitigating the risk that any obligation of the Issuer or the Guarantor under the
Covered Bonds is not complied with. Whilst the Issuer believes it has implemented the
appropriate policies and controls in compliance with the relevant requirements, investors
should note that there is no assurance that such compliance ensures that the aforesaid controls
are actually performed and that any failure to properly implement the respective policies and
controls could have an adverse effect on the Issuers' or the Guarantor's ability to perform their
obligations under the Covered Bonds.

1.12  Limits to Integration

The integration of the Cover Pool, whether through Eligible Assets or through Top-Up Assets,
shall be carried out in accordance with the modalities, and subject to the limits, set out in the
Bank of Italy Regulations (see "Description of Certain Relevant Legislation in Italy -
Substitution of Assets™).



More specifically, under the Bank of Italy Regulations, integration is allowed exclusively for
the purpose of (a) complying with the Mandatory Tests; (b) complying with any contractual
overcollateralisation requirements agreed by the parties to the relevant Programme Documents
or (c) complying with the limit of 15 per cent. in relation to certain Top-Up Asset including in
the Cover Pool.

Investors should note that Integration is not allowed in circumstances other than as set out in
the Bank of Italy Regulations and specified above.

1.13 Tax consequences of holding the Covered Bonds - No Gross-up for Taxes

Potential investors should consider the tax consequences of investing in the Covered Bonds
and consult their tax adviser about their own tax situation. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Prospectus, if withholding of, or deduction of any present or future taxes, duties,
assessments or charges of whatever nature is imposed by or on behalf of Italy, any authority
therein or thereof having power to tax, the Guarantor will make the required withholding or
deduction of such taxes, duties, assessments or charges for the account of the Bondholders, as
the case may be, and shall not be obliged to pay any additional amounts to the Bondholders.

1.14  Prospectus to be read together with applicable Final Terms

The Prospectus, to be read together with applicable Final Terms of Covered Bonds included in
this Prospectus, applies to the different types of Covered Bonds which may be issued under the
Programme. The full terms and conditions applicable to each Series or Tranche of Covered
Bonds can be reviewed by reading the Conditions as set out in full in this Prospectus, which
constitute the basis of all Covered Bonds to be offered under the Programme, together with the
applicable Final Terms which apply and/or disapply and complete the Conditions of the
Programme in the manner required to reflect the particular terms and conditions applicable to
the relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

1.15 Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to investment laws and regulations, or
review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal
advisers to determine whether and to what extent (i) it can legally invest in Covered Bonds (ii)
Covered Bonds can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing and "repurchase”
arrangements and (iii) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Covered Bonds.
Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to
determine the appropriate treatment of Covered Bonds under any applicable risk-based capital
or similar rules.

1.16 Changes of law

The structure of the issue of the Covered Bonds and the ratings which are to be assigned to
them are based on Italian law and, in the case of the Swap Agreements and the English Account
Bank Agreement, English law in effect as at the date of this Prospectus. No assurance can be
given as to the impact of any possible change to Italian or English law or administrative practice
or to the law applicable to any Programme Document and to administrative practices in the
relevant jurisdiction.



1.17 Law 130

Law 130 was enacted in Italy in April 1999 and amended to allow for the issuance of covered
bonds in 2005. Law 130 was further amended by law decree No. 145 of 23 December 2013,
called "Decreto Destinazione Italia"” (the "Destinazione Italia Decree") converted into law No.
9 of 21 February 2014, and by law decree No. 91, called "Decreto Competitivita” (the "Law
Decree Competitivita", converted into law No. 116 of 11 August 2014). As at the date of this
Prospectus, no interpretation of the application of Law 130 as it relates to covered bonds has
been issued by any Italian court or governmental or regulatory authority, except for (i) the
Decree of the Italian Ministry for the Economy and Finance No. 130 of 14 December 2006
("Decree No. 310"), setting out the technical requirements of the guarantee which may be given
in respect of covered bonds and (ii) Part 111, Chapter 3 of the "Disposizioni di Vigilanza per le
Banche" (Circular No. 285 of 17 December 2013, as amended) as amended and supplemented
from time to time, concerning guidelines on the valuation of assets, the procedure for
purchasing Substitution Assets and controls required to ensure compliance with the legislation.
Consequently, it is possible that such or different authorities may issue further regulations
relating to Law 130 or the interpretation thereof, the impact of which cannot be predicted by
the Issuer as at the date of this Prospectus.

1.18 The Covered Bonds may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor in the Covered Bonds must determine the suitability of that investment
in light of its own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

@) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the
Covered Bonds, the merits and risks of investing in the Covered Bonds and the
information contained or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any applicable
supplement;

(b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context
of its particular financial situation, an investment in the Covered Bonds and the impact
the Covered Bonds will have on its overall investment portfolio;

(©) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment
in the Covered Bonds, including Covered Bonds with principal or interest payable in
one or more currencies, or where the currency for principal or interest payments is
different from the potential investor's currency;

(d) understand thoroughly the terms of the Covered Bonds and be familiar with the
behaviour of any relevant indices and financial markets; and

(e) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible
scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment
and its ability to bear the applicable risks.

Some Covered Bonds are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors
generally do not purchase complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They
purchase complex financial instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an
understood, measured, appropriate addition of risk to their overall portfolios. A potential
investor should not invest in Covered Bonds which are complex financial instruments unless it
has the expertise (either alone or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how the Covered Bonds



will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of the Covered Bonds
and the impact this investment will have on the potential investor's overall investment portfolio.

1.19 Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Covered Bonds

A wide range of Covered Bonds may be issued under the Programme. A number of these
Covered Bonds may have features which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set
out below is a description of the most common of these features:

1.20 Covered Bonds subject to optional redemption by the Issuer

If in the case of any particular Tranche of Covered Bonds the relevant Final Terms specifies
that the Covered Bonds are redeemable at the Issuer's option pursuant to Condition 9(d)
(Redemption at the option of the Issuer), the Issuer may choose to redeem the Covered Bonds
at times when prevailing interest rates may be relatively low. In such circumstances an investor
may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an effective
interest rate as high as that of the relevant Covered Bonds.

An optional redemption feature of Covered Bonds is likely to limit their market value. During
any period when the Issuer may elect to redeem Covered Bonds, the market value of those
Covered Bonds generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be
redeemed. Further, during any period in which there is an actual or perceived increase in the
likelihood that the Issuer may redeem the Covered Bonds, the price of the Covered Bonds may
also be adversely impacted. This also may be true prior to any redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem Covered Bonds when its cost of borrowing is lower than
the interest rate on the Covered Bonds. At those times, an investor generally would not be able
to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on
the Covered Bonds being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate.
Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at
that time.

1.21  Zero Coupon Covered Bonds

The Issuer may issue Covered Bonds bearing no interest, which may be offered and sold at a
discount to their nominal amount.

1.22  Amortising Covered Bonds

The Issuer may issue amortising Covered Bonds with a predefined, prescheduled amortisation
schedule where, alongside interest, the Issuer will pay, at each Interest Payment Date specified
in the relevant Final Terms, a portion of principal until maturity.

1.23 Fixed/Floating Rate Covered Bonds

Fixed/Floating Rate Covered Bonds may bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate
to a floating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Where the Issuer has the right to effect
such a conversion, this will affect the secondary market and the market value of the Covered
Bonds since the Issuer may be expected to convert the rate when it is likely to produce a lower
overall cost of borrowing. If the Issuer converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate in such
circumstances, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Covered Bonds may be less favourable

-10 -



than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Covered Bonds tied to the same
reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on
other Covered Bonds. If the Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate in such
circumstances, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing rates on its Covered Bonds.

1.24 Redemption for tax reasons

In the event that the Issuer would be obliged to increase the amounts payable in respect of any
Covered Bonds due to any withholding or deduction for or on account of, any present or future
taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of any taxing jurisdiction
(as referred to in Condition 11 (Taxation)), as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the
laws or regulations of any taxing jurisdiction or any change in the application or official
interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on
or after the date of issue of the first Series of the Covered Bonds and such obligation cannot be
avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it, the Issuer may redeem all
outstanding Covered Bonds in accordance with the Terms and Conditions. In such
circumstances an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable
security at an effective interest rate as high as that of the relevant Covered Bonds.

1.25 Interest rate risks

Investment in Fixed Rate Covered Bonds involves the risk that subsequent changes in market
interest rates may adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Covered Bonds.

1.26  Floating rate risks

Investment in Floating Rate Covered Bonds involves the risk for the Bondholders of fluctuating
interest rate levels and uncertain interest earnings.

1.27 Potential conflicts of interest

Any Calculation Agent appointed under the Programme (whether a Paying Agent or otherwise)
is the agent of the Issuer and not the agent of the Bondholders. Potential conflicts of interest
may exist between the Calculation Agent (if any) and Bondholders (including where a Dealer
acts as a Calculation Agent), including with respect to certain determinations and judgments
that such Calculation Agent may make pursuant to the Conditions that may influence amounts
receivable by the Bondholders during the term of the Covered Bonds and upon their
redemption.

1.28 Mortgage borrower protection

Certain recent legislation enacted in Italy, has given new rights and certain benefits to mortgage
debtors and/or reinforced existing rights, including, inter alia:

. the right of prepayment of the principal amount of the mortgage loan, without incurring
a penalty or, in respect of mortgage loan agreements entered into before 2 February
2007, at a reduced penalty rate (article 120-ter of the Consolidated Banking Act,
introduced by Legislative Decree No. 141 of 13 August 2010 as amended by Legislative
Decree No. 218 of 14 December 2010);
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right to the substitution (portabilitd) of a mortgage loan with another mortgage loan
and/or the right to request subrogation by an assignee bank into the rights of their
creditors in accordance with article 1202 (surrogazione per volonta del debitore) of the
Civil Code, by eliminating the limits and costs previously borne by the borrowers for
the exercise of such right (article 120-quater of the Consolidated Banking Act,
introduced by Legislative Decree No. 141 of 13 August 2010 as amended by Legislative
Decree No. 218 of 14 December 2010);

the right of first home-owners to suspend instalment payments under mortgage loans
up to a maximum of two times and for a maximum aggregate period of 18 months
(Italian Law No. 244 of 24 December 2007, the "2008 Budget Law");

the right to suspend the payment of principal instalments relating to mortgage loans for
a 12 month period, where requested by the relevant Debtor during the period from 1
June 2015 to 31 December 2017 (Convention between ABI and the consumers'
associations stipulated on 31 March 2015, the "Credito Famiglie");

the right to renegotiate, subject to certain conditions and up to 31 December 2012, the
floating rate or the final maturity of the Mortgage Loans executed prior to (and
excluding) 14 May 2011 for the purpose of purchasing, building or for the maintenance
of the debtors' principal residence (law decree number 70 of 13 May 2011, as converted
into Law No. 106 of 12 July 2011, the "Decreto Sviluppo™);

automatic suspension of instalment payments of mortgages and loans, up to 31
December 2016, to residents, both individuals and businesses, in 62 municipalities
affected by the heartquake and listed in the relevant decree (law decree number 189 of
October 2016, the "Decree 189");

extension of suspension of instalment payments as per Decree 189 to further
municipalities, up to 31 December 2016 (Council of Ministers Order of 15 November
2016, published in the Official Gazette of the Republic of Italy (Gazzetta Ufficiale della
Repubblica Italiana) No. 283 of 3 December 2016, the "Order 283"). Considering the
shortness of such suspensions provided under Decree 189 and Order 283, the Bank has
suspended the relevant payments free of charge;

automatic suspension of instalment payments of mortgages and loans, up to 31
December 2017, to residents, both individuals and businesses, in certain municipalities
affected by the heartquake and listed in the relevant decree (law decree number 244 of
30 December 2016, the "Decreto Milleproroghe™). In relation to individuals the
Decreto Milleproroghe provide first home-owners with the right to suspend instalment
payments under mortgage loans up to 30 December 2017 in case of damages which do
not permit access thereto. In relation to businesses, the Decreto Milleproroghe provide
with the automatic suspension of instalment payments under mortgage loans up to 30
December 2017 only to certain municipalities listed therein;

the right to suspend instalment payments relating to mortgage loans in case of (i)
damages which do not permit access to the relevant building, (ii) commercial businesses
located in the relevant municipalities up to a maximum period corresponding to the
state of emergency as per Council of Ministers Order dated 20 September 2017 and
declaration of up to 180 days state of emergency caused by exceptional weather
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conditions in Livorno, Rosignano Marittimo e Collesalvetti (published in the Official
Gazette of the Republic of Italy (Gazzetta Ufficiale della Repubblica Italiana) No. 226
of 27 September 2017 "Order 226").

. the right to suspend instalment payments relating to mortgage loans in case of (i)
damages which do not permit access to the relevant building, (ii) commercial businesses
located in the relevant municipalities up to a maximum period corresponding to the
state of emergenc as per Council of Ministers Order dated 8 September 2017 and
declaration of up to 180 days state of emergency caused by a earthquake in the Ischia
Island (published in the Official Gazette of the Republic of Italy (Gazzetta Ufficiale
della Repubblica Italiana) No. 218 of 18 September 2017 "Order 218")

This legislation may have an adverse effect on the Cover Pool and, in particular, on any cash
flow projections concerning the Cover Pool as well as on the over-collateralisation required in
order to maintain the then current ratings of the Covered Bonds. However, the Asset Coverage
Test has been structured in such a way to attribute a zero weight to any Mortgage Receivable
in respect of which instalments are suspended as a consequence of the granting of a deferral of
the payment of its interest and/or principal instalments in accordance with the application of
moratoria provisions from time to time granted to Debtors by any laws, agreements between
Italian banking associations and national consumer associations, the Bank of Italy or other
regulatory bodies regulations ("Payment Holiday") therefore, to the extent that any Payment
Holiday granted in respect of Mortgage Receivables included in the Cover Pool may lead to a
breach of Tests, the Issuer will be required to sell to the Guarantor subsequent portfolios of
Eligible Asset and/or Top-Up Assets in accordance with the Cover Pool Management
Agreement and the Master Assets Purchase Agreement in order to remedy such breach, see
"Description of Certain Relevant Legislation in Italy”. However upon occurrence of an Issuer
Event of Default a massive adhesion to such Payment Holidays may adversely affect the
cashflows deriving from the Cover Pool and as a consequence the repayment of the Covered
Bonds.

2. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE ISSUER AND THE GROUP
2.1 Risks associated with the failed realisation of the Restructuring Plan

The approval of the Restructuring Plan 2017 — 2021 (the "Restructuring Plan™) of the Bank
by the European Commission on 4 July 2017 allowed the precautionary recapitalisation of the
Bank in compliance with the legislation applicable to banks in the matter of "State aid".

The precautionary recapitalisation has been implemented through the Italian Ministry of
Economy and Finance ("MEF")'s publication of the decrees aimed also at executing the Burden
Sharing (as defined in "Risks associated with the application of Burden Sharing in the context
of precautionary recapitalisation intervention™ below).

The Restructuring Plan groups together common risks of an industrial plan, such as (i) those
reporting in quantitative and qualitative terms the directors' purposes related to competitive
strategies of a company and the actions that will be implemented for the purpose of achieving
the strategic goals and (ii) assumptions of formal commitments given to the European
Commission — consistent with the limits provided for the purpose of "State aid" by the
European Commission — concerning the compliance with certain objectives whose grade of
achievement will be periodically monitored by an independent subject (monitoring trustee)(the
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"Commitments™). The Issuer proposed — with favourable opinion of the ECB Directorate
General Competition (DG Comp) — the appointment of Degroof Petercam Finance as
monitoring trustee (that acted as monitoring trustee for the Commitments of the BMPS'
restructuring plan 2013-2017 as well). The first monitoring was carried out during the last
quarter of 2017 with reference to the data available as at 30 September 2017; subsequently the
monitoring activity has been and continue to be carried out quarterly.

In summary, the Restructuring Plan provides for:

@ the Bank's return to an adequate profitability level, after the losses over the last financial
years — with a target return on equity (ROE) exceeding 10 per cent. in 2021 — based on
the following pillars:

() enhancement of retail and small business customers sectors, thanks to a new
simplified and highly digitalised business model;

(i) renewed operational model, with constant focus on efficiency, which will lead
to a cost/income ratio target lower than 51 per cent. in 2021 and to a reallocation
to the commercial activities of the resources engaged in administrative
activities;

(iii)  radically improved management of credit risk, with a new organisational
structure of the chief lending officer, which will allow the strengthening of the
Bank's early detection processes and improve the cure rate, which will lead to a
risk cost lower than 60 basis points and a ratio between the gross value of the
Impaired Loans (as defined below) and the total amount of the receivables
("Gross NPE ratio™) lower than 13 per cent. in 2021; and

(iv)  enhanced capital and liquidity position, with targets in 2021 including a CET1
higher than 14 per cent., a loan to deposit ratio lower than 90 per cent. and an
LCR (as defined below) higher than 150 per cent., with, at the same time, a
significant reduction of the cost of funding; and

(b) the disposal of almost the entire Doubtful Loan portfolio as at 31 December 2016 for
gross Euro 28.6 billion, which as of the date of this Prospectus has been completed.

The Restructuring Plan, by means of the planned improvement guidelines and after the
reduction trend of the Bank's market share on the main aggregate assets, aims at stabilising the
commercial penetration level as effect of a progressive re-approaching of the performance to
those realised by the main competitors.

Therefore, there is a risk that the Bank may not be able to keep pace with said competitors'
growth; if the performance misalignment with respect to the main competitors' performance is
such as to involve the failure to comply with one or more Commitments of the Restructuring
Plan, the adjustment mechanisms described below may be activated.

Furthermore, the Restructuring Plan is consistent with and reflects the Commitments given to
the European Commission and is in line with the parameters set out in the letter relating to the
annual review and supervisory assessment (the "Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process"
or "SREP") received on 19 June 2017 ("SREP Decision 2017"). In said document, the European
Central Bank ("ECB") required the Bank to comply, starting from 2018, with a level of Total
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SREP Capital Requirement ("TSCR") on a consolidated basis equal to 11 per cent., including
the minimum requirement of Common Equity Tier 1 ("Pillar I") equal to 8 per cent. and an
additional requirement equal to 3 per cent. ("Pillar II'), entirely based on Common Equity Tier
1. Consequently, the Group is required to comply with the following requirements at
consolidated level as of 1 January 2018: with a CET1 ratio on a transitional basis equal to 9.44
per cent. and a total capital ratio, again on a transitional basis, equal to 12.94 per cent.,
including, in addition to Pillar I and Pillar I1, a capital conservation buffer equal to 1.875 per
cent. and an Other Systemically Important Institutions Buffer ("O-SII Buffer") equal to 0.06
per cent. The capital conservation buffer will be at full stream in 2019 with 2.5 per cent. It
should be noted that, starting from 1 January 2019, the Group will not be required to comply
with the O-SII Buffer since it has not been qualified by the Bank of Italy as a national
systemically important institution authorised to operate in Italy. For more information on the
capital adequacy requirements which the Bank has to comply with, please see "Risk associated
with capital adequacy".

In March 2018, the ECB published the addendum to the guidance to banks on non-performing
loans dated 20 March 2017. Said document, which was being consulted on from 4 October
2017, provides further guidance on the non-performing loans (NPLs) by specifying the ECB's
supervisory expectations when assessing a bank's prudential provisioning levels for impaired
exposures. In light of the above, for exposures that will be at default from 1 April 2018, the
ECB will assess, among several aspects, the period of time during which the exposure has been
classified as impaired (i.e. its "seniority™), as well as the collaterals held (where applicable).
The ECB's expectations have no accounting impact, but concern the assessment of capital
adequacy. During the supervisory consultation, which takes place at least once a year within
the scope of the SREP, the ECB shall discuss with banks any inconsistencies between the
coverage level adopted and the expectations on prudential provisioning levels, starting with the
evaluation process of 2021. Since the addendum was consulted at a later date with respect to
the approval of the Restructuring Plan and, therefore, the Restructuring Plan does not consider
the possible effects of the addendum, from 2021 the Bank's SREP target may have to take into
account additional capital requirements, consistent with the provisions of the aforementioned
addendum and/or the targets of the Restructuring Plan may not be achieved due to the higher
coverage levels on non-performing loans arising after 1 April 2018.

The Restructuring Plan is consistent with the Commitments given by the Italian government to
the European Commission, concerning various aspects of the plan, such as, inter alia:

Q) Burden Sharing: the full realisation of burden sharing measures, as provided for by art.
23 of Decree 237 (as defined below);

(i) cost reduction measures: annual restrictions in terms of number of branches,
employees, cost/income and total operating costs, and additional costs reduction up to
a maximum of Euro 100 million in case of deviation from net operating margin targets
(gross of credit provisions);

(iii)  restrictions in the matter of advertising and commercial policy: the Bank may not use
the granting of "State aid" or the advantages deriving therefrom for advertising
purposes aimed at promoting its products or its market positioning. Furthermore, it shall
not adopt a particularly aggressive commercial policy or one it would have in any case
not adopted should it not have had access to "State aid";
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(iv)  assignment of assets: assignment of foreign banks, meaning Banca Monte dei Paschi
Belgio S.A. and Monte Paschi Banque S.A. (undertaking already given within the
context of the Restructuring Plan 2013 — 2017 which was not completed), disposal of a
list of non-strategic equity interests during the term of the plan, without prejudice to the
Bank's capital position, and of a portion of real estate assets;

(v) risk containment: undertaking to finalise the assignment of the NPL Portfolio (as
defined below), enhancement of risk control measures (with specific reference to the
adequacy of lending policies and commercial policies adopted by the Bank, as well as
to the monitoring of such risk), restrictions to treasury finance activities in terms of
value at risk ("VaR") and of the nature of instruments dealt with;

(vi)  prohibition to carry out acquisitions: specifically the Bank may not proceed with the
acquisition of any interest or asset, unless (a) the European Commission authorises such
acquisition in exceptional circumstances, demanding financial soundness to be restored
or competition to be assured, (b) the acquisition does not exceed certain thresholds in
terms of price, and (c) such acquisition is put in place in the context of the ordinary
banking activity in respect of the management of obligations already outstanding to
customers showing financial difficulties or provided for in the context of the same
Restructuring Plan;

(vii)  restrictions on payments of coupons under outstanding instruments and to execute
liability management transactions: the Bank may not execute payments in favour of
outstanding instruments, unless the payment obligation arises from a legal duty, and,
equally, may not enter into repurchase transactions of instruments issued by it without
complying with predefined conditions and the prior approval of the European
Commission;

(viii) prohibition to pay dividends: the Bank may not proceed with the payment of dividends,
except in case of occurrence of certain conditions (for more information in this respect,
reference is made to "Risks associated with the failed distribution of dividends" below);
and

(ix)  remuneration of employees: establishment of a remuneration cap corresponding to ten
times the average salary of the Bank's employees.

The monitoring activity carried out by the monitoring trustee, although performed - as said -
on a regular basis each quarter, gains formal relevance only on the occasion of specific
deadlines agreed upon with the European Commission. As a consequence, the identification of
any deviations from the Commitments on the occasion of checks performed at times other than
the above deadlines shall not be deemed to indicate non-compliance with the Commitments.

With reference to the transfer of foreign banks, referred to under paragraph (iv) above, on 5
October 2018 BMPS reached an agreement for the sale of Banca Monte Paschi Belgio S.A. to
a company held by funds managed by Warburg Pincus, in accordance with the Commitments
of the Restructuring Plan. As at the date of this Prospectus, the assignment is not effective yet
and it is subject to the approval of both the National Bank of Belgium and of the ECB..

Should the Issuer be unable to achieve the Commitments, in whole or in part, it might suffer

the adverse effects, including any material adverse effects, of any orders adopted by the
European Commission vis-a-vis the Italian State as a consequence of the failure to comply with
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the commitments undertaken as part of the Restructuring Plan, with potential adverse effects,
including material adverse effects, on the Issuer's and/or Group's assets, liabilities and financial
situation.

Investors shall consider that there is no certainty that the Bank will be able to realise, in whole
or in part, the objectives and Commitments undertaken in the context of the Restructuring Plan
and that they will be able to adequately address the weakness profiles which may be found by
the ECB (specifically in the context of the SREP Decision) or which may be found by the
competent authorities in the future. In particular, the Restructuring Plan contains a set of
forecasts and estimates based on the realisation of future events and actions to be undertaken,
by directors and the management, inclusive of hypothetical assumptions subject to the risks
and uncertainties which characterise, inter alia, the current macroeconomic scenario (e.g. the
trend of the spread BTP-bund) and the evolution of the legislative framework, relating to future
events and actions which will not necessarily occur, over which directors and the management
have only partial or no control, on the performance of the main capital and economic figures
or of other factors affecting the evolution thereof. Accordingly, it cannot be excluded that the
assumptions on which the forecasts and estimates contained in the Restructuring Plan are based
may prove to be unreliable or may not take place, even due to external facts that the Issuer
cannot control.

Furthermore, in the event of any deviation, even a minimal one, from the European
Commission's provisions that may involve the failure to comply with the conditions according
to which the decision was adopted, the European Commission may consider ineffective the
statement of compatibility with the "State aid" due to the failed realisation or violation of any
condition. Consequently, the European Commission may either decide to undertake a new
formal investigation procedure or directly file a petition in front of the European Court of
Justice, for the purposes of obtaining the declaration of non-fulfilment of the undertakings
given by the Italian State. Although less probable, the European Commission may also consider
that the "State aid" has been carried out unlawfully and consequently undertake the relevant
specific procedure. Such scenario is less probable since it occurs where no specific conditions
are violated but rather the State aid's project is implemented without complying with the
provisions as set thereon (i.e. in a different area; without implementing planned hirings; or in
light of a decreased of investments). In the context of such procedures, the European
Commission may issue urgent measures, such as an injunction requesting the State to suspend
the implementation of aid measures or, if the conditions are met, to proceed with the recovery
of the already given "State aid". In this respect, the Issuer may cope with significant damages,
also reputational damages, considering the re-launching activity of the Bank, with consequent
negative impacts on the activities and on the Bank's and/or the Group's economical, capital
and/or financial condition. In addition to the reputational damages, due to negative publicity
arising from the non-fulfilment of the Restructuring Plan's conditions, the Issuer would be
further exposed to — inter alia — the risk of additional measures aimed at rebalancing the usual
competition of the sector (including other forms of Burden Sharing), as well as the risk
associated with the restitution of the given "State aid".

Finally, one or more rating agencies may downgrade the Bank's ratings, with consequent
increased cost of funding. For more information on the risks associated with the rating assigned
to the Issuer, reference is made to "Risks associated with the ratings assigned to the Issuer"
below.
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2.2  Risks associated with capital adequacy

The capital adequacy evaluation under a regulatory perspective is based on the constant
monitoring of own funds, risk weighted assets ("RWA") as well as on the comparison with the
minimum regulatory requirements, including the additional excess requirements to be met over
time as communicated to the Group after the SREP, and the additional capital buffers provided
for by the applicable legislative provisions. The optimisation of RWAs and assets is pursued
through the contextual monitoring of the dynamic of volumes and evolution of the relating risk
metrics.

The requirements of capital adequacy are defined by the provisions of EU Directive 2013/36
of the European Parliament and of the Council about access to credit institutions’ activities,
about credit institutions’ prudential supervision and about investment undertakings (the so-
called "CRD IV") and by (EU) Regulation 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 26 June 2013 concerning the prudential requirements for credit institutions and
investment firms (the so-called "CRR"), transposing in the European Union the standards
defined by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the so-called "Basel IlI
framework™). In Italy, the community regulation was implemented first and foremost by
Circular No. 285 (as defined below) of the Bank of Italy, as amended from time to time and,
eventually, on 8 May 2015 by the Council of Ministers, which approved the legislative decree
amending the Banking Consolidation Act and the Consolidated Finance Act. The above
regulatory acts apply as from 1 January 2014.

Moreover, as from 4 November 2014 the Single Supervisory Mechanism ("SSM") is in force,
as part of which the BCE was assigned specific tasks of credit institutions' prudential
supervision, in collaboration with the national supervisory authorities of the contracting
countries. More specifically, the BCE is now in charge of the supervision of all banks of the
Euro area, directly in the case of "major" banks, including Montepaschi Group, and indirectly
insofar as other banks are concerned, which are monitored by the national supervisory
authorities in compliance with the criteria established by the ECB itself.

@ Risks of capital adequacy applicable to the Issuer

As at the date of this Prospectus, the banks must meet the own funds requirements provided by
article 92 of the CRR: (i) the Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio must be equal to at least 4.5 per
cent. of the total risk exposure amount of the Bank; (ii) the Tier 1 Ratio must be equal to at
least 6 per cent. of the total risk exposure amount of the Bank; and (iii) the Total Capital Ratio
must be equal to at least 8 per cent. of the total risk exposure amount of the Bank.

Further to the minimum regulatory requirements, the banks must meet the combined buffer
requirement provided by the CRD IV, which is equal to the requirement concerning the sum
of the following buffers, if applicable (the "Combined Buffer Requirement"):

. capital conservation buffer equal to 1.875 per cent. for 2018 and to 2.5 per cent. as from
1 January 2019;
. institution specific countercyclical capital buffer, to be applied to periods of credit

overgrowth, calculated on a quarterly basis depending on the geographic distribution
of the relevant credit exposures of the Group and on the decisions of each competent
national authorities setting the specific ratios applicable in each country. The Bank of
Italy published, during the four quarters of 2018, the decision whereby the
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countercyclical capital buffer ratio applicable to the exposures towards the Italian
counterparts was set to 0 (zero) per cent;

. buffer for Global Systemically Important Institutions (*G-SI1"), not including, among
others, the Issuer as at the date of this Prospectus;

. buffer for other systemically important institutions, ("O-SII") at a local level for
Montepaschi Group, equal to 0.06 per cent. for 2018. On 30 November 2018, the Bank
of Italy informed the Issuer that it is no longer qualified as a national systemically
important institution authorised to operate in Italy and, therefore, as from 1 January
2019, it is not required to hold the capital buffer provided for the O-SII; and

. systemic risk buffer, aimed at preventing and minimising - in the long term - the
macroprudential countercyclical systemic risk not provided by the CRR (not applicable
as at the date of this Prospectus).

Banks that do not satisfy the combined capital requirement, or even just the capital conservation
buffer, are subject to the capital conservation measures provided for by Circular No. 285 (as
defined below). The capital conservation measures impose restrictions on, inter alia,
distributions of dividends, with greater restrictions being imposed as the breach becomes more
significant. It further provides for banks to adopt a capital conservation plan which shall set
out the measures (among which further capital increases cannot be excluded) the Bank intends
to adopt to restore, within an appropriate timeframe, the necessary capital level to maintain
capital reserves in line with the extent required. Should these conditions not be satisfied (i.e.,
failed compliance with the combined capital requirement, or even just the capital conservation
buffer), and/or changes to the methodologies and parameters to estimate Impaired Loans
adjustments or amendments to the internal models to calculate RWAs occur, the need may then
arise for further capital enhancements of the Issuer, such as calling in investors to participate
in further capital increase transactions.

With respect to the SREP to which the Group was subject during 2016, it should be noted that
on 19 June 2017, the ECB required the Bank to comply, starting from 1 January 2018, with a
level of TSCR on a consolidated basis equal to 11 per cent., including:

. the minimum Total Capital Ratio requirement of 8 per cent. in line with article 92, first
subsection of the CRR,;

o an additional 3 per cent. requirement (Pillar 1), in line with article 16, second
subsection, lett. (a) of the SSM framework regulation (ECB/2014/17, hereinafter the
"SSM Regulation™), which shall be fully composed of Common Equity Tier 1.

The Issuer is further subject to an overall capital requirement ("OCR"), including, besides the
TSCR, also the combined capital requirement.

Furthermore, the ECB notified to the Issuer the expectation for the Group to comply with an
additional 1.5 per cent. threshold (the so called "Pillar Il capital guidance”) to be fully
satisfied with Common Equity Tier 1, in addition to (i) the minimum common equity tier 1
requirement of 4.5 per cent. (Pillar I), (ii) the additional 3 per cent. requirement (Pillar 11) and
(iii) the combined capital requirement.
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In relation to the above, it should be noted that failure to comply with such capital guidance
would not be equal to a failure to comply with capital requirements; however, in the event of
capital dropping below the level including the "Pillar Il capital guidance”, the supervisory
authority, which shall be promptly informed in detail by the Issuer on the reasons for the failed
compliance with the aforementioned level, will take into consideration, on a case by case basis,
possible appropriate and proportional measures (including the possibility to put in place a plan
aimed at restoring compliance with the capital requirements — inclusive of capital enhancement
requests — in accordance with article 16, paragraph 2 of the SSM Regulation).

Please finally note that the SREP is conducted by the ECB at least on a yearly basis (without
prejudice in any case to the supervisory powers and prerogatives typical of the latter which can
be exercised on an on-going basis during the course of the year) and, accordingly, it cannot be
excluded that, following future SREPs, the supervisory authority may prescribe to the Issuer,
inter alia, the maintenance of capital adequacy standards higher than the ones currently
applicable. Furthermore, the ECB, following future SREPs, may impose on the Issuer specific
corrective measures, among which, inter alia, (i) requesting to hold capital resources to an
extent higher than the regulatory level notified for credit, counterparty, market and operational
risks, (ii) interventions aimed at enhancing systems, procedures and processes referring to risk
management, control mechanisms and capital adequacy evaluation, (iit) imposing limits on the
distribution of profits or other asset items, as well as, in relation to financial instruments eligible
as own funds, the prohibition to pay interest, and (iv) prohibitions to carry out certain
transactions, also of corporate nature, for the purpose of limiting the level of risks.

For more information on the SREP Decision please see "Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena
S.P.A. — Major Events — Recent developments — 2017 — SREP annual process".

Having regard to the liquidity ratios, and more specifically to the short-term Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (or "LCR"), having as its objective the creation and preservation of a liquidity
buffer allowing the bank's survival for a period of time equal to 30 days in the event of severe
stress, and to the structural liquidity ratio (Net Stable Funding Ratio, or "NSFR") over the time-
frame of one year, introduced to ensure that assets and liabilities have a sustainable structure
in terms of due dates, it should be pointed out that:

. as to the LCR, the requirement to be met is 100 per cent. starting from 1 January 2018;
and

o as to the NSFR, the European Union regulation is introduced in the legislative proposal
to amend the CRR - referred to as CRR Il - by the European Commission, published
on 23 November 2016, whose implementation date and final contents shall depend on
the timing and outcomes of the conclusion of the relevant legislative process. The
mandatory minimum threshold of the ratio shall be equal to 100 per cent..

Moreover, it should be highlighted that the Issuer shall also ensure compliance with the
Leverage Ratio, which will amount to an additional mandatory requirement compared to the
risk-based ratios. Full implementation of the leverage ratio as a measurement of the Pillar I in
the EU is currently under consultation as part of the "CRR 11 / CRD V" group of reforms, whose
implementation date and final contents shall depend on the timing and outcome of the
conclusion of the relevant legislative process. It should be highlighted in this respect that the
Basel Committee proposed a minimum leverage ratio of 3 per cent..
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Depending on the outcomes of the legislative process underway in Europe, the Issuer might be
compelled to adapt to changes in the regulations and in their construction and/or
implementation procedures adopted by the supervisory authorities, with potential adverse
effects on the Issuer's assets, liabilities and financial situation.

Among the main risk factors which could lead to a change in capital requirements, there is the
differential yield between Italian and German government bonds (BTP-Bund spread), the
increase of which leads to a reduction in capital reserves (FVTOCI Reserve, as defined below)
with a consequent decrease in regulatory capital. As at 30 September 2018, the sensitivity to
the credit spread of such reserve, calculated gross of tax, was approximately Euro -3.3 million
for each basis point of change in the BTP-Bund spread. It should also be noted that the effects
on regulatory capital and capital absorptions may derive from any regulatory changes
concerning, for example, the treatment of deferred tax assets.

With reference to the internal models used to calculate capital requirements for credit risk, it
should be noted that in recent years a review of internal corporate and retail standards has been
carried out, including the most recent data in the historical development series, which are more
representative of the current economic situation. In addition, in order to start in good time the
updating activities envisaged for the AIRB models and to meet the compliance goals scheduled
by the Supervisory Authority for the next few years, the Group has already begun discussions
with the Supervisory Authority itself, proposing the new calculation methods relating to the
new definition of default and the definition of a framework for calculating RWA on Defaulted
Assets. In addition, in 2018, the Group, like the other major European banks subject to SSM,
continued its work on TRIM (Targeted Review of Internal Models), which is expected to be
completed in 2019. Probably, the final outcome of TRIM will result in further methodological
changes to the current internal models with significant impacts on RWA; in particular, the
introduction of the new definition of default (expected by 31 December 2020) and the
introduction of specific standards for calculating LGD on Defaulted Assets and Expected Loss
Best Estimate (ELBE) could imply a major revision of all Probability of Default ("PD") and
LGD, with a consequent possible change in capital requirements, not quantifiable to date. In
this case, it cannot be excluded that the Issuer may have to resort to capital strengthening
measures and that it may not be able to establish and/or maintain the capital requirements
determined, from time to time, by the Supervisory Authority.

Investors should consider that supervisory authorities may impose further requirements and/or
parameters for the purpose of calculating capital adequacy requirements or may adopt
interpretation approaches of the legislation governing prudential funds requirements
unfavourable to the Issuer, with consequent inability of the Bank to comply with the
requirements imposed and with a potential negative impact, even material, on the business and
capital, economic and financial conditions of the Issuer and the Group, which may give rise to
the need to adopt further capital enhancement measures.

Furthermore, the evaluation of the capital adequacy level is affected by various variables,
among which the need to deal with the impacts deriving from the new and more demanding
requirements under a regulatory standpoint announced by the EU regulator (for more
information in this respect reference is made to "Risks associated with the evolution of the
banking and financial sector regulation and of the additional provisions the Group is subject
to"), the need to support functional plans to a more swift reduction of the stock of Impaired
Loans — even in addition to the assignment of the NPL Portfolio as described in "Risks
associated with the Group’s exposure to Impaired Loans" — and/or the assessment of market
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scenarios which promise to be particularly challenging and which will require the availability
of capital adequate resources to support the level of assets and investments of the Group. It
should also be noted that the current level of capital ratios has been achieved through the
precautionary recapitalisation, which has an exceptional nature.

(b) Risks associated with capital adequacy and SREPs of foreign branches

The Montepaschi Group is also active in France and Belgium with the two subsidiaries Banca
Monte Paschi Belgio S.A. and Monte Paschi Banque S.A. and, accordingly, the Group results
are affected also by the results and operations of the companies belonging to the Group. Any
deterioration of the profitability conditions and variables affecting the capital adequacy level
of the two foreign branches, among which the request of new and more demanding
requirements after the SREP process (for more information on the SREP, reference is made to
the section "Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. — Major Events — Recent Developments —
2017 — SREP annual process™ of this Prospectus) and more in general linked to the requests of
the competent authorities may require the Group to support functional plans for the restoration
of capital resources and to support the level of assets and investments of subsidiaries and have
negative impacts also on the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Group, also
deriving from needs for capital increases following any realisation of operating losses (as
occurred in the operating years 2016 and 2017 to the subsidiary Monte Paschi Banque for an
amount equal to, respectively, Euro 15 million and Euro 40 million).

With respect to the relevance of the two foreign branches within the Group, it is highlighted
that, as at 30 September 2018, the contribution to the Group RWA of Banca Monte Paschi
Belgio S.A. and Monte Paschi Banque S.A. is equal to, respectively, 1.3 per cent. and 1 per
cent..

In relation to weakness profiles/improvement areas identified in the context of the SREP,
subsidiaries defined the actions aimed at mitigating the weakness profiles identified by the
ECB, in agreement with the Issuer.

Although subsidiaries are engaged in the finalisation of the mitigation actions of weakness
areas, it cannot however be excluded that the same would prove to be not entirely adequate
and, accordingly, it cannot be excluded that, also after future SREPS, the supervisory authority
may prescribe to foreign branches of banks the maintenance of capital adequacy standards
higher than currently applicable ones and prescribe to such subsidiaries additional corrective
measures. In such cases, it cannot be excluded that the Group may find itself, also in light of
external factors and unforeseeable events outside its control, having to resort to measures aimed
at restoring adequate levels of such ratios also for foreign branches.

Also in light of the above, it is possible that the Issuer may have to recognise a reduction of its
capital ratios, compared to the current situation. In such cases it cannot be excluded that the
Group may find itself, also in light of external factors and unforeseeable events outside its
control, in need to resort to adequate measures aimed at restoring adequate levels of such ratios.

Finally, it is specified that the assignment of foreign branches (meaning Banca Monte dei
Paschi Belgio S.A. and Monte dei Paschi Banque S.A.) constitutes also one of the Restructuring
Plan’s Commitments and, therefore, in the event of the failed realisation of such assignment,
the Issuer will have to adopt alternative measures, such as severely restricting the two banks’
business to that closely aimed at deleveraging commitments, excluding the development of
new activities and the entry into new markets, with consequent negative impact on the
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economic, capital and/or financial condition, also due to the significant restructuring costs and
any reduction in the deposit collection. In this respect, it should be noted that, on 5 October
2018, BMPS entered into an agreement with a company controlled by funds managed by
Warburg Pincus for the sale of MP Belgio as provided for by the Commitments of the
Restructuring Plan. As of the date of this Prospectus, the transfer is subject to the approval of
the Belgian national bank and the ECB.

For more information on risks associated with the failed compliance with the Restructuring
Plan’s Commitments, reference is made to "Risks associated with the failed realisation of the
Restructuring Plan".

*khkk

Investors should consider that it cannot be excluded that in the future the Issuer may find itself,
also in light of external factors and unforeseeable events outside its control and/or after further
requests by the supervisory authority (also, inter alia, following the completion of SREP 2018),
having to resort to capital enhancement interventions, nor it can be excluded that the Issuer or
the Group may not be able to achieve in the prescribed times and/or maintain (both at individual
and consolidated level) the minimum capital requirements provided for by the legislation in
force from time to time or established from time to time by the supervisory authority, with also
possible material negative impacts on the business and capital, economic and financial
condition of the Issuer and/or the Group.

In this case, it cannot be excluded that the Issuer and/or the Group may be subject to
extraordinary actions and/or measures by competent authorities, which may include, inter alia,
the application of the resolution tools as per Legislative Decree No. 180 of 16 November 2015,
as amended from time to time ("Decree 180"), implementing Directive 2014/59/EU for the
recovery and resolution of credit institutions ("BRRD") in Italy.

2.3 Risks associated with the investigations of supervisory authorities

The Issuer, to the extent it exercises the banking activity and provides investment services, is
subject to complex regulation and to the specific supervision of the ECB, the Bank of Italy and
CONSOB, each for the aspects of competence.

Starting from 4 November 2014, the Single Supervisory Mechanism was launched, which
comprises the ECB and the national competent authorities of the participating Member States,
among which the Bank of Italy. The SSM is in charge of the prudential supervision of all
"significant™ credit institutions in the participating Member States. As of this date, accordingly,
with BMPS being a "significant™ bank, it is subject to the direct supervision of the ECB, which
exercises its powers in close cooperation with the national supervisory authorities (in Italy, the
Bank of Italy, which in any case retained some supervisory powers towards the Issuer, in
accordance with the provisions of the Legislative Decree No. 385/1993 (the "Consolidated
Banking Act")).

In exercising supervisory powers, the ECB and the Bank of Italy submit the Issuer, on a
periodic basis, to various investigation and/or verification activities, both ordinary and
extraordinary, for the purpose of fulfilling prudential supervision duties. With specific regard
to the verification activities, reference is made to those with systemic investigation perimeter
("Thematic Review") or those linked to the management of internal risk models for the
purpose of calculating capital requirements. The aforementioned investigation and/or
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verification activities feed the SREP, the purpose of which is to ascertain that the credit
institution has adequate capital and organisational control measures compared to the risks
taken, assuring the overall balance of management. Specifically, the SREP process is based on
the following four pillars: (i) assessment of feasibility and sustainability of the business model,;
(ii) assessment of the adequacy of governance and risk management; (iii) assessment of capital
risks; and (iv) assessment of liquidity risks. At the end of the annual SREP process, the
supervisory authority expresses a decision ("SREP Decision") with which quantitative capital
and/or liquidity requirements are notified together with any other possible recommendation on
organisational and controls matters that the credit institution shall comply with, in the set time
and manner.

Subsequent to the exercise of the supervisory powers, the ECB, the Bank of Italy, the
Commisione Nazionale per le Societa e la Borsa ("CONSOB") and the other supervisory
authorities may request organisational and controls enhancement interventions aimed at curing
any possible deficiencies found, with possible negative impact on the economic, capital and/or
financial condition the Group. The extent of such possible deficiencies may furthermore
determine the initiation of sanctioning proceedings against the company's representatives
and/or the related Group companies, with possible negative impact on the economic, capital
and/or financial condition of the Group.

For a description of the inspection activities recently carried out by the supervisory authorities
on the Issuer and the relevant administrative proceedings please see "Banca Monte dei Paschi
di Siena S.p.A. — Major Events — ECB/Bank of Italy inspections concluded during the period
2015-2018" of this Prospectus.

@) Supervisory activities by the ECB and the Bank of Italy

SREP Decision received by the Issuer on 19 June 2017

By letter sent on 19 June 2017 the ECB informed BMPS of the SREP Decision, with which it
notified the prudential requirements the Bank and its subsidiaries shall satisfy along with other
specific requests. The SREP has been conducted with reference date as at 31 December 2016,
also taking account of the information received after such date among which, specifically, the
draft Restructuring Plan submitted by the Bank to the European Commission.

After the SREP's completion, in line with article 16(2) of Reg. 1024/2013 and in relation to the
foreign branches, MP Belgio and MP Banque, the ECB highlighted some weakness
profiles/focus areas and requested additional capital requirements. For further information on
additional capital requirements, reference is made to "Risks associated with capital adequacy
and SREPs of foreign branches".

In light of the above, there is the risk that the Issuer may find itself in the future, also in light
of external factors and unforeseeable events outside the Group's control, having to
acknowledge failed compliance with qualitative requirements with the consequent need to
comply with further requests of the supervisory authority as well as a higher level of capital
ratios requested by the authority compared to those set by the SREP Decision. Such
circumstances may require the adoption of a capital restoration plan and having to resort to
capital enhancement interventions for the purpose of achieving the capital adequacy levels set
by the supervisory authority.
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Furthermore, there is the risk that, being the SREP conducted at least every year by the ECB,
the supervisory authority may require compliance with capital adequacy levels higher than the
most recent SREP Decision notified in June 2017. The Issuer may therefore have to resort to
further capital enhancement interventions.

As highlighted above, the Montepaschi Group is also active in France and Belgium with the
two subsidiaries Banca Monte Paschi Belgio S.A and Monte Paschi Banque S.A. and,
accordingly, the Group results are also affected by the results and operations of the companies
of the Group. Any deterioration of profitability conditions and variables affecting the capital
adequacy level of the foreign branches, among which the setting of new and more demanding
requirements after the SREP process and more in general linked to the regulator's requests,
may require the Group to support functional plans for the restoration of capital resources and
to support the subsidiaries' level of assets and investments and this may have negative impact
also on the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Group.

In 2018, the Bank was not subject to any stress tests (neither in the EBA EU — wide stress test
nor pursuant to the SREP).

Draft of SREP Decision received by the Issuer on 5 December 2018

On 5th December 2018 the Bank received from the Supervisory Authority a Draft of the
Decision establishing Prudential Requirements, based on the supervisory review and
evaluation process (SREP) conducted pursuant to Article 4(1)(f) of Regulation (EU) No
1024/2013 with reference date 31 December 2017 (the "Draft SREP Decision™). The letter is
provisional, and the final release is expected in the first quarter of 2019, as a result of the SREP.

In its draft letter, the ECB sets prudential requirements for the Bank (BMPS), both quantitative
(own funds) and qualitative, and points out some recommendations to the Bank and weaknesses
/ focus points that the Bank need to address. These have been represented in their main contents
into the press release of 11 January 2019 "Draft Srep decision confirms pillar 2 requirement
level to 3% and reduces guidance to 1,3%", which is incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus. Although the Bank has planned actions (mainly already included in its
Restructuring Plan), aimed at solving the weaknesses of the Group reported in this SREP Draft
Decision, at the reference date of this Base Prospectus there is a risk that the Bank, for
idiosyncratic or systemic reasons, is not able to adequately address in whole or in part the afore-
mentioned weaknesses.

Moreover, with specific reference to the recommendation of a gradual increase in coverage of
the stock of NPE, according to the Bank this request, to the extent it is not implemented, may
in principle result in an increase in capital requirements for the next years. This risk may be
mitigated: (i) by the Bank's ability to identify, in agreement with the ECB, an appropriate level
of coverage of NPLs stock as at the end of March 2018, (ii) through the reduction of the Bank’s
NPLs stock, also as a result of the execution of the planned sales and (iii) considering that the
increase in NPL provisions reduces one of the main risk factors on which the capital
requirements of the next SREP decisions will be based.

(b) Investigations of the ECB and the Bank of Italy and UIF

The ECB and the Bank of Italy, within the limits of their competence and powers, may carry
out investigations, both ordinary and extraordinary, on the Bank and/or the other supervised
Group companies.
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For more information on inspection activities carried out by the supervisory authority please
see " Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. — Major Events — ECB/Bank of Italy inspections
concluded during the period 2015-2018" of this Prospectus.

ECB activity inspection on internal models review (TRIM — 2939)

TRIM is a multiannual project, launched by the ECB in 2016 and expected to end in 2019,
aimed at assessing compliance with the regulatory requirements of the internal models
currently used by banks and their reliability and comparability.

From December 2017 to April 2018, within the context of TRIM the Group and the Issuer were
subject to an on-site inspection, in relation to the internal models on credit risks with specific
reference to PD and LGD parameters within the context of the retail exposures area — excluding
SMEs - associated with real estate guarantees. On 10 July 2018, the Bank received from the
ECB the inspection assessment report setting out 19 findings in relation to which the Bank sent
a letter providing for an action plan. The Issuer is waiting for the reply of the ECB.

Furthermore, with a letter dated 27 November 2018, the ECB informed the Bank that, within
the context of TRIM, starting from 21 January 2019, an on-site inspection relating to the
internal model on credit risk of the Issuer and the Group will be carried out with respect to
parameters Probability to Default, Loss Given at Default and Credit Conversion Factor, in the
context of the exposures called Corporate — others.

The internal models review (TRIM) may have also significant impacts on RWA, in particular,
the introduction of the new definition of default (expected by 31 December 2020) and the
introduction of specific models for the calculation of the LGD on the Defaulted Assets and the
Expected Loss Best Estimate (ELBE) could entail a significant review of all the models on the
Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given at Default (LGD), with following variation of the
capital requirements that, as at the date of this Prospectus, are not estimable. In such a case, it
cannot be excluded that the Issuer could face a situation where it is required to carry out capital
consolidation interventions.

Inspection activity of the Bank of Italy and the Financial Information Unit (Unita Informazione
Finanziaria) (UIF) in the field of anti-money laundering.

In the field of anti-money laundering the results of the two inspections carried out in the period
of May-June 2018 are not known yet.

In particular, with letter dated 8 May 2018, the Financial Information Unit ("UIF") carried out
an inspection activity relating to the assessment of the procedures created to verify potential
anomalies relating to the activity of the Issuer's clients.

On 5 June 2018, the Bank of Italy started an inspection on the Bank and Banca Widiba with
the aim of verifying the compliance with anti-money laundering provisions.

For more information on these inspections please see "Anti-money laundering Bank of Italy
inspection™ of this Prospectus.

Inspection activity of the Bank of Italy in the field of usury
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Starting from 6 June 2018, the Bank of Italy began an inspection aimed at verifying the
suitability of the organisational structures to produce correct reports of TEGMSs and to prevent
the risks associated with violations of usury regulations. The assessment was completed in
September 2018 and the Bank is waiting to receive the communication of the relevant results.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Bank is not subject to further inspections or significant
specific supervisory activities by the competent supervisory authorities, other than the one
herein described.

*khkk

In light of the above, the Issuer, as at the date of this Prospectus, identified mitigation actions
for each area of improvement emerging from the investigations, some of which have already
been closed and positively evaluated by the supervisory authority, while others have been
closed but are waiting for evaluation by the supervisory authority and others are in the process
of being implemented.

However, it cannot be excluded that, in the future, there will be deviations in respect of the
identified remedy actions which are being implemented.

It being understood that the Issuer may not be certain about what possible measures the EU
supervisory authority may adopt in case of failed fulfilment of the measures in progress
according to the manner and time provided and, therefore, what risk profiles may arise for the
Issuer from such possibility, it is possible that in this circumstance the EU supervisory authority
may send the Issuer a formal letter with further requests for in-depth analyses and activities to
be realised within specific deadlines. It is further possible that — in a prospective view — this
may entail a negative evaluation on the outcome of the SREP process — which is still pending
—and, as a consequence, the ECB may ask the Issuer for specific intervention measures and/or
the application of higher capital requirements.

It cannot be excluded that the Issuer and/or the Group companies may in the future be subject
to assessments or specific requests by the ECB or the Bank of Italy. Similarly, it is not even
possible to exclude that, should the Issuer not be able to promptly adapt to the requests of the
authority and/or fulfil the obligations imposed thereby, it may be subject to sanctions, or other
measures, with consequent negative impact on the economic, financial and/or capital condition
of the Issuer and/or the Group, as well as under a reputational perspective.

(©) CONSOB investigations

In relation to matters entrusted by Legislative Decree No. 58 of 24 February 1998 (as amended,
the "Consolidated Finance Act") to the competence of CONSOB, such Supervisory Authority
may exercise the powers granted thereto against the Issuer and the Group. Specifically,
CONSOB may - inter alia — submit the Issuer to investigations, even of ordinary nature and
with periodic frequency, and/or ask to be provided with specific information or to publicly
disclose other information.

Although, as at the date of this Prospectus, no investigation is pending against the Issuer and/or
the Group companies, it cannot be excluded that the Issuer and/or the Group companies may
in the future be subject to assessments or specific requests by the authority provided that the
Bank is ordinarily subject to CONSOB informative supervision.
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It has to be noted that, although the Issuer has adopted, as at the date of this Prospectus, all
measures deemed appropriate to resolve the criticalities highlighted by the supervisory
authorities after the aforementioned investigations, there is no certainty that those latter are, in
whole or in part, effective or whether in the future, after further assessments or investigations
by the authorities, further interventions may be necessary or appropriate to remedy possible
deficiencies possibly found. It cannot be excluded that, should the Issuer not be able to
promptly adapt to the requests of the authorities and/or fulfil the obligations imposed on it, it
may be subject to sanctions, or other measures, with consequent negative impact on the
economic, financial and/or capital condition of the Issuer and/or the Group, as well as from a
reputational perspective.

In relation to the above investigations conducted by the ECB, it has to be noted that in the on-
going implementation process of the measures requested by such supervisory authority
frequent exchanges of documents and conversations also took place, aimed at evidencing the
activities the Group was carrying out and hence verifying the correctness of such interventions'
approach. Since some of the interventions requested, or which proved necessary in light of the
criticalities found in the context of investigations, have been only recently realised or are, as at
the date of the Prospectus, in the process of being realised, their effectiveness cannot be
evaluated on the basis of a long-lasting application thereof. Therefore, it cannot in general be
excluded that the measures requested by the ECB and realised by the Issuer may subsequently
prove not fully effective over time, determining negative impact on the capital, economic and
financial condition of the Issuer and/or the Group.

Investors shall further consider that: (i) CONSOB, the Bank of Italy and the ECB - each
authority to the extent of its competence — are entitled to require from the Issuer or to adopt
other measures pursuant to the current regime; and (ii) the ECB is also entitled to request the
Issuer to retain an amount of own funds higher than the one provided for by the CRR and the
Italian implementing regulation (for more information on the measures concerning own funds
which the ECB may adopt please refer to "Risks associated with capital adequacy" above). The
exercise of such powers by the authorities may have a negative impact on the economic, capital
and financial condition and the capital ratios of the Issuer and/or the Group.

In such case it cannot be assured that the Issuer will satisfy the minimum parameters set in the
context of such exercises and that accordingly, in case of failure the ECB may impose measures
providing for, inter alia, the implementation of new capitalisation measures or other measures
suitable to restore the capital shortage found in the Bank's own funds and/or the further requests
which might derive from the SREP 2018, with a potential negative impact on the business and
the economic, capital and financial condition of the Issuer and/or the Group.

2.4  Risks associated with the Group's exposure to Impaired Loans

As at 30 September 2018, net loans to customers amounted to Euro 87.5 billion, substantially
stable compared to Euro 86.4 billion as at 31 December 2017 (Euro 106.7 billion as at 31
December 2016). Within the aggregate figure, non-impaired loans to customers amounted to
Euro 79.5 billion and Impaired Loans (as defined in Circular No. 272 issued by the Bank of
Italy on 30 July 2008 - as amended from time to time, the "Impaired Loans") to Euro 8.0
billion, respectively corresponding to 90.9 per cent. and 9.1 per cent. of total loans to customers
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(88.0 per cent. and 12.0 per cent. as at 31 December 2017; 81.0 per cent. and 19.0 per cent. as
at 31 December 2016).

As at 30 September 2018, Impaired Loans gross of value adjustments amounted to Euro 18.2
billion, down from Euro 26.9 billion, a decrease of 59.6 per cent. compared to the figure
recorded as at 31 December 2017 equal to Euro 45.1 billion (down by 1.5 per cent. compared
to 31 December 2016).

With reference to the various aggregate figures, the first nine months of 2018 recorded a
decrease by Euro 24 billion of "Doubtful Loans", mainly due to the derecognition of the
portfolio of non-performing loans (NPL Portfolio), a contraction of "Unlikely to Pay" by Euro
2.4 billion and of "Past Due Impaired Exposures” (Euro 0.1 billion) (together and respectively,
the "Doubtful Loans", the "Unlikely to Pay", and the "Past Due Impaired Exposures™ as
defined in Circular No. 272 issued by the Bank of Italy on 30 July 2008 — as amended from
time to time).

As at 30 September 2018, Impaired Loans net of value adjustments, amounted to Euro 8.0
billion, down by Euro 6.8 billion, with a 45.9 per cent. decrease, compared to the figure
recorded as at 31 December 2017 equal to Euro 14.8 billion (down by 27.2 per cent. compared
to 31 December 2016). The comparison between September 2018 and December 2017
highlights a reduction of the impact on loans to customers of net Doubtful Loans and of
Unlikely to Pay equal to respectively 3.4 per cent and 5.5 per cent. compared to respectively
7.1 per cent and 6.5 per cent as at 31 December 2017. The data on Past Due Impaired Exposure
is substantially stable. As at 30 September 2018, the coverage percentage of Doubtful Loans
amounted to 68.7 per cent., decreased from 77.2 per cent. as at 31 December 2017 due to the
derecognition of the transferred Impaired Loans which had been accounted for during the first
nine months of 2018.

As at 30 September 2018, the coverage of Unlikely to Pay and Past Due Impaired Exposures
is equal to 43.3 per cent. and 30.3 per cent., up compared to the figure recorded as at 31
December 2017 (respectively 40.7 per cent. and 25.6 per cent.) due to the application of the
new impairment method provided for by IFRS9 which was applicable from 1 January 2018.
As a consequence, the total coverage of Impaired Loans decreased from 67.2 per cent. as at 31
December 2017 to 56.1 per cent. as at 30 September 2018.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group recorded net value adjustments for credit risk for Euro
361 million, decreased by Euro 4,411 million compared to those recorded in the same period
of the prior financial year, mainly due to adjustments recorded during 2017 over the perimeter
of Doubtful Loans included in the NPL Portfolio, for the purpose of aligning the book value to
the expected assignment price in the context of the assignment of the NPL Portfolio.

In March 2017, the ECB published a document called "Guidance to banks on non-performing
loans”, which provides recommendations for banks with high NPL ratios on the definition of
an NPL management strategy in line with the business plan, the risk monitoring and
management system, the governance and control system, as well as the definition of regulatory
disclosure.

In relation to the 2016 financial year, the Group recorded net value adjustments for Impaired
Loans to banks and customers for aggregate Euro 4,467 million, significantly increased
compared to Euro 1,991 million of the prior financial year. The difference is mostly due to
higher adjustments due to the updated methodologies and parameters used in the credit
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assessment. Specifically, such variations, which already took into account the indications
contained in the draft "Guidance to banks on non-performing loans" published in December
2016 as well as internal valuations, concerned the changes in the calculation methodology of
the fund for discounting Unlikely to Pay, the increase of the analytical assessment threshold of
Unlikely to Pay, the update of haircuts on real estate guarantee and the definition of minimum
coverage floors on the so called "extended doubtful loans".

For more information on the risks associated with the impairment of loans, reference is made
to "Credit risk and risk of credit quality deterioration” below.

It should be noted that the Restructuring Plan assumed the successful completion of the
assignment of the NPL Portfolio, which was structured in more phases and was completed with
the derecognition of the NPL Portfolio on 22 June 2018. Furthermore, the Restructuring Plan
assumed the realisation of certain measures undertaken by the management aimed at improving
efficiency of (i) the management of the Unlikely to Pay portfolio, in which respect the cure rate
IS expected to increase and the danger rate is expected to decrease, and (ii) the management of
the non-impaired portfolio, confirmed by the expected reduction of the default rate. The
assumed successful evolution of the NPE ratio in the period 2017-2021 takes the advantages
also of the effects connected to further assignments/reduction of small ticket and leasing
positions classified as a non-performing loans with a global gross exposure of Euro 2.5 billion
by 31 December 2018 (ii) the positions belonging to Unlikely to Pay portfolio, in the period
from 2017 to 2019 (other than the assignment of the NPL Portfolio) for an overall exposure of
around Euro 4.5 billion, of which Euro 2.5 billion was realised as of 30 September 2018 and
(iii) the transfer of Unlikely to Pay receivables’ for an overall exposure of around Euro 2
billion, in the period 2020-2021.

Finally, the evolution of the NPE ratio is further correlated (other than to the positive
completion of the activities set out in the Restructuring Plan) with factors which are outside
the control of the management such as the improvement of the reference macroeconomic
environment.

*khkk

In relation to any future capital impacts deriving from the Bank's exposure to Impaired Loans,
it should be noted that, on 15 March 2018, the ECB published the addendum to the banks'
guidelines on non-performing loans dated 20 March 2017 which supplements the guidelines
on NPLs and set out the ECB expectations on the assessment of the level of precautional
allocation for a bank with respect to non-performing exposures. In this context, since the
Restructuring Plan does not consider the potential effects of the addendum (which has been
subject to public hearing after the approval of the Restructuring Plan), starting from 2021, the
Target SREP of the Bank could require additional capital pursuant to the provisions of the
addendum and/or it might be possible that the Bank will not reach the targets of the
Restructuring Plan due to higher coverage levels in relation to non-performing loans originated
after 1 April 2018.

Considering that the relevant legislative framework is still evolving (for further details refer to
paragraph "Risks associated with the evolution of the banking and financial sector regulation
and of the additional provisions the Group is subject to" below) and considering the potential
outcomes of any future SREP processes, it cannot be excluded that the supervisory authority
may require the Issuer to maintain higher capital adequacy standards compared to those
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currently applicable. For further information on capital adequacy requirements applicable to
the Issuer and on the associated risks, reference is made to "Risks associated with capital
adequacy" below.

*khkk

In addition, even if the assignment of the NPL Portfolio and the derecognition thereof have
been realised in their entirety, it cannot be excluded that, in the future, a further deterioration
of the credit quality of the Bank and/or the Group may occur, both due to factors out of the
Issuer's control — such as the persistence of the negative macroeconomic environment — and as
a consequence of actions of the competent authorities, possibly after investigations.

In particular, it should be considered that the persisting crisis situation of the credit markets,
the deterioration of the capital markets conditions, the persistent phase of slowing down of the
global economy observed over the past years as well as possible measures adopted by the
authorities of single countries may further reduce the available income of families and the
profitability of enterprises and/or have a further negative impact on the ability of the Group's
customers to fulfil the obligations taken and determine, therefore, a significant worsening of
the credit quality of the Issuer and/or the Group.

Furthermore, the macroeconomic scenario development and/or the performance of specific
sectors (with specific reference to families and small and medium enterprises, representing the
Group's main customers) may entail a further reduction, even significant, of the value of
guarantees received from customers and/or the impossibility, on the side of customers, to
supplement the guarantees provided as a result of a value reduction thereof, hence negatively
impacting on the Bank's estimated results due to the deterioration of credit quality and the
additional provisions to be created in light of this deterioration, with a potential negative impact
on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the
Group.

2.5  Credit risk and risk of credit quality deterioration

The Group's business, economic, capital and financial soundness as well as the ability to
generate profits depend, inter alia, on the creditworthiness of its clients, i.e. the risk that its
contractual counterparties (including the counterparties of financial transactions on derivative
securities traded over the counter — although in this case reference is more appropriately made
to counterparty risk, as set out in "Other risks associated with the banking and financial
business™ below) default their obligations or that the creditworthiness of such counterparties
deteriorates or that Group companies grant, based on untrue, incomplete or inaccurate
information, loans that they would otherwise not have granted or they would have granted at
different terms. Furthermore, not reducing the cost of funding for the Group in respect to
competitors may affect negatively also the quality of the lending.

For more information on the risks associated with the Issuer's exposure to Impaired Loans,
even in relation to the assignment of the NPL Portfolio, reference is made to "Risks associated
with the Group's exposure to Impaired Loans" above.

As at 30 September 2018, loans to customers amounted to Euro 88,563 million, down by 2.7
per cent. compared to Euro 91,042 million as at 31 December 2017. Within the aggregate
figure, performing loans to customers amounted to Euro 80,052 million and Impaired Loans to
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Euro 8,511 million, respectively corresponding to 90.4 per cent. and 9.6 per cent. of total loans
to customers (83.8 per cent. and 16.2 per cent. as at 31 December 2017).

As at 30 September 2018, Impaired Loans of the Group were equal to Euro 8,511 million,
representing a decrease of Euro 6,287 million compared to 31 December 2017 (Euro 14,798
million) mainly as a consequence of the derecognition of the Impaired Loans transferred and
the several transfers of Unlikely to Pay realising during the first semester 2018. In particular,
as at 30 September 2018 (i) the Impaired Loans were equal to Euro 3.040 million compared to
Euro 7,532 million as of 31 December 2017 (-59.6 per cent.), (ii) the Unlikely to Pay are equal
to Euro 5,211 million representing a decrease compared to Euro 6,880 million as of 31
December 2017 (-24.3 per cent.) and (iii) the Past Due Impaired Exposures were equal to Euro
260 million representing a decrease compared to Euro 387 million as of 31 December 2017 (-
32.8 per cent.).

As at 30 September 2018, exposures the subject matter of forbearance measures amount to
Euro 6,176 million (of which Euro 4,018 million are impaired and Euro 2,158 million are not
impaired) and can be fully referred to the "Loans to customers™ and "Non-current assets and
groups of assets held for sale and discontinued operations™ portfolios.

Concentration risk is closely related to credit risk, deriving from exposures to counterparties
and groups of related counterparties belonging to the same economic sector, exercising the
same activity or coming from the same geographical area. In relation to the main Group's credit
exposures to customers, the analysis of the first 100 amounts as at 30 September 2018
highlights an overall credit exposure to the first ten counterparties equal to Euro 2.7 billion.

From the analysis of the geographical distribution of the Group's customers as at 30 September
2018, we note how for the retail segment customers are mainly concentrated in Central (35.3
per cent.) and Southern (34.5 per cent.) regions; followed by North-east and North-west
(respectively 16.7 per cent. and 13.5 per cent.). Similarly, for the corporate sector customers
are mainly concentrated in the Central (35.2 per cent.) regions; followed by North-east and
South (respectively 25.1 per cent. and 22.0 per cent.) and North-west (17.7 per cent.).

Forborne exposures

The loan classification within quality based categories (in bonis, Past Due Impaired Exposures,
Unlikely to Pay, Doubtful Loans) is governed by the Bank of Italy's regulations transposed by
the Group in its internal policies. For the purpose of transposing the requirements governed by
the EBA's Implementing Technical Standards (ITS) the Bank's board of directors adopted, on
18 December 2014, the accounting policy called "Loans, guarantees given and commitments
to disburse funds”, which inter alia implements the provisions in the matter of "Exposures for
which measures of tolerance have been applied” and governs the principles and criteria to be
adopted for the exposure classification as "forborne receivable", whether performing or non-
performing. The policy provisions and the consequent integrations to the informative system
have been progressively implemented during 2015. In this respect, on 8 May 2015, the Bank's
board of directors adopted the loan evaluation and classification policy, which set the basis for
the alignment of forbearance measures' identification and management modalities in the
company's and Group's processes to the aforementioned accounting policies already issued in
December 2014, the supervisory rules and the observations expressed by the supervisory
authority on the matter.
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The main contents concern: (i) the identification of Impaired Loans (by introducing some
impairment triggers for the classification of exposures from in bonis to non-performing); (ii)
the principles and criteria to be adopted for the classification of exposures as "forborne loans™,
whether performing or non-performing; (iii) the assessment of Unlikely to Pay and Doubtful
loans with the application of haircuts on guarantees; and (iv) the assessment of unsecured
Impaired Loans (the Bank adopted some minimum thresholds to determine write-downs on
unsecured Doubtful Loans subject to bankruptcy procedures).

With specific reference to forborne exposures, throughout 2015 an activity was furthermore
carried out aimed at the full identification of forbearance exposures granted before 2015, in the
context of the usual review process of granted credit lines.

In the course of 2016 and 2017 interventions continued to fine-tune the tools available to the
network for the identification of forbearance measures upon granting and their subsequent
management, with the purpose of making the identification and management process more and
more accurate. The training activities of all roles within the network and the general direction
involved for various reasons in the identification and management of forbearance measures
also continued.

In this respect, a loan is identified as forborne after a specific assessment in which both the
following conditions shall be satisfied:

o the state of financial difficulty the debtor faces or is on the verge of facing in meeting
its financial commitments; and

) the concession of a tolerance in light of current financial difficulties or difficulties
which would have materialised in the absence of the intervention of total or partial debt
renegotiation/refinancing.

Accordingly, if, after the assessment process, the satisfaction of both conditions is established,
the single agreement is identified by the Group as "Forbearance Exposure”. At least two
different roles and in particular the relationship manager as "proposer" and the credit
underwriter are always in charge of verifying said conditions.

With regard to customers classified under Impaired Loans, the customer's economic difficulty
is associated with its position's state. Accordingly, the customer's state of “financial difficulty”
is objectively ascertained.

The verification of the forbearance concession is referred to the single agreement. The main
cases among forbearance concession interventions are:

. renegotiation of payment terms of an instalment loan;
. extension of a temporary credit line approaching maturity; and
. concession of a new credit line or increase of an outstanding credit line in the context

of which overdraft or overdue uses are envisaged.
Decisions concerning the reclassification "in bonis" of "Exposures for which impaired

concessions have been applied” and the exposure classification at higher risk, in compliance
with the conditions provided for by the applicable regime, are assumed through a structured
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process allowing for the analysis and historicisation of all available evaluation elements, which
always provide for the assessment and decision to be assigned to at least two different roles.

Possible amendment requests to loan assessment methodologies and parameters by supervisory
authorities and/or other amendments thereto as a consequence of evolutions in the reference
legislation_may entail increased Impaired Loans and related provisions as well as possible
amendments to credit risk estimates, with a potential negative impact on the business and the
economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Issuer and/or the Group.

Regardless of the source giving rise thereto (legislative changes, macroeconomic aspects or
other), the worsening of credit quality would expose the Group to the risk of possibly increased
"Net value adjustments on impaired exposures™ and cost of funding with consequent decreased
profitability and profits, if any, available to the Issuer for distribution, as well as lower self-
funding capacity, with further potential negative impact on the business and the economic,
capital and/or financial condition of the Issuer and/or the Group.

Large Exposures

The large exposures' values are determined with Basel 111 (as defined below) parameters, which
define large exposure as the exposure to a client, or group of related clients, of nominal value
equal to or greater than 10 per cent. of eligible capital (the "Large Exposure™). Eligible capital,
as set out in article 4 (71) of the CRR, is comprised of Tier 1 capital, plus Tier 2 capital to the
maximum extent of one-third of Tier 1 capital (for 2016, a derogation is in force which
increases the maximum extent to half of Tier 1 capital).

Large Exposures were comprised as follows:

M No. 9 positions as at 30 September 2018,

(i) No. 11 positions as at 31 December 2017 and
(i) No. 16 positions as at 31 December 2016.

The decrease of the weighted value as at 30 September 2018 is mainly due to the decrease of
the risk activities in relation to certain groups of clients which as at 31 December 2017 were
classified within the Large Exposure.

The decreased number of Large Exposures recorded as at 31 December 2017 and as at 31
December 2016 derives from the increase of own funds following the precautionary
recapitalisation, implemented by the MEF in August 2017, which entailed the increase of the
eligible capital and accordingly the threshold relating to the Large Exposure.

The dynamic of the operation with central counterparties influences, in significant way, the
balance value of Large Exposures, which reached the highest point, with respect to the same
period, in December 2016 with over Euro 37 billion which dropped to less than half at the end
of 2017, for then going up again over Euro 21 billion in September 2018.

Finally, although risks associated with Large Exposures are periodically monitored at Group
level, it should be noted that an excessive concentration of exposures to a sole counterparty, a
small group of counterparties or groups of related counterparties may determine, in case of
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deterioration of the related creditworthiness, negative impacts on the economic, capital and/or
financial condition of the Issuer and/or the Group.

*kk*k

It should be noted that the assessment of possible losses the Issuer and/or the Group may incur
in respect of single credit exposures and the aggregate lending portfolio depends — besides on
the reference legislative and regulatory framework — upon several factors, among which,
without limitation, the trend of general economic conditions as well as those relating to specific
productive sectors, the worsening of the competitive position of counterparties in the respective
business sectors, the possible bad management of enterprises or borrowers, movements in
interest rates, the indebtedness level of families, the dynamic of the real estate market as well
as other elements which, for various reasons, may affect the credit worthiness of counterparties
and/or the value of guarantees in protection of risks taken. Historically, credit risks have always
worsened in periods of economic recession or stagnation, typically characterised by higher
insolvency and failure rates.

Crisis situation of credit markets and of the negative trend of the global economy may reduce
families' available income and enterprises profitability and/or have a negative impact on
banking customers' ability to fulfil their obligations. In addition, any future adverse economic
change may entail further reductions of the value of collaterals and/or the impossibility to post
further collaterals. Finally, the general macroeconomic condition, the negative trend of specific
business sectors and the actions of supervisory authorities may entail further reductions of the
value of the collaterals received by the Issuer and/or the Group.

In addition, it should also be noted that, at the end of 2016, the new chief lending officer
direction was set up with the purpose of speeding up the management rationalisation and
improvement process launched in 2015 of the relevant amount of non-performing exposures
and making risk monitoring on performing exposures more efficient and effective. To this end,
an organisational structure dedicated to the management of high risk positions has in fact been
set up. The intervention enabled the transfer of the responsibility for risk management of these
positions to a specific chain of command, redirecting the Group's focus on the most risky
performing positions with the goal of intervening in a more timely manner upon the arising of
the first signals of impairment. Finally, at organisational level, an area has been created directly
reporting to the chief lending officer with transversal governance and direction duties over both
the entire performing and non-performing loan portfolio.

For more information on (i) the criticalities highlighted by the ECB in relation to the credit risk
within the context the SREP Decision, reference is made to "Risks associated with the
investigations of supervisory authorities” above and (ii) the findings of the SREP Decision,
reference is made to "Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.P.A. — Major Events — Recent
developments — 2017 — SREP annual process™ of this Prospectus.

With respect to the compliance, reliability and comparability evaluation to regulatory
requirements of the internal model currently used from the banks, the ECB launched different
inspection activities (TRIM — Targeted Review of Internal Models). For a further description
of such supervisory activities, reference is made to "Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.P.A. -
Major Events — Recent developments - ECB/Bank of Italy inspections concluded during the
period 2015-2019 - ECB inspection activity in relation to the review of the internal models
(TRIM-2939)" and to "Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.P.A. — Major Events — Recent
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developments — ECB/Bank of Italy inspections concluded during the period 2015-2019 -
Internal Model Investigation — IMI 40" of this Prospectus.

In light of the above, even following the completion of the assignment of the NPL Portfolio, a
further deterioration of credit quality compared to that already recorded during past financial
years — with consequent increase in Impaired Loans and relating value adjustments which may
entail negative impacts, even significant, on the economic, financial and capital condition of
the Issuer and/or the Group cannot be excluded.

Although the Group monitors credit risk through specific policies and procedures aimed at
identifying, monitoring and managing it and periodically carries out a new estimation of risk
parameters and provisions for losses, if any, also on the basis of available historical
information, the occurrence of the abovementioned circumstances as well as of unexpected
and/or unpredicted events may lead to increased Impaired Loans and provisions relating thereto
as well as to possible amendments to credit risk estimates, with a potential negative impact on
the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

During 2016, the board of statutory auditors continued its verification activity concerning the
credit area. Specifically, with the assistance of the internal audit function, the board of statutory
auditors directly visited the network where an annual activity programme was being conducted
and focused on the credit origination process, with regard to abiding by the fulfilments
associated with the beginning of the preliminary investigation, the formalisation of guarantees
(assessment) and the subsequent granting of credit lines to customers (disbursement). Such
investigations commenced in the first quarter of 2016 within some "Market Territorial
Departments™ (Direzioni Territoriali Mercato — "DTM"), selected for each territorial area
comprising the network. Verifications highlighted a situation of adequacy under the credit
process formalisation point of view within the company's regulations, although finding focus
areas mainly referred to behavioural aspects concerning the execution modalities of the various
stages of the process itself.

In the second quarter of 2016, this exercise was replicated within the same structures, thorough
specific follow-up activities from which an overall improvement of previously found
criticalities emerged, thanks to mitigation interventions, of a training nature, put in place in the
meantime by the competent Bank functions, solicited by the board of statutory auditors to
increase the culture of risk and compliance with rules and corporate policies.

Furthermore, two verifications were conducted, which were provided for in the prior annual
action plan, but closed in the first months of 2016, concerning the "Credit recovery” and
"Management of relations with vendors" processes.

The findings of the review in the matter of credit recovery were then included in the ARGO2
(as defined below) programme, specifically for the aspects associated with the failed update of
the informative sheets relating to each non-performing file (the so called business plan) as well
as for the times, both of transfer of doubtful positions and of activation of recovery actions,
which both resulted in not being functional. As part of the planning of the verification activities
for 2017, specific focus continued to be dedicated to the credit process, in respect of which, in
continuity with the activities carried out in 2016, specific verifications have been defined —
both at central and peripheral level — to be conducted during the year, with the usual support
of the internal audit functions.
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In 2017, a review was carried out aimed at measuring the effectiveness of the process of
evaluation and credit disbursement of the 'Large Corporate' segment, which represents the
Group's reference for the management and development of high standing corporate customers
and its consistency with the classification standard adopted by the Bank.

There was a substantial level of adequacy and completeness of the preliminary investigation
with a correct and exhaustive drafting of the proposals for the decision-making bodies: the
verifications have in fact highlighted an adequate capacity to manage the origination phase
(preliminary investigation, resolution and acquisition of guarantees). However, with regard to
the phases of operational management and monitoring of individual credit practices, some areas
of improvement have been detected. In addition, in continuity with the similar activities carried
out during the previous financial year, the board of statutory auditors went directly to the
network, continuing with the programme of verifications focused on the credit origination
process, having regard to compliance with the fulfilments connected with the start of the
preliminary investigation, the formalisation of guarantees (valuation) and the subsequent
provision of credit lines to customers (disbursement). In addition, the cycle of verifications for
2017 has also extended the controls to the 'document management' process with the aim of
verifying the management of the formalisation and conservation of the contractual
documentation underlying the services provided to customers, with a particular focus on the
‘Credit’ and 'Investment Services' sectors.

These assessments began in the first half of 2017 and involved a significant sample of
Territorial Departments (Direzioni Territoriali Mercato — "DTM") located within the territorial
areas in which the Bank is operatively divided. In the second half of the year, this exercise was
replicated at the same facilities, through specific follow-up activities, which revealed the
overall improvement in the criticalities previously recorded, as well as a clear improvement in
the main risk indicators.

In the first part of 2018 the board of statutory auditors concluded the first verification session
at the network, carried out with the assistance of the internal audit function, in line with the
annual planning agreed with the Chief Audit Executive Office. The supervisory structures
referable to the Territorial Departments, the Credit Area Offices and the Departmental
Departments Compliance and Controls and, for operational tests, the Branches and the Private
Sampled Centres have been selected with regards to all the No. 5 territorial areas in which the
network is divided.

The areas of investigation concerned, inter alia, the following contents:
o credit origination; and
J document management.

Even with some distinctions and the presence of areas of attention, an overall improvement
trend was detected in all the fields of investigation.

The results of this activity are, in any case, subject to follow-up by the board of statutory
auditors.

Within the monitoring activity conducted by the board of statutory auditors on the
recommendation of the Joint Supervisory Team (JST), the one connected with ARGO 2, aimed
at achieving the improvements linked with the findings highlighted by the ECB during the on-
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site inspection of the loans portfolio conducted by the same supervisory authority during 2015
is noticed. These verifications testified the overall strengthening of credit risk safeguards
obtained in particular with the restructuring of the underlying rules and processes. In fact, the
regulatory framework, the operational processes and the IT supporting systems have been
revised.

Although the remedy plan established in this regard by the JST foresaw its conclusion in 2016,
the closure of some findings, although considered paramount also by the board of statutory
auditors, was postponed to 2017. Therefore, during 2017 the board of statutory auditors
continued its supervisory activity on the implementation of the remedies indicated by the ECB,
by requesting, from time to time, the competent functions, to respect the timescales established
and agreed, in any case, with the ECB.

However, due to the non-completion of the remediation plan by 2017, the commitment by the
board of statutory auditors in monitoring the final implementation of ARGO 2 was significant
also in the first part of 2018, bringing to the attention of the JST the further completion phases
of the remedies and of those remedies for which there were some delays and on which the
follow-up activities continued.

Also during the course of 2018, the activity of the board of statutory auditors related to the OSI
1238 inspection conducted by the ECB between the second half of 2016 and first months of
2017 on the 'assessment of the management and control system for credit and counterparty
risks with reference to the retail, SME and corporate portfolio' was significant. In February
2018, the definitive results of the verification were disclosed and summarized in No. 9 findings.
As in previous circumstances, also in this case the JST requested the close involvement of the
board of statutory auditors (as well as the board of directors) in the implementation and
monitoring of remedial actions. At the date of this Prospectus, the auditors were able to take
note of the regular progress, as a whole, of the project activities carried out such intervention
and remedy programme of the Bank has been named "ARGO 3". In particular, the board of
statutory auditors acknowledged that the activities are in line with the planning and that all the
project deliverables expiring on 30 June 2018 have been closed. However, the statutory
auditors remain committed to monitoring the completion and definitive settlement of the
findings whose deadline is scheduled for the end of 2018. For the sake of completeness, the
board of statutory auditors noted that the requests underlying some of the findings of ARGO 3
reiterate or reinforce aspects already emerged and highlighted in the findings of ARGO 2.

2.6 Liquidity risk

The availability of liquidity as well as access to the long term financing market represent key
elements carrying out the typical banks and financial institutions business. In particular, the
liquidity and long term financing are crucial for a bank to be able to fulfil its payment
obligations, expected or unexpected, in such a way that does not prejudice its current operations
or its capital and/or financial conditions.

Liquidity risk means the Bank's inability to fulfil unexpected and expected payment
obligations. This occurs when internal (specific crisis) or external (macroeconomic conditions)

reasons result in the Bank having to deal with a sudden reduction of available liquidity or with
a sudden need to increase the funding.

Typically, the forms in which liquidity risk takes place are:
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o market liquidity risk: associated with the possibility that the Bank is not able to liquidate
a balance sheet asset without incurring capital losses or with realisation times generally
longer due to low liquidity or inefficiencies in the reference market; and

o funding liquidity risk: represents the possibility that the Bank is not able to fulfil
expected and unexpected payment obligations, according to cost-effective criteria and
without prejudice to its typical business or the same Bank's financial condition.

In relation to liquidity risk, as highlighted in the SREP Decision 2017 notified by the ECB on
19 June 2017, BMPS implemented strategies, policies, processes and systems for the
identification, measurement, management and monitoring of liquidity risk as well as improved
its structural liquidity position (funding). Notwithstanding the above, the SREP Decision
highlighted that risk profiles still remain linked to commercial deposits' volatility and to the
Bank's exposure to stress events, as observed in the last quarter of 2016 following the failure
of the 2016 Transaction After the significant outflows of deposits on occasion of the failed
perfection of the 2016 Transaction, deposits highlighted an increase after the Issuer's request
to activate the precautionary recapitalisation and the granting of state guarantee over the issue
of new liabilities. Specifically, from January to March 2017, the Issuer issued liabilities
guaranteed by the Italian State for an overall nominal amount equal to Euro 11 billion, of which
Euro 3 billion of securities due and redeemed on 20 January 2018, Euro 4 billion of securities
due 25 January 2020 and Euro 4 billion of securities due 15 March 2020.

In this respect, it is highlighted that the precautionary recapitalisation provided a direct
contribution to structural liquidity, in the course of 2017, for an initial amount of Euro 3.9
billion, disbursed by the MEF in subscription of the Capital Increase, reserved to the MEF,
accompanied by the amount, again disbursed by the MEF in the context of the public offering
for exchange and settlement for an additional amount of Euro 1.5 billion. Equally significant
is the contribution to structural liquidity obtained from the assignment of NPLs for an amount
higher than Euro 4 billion, deriving from the sale of the mezzanine notes and the junior notes
issued by Siena NPL 2018 S.r.l. (respectively, the "Mezzanine Notes" and the "Junior Notes™)
and from the possibility that the Senior Notes will be sold on the market or used as collateral
for financing transactions with other financial counterparties.

For more information on the SREP Decision 2017, reference is made to section "Banca Monte
dei Paschi di Siena S.P.A. — Major Events — Recent developments — 2017 — SREP annual
process” of this Prospectus and in relation to, more in general, the risks associated with the
inspections of supervisory authorities, reference is made to "Risks associated with the
investigations of supervisory authorities™ above.

Furthermore, the Group will be subject to the 2019 ECB stress test in order to assess the banks'
resilience to idiosyncratic liquidity shock (the so-called "Sensitivity analysis of liquidity risk —
stress test 2019 (LIST 2019)™). Such results will be part of the wider SREP for 20109.

@) Liquidity indicators relating to the Issuer

The main indicators used by the Issuer for the assessment of the liquidity profile are the
Liquidity Coverage Ratio, the Net Stable Funding Ratio, and the Loan to Deposit Ratio,
representing the ratio between lending to customers and direct deposit collection, excluding
transactions with central counterparties.
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The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), as short term liquidity indicator, as at 30 September 2018
was equal to 185.9 per cent., above the minimum regulatory requirement applicable for 2018,
decreasing 13.6 per cent. compared to 31 December 2017, as a consequence of the decrease of
the liquidity buffer which has not been completely counterbalanced by the decrease of net
outflow.

The LCR indicator is exposed to the risk of further negative variations associated with tensions
in commercial deposit collections, to which the Group is subject, and to possible other negative
events for liquidity (i.e. downgrading of the Bank or reduced counterbalancing value) which
may occur in the near future.

The Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR), as medium/long term liquidity indicator, as at 30
September 2018 is equal to 110.6 per cent., stable compared to December 2017, equal to 110.0
per cent. As at 30 September 2018 (most recent available data since calculated on financial
statement data), the Group’s loan-to-deposit ratio amounted to 93.1 per cent. compared to 88.4
per cent. as at 31 December 2017 and 102.0 per cent as at 31 December 2016 compared to an
Italian banking system average equal to 91.4 per cent as at 31 December 2017 and 89.6 per
cent. as at 31 December 2016.

On a monthly basis, the Group monitors concentration risks of funding sources of both a
financial and commercial nature, with specific focus on the detail of the main non-retail
counterparties. The risk of concentration of the deposits collection's sources held by
Montepaschi Group exists and is linked to a significant depositor, the average in stock of which
is affected by the seasonality with a sensible reduction expected for the end of the year. The
risks' measures include any evolution of such balance and the related adequacy evaluations on
the actual and future liquidity have highlighted positive results both in the ordinary operations
and under stress conditions. As at 30 September 2018, in accordance with the results of the
regulatory Additional Liquidity Monitoring Metrics (ALMM) deposit collection through
unsecured channels amounted to approximately 69 per cent. of total collections, of which 11
per cent. were related to financial non-retail counterparties and 17 per cent. were related to
non-financial non-retail counterparties. In this latter category the main counterparty is "CSEA
— Cassa per i Servizi Energetici e Ambientali*, with an overall exposure of 24 per cent. of total
non-financial non-retail counterparties (corresponding to 6 per cent. of total deposit collections
carried out through unsecured channels).

The Group carries out the daily monitoring of the level of counterbalancing capacity (meant as
the Bank's capacity to deal with its liquidity demand and comprising available sources on the
"RTGS" account held with the ECB and non-committed eligible asset stocks available for
funding transactions) and of the "Operational Liquidity Portfolio” (prospective liquidity
situation based on expected payment commitments). Furthermore, the Group determines a
"Time-to-Survival™ ("TTS") under stress, defined as the time range during which the post stress
liquidity buffer (given as the difference between the "Operational Liquidity Portfolio™ at a
certain date and absorption of liquidity generated by the "Cumulative Management Stress
Test™) goes to zero: this measure, in substance, defines the Bank's survival time in the
theoretical case of simultaneous realisation of particularly unfavourable circumstances in the
market performance and of a specific nature.

As at 31 December 2017, the counterbalancing capacity level amounted to Euro 21.1 billion
(Euro 6.9 billion as at 31 December 2016) and the TTS under stress was equal to 136 calendar
days (0 (zero) calendar days as at 31 December 2016). As at 30 September 2018, the operational
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liquidity position recorded a level of counterbalancing capacity not used equal to Euro 185.5
billion and the TTS under stress was equal to 125 calendar days.

In this respect, it cannot be excluded that an additional liquidity crisis, as a consequence of the
uncertainties characterising the current macroeconomic scenario and the performance of
markets and, in general, of other events outside the Issuer’s control, may have repercussions on
the Bank's liquidity profile and call for the adoption of measures which may have a negative
impact on the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Issuer and/or the Group.

Finally, it has to be noted that failed compliance with the minimum requirements provided for
by the legislation applicable to the Issuer for liquidity indicators may entail the adoption against
the Issuer of specific measures by the authorities and, should the Issuer and/or the Group not
be able to adopt such measures or fulfil the obligations imposed by the same authorities, may
have a negative impact on the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Issuer and/or
the Group.

(b) Risks associated with the macroeconomic context in which the Group operates

In the last few years, the macroeconomic scenario in which the Group operates has been
characterised by persistent and long-lasting periods of high volatility and instability of financial
markets which significantly reduced liquidity supply sources for financial institutions,
including the Group.

The difficulty to access the market continued also in 2016 and 2017, mainly as a consequence
of: (i) the introduction of the bail-in regime (which consists in the reduction of shareholders'
and creditors' rights or their rights being converted into capital pursuant to Decree 180) and,
specifically, of the Minimum Requirements for Own Funds and Eligible Liabilities (the
"MREL"), i.e. of minimum requirements of own funds and eligible liabilities required, (ii)
market concerns associated with the burden of NPLs on the Group's balance sheet, also
subsequent to the letter received from the ECB on 23 June 2016 and (iii) the failed finalisation
of the 2016 Transaction.

The realisation of the Capital Enhancement completed in 2017 and the following securitisation
transaction and derecognition of the NPL Portfolio completed in June 2018 allowed the Issuer
and the Group, inter alia, to restore normal access conditions to the capital market. On the other
side, it cannot be excluded that in case of negative macroeconomic trend, the Bank's
profitability situation may not be in line with expectations, specifically those of the
Restructuring Plan, or due to unforeseeable external factors or in any case factors outside the
Bank's control — the Group may find new difficulties in accessing the market.

(c) Risks associated with the Issuer indebtedness

The Group, as other Italian and European financial institutions, resorts to the refinancing
transactions launched by the ECB ("TLTROs") and guaranteed by assets pledged by the Issuer,
within the limits and according to the rules established in the Eurosystem. As at the date of this
Prospectus, refinancing transactions outstanding with the ECB are equal to Euro 16,689 million
and are the following: (i) TLTRO Il launched on 23 June 2016, with maturity on 24 June 2020
for an amount equal to Euro 10,158 million and (ii) TLTRO Il launched on 21 September 2016,
with maturity on 30 September 2020 for an amount equal to Euro 6,531 million.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group's overall indebtedness to the ECB relating to refinancing
transactions launched by the same Authority were equal to Euro 16,907 million of TLTROs.
As at 30 September 2018, the Group's overall indebtedness to the ECB was equal to Euro
16,689 million of TLTROs.

The amount of cash and free assets eligible for the ECB was equal, as at 31 December 2017,
to Euro 21,095 million and Euro 18.463 million as at 30 September 2018. The amount of
eligible free assets (expressing the assets recognised by the ECB to be eligible as
collateral/guarantee for further financing transactions with the ECB, to the extent not
committed by the Bank to other transactions) is mainly represented by government securities
(Euro 13,866 million as at 31 December 2017 and Euro 12,512 million as at 30 September
2018).

The TLTROs will continue to represent, in the presence of financial instruments made available
by the same ECB, the main medium/long term exposure to the ECB. Uses of MROs (Main
Refinancing Operation) launched on a weekly basis and used to manage short term liquidity,
or other funding sources possibly made available by the ECB, may in any case take place for
short-term liquidity management purposes, liquidity that may also be obtained by accessing
the market through repo transactions.

In respect of the maturity of senior unsecured bond issues addressed to institutional investors,
in financial year 2019, the Bank will redeem an aggregate amount of Euro 744 million while
there were no maturities in 2018. In the first months of 2017, the Issuer also finalised three
issuances of Italian state guaranteed liabilities, on the basis of Decree 237, for an aggregate
nominal amount equal to Euro 11 billion of which Euro 3 billion of securities became due and
were redeemed on 20 January 2018, Euro 4 billion of securities is due 25 January 2020 and
Euro 4 billion of securities is due 15 March 2020. Such liabilities have been fully subscribed
for by the Bank, upon issuance, and subsequently in part placed on the market and, in part,
used as collateral as guarantees of financing transactions.

In January 2018, the Issuer completed the issue of a fixed-rate coupon "Tier 2" subordinated
bond with a 10-year maturity and a size of Euro 750 million.

It should be also noted that, although the Bank in the context of the Restructuring Plan provided
for actions to cover for the aforementioned redemption needs, it cannot be excluded that such
actions may never be executed — possibly due to factors outside the management’s control —
and that, accordingly, the need to repay outstanding exposures prior to the aforementioned
maturity dates may cause tensions on the Group liquidity, generating an increased need for
funding that may be obtained under more burdensome conditions, with a consequently negative
impact, even relevant, on the business and on the economic, capital and/or financial condition
of the Bank and/or the Group.

(d) Reputational risk

A contraction of direct deposit collections occurred in the first two months of 2016 as a
consequence of the impact on the markets and customers of the entry into force of the bail-in
regime, specifically significant in Italy also as a consequence of the interventions of the end of
2015 on shares and subordinated securities of Italian banks affected by the so called "Banks
Aid Decree" and in December 2016 as a consequence of the failed realisation of the Bank's
recapitalisation transaction.
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It cannot be excluded that, in the future, also due to the potentially negative media context, the
Group may be subject to analogous pressures on its liquidity condition, with a potential
negative impact, even relevant, on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial
condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

(e) Risk associated with the downgrade of debt securities issued by the Italian State

The Group has significant exposures to sovereign debt securities and, in particular, to Italian
public debt securities. Accordingly, a possible downgrading of the credit rating assigned to
Italy (already subjected to a number of downgrades by the main rating agencies in the last
years) may have a negative impact on the liquidity and counterbalancing capacity of the Group,
with possible repercussions on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial
condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

The impact of the consequent downgrade of BMPS issuances guaranteed by the Italian State
pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 237/2016 (which rating is aligned to that of the Italian State)
would add on to this negative impact. Italian state guaranteed BMPS issuances in fact have the
same rating as the Republic of Italy and, accordingly, in case of downgrade of the same
Republic of Italy, would be correspondingly downgraded. Such event could determine a
reduction in the price of securities, with the need to pay margins on funding transactions which
BMPS has in place on such government guaranteed securities (repos), amounting to around a
nominal amount of Euro 4.25 billion at 31 December 2017. Furthermore, a downgrade (in
particular if especially severe) may induce counterparties of financing transactions (repos), to
ask for the early termination, where provided for, or not to reschedule the maturity thereof.

()] Risk associated with internal systems to manage liquidity risk

The Group adopts a liquidity risk governance and management system that, in accordance with
the provisions of the supervisory authorities, pursues the objective of insuring the solvability
of the Group and all its subsidiaries, optimising the cost of funding, adopting and maintaining
risk mitigation tools. In the context of the aforementioned system, the Issuer centralises the
responsibility of:

. defining the Group's liquidity management policies and coordinating the
implementation of such policies within the companies falling under the reference
perimeter;

. governing the Group's short, medium and long term liquidity position, at consolidated

and single subsidiaries level, through a centralised operational management; and
. controlling and monitoring liquidity risk for the Group and the single subsidiaries.

In its role as Bank, the Issuer therefore defines the criteria, policies, responsibilities, processes,
limits and tools for the management of liquidity risk, both in conditions of the normal course
of business and in stress and/or liquidity crisis conditions, formalising the "Liquidity Risk
Framework", the "Funding Plan™ and the "Contingency Funding Plan" for the Group.

Specifically, the "Liquidity Risk Framework™ represents the full control and monitoring system
of the Group's liquidity, comprehensive of the main risk measures and operational limits.
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The "Funding Plan”, represents the Group's funding needs, in its relevant sizes, taking into
account the main maturities expected, external restrictions and intervention opportunities
permitted by the regulatory and market framework, as well as the actions envisaged to deal
with such needs. The "Contingency Funding Plan™ defines the intervention strategies in case
of extreme liquidity stress, providing for readily available procedures and actions to find
funding sources in case of contingency.

In spite of the Group having set up such monitoring and management systems of its liquidity
risk, the persisting negative market conditions and/or the worsening thereof, a negative
performance of the economic scenario in general, possible further downgrades of the
creditworthiness of the Bank and, more in general, the Bank's inability to raise in the market
the necessary resources to deal with its liquidity needs and/or legislative requirements from
time to time introduced in implementation of Basel 111 and CRD IV, may, on a collective or
individual basis, have negative impacts on the business and the economic, capital and/or
financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

The "Funding Plan 2017" and the "Contingency Funding Plan 2017", approved by the board
of directors of the Issuer respectively on 9 March 2017 and 12 April 2017, have been sent also
to the Joint Supervisory Team of the ECB which, to date, expressed no observations nor
requested any supplement to such documents.

Similarly, the "Funding Plan 2018" and the "Contingency Funding Plan 2018", both approved
by the board of directors of the Issuer on 1 March 2018, have also been sent to the Joint
Supervisory Team of the ECB which, to date, expressed no observations nor requested any
supplement to such documents.

It cannot however be assured that the ECB will not require, at a later stage, further information
or formalisations/corrective interventions, even substantial, on such plans determining a
variation of the modalities and composition of the Bank'’s envisaged funding sources and the
related costs.

It is furthermore provided that the "Funding Plan 2018" and the "Contingency Funding Plan
2018" may be subject to review by the Bank by the end of 2018, and, in such a case, resubmitted
to the board of directors of the Issuer, with subsequent submission also to the Joint Supervisory
Team of the ECB.

Even in this case it cannot be assured that the ECB will not require formalisations/corrective
interventions, even substantial, on such plans determining a variation of the modalities and
composition of the Bank's envisaged funding sources and the relating costs.

2.7 Risks associated with the Group's exposure to sovereign debt

The Group's overall exposure to central governments or other public entities, is almost entirely
held vis-a-vis Italy, and is concentrated in the "Financial activities valued at fair value affecting
the overall profitability” accounting category. For further details on the Group's overall
exposure to sovereign debt, reference is made to the 2016 Consolidated Financial Statement,
the 2017 Consolidated Financial Statement, the 2018 First Half Financial Report and the 2018
Interim Financial Report (each as defined below), incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus.
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The Group is accordingly exposed, to the movements in government securities in general and,
in particular, in Italian public debt securities. The persisting tensions on the Government
securities market or the volatility thereof may cause negative impacts, even relevant, on the
business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group. In
particular, a lowering of the creditworthiness of the Republic of Italy, together with a
consequent decrease in the securities value, would cause a negative impact on the economic
results in respect of the portfolio of "Financial activities valued at fair value affecting the
income statement™ and an increased negative value of the valuation reserves (specifically "Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income”, the "FVTOCI Reserve™) linked to the
"Financial activities valued at fair value affecting the overall profitability” accounting
category.

The FVTOCI Reserve, linked to Italian government securities, is sensitive both to the Republic
of Italy credit spread and to interest rate fluctuations. In particular, the fair value sensitivity to
the spread of the Republic of Italy recorded a negative value of Euro 3.30 million as at 30
September 2018 (down in absolute terms compared to a negative value of Euro 5.56 million as
at 31 December 2017) due to a +1 basis point movement in the Italian credit curve, i.e. there is
a positive effect on the FVTOCI Reserve in case the spread narrows. The sensitivity to interest
rates was instead negative by Euro 1.31 million as at 30 September 2018 (negative by Euro
1.92 million as at 31 December 2017) due to a +1 basis point movement in the rate curve so as
there is a negative impact on the FVTOCI Reserve in case of increased interest rates.

Due to the aforementioned exposures, the Group recorded a negative FVTOCI Reserve (net of
tax effect) equal to Euro 260.3 million as at 30 September 2018 (up compared to 31 December
2017 when it was negative by Euro 63.77 million).

The FVTOCI Reserve entailed a negative impact on the Bank's own funds considering that —
as provided for by ECB Regulation EU 2016/445 of 14 March 2016 — starting from 1 January
2018, profits and losses not realised and relating to the exposures to the central administration
classified in the accounting category "Other Comprehensive Income™ are fully included in
CET1 capital.

Amongst the main risk factors that could entail a variation of capital requirements the spread
between BTP and Bund should therefore be noted, the increase of which entails a decrease of
capital reserves (FVTOCI Reserve) and accordingly a decrease of the regulatory capital.

In light of the above, the potential deterioration of the Republic of Italy's creditworthiness and
a further worsening of the sovereign debt situation could have significant impacts on the
recoverability and valuation of the sovereign debt securities held, with consequently significant
negative impact on the economic situation of the Issuer and the Group and the ability of the
Issuer to comply with capital adequacy requirements, which could trigger the adoption of
further capital enhancement measures.

Given the sensitivity of the FVTOCI Reserve to the credit spread of the Republic of Italy, the
widening of Italian government bonds' yields recorded in 2018, may determine an increase,
even material, in the FVTOCI Reserve.

In the context of the 2017 SREP process, the ECB indicated, among weakness profiles/focus
points, the significant sensitivity of the Italian government securities portfolio to market
variables, among which the credit spread, as well as the amount of the exposure, is still deemed
significant. In this respect, it has to be noted that the Issuer already realised a significant
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reduction of the exposure in government securities in line with the provisions of the BMPS'
Restructuring Plan 2013-2017 and it expects to realise a further progressive reduction in line
with the provisions of the Restructuring Plan. It should be noted that the government securities
portfolio accounted as "Financial activities valued at fair value affecting the overall
profitability” and equal to around Euro 12.5 billion as at 30 September 2018, (compared to
Euro 12.9 billion as at 31 December 2017) is already in line with the level required for by the
Restructuring Plan. Should the Bank not be able to maintain the reduction of the Italian
government securities portfolio already realised and to comply with the further reduction
request provided for in the commitment linked to the Restructuring Plan, being forced to assign
Italian government securities also in unfavourable market conditions, could entail negative
impacts on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or
the Group. For more information on the risks associated with the failed realisation of the
Restructuring Plan, reference is made to "Risks associated with the failed realisation of the
Restructuring Plan" above.

Loans granted by the Group to central governments and other public entities shall be added to
sovereign exposures in debt securities. Among those, attention shall be paid to loans granted
in favour of the Italian State and other Italian local entities for Euro 2,256 million as at 30
September 2018 (down compared to Euro 2,394 million recorded as at 31 December 2017).
The possible deterioration of the creditworthiness of such counterparties may lead to write-
downs, even significant, for such type of clients, according to current Italian credit evaluation
policies and, therefore, may give rise to negative impacts, even relevant, on the business and
the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

In addition to the aforementioned exposures, the Group recorded an exposure to credit
derivatives on government securities, expressed in terms of net protection sales, for a nominal
value of Euro 2,189 million as at 30 September 2018, up compared to Euro 1,759 million
recorded as at 31 December 2017. This exposure almost exclusively refers to the Republic of
Italy. The possible deterioration of the creditworthiness of Italy and, to a lesser extent, that of
the other countries to which the Group is exposed, as well as movements in interest rates may
cause a reduction of the value of securities and/or derivatives, with a consequently negative
impact, even relevant, on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of
the Bank and/or the Group.

2.8 Risks associated with the application of Burden Sharing in the context of
precautionary recapitalisation intervention

Further to the failed completion of the transaction announced by the Issuer’s board of directors
on 29 July 2016 (the "2016 Transaction™), and the application of the Bank for extraordinary
and temporary support for access to the so-called "precautionary recapitalisation”, as provided
for by article 32, subsection 4 of the BRRD, the MEF issued two ministerial decrees which
were published in the Official Gazette of 28 July 2017, general series no. 175 (the
"Recapitalisation Decree” and the "Burden Sharing Decree™), in order to provide for (a)
under the Recapitalisation Decree, the Bank’s capital increase for an amount of Euro
3,854,215,456.30 to service the subscription of 593,869,870 shares by the MEF executed on 3
August 2017 (the "Capital Increase"), and (b) under the Burden Sharing Decree, the
application of burden sharing measures as per art. 22, subsections 2 and 4 of Legislative Decree
No. 237 of 23 December 2016 ("Decree 237"), as well as the Bank’s capital increase for an
amount of Euro 4,472,909,844.60 with consequent issuance of 517,099,404 shares. Such shares
have been granted on 1 August 2017 to the holders of certain subordinated notes and other
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subordinated liabilities (respectively, the "Burden Sharing Notes"”, the "Burden Sharing"
and, together with the Capital Increase, the "Capital Enhancement”).

One of the conditions for the access to precautionary recapitalisation is the compliance with
the European regulation on "State aid" and, in particular, the adoption of burden-sharing
measures, that is the Burden Sharing.

For the purposes of the application of the burden-sharing measures, Decree 237 — implementing
the precautionary recapitalisation regulation in Italy — provided for the conversion of the
Burden Sharing Notes into newly issued shares (the "Burden Sharing Shares" or "Shares"),
according to the percentage of the relevant nominal value.

The Burden Sharing Decree also provided for that — under art. 22, paragraph 4 of Decree 237
— for the contractual or non-contractual clauses executed by the Issuer over own notes or capital
instruments and relating to the capital rights to be paid on the same, hindering or limiting their
full computability in the Common Equity Tier 1, shall be ineffective.

Such last provision implies the inefficacy of some agreements and/or clauses of the agreements
executed in the context of the FRESH 2008 structure (floating rate equity-linked subordinated
hybrid preferred securities (the "FRESH 2008" for more information about the agreements
executed in connection with FRESH 2008, please refer to "Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena
S.P.A. — Major Events — Recent developments — 2008-2012" of this Prospectus).

Therefore, on 5 October 2017, the Bank's board of directors resolved, inter alios, to:
@ apply Decree 237 also to the FRESH 2008 transaction;

(b) inform the DG Comp and the Bank of Italy about the adopted resolution, starting the
relevant process for the authorisation to classify the amount of FRESH 2008 issue from
Additional T1 to Common Equity Tier 1; and

(c) send a letter to inform JPM (as defined below) about the implementation of Decree 237
and consequent termination of both the usufruct agreement and the company swap
agreement, entered into in the context of the FRESH 2008 transaction (the "Usufruct
Agreement” and the "Company Swap Agreement").

On 20 October 2017, furthermore, the Bank sent two letters: i) one to JPM in relation to the
application of Decree 237, wherein the Issuer specified it deemed as terminated both the
usufruct agreement and the company swap agreement, and ii) by the other letter the Bank
communicated that, as at 30 June 2017 — as also shown in the interim financial report as at 30
June 2017 - there had occurred a capital deficiency event as provided for in the FRESH 2008
terms and conditions (i.e. a reduction of the capital ratios below the minimum regulatory levels)
since the Group’s capital ratios were, on that date, lower than the coefficients provided for in
article 92 of the CRR.

As a consequence of the application of Decree 237 to FRESH 2008, as resolved by the Bank,
and in light of the above, some FRESH 2008 holders summoned the Bank, the company
Mitsubishi UFJ Investors Services & Banking Luxembourg SA (which had replaced the Bank
that issued the Bank of New York Mellon Luxembourg securities), the English company J.P.
Morgan Securities PLC and the American company J.P. Morgan Chase Bank NA (which
executed a swap agreement with the loan security issuer, "JPM Chase") before the Court of
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Luxembourg, asking to (i) ascertain that Decree 237 does not apply to the FRESH 2008 holders,
(ii) as a consequence, obtain a declaration that the aforementioned securities cannot coercively
be converted into shares and that the above securities are still valid and effective in accordance
with their terms and conditions, as governed by the law of Luxembourg and (iii) eventually, to
ascertain that BMPS shall not be entitled, lacking any conversion of the FRESH 2008, to obtain
from J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd ("JPM") payment of Euro 49,930,326.74 as damages suffered
by the holders of FRESH 2008. The Court of Luxembourg has not set a date for the hearings
yet.

For the sake of completeness, it should be also noted that, following the start of the
abovementioned proceeding, on 19 April 2018 BMPS brought an action before the Court of
Milan against J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd, J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A. London Branch, as
well as against the representative of FRESH 2008 holders and Mitsubishi UFJ Investors
Services & Banking (Luxembourg) SA in order to obtain a declaration stating that the Italian
Court shall have exclusive jurisdiction over the termination (if any) of the Usufruct Agreement
and over the Company Swap Agreement executed by the Bank with the first two defendants as
part of the 2008 capital increase. As a consequence, the Bank asked: (i) a declaration of
ineffectiveness of the Usufruct Agreement and of the Company Swap Agreement — from which
arise obligations of payment in favour of JPM and JPM Chase by virtue of the entry into force
and application of Decree 237; (ii) a declaration of ineffectiveness and/or termination and/or
expiration of the Usufruct Agreement or, subordinately (iii) a declaration of occurred
termination of the Usufruct Agreement due to the capital deficiency event of 30 June 2017.
The first hearing was held on 18 December 2018 and the Judge, deeming existing the
prejudicial issue raised by the defendants in relation to the jurisdiction and considered the
existence of a dispute with the same petitum and legal issue pending before the Court of
Luxembourg, has granted the parties time limits to replicate against the ritual objections and
has adjourned the hearing to 16 April 2019 to discuss the controversial issue. For more
information on the state of this dispute, reference is made to section "Banca Monte dei Paschi
S.p.A. — Legal Proceedings" of this Prospectus.

In the event that, following the above-mentioned proceedings, the FRESH 2008 framework
remains valid and/or the article 22, paragraph 4 of the Decree 237 is deemed not applicable,
the Bank may be forced to continue paying the remuneration in accordance with the FRESH
2008, in the event that certain requirements are met (such as the existence of profits to be
distributed and the payment of dividends related to the Bank’s ordinary shares). It would follow
that from a prudential standpoint, the FRESH 2008 transaction would not fail and it should
continue being qualified as Additional Tier 1, as opposed to the representation set out in the
Restructuring Plan.

Therefore, the failed cancellation of the FRESH 2008 framework and/or the failed application
of article 22, paragraph 4 of the Decree 237 — following any legal actions started against the
Bank — may involve, with respect to the prospective figures of the Restructuring Plan, the
impossibility to implement the requalification aforementioned and, consequently, the CET1
Ratio would be lower of around 0.3 per cent. in 2021, with Tierl equal to Total Capital Ratio.

Such circumstance, in addition to an impact in terms of capital adequacy — for further
information on which reference is made to "Risk associated with capital adequacy" above —
could also have a negative impact on the realization of the Restructuring Plan or, however, lead
to the need of its review.
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2.9  Risks deriving from judicial and administrative proceedings

As at the date of this Prospectus, a number of judicial proceedings (including civil, criminal
and administrative actions) are pending against the Issuer. Some of these derive from the
extraordinary and exceptional context related to criminal investigations ordered by courts
involving the Issuer in 2012 and 2013. In addition to this litigation, there are also (i) disputes
deriving from the Bank’s ordinary course of business, (ii) labour disputes, (iii) tax disputes and
(iv) disputes arising from Burden Sharing.

The 60 claims brought by former holders of notes subject to Burden Sharing are included in
the Bank judicial proceedings relating to investment services activities. In such proceedings
the relevant plaintiffs are claiming the violation of the general principles set forth by the
Consolidated Finance Act and the general principles of correctness, transparency and duty of
care with respect to the sale of such securities.

As at 30 September 2018, the overall petitum in relation to civil proceedings of the Group was
equal to Euro 4,555 million of which approximately Euro 3,373 relating to the proceedings for
the ordinary activities of the Issuer and approximately Euro 764 million for the civil
proceedings relating to the suits brought by the shareholders in the context of 2008, 2011, 2014
and 2015 capital increases, approximately Euro 606 million in relation to threatened litigations
brought against the Issuer relating to the same capital increase transactions and approximately
Euro 118 million with respect to requests brought by the civil claimants, where quantified,
relating to criminal proceedings no. 29634/14 and no. 955/16 which the Issuer is part of (for
further information, please see Section "Legal Proceedings”, respectively, paragraphs
"Disputes deriving from ordinary business™ and "Civil actions instituted by shareholders in the
context of the 2008, 2011, 2014 and 2015 capital increases” of this Prospectus). The overall
petitum for tax proceedings of the Group is equal to approximately Euro 130 million for taxes
and sanctions while the overall petitum relating to the labour proceedings is equal to Euro 113.9
million (including the labour proceedings brought by certain employees of Fruendo S.r.l.).

In light of the estimates made on the risks of adverse outcome in the aforementioned
proceedings, as at 30 September 2018, "legal disputes™ included under the item provision for
risks and charges, amounted to Euro 574.3 million, comprising claw-backs for Euro 61.9
million and civil disputes for Euro 512.4 million of which Euro 542.2 million derived from
judicial proceedings associated with ordinary business. Furthermore, as at the same date, the
provision for risks and charges includes tax disputes for Euro 33 million and labour disputes
for Euro 34.4 million.

Allocations to item provision for risks and charges have been made for amounts representing
the best possible estimate relating to each dispute, quantified with sufficient reasonableness
and, in any case, in accordance with the criteria set forth in the Issuer’s policies. Included
among the components of the overall provision for risks and charges are, in addition to the
allocations provided for "legal disputes”, also allocations versus expected losses on estimated
disbursements for client complaints. The estimate of liabilities is based on the information
available from time to time and in any case it implies multiple and significant evaluation
elements, due to the several uncertainty factors characterising the different judicial
proceedings. In particular, sometimes it is not possible to produce a reliable estimate such as —
for instance and without limitation — in case proceedings have not been initiated, in case of
possible counterclaims or in the presence of uncertainties in law or in fact so as to make any
estimate unreliable. Accordingly, although the Bank believes the overall provision for risks
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and charges recorded in the financial statement to be considered adequate in respect of the
liabilities potentially consequent to negative impacts, if any, of the aforementioned disputes, it
may occur that the provision, if any, may be insufficient to fully cover for the charges,
expenses, sanctions and compensation and restitution requests associated with the pending
proceedings, also in relation to the bringing of civil actions, or that the Group may in the future
be called to satisfy compensation and restitution costs and obligations not covered by
provisions, with a potential negative impact on the business and the economic, capital and/or
financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group..

In relation to disputes in which the Bank is involved, it has to be specified that, as at the date
of the Prospectus, it cannot be excluded that disputes against the Bank may increase in number,
also in consideration of the criminal proceedings pending before the Courts of Milan as well
as the extraordinary transactions put in place by the Bank, in particular in relation to the civil
plaintiffs in the context of such proceedings (for more information, reference is made to the
paragraph (c) below).

Unfavourable outcomes, if any, for the Bank of the disputes it is a party to — specifically those
with larger media impact — or the arising of new disputes, may have negative impacts, even
significant, on the Bank and/or the Group, with a consequently potential negative impact on
the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition thereof.

@ Risks deriving from criminal and administrative disputes linked to criminal
investigations and judicial affairs in 2012 and 2013

A part of the judicial proceedings — for detailed information of which see "Banca Monte dei
Paschi S.p.A. — Legal Proceedings — Criminal investigations and proceedings™ — has its source
in an extraordinary and exceptional context also linked to the criminal investigations initiated
by public prosecutors and the judicial affairs which concerned the Issuer in the years 2012 and
2013 and which mainly refer to the financial transactions for finding the necessary resources
to acquire Banca Antonveneta as well as to some financial transactions carried out by the Bank,
(among which are the transactions associated with the restructurings of the "Santorini"
transaction, the "Alexandria" notes and the FRESH 2008 transaction).

(@l) Risks deriving from disputes initiated against former representatives and
representatives of the Bank

In relation to the transaction associated with the restructuring of the "Alexandria” notes, as a
result of the serving, on 3 April 2015, of the closing measure of preliminary investigations
pursuant to and to the effects of art. 415-bis c.p.c., the public prosecutor’s office at the Courts
of Milan filed — in relation to the disclosure relating to financial year 2009 — an indictment
request against Mr. Mussari, Mr. Vigni and Mr. Baldassarri and two members of the
management of Nomura in respect of the offences under art. 2622, paragraphs 1 and 3 of the
Italian Civil Code in the matter of false corporate communications and under art. 185 of the
Consolidated Finance Act in the matter of market manipulation, committed in association
among them with a conduct relevant for the purpose of art. 3 and art. 4, paragraph 1, of Law
146/2006 in the matter of transnational crimes. With the subsequent measure of 13 January
2016, the public prosecutor at the Courts of Milan also ordered the serving on the Bank and the
other suspects of the closing of preliminary investigations notice pursuant to and to the effects
of art. 415-bis c.p.p. concerning the other investigation strands relating to "FRESH 2008",
"Alexandria”, "Santorini" and "Chianti Classico" transactions; these criminal proceedings were
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combined with those under the above paragraph for the crimes referred to in financial year
2009.

In respect of crimes committed by individuals in the above proceedings, the public prosecutor
also requested the indictment of the Issuer for administrative offences under art. 25-ter lett. b),
25-ter lett. s) and 25-sexies of Legislative Decree No. 231/2001 consequent to the charging of
false corporate communications (art. 2622 of the Italian Civil Code), obstruction to the exercise
of functions of public supervisory authorities (art. 2638 of the Italian Civil Code) and market
manipulation (art. 185 of the Consolidated Finance Act).

In this respect it has to be specified that, with the consent of the public prosecutor's office, on
2 July 2016, Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena filed a plea-bargaining request in the criminal
proceeding pending before the Milan Public Hearing Judge ("PHJ"), in respect of the charges
to the Bank pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 231/2001 in the matter of offence based
administrative liability of entities. The predicate offences of the Bank's administrate liability
concern cases of false corporate communications, market abuse and obstruction to supervision
and are exclusively charged to the former administered management for the period between
2009 and 2012. With the plea-bargaining request, granted by the Milan PHJ on 14 October
2016 with application of the penalty agreed upon, the Bank exited the proceedings relating to
the administrative offence consequent to the crimes committed by its former top managers,
limiting the consequences to a monetary administrative sanction of Euro 600,000 and a
confiscation of Euro 10 million.

On 1 October 2016, the PHJ ordered the indictment of defendants other than the Bank. At the
hearing of 15 December 2016 before the second criminal section of the Courts of Milan and
subsequent to the request as civilly liable parties of the Banks MPS, Nomura and Deutsche
Bank, around 1500 civil plaintiffs served on the Bank the civilly liable summons in respect of
the crimes charged to indicted former directors and managers.

In the course of the proceedings, with the order of 6 April 2017, the Courts of Milan ruled on
the exclusion request of civil plaintiffs filed by defendants and civilly liable parties, excluding
certain civil plaintiffs.

The bringing of civil action by the Bank against Giuseppe Mussari, Antonio Vigni, Daniele
Pirondini and Gian Luca Baldassarri was also dismissed on the assumption of a Bank’s liability
for complicity with the defendants. As of the date of this Prospectus, civil plaintiffs that
appeared against the Bank were in aggregate around 1,243 and the overall petitum, where
quantified, was equal to Euro 42 million.

(@2) Risk deriving from dispute against former representatives charged with the crimes of
false corporate communications and market manipulation

On 12 May 2017, the indictment of representatives Alessandro Profumo, Fabrizio Viola and
Paolo Salvadori (the former ones no longer in office) has been requested in the context of new
criminal proceedings before the Courts of Milan where the former representatives are charged
with the crimes of false corporate communications (art. 2622 of the Italian Civil Code), with
respect to the accounting of the "Santorini” and "Alexandria” transactions in relation to the
Bank’s financial statements, reports and others corporate communications of the Bank from 31
December 2012 to 31 December 2014 and in relation to the six-month report as at 30 June
2015, as well as of market manipulation (art. 185 of the Consolidated Finance Act) in relation
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to communications direct to the investors concerned the approval of financial statements
aforementioned.

In respect of these proceedings, where the Bank is identified as the offended party, the first
hearing was held on 5 July 2017, during which some hundreds of individuals and some
category associations asked to appear as civil plaintiffs. The PHJ deferred the case to 29
September 2017, for the decision on the requests, as well as for the combination with the
proceedings pending against BMPS, as accused party pursuant to Legislative Decree no.
231/01 for the same events charged to Mr. Profumo, Mr. Viola and Mr. Salvadori. At the
hearing of 29 September 2017, 304 requests for joinders set forth by the civil parties have been
upheld (on a total of 337). The other parties have been excluded for formal defects. At such
hearing, the proceeding pending against the Bank, as liable pursuant to the Legislative Decree
no. 231/2001, has been combined with the proceeding pending against the natural persons. The
judge admitted the subpoena of the Bank as civilly liable, deferring to the hearings of 10
November 2017 and 24 November 2017 to allow the implementation of the relevant
notifications.

At the hearing held on 17 July 2018 2,243 civil claimants joined in the proceedings. Some of
them formally asked to summon the Bank as the entity liable for damages, while most of them
merely requested that their clients benefit from their participation in the proceedings where the
Bank was already appeared as civil liable party. Some civil claimants joined in the proceedings
against the Bank seeking a declaration of liability under Legislative Decree no. 231/2001. At
the end of the hearing, the Court of Milan adjourned the case to the hearings of 16 October
2018, 6 November 2018, 13 November 2018 and 19 November 2018.

The hearing scheduled to discuss the civil actions brought as part of criminal proceedings was
duly held on 16 October 2018 with a total of 2,243 civil claimants joined in the proceedings
already during the previous hearing held on 17 July 2018, plus further 165. The defendants'
and the Bank's counsels have claimed that the latter have joined in the proceedings beyond
expiry of the relevant terms. At the hearing held on 6 November 2018, the Panel declared the
exclusion from the proceeding of certain civil parties that, consequently, amounted to 2,272,
ordering the extension of the proceeding between the Bank and the new civil plaintiffs admitted
without further formalities and rejecting the request for joining the proceedings by CONSOB,
Bank of Italy and Ernst & Young as civil responsibles.

By order issued at the hearing held on 19 November 2018, the Court rejected the claim for lack
of competence previously raised by the defending counsels and, consequently, the discussion
of the case started and the next hearing has been scheduled on 18 March 2019, reserving a
decision with respect to the request of a conservative seizure against Mr. Profumo and Mr.
Viola raised by certain parties.

The petitum relating to this proceeding, where quantified in connection with the filing of
damaged civil parties, was approximately equal to Euro 76 million. By order issued at the
hearing held on 19 November 2018, the Court rejected the claim for lack of competence
previously raised by the defending counsels and, consequently, the discussion of the case
started and the next hearing has been scheduled on 18 March 2019, reserving a decision with
respect to the request of a conservative seizure against Mr. Profumo and Mr. Viola raised by
certain parties.

-52-



The petitum relating to this proceeding, where quantified in connection with the filing of
damaged civil parties, was approximately equal to Euro 76 million.

*kk*k

In relation to the aforementioned risks under points (al) and (a2) above, investors must take
into account that, as at the date of this Prospectus, a precise monetary figure relating to the total
of compensatory requests and accordingly the economic burden the Bank will have to bear
cannot be predicted, since most civil plaintiffs' requests are not quantified and such
quantification shall wait for the development of the proceedings. Furthermore, there is the risk
that, should the Bank and/or other Group companies or their representatives (even former) be
convicted after the established violation of criminally relevant provisions, such circumstance
may have an impact under a reputational point of view for the Bank and/or the Group, as well
as entail a liability under the Legislative Decree No. 231/2001. For further information,
reference is made to "Risks associated with the organisation and management model pursuant
to Legislative Decree No. 231/2001" below.

(@3)  Risks deriving from sanctioning procedures

Also there are some sanctioning proceedings initiated by supervisory authorities mainly against
the management in office at the time of events (in relation to which, in case sanctions are
imposed, the Bank is jointly liable and has no certainty to be able to recover any amount paid
due to such joint obligation after the enforcement of its right of recourse), as well as against
the Bank also pursuant to art. 187-quinquies of the Consolidated Finance Act, as well as some
legal actions initiated against the Bank by consumer associations and individual investors
which subscribed for financial instruments in the context of the share issuances carried out by
the Bank, are to be referred to such events (for more information on such sanctioning
procedures, reference is made to "Banca Monte dei Paschi S.p.A. — Legal Proceedings"
paragraphs "Bank of Italy sanctioning procedures” and "CONSOB's sanctioning procedure”
below).

*kk*k

Furthermore, it should be noted that the Foundation initiated two autonomous proceedings, on
one side, against Mr. Mussari, Mr. Vigni and Nomura and, on the other side, against Mr. Vigni
and Deutsche Bank AG, based in both cases on the purported liability of the defendants under
art. 2395 of the Italian Civil Code for the direct damage allegedly suffered by the MPS
Foundation for having subscribed the BMPS capital increase resolved in the course of 2011 at
a different price than the one at which it would have been correct to subscribe it in case the
"Alexandria" and "Santorini" restructurings had been duly represented in the BMPS financial
statement.

The Issuer has been sued in such proceedings: (i) by Mr. Vigni by virtue of an indemnity
undertaking (in respect of third party claims) allegedly given by the Bank in his favour in the
context of the mutual termination agreement of the managerial relationship; (ii) by Mr.
Mussari, by virtue of the Bank's liability under art. 2049 of the Italian Civil Code, for the
actions of a number of managers allegedly accountable for the transaction carried out with
Nomura.

It should be also noted that, also as a consequence of the aforementioned investigations initiated
by judges in 2012 and of the aforementioned proceedings, further criminal, sanctioning and
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civil proceedings have been initiated by judges, supervisory authorities, consumer associations,
investors and the Bank itself. The Bank's position in respect of such proceedings is aligned to
the principles of business and managerial discontinuity which inspired the actions undertaken
by the new management, aimed at identifying the best initiatives in protection of the Bank, the
assets and the image thereof, even through direct legal actions against the former top
management and counterparties involved.

(b) Risks deriving from civil disputes initiated by investors and/or shareholders of the Bank

Amongst the sanctioning procedures abovementioned under paragraph (a3), with respect to the
prospectuses relating to the capital increases executed respectively in financial years 2008 and
2011, CONSOB, with resolutions No. 18885 of 17 April 2014 and No. 18886 of 18 April 2014
respectively, closed the sanctioning proceedings initiated for possible irregularities in drawing
up such documents, imposing pecuniary administrative sanctions against the directors and
statutory auditors pro tempore for an overall amount equal to Euro 1,150 million. The Bank
did not appeal any of the two measures and it proceeded with the payment of the sanctions in
its capacity as joint obligor, initiating the activities preparatory to the exercise of its right of
recourse. Upon allegations analogous to those charged in the two aforementioned sanctioning
proceedings, CONSOB, with resolution No. 18924 of 21 May 2014, also closed the sanctioning
proceedings for irregularities in drawing up bond loan and certificate prospectuses published
by the Issuer in the period 2008-2012, imposing monetary administrative sanctions for an
overall amount equal to Euro 750.000 to the Bank's directors and statutory auditors pro
tempore. The Bank challenged these sanctions but paid up the sanction in its capacity as person
joint and severally liable, starting the relevant recourse activities (for more information on such
sanctioning procedures, reference is made to "Banca Monte dei Paschi S.p.A. — Legal
Proceedings — CONSOB's sanctioning procedure below).

In this respect, amongst the initiatives against the Issuer, some investors and/or shareholders
of the Bank initiated actions aimed at obtaining the compensation for alleged damages suffered
by the same subjects due to the alleged inaccuracy of the disclosure provided by the Issuer in
the context of the 2008, 2011, 2014 and 2015 capital increase transactions and, in any case,
due to the assumed unfairness of the price-sensitive information provided from 2008 to 2015.
As at the date of this Prospectus, 30 proceedings with compensatory aims have been initiated
before different Courts. In such claims, the plaintiffs mainly act for the declaration of the
Bank’s liability pursuant to article 94 of the Consolidated Finance Act, as well as for the
cancellation of the capital increases’ subscription agreement because of wilful and/or essential
error pursuant to the Italian Civil Code. As at the same date, the overall petitum for such actions
is equal to around Euro 764 million of which Euro 688 million referred to four principal actions.

Furthermore, as at the date of this Prospectus, various complaints have been filed individually
by investors — through consumers or legal associations — 124 of which, on a total amount of
834, have taken part into the claim initiated by Marangoni Arnaldo (as described under "Banca
Monte dei Paschi S.p.A. — Legal Proceedings — Civil actions instituted by shareholders in the
context of the 2008, 2011, 2014 and 2015 capital increases") — for a total of around Euro 654
million of claimed amounts, where quantified, associated with alleged losses incurred linked
to allegedly inaccurate disclosure contained in prospectuses and/or financial statements and/or
price sensitive information disseminated by BMPS from 2008 to 2011. Of such requests,
around 10 per cent. turned into civil judicial initiatives (in the great majority with intervention
in the proceedings initiated by one single shareholder).
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Such requests — individually or collectively through two professionals and the ADUSBEF
(Associazione Difesa Utenti Servizi Bancari e Finanziari) — although heterogeneous, are
mainly reasoned with generic references to the alleged infringement, by the Bank, of the sector
legislation in the matter of disclosure and, accordingly, rebutted by the Bank as generic,
ungrounded, and unsupported by suitable documental evidences and in some instances, time
barred. The residual petitum claimed by complainants who did not initiate judicial proceedings
is equal to around Euro 591 million as at the date of this Prospectus.

In addition, as at 30 September 2018, there were also 53 threatened litigations relating to the
2014-2015 capital increases for a total requested amount equal to approximately Euro 16
million (and, therefore, overall equal to Euro 606 million).

Actions exercised by investors — concerning allegedly false prospectuses and/or allegedly
inaccurate information, on which subscribers' investment decisions were based — may increase,
even significantly, both by number and amount of compensatory requests, compared to those
pending as at the date of the Prospectus. Furthermore, it cannot be excluded that the number of
complaints concerning the above described cases may increase — even significantly — or that
already filed complaints would turn into true and proper disputes before judicial authorities.
Finally, it has to be deemed that an increased number of disputes and/or complaints may occur
also as a consequence of the evolution of criminal proceedings initiated after judicial
investigations initiated during 2012 and of the Bank's involvement as a civilly liable party, in
the context of such proceedings, pending before the Courts of Milan as specified below.

The possible adverse outcome in such proceedings, as well as the initiation of new proceedings
and/or increased compensatory requests may have negative impacts, even material, on the
business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.
Furthermore such adverse outcomes, if any, or the arising of new disputes may have
reputational impacts even significant on the Bank and/or the Group, with a consequently
potential negative impact on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition
thereof.

(c) Risks associated with disputes and administrative proceedings deriving from the
conduct of ordinary business

In light of the estimates made about the risk of unfavourable outcome in the cases under this
risk factor, as at 30 September 2018, allocations for legal disputes — with respect to the disputes
deriving from the ordinary business — have been made to the provision for risks and charges
equal to Euro 574.3 million.

While carrying out its ordinary business, the Group is involved in various judicial proceedings
concerning, inter alia: claw-back actions, compound interests, placement of bond securities
issued by countries and companies then defaulted and the placement of other financial
instruments and products. With specific reference to the placement of bond securities issued
by countries and companies then defaulted and placement of schemes and financial products
please note that they show a consistent overall decrease and that they are not material in terms
of petitum and related civil funds.

For a more detailed description of the disputes deriving from the conduction of ordinary

business, reference is made to "Banca Monte dei Paschi S.p.A. — Legal Proceedings — Disputes
deriving from ordinary business".
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(d) Risk deriving from sanctioning procedures promoted by the authorities

While carrying out its ordinary business, the Group is, furthermore, subject to inspections
promoted by the supervisory authorities that may give rise to requests of organisational
interventions and enhancement of safeguards aimed at remedying deficiencies, if any, found.
The extent of such deficiencies, furthermore, may determine the beginning of sanctioning
proceedings against the company's representatives and employees. Specifically, failed
performance of the requests of the supervisory authorities may entail further disputes and
investigations and submit the Group to compensatory requests, fines imposed by supervisory
authorities, other sanctions and/or reputational damage.

Sanctioning proceedings initiated by supervisory authorities in respect of ordinary business,
some of which are against some members of the current management, are listed under "Banca
Monte dei Paschi S.p.A. — Legal Proceedings — Sanctioning procedures™ of this Prospectus.

In particular, it has to be underlined that the procedure 1794 — commenced by the Italian
antitrust authority (Autorita Garante della Concorrenza e del Mercato, hereinafter, the
"AGCM") against the Italian banking association (Associazione Bancaria Italiana) in respect
of the remuneration of the SEDA service and subsequently extended to the 11 most important
Italian banks, among which was BMPS, concerning the alleged materiality of the interbank
agreement for the remuneration of the SEDA service as agreement restricting competition
pursuant to art. 101 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (according to
AGCM the agreement would imply "the absence of any competitive pressure”, with consequent
possible increase in overall prices to be borne by enterprises, which may be in turn charged to
consumers) — was also closed.

The procedure was closed with the AGCM measure of 28 April 2017, notified on 15 May 2017.
The authority resolved (i) that the parties (including BMPS) have put in place an agreement
restricting competition, in breach of art. 101 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European
Union, (ii) that the same parties should cease the conduct in place and file a report illustrating
the measures adopted to procure the ceasing of the infringement by 1 January 2018 and should
refrain in the future from putting in place similar behaviours, and (iii) that by reason of the non-
seriousness of the infringement, also in respect of the legislative and economic framework in
which it has been implemented, no sanctions are applied.

BMPS challenged the measure under examination before the regional administrative court
("Tar"), for the purpose of obtaining the cancellation thereof, since the authority, although not
imposing sanctions, had on one side established the existence of an agreement restricting
competition (with related consequent exposure to the risk of compensatory requests by those
deeming to have been damaged from such conduct), on the other side, substantially imposed
the adoption of a remuneration model imposing an adjustment economic cost and a likely lower
income for the Bank itself. The complaint has been deposited and notified and the date of the
hearing is still awaited. Nevertheless, such challenge does not suspend the measures
implementation provided for by the authority.

It should be further noted that with the measure of 25 January 2017, the AGCM opened
proceedings PS 10678 against Diamond Private Investment S.p.A. ("DPI") for two
infringements of the Consumer Code (Legislative Decree No. 206/05) in the sale thereby of
investment diamonds. On 27 April 2017, the AGCM extended such proceedings to BMPS and
another bank. With a communication dated 26 July 2017, the AGCM deemed BMPS and the
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other bank involved in the proceedings not chargeable for one of the two infringements; against
BMPS, therefore, the proceeding continued only with regard to the residual infringement
related to the low transparency of the contractual and commercial documentation. On 30
October 2017, by the measure conducting such proceeding, the authority recognised the
occurrence of an unfair commercial practice under Legislative Decree No. 206/05 and,
consequently, ordered sanctions for all parties involved therein; BMPS has been charged with
a sanction of Euro 2 million. The Bank is carrying on the challenge against such measure in
front of the TAR of Lazio, provided that the payment deriving from such measure was executed
by BMPS on a timely basis, making use of a fund risk set out in advance for this specific
purpose. As a consequence, BMPS received some claims from its clients, in light of which a
negative impact on the future economic and financial results of BMPS cannot be excluded.

BMPS had previously entered with DPI into a customer referral agreement, and AGCM held
that the bank was actively involved in the promotion and sale of investment diamonds. The
proceedings ended with the decision taken by AGCM during the hearing held on 20 September
2017 and notified to the parties on 30 October 2017. AGCM held that the breaches the parties
had been charged with had actually been committed, and sentenced BMPS to pay a fine of Euro
2 million. The Bank paid the fine within the relevant terms and challenged the decision before
the TAR of Lazio; at the hearing held on 17 October 2018 the Court reserved its decision.
Meanwhile, the Bank has taken action to reimburse the customers previously referred to DPI,
who have purchased diamonds from the latter and intend to exit from their investment. With
decision published on 14 November 2018, the TAR of Lazio rejected the appeal of BMPS and
confirmed the AGCM sanctions; the Bank is evaluating the legal ground of the events to
determine the best approach to be followed.

For the sake of completeness, it is highlighted that, with reference to such events, a criminal
proceeding for fraud before the Milan Court is currently pending. In such context the Bank has
been notified with an exhibition order and a decree of computer search and seizure.

For more information on such sanctioning procedures promoted by the AGCM, reference is
made to "Banca Monte dei Paschi S.p.A. — Legal Proceedings — Sanctioning procedures"
paragraphs "Competition and Market Authority ("AGCM") Proceedings 1794 of the AGCM -
Remuneration of the SEDA service" and "Proceedings PS 10678 of the AGCM - Violations of
the Consumer Code in the sale of investment diamonds™ below.

2.10 Risks associated with assignments of Impaired Loans

As part of its typical business, the Issuer carried out credit assignment transactions. For more
information on the most significant ones, reference is made to the 2016 Consolidated Financial
Statement, the 2017 Consolidated Financial Statement, the 2018 First Half Financial Report
and the 2018 Interim Financial Report (each as defined below), incorporated by reference into
this Prospectus.

Without prejudice to what is provided in the Restructuring Plan, in the context of the
assignment of the NPL Portfolio and the relevant derecognition, it has to be noted that the
Issuer may find itself having to resort to new Impaired Loan assignment transactions in respect
of a possible further deterioration of credit quality, should the Group be forced to pursue more
demanding reduction targets of the amount of Impaired Loans in terms of amount or times
compared to planned ones, even as a consequence of requests by the supervisory authority,
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with a consequently negative impact on the economic, capital and financial condition of the
Issuer and the Group.

Specifically, the credit assessment in the financial statements — including loans that are the
subject to a matter of assignment — is conducted by the Issuer on the basis of an estimate of
recovery flows that could be obtained considering the range of possible available actions,
taking account of the debtor’s payment capacity and the foreseeable realisation value deriving
from the enforcement of any guarantee assisting the loan, net of relating direct costs. In line
with what was provided for by the reference International Accounting Standards, these loans’
book value is obtained by actualising the mentioned expected cash flows on the basis of the
original effective interest rate of the position and the expected recovery time.

The perfection of assignments may entail the debit through profit or loss of higher value
adjustments on credits for a significant amount due to the well-known spread between the value
at which Impaired Loans (and specifically Doubtful Loans) are recorded in the Bank’s balance
sheet and the consideration that market operators specialising in the management of distressed
assets are willing to offer to purchase them. Recovery expectations of cash flows that could be
obtained from the debtor and/or liquidation procedures being unchanged, the difference
between the book value and the consideration for the assignment is in fact affected by the high
yield rates investors intend to realise, as well as by management costs (costs of staff and
organisational structures dedicated to the recovery activity) that prospective purchasers must
cover, which factors are discounted in the determination of the purchase price of the same
loans.

With this perspective, the perfection of credit assignment transactions may lead to the need of
debiting through profit or loss further value adjustments of the same loans with consequent
negative impact, even significant, on the economic, capital and financial condition of the Issuer
and/or the Group. Furthermore, it cannot be excluded that the Issuer may not be able to find a
counterparty willing to participate in possible credit assignment transactions the Bank may
decide to carry out.

In this respect, it should be further specified that among the Commitments of the Restructuring
Plan there is also provided to strengthen the risks” monitoring activities, with specific reference
to credit risk, the adequacy of lending and commercial policies adopted by the Bank, as well
as to the monitoring of such risks. For more information on the risks associated with the failed
compliance with the Commitments, reference is made to "Risks associated with the failed
realisation of the Restructuring Plan™.

2.11 Risk associated with the results of the financial years ended on 31 December 2017,
31 December 2016 and the period ended on 30 September 2018

In order to compare the economic data for the first nine months of 2017 with those related to
the first nine months of 2018, please note that the items affected by the application of IFRS 9
and IFRS 15 were not reclassified, but only posted based on the new items specified in the
Bank of Italy's Circular no. 262, as most recently supplemented by the 5th update of 22
December 2017 (as amended at any relevant time, the "Circular 262"). The specific provisions
of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 1 do not indeed envisage any mandatory restatement of data to
be compared in the financial year in which the new principles are applied for the first time.

As at 30 September 2018 the Group achieved an intermediation margin of Euro 2,475 million,
down 4.3 per cent. with respect to 30 September 2017, mainly due to the reduction in interest
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margin, net fees and net revenues from trading activities. The changes in revenues were
influenced by the trend in interest margin, equal to Euro 1,312 million (-4.5 per cent. as
compared to the same period of the previous year), which was mainly affected by the decrease
in interest-bearing assets, especially loans (reduction in average volumes and in the relevant
yields). This reduction was only partially mitigated by the decrease in interest payable, as a
consequence of the lower costs incurred for bank accounts and term deposits and the
reimbursement of bonds with more unfavourable terms (including Burden Sharing Notes). Net
fees for the first nine months of 2018, equal to Euro 1,163 million, were down 4.1 per cent. as
compared to the final data posted for the same period of 2017, as a consequence of both the
lower revenues from asset management and the lower fees obtained in such period from
payment services (debit and credit cards) further to the assignment of the merchant acquiring
business on 30 June 2017. As at 30 September 2018, dividends, similar proceeds and profit
(loss) from shareholdings, down by Euro 13.6 million as at 30 September 2017, amount to Euro
55 million, mostly consisting of the AXA-MPS contribution. Net revenues from trading and
financial assets/liabilities, valued at amortised cost, and the corresponding fair value posted in
the profit and loss account as at 30 September 2018 are equal to Euro 6 million, down as
compared to the same period of the previous year (Euro 571 million), which included the profit
from the Burden Sharing. An analysis of the main aggregate data revealed a reduction in
revenues from the trading activity as compared to the same period of the previous year.
However, such revenues have increased since the quarter ended on 30 June 2018, in spite of
having been affected by the trend of the BTP-Bund spread; the net loss of the other assets and
liabilities, posted at fair value in the profit and loss account, has increased, which may be
ascribed to the net loss of assets/liabilities mandatorily valued at their fair value; as at 30
September 2018 the revenues from assignment/repurchase, equal to Euro 60 million, have
decreased by Euro 491.8 million from the same period in 2017, which had been affected by the
Burden Sharing.

As at 30 September 2018 the adjustments due to credit risk of financial fixed assets measured
at amortised cost and of financial fixed assets measured at fair value impacting on the overall
profitability have dropped to Euro 368 million, from Euro 4,835 million as at 30 September
2017 (-92.4 per cent.), which included credit adjustments made on the non-performing loans
assigned after adjustment to their realisable value. Operating costs (Euro 1,154 million) were
down 8.9 per cent. for the same period in the previous year. This change was mainly influenced
by the reduction (i) in personnel costs (mainly related to staff reduction, firstly the 600
redundancies as part of the Fondo di Solidarieta on 1 May 2017 and another 1,200 on 1
November 2017), (ii) in administrative costs (structural reduction of costs), (iii) in net
provisions for risks and charges, commitments and guarantees issued and net adjustments to
the value of tangible and intangible assets. There was a decrease in net operating income equal
to Euro 3,940 million.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group posted a net profit of Euro 379 million, including the
capital gain achieved by assigning the Issuer's servicing platform for non-performing loans
(Euro 50 million) and the partial reassessment of DTAs from tax losses (Euro 53 million).

In such respect, it cannot be ruled out that the future results of the Issuer and/or the Group
might be adversely affected by general and domestic economic conditions, as well as by the
economic conditions in the entire Euro Area, by the trends in financial markets and by
compliance with some Commitments set out in the Restructuring Plan (personnel reduction,
further assignment of bad debts, run-off of foreign subsidiaries). For more details on: (i) the
risks related to the Restructuring Plan, please refer to paragraph "Risks associated with the
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failed realisation of the Restructuring Plan™ above, (ii) the risk related to loans becoming non-
performing, please refer to paragraph "Credit risk and risk of credit quality deterioration”
above, and (iii) the risks related to the assignment of non-performing loans please refer to
paragraph "Risks associated with the Group’s exposure to Impaired Loans" above.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group posted a net loss of Euro 3,502 million. With respect to
revenues for such financial year, the Group achieved an intermediation margin of Euro 3,920
million, down 6.9 per cent. on the previous year, due to the reduction in interest margin and
net fees, partially set off by a growth in net revenues from trading and financial assets/liabilities
(which benefited from the positive effects of Burden Sharing). The interest margin, equal to
Euro 1,776 million (-11.3 per cent. since 31 December 2016) was mainly affected by the
decrease in interest-bearing assets, especially loans to customers (reduction in average volumes
and in the relevant yields). This reduction was only partially mitigated by a reduction in interest
payable, as a consequence of the lower costs incurred for customer deposits, the expiry of bonds
having more unfavourable terms and the effects of Burden Sharing. Net fees for 2017, equal to
Euro 1,564 million, down 15.0 per cent. on 2016, were influenced by the cost of the guarantee
on government issues, by the arrangement fees related to the securitisation transaction and by
the assignment of the merchant acquiring business on 30 June 2017. Operating costs, equal to
Euro 3,293 million, were up 8.0per cent. on 31 December 2016, mainly due to the following
variables: (i) costs related to the redundancy scheme agreed with the Trade Unions on 3 August
2017; (ii) expected reorganisation costs for the closing down of branches; (iii) costs for the
securitisation of non-performing loans and for the overall transaction whereby the recovery
and multiannual servicing platform for the management of non-performing loans was
outsourced to Quaestio Cerved Credit Management S.p.A.; (iv) higher provisions posted
against legal risks; and (v) lower contributions paid to the National Resolution Fund (as defined
below). Net value adjustments for non-performing loans, other assets available for sale and
other financial transactions were equal to Euro 5,460 million, as compared to Euro 4,501
million in the previous year. The aggregate amount includes (i) approximately Euro 4 billion
as net adjustments recorded since the start of the year on the amount of assigned non-
performing loans, after adjustment to their realisable value, plus ancillary charges set out in the
agreement with Quaestio Capital Management SGR S.p.A. ("Quaestio SGR"); (ii) Euro 170
million as recovery costs in connection with the multiannual servicing agreement entered into
with Quaestio Cerved Credit Management S.p.A. for the outsourcing of part of the non-
performing loans of the Group; (iii) Euro 84 million for depreciation of the stakes in Fondo
Atlante, Banca Popolare di Spoleto S.p.A. and of the quota held in the VVoluntary Scheme (as
defined below). The operating loss after taxes also includes the capital gain achieved through
assignment of the merchant acquiring business to CartaSi (Euro 524 million) and the partial
reassessment of DTAs from tax losses (Euro 572 million), accrued and not recorded in previous
years, pursuant to the rules introduced by Law Decree no. 50 of 24 April 2017 ("L.D. 50/2017")
which envisaged a reduction in the EGS (as defined below). For more details on how DTAS
and the relevant risks have been accounted for, please refer to paragraph "Risks relating to
DTAs" above.

In order to provide a complete overview of the Bank's position, please be informed that the
Bank's share capital was increased in August 2017 by an overall amount of Euro 8,327 million,
through the conversion of Burden Sharing Notes into ordinary shares for a value of Euro 4,472
million, and through the subscription by the MEF of a number of ordinary shares for a value
of Euro 3,854 million. During the extraordinary shareholders' meeting held on 18 December
2017 the Bank, taking into account (i) the balance sheet as at 30 September 2017 and the loss
for such period, equal to Euro 2,506 million, (ii) previous losses for Euro 2,324 million carried
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forward by resolution taken by the shareholders' meeting on 24 November 2016, and (iii)
capital adjustments for Euro 534 million, decided to balance the overall loss of Euro 5,364
million reducing the share capital by the same amount.

As a consequence of the above, the Bank's share capital is equal to Euro 10,329 million.
2.12  Risks associated with the failed distribution of dividends

The ECB, in its decision of 25 November 2015, reconfirmed by SREP Decision 2017 dated 19
June 2017, specifically prohibited the Bank from proceeding with distributions of dividends to
shareholders or holders of instruments computed in Additional Tier 1, unless such failed
payment would constitute an event of default. Such prohibition is valid until the decision is
withdrawn; accordingly, until the ECB decides to remove this prohibition, the Issuer may not
proceed with the distribution of dividends, despite the presence of profits for the period being
available for distribution.

Furthermore, among the Commitments of the Restructuring Plan, it is provided that the Bank
cannot proceed to the distribution of dividends, unless it has a CET1 and a Total Capital ratio
higher than a predetermined level in respect of the SREP thresholds as set periodically by the
ECB in order to promote the capitalisation of the dividend not distributed. Accordingly, the
Bank is required to adopt dividends distribution policies allowing to maintain — at individual
and consolidated level — actual and perspective capital adequacy conditions in line with
aggregate risks taken, suitable to favour the alignment to the prudential requirements set by the
CRD IV and the CRR and to guarantee the coverage of internal capital levels calculated in the
context of the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP™).

The Issuer may, furthermore, although in the presence of profits available for distribution for
the period and in spite of the absence of prohibitions and/or legislative or regulatory
restrictions, decide not to proceed with the distribution of dividends in favour of ordinary
shareholders or to proceed with the distribution of dividends to a lower extent than the
maximum available for distribution in accordance with the applicable legal and statutory
provisions.

In financial years 2017 and 2016, losses recorded and/or the absence of reserves available for
distribution impacted on the Issuer’s ability to distribute dividends. The economic results of
such financial years have been impacted by events which, should they repeat themselves in
future years, may impede or limit the distribution of dividends even for such years, even if
ECB prohibitions were to be withdrawn, with a consequently negative impact on the return on
the investments in the Issuer shares.

Finally, the lack of profits and reserves available for distribution could negatively affect the
Issuer’s capitalisation considering that such circumstances do not trigger the recapitalisation of
the Issuer in accordance with the applicable Italian laws and regulations.

2.13 Risk associated with the existence of over the counter derivatives in the Issuer
portfolio

The Group negotiates derivative contracts on various types of underlying, such as debt

securities and interest rates, equity securities and share indices, currencies and gold and other
underlying, both with retail clients and institutional counterparties.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group's exposure to over the counter ("OTC") traded credit and
financial derivatives with any counterparty (institutional, retail, etc.) and regardless of the
reference portfolio (trading or banking) in terms of positive fair value, gross of netting
arrangements, amounted to Euro 4,740 million, down compared to Euro 5,786 million as at 31
December 2016.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group's exposure to OTC was equal to Euro 4,546 million,
substantially in line with the exposure as at 31 December 2017; as at the same date the impact
of the hedging derivatives compared to the trading derivatives was equal to 5.6 per cent..

The OTC derivative portfolio is comprised almost in its entirety within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy and shows no specific illiquidity risk profiles.

OTC derivatives operations provide for the Group, in the first place, to assume market risks,
namely the potential loss that may be recorded on positions held as a result of unfavourable
movements in market parameters. The main risk factors to which such operations are subject
are: interest rates, exchange rates, indices, commodities and the relating volatilities and
correlations. Contextually, such operations expose the Group even to counterparty risks,
namely the risk for the counterparty of a transaction, concerning certain financial instruments,
to not fulfil its obligations or to default before the maturity of the relevant agreement.
Therefore, it might not be excluded that the potential non-performance of the obligations
undertaken pursuant to the derivatives contracts by the counterparties or the realisation of the
relevant collateral for a value lower than the secured payment obligation could have a negative
impact on the economic and financial situation of the Issuer and/or the Group.

2.14  Risks associated with possible aggregations

The occurrence of an aggregation transaction depends, inter alia, upon external factors such
as: the receipt of expressions of interest by counterparties interested in an acquisition or
integration with the Group, the identity of interests between the Group and potentially
interested parties, the positive outcome of any due diligence exercise by the Bank and/or the
counterparty, the favourable vote by the Bank's shareholders and interested parties, where
required, and the positive conclusion of the procedures required by the applicable legislation
(including, specifically, approvals by EU, national and/or foreign competent supervisory
authorities, which may even impose restrictions or conditions on the aggregation, including
possible discontinuation of business areas or branches of the Bank).

Moreover, according to the Commitments set out in the Restructuring Plan, the Bank may not
proceed with the acquisition of any interest or asset, unless (a) the European Commission
authorises said acquisition in exceptional circumstances demanding that financial soundness is
restored or competition is assured, (b) the acquisition does not exceed certain thresholds in
terms of price, and (c) such acquisitions are put in place in the context of ordinary banking
business in respect of the management of obligations already outstanding towards customers
showing financial difficulties or provided for in the context of the same Restructuring Plan.
The need to comply with such Commitments and the consequent limitations to the Bank’s
activities may adversely affect the chances that the Bank may carry out any aggregation
transactions. For more information on the Commitments and on the risks associated with the
failure to implement the Restructuring Plan, please refer to "Risks associated with the failed
realisation of the Restructuring Plan™ above.
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Should the opportunity for the Bank to proceed with a possible aggregation with another
institution materialise, such transaction would expose the Bank to the risks and complexities
that are typical of the integration process of credit groups.

2.15 Other risks associated with the banking and financial business
@ Market and interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the risk that the value of a financial asset (or liability) decreases (or
increases) by virtue of the performance of market variables (including without limitation, credit
spreads, interest rates, stock prices and exchange rates).

Market risk has an impact both on the trading book — including trading financial instruments
and derivative financial instruments linked thereto — and on the banking book — including assets
and liabilities other that those included in the trading book.

Market risk derives from potential movements in the value of financial instruments (belonging
to the trading book or the banking book) as a result of fluctuations in interest rates, exchange
and currency rates, stock and commodity market prices and credit spreads and/or other risks.
Such fluctuations may be generated by movements in the general performance of economy and
of national and international financial markets, monetary and tax policies, the global market
liquidity, the availability and cost of capital, interventions of rating agencies, political events
both at local and international level and wars and terrorist acts.

Risks associated with the fluctuation of interest rates depend, in turn, on various factors that
are not under the Group's control, such as monetary policies, the macroeconomic performance
and the lItalian political conditions. In particular, the results of banking and financing
transactions depend on the management and sensitivity of the Group's exposure to interest
rates, that is to say on the effects that movements in interest rates of the reference markets
would produce on the interest margin and the equity value of the Group. A possible
misalignment between the interest income accrued in favour of the Group and interest expenses
due by it (in the absence of adequate protection tools against such misalignment), may have
negative impacts, even relevant, on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial
condition of the Bank and/or the Group (such as, without limitation, increased cost of funding
to a more marked extent compared to the return on assets or the reduction of the return on assets
not set off by a decreased cost for collecting deposits).

As at 30 September 2018 the sensitivity of the banking portfolio, meant as a variation of the
economic value produced by the movement in interest rates, was equal to Euro +210.84 million
for a parallel movement of +100 basis points in the rates curve, while it was equal to Euro
+175.48 million for a shift of +100 basis points as at 31 December 2017. For management
purposes, market risk is monitored using a VaR measure, which represents the maximum loss
that could be realised in a specified time horizon in a specified confidence range. As at 30
September 2018, the VaR of the Group’s trading portfolio, calculated with a confidence range
of 99 per cent. and a time horizon of one day, amounted to Euro 10.48 million with a trend
influenced by the high volatility of the Italian spread between May 2018 and June 2018, which
resulted in new loss scenarios. The average VaR registered during the financial year and
updated as at 30 September 2018 was equal to Euro 6.88 million, while during financial year
2017, the average VaR had been equal to Euro 6.98 million. As at 30 September 2018, the
relating capital requirements for supervisory purposes were equal to Euro 230.36 million (as at
31 December 2017 they were equal to Euro 199.41 million).
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In the context of the SREP 2017, in relation to interest rate risk of the banking portfolio some
weakness areas have been underlined on the adoption of the behavioural models contributing
to the positioning of the Group.

Therefore, during 2017, the Group improved its behavioural models for on demand items with
a relevant operational use starting from the Risk Appetite Framework ("RAF") 2018 Although
the Group has in place specific policies and procedures aimed at identifying, monitoring and
managing such types of risk, the occurrence of unexpected events or the inadequacy of
procedures adopted may have a negative impact, even relevant, on the business and the
economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

In the context of the market risk, the so called "sovereign risk"”, associated with a possible
decreased value of portfolio instruments as a result of the worsening of the creditworthiness of
sovereign issuers is of particular relevance for the Group.

(b) Counterparty risk

In carrying out its activities, the Group is exposed to the so called counterparty risk, namely
the risk that the counterparty of a transaction, concerning specific financial instruments
(derivatives and repos), defaults prior to the settlement of the same transaction. As part of its
operations, the Group negotiates derivatives on a wide variety of underlying, such as interest
rates, exchange rates, prices in share indices, derivatives on commaodities and credit rights, with
counterparties in the financial services sector, commercial banks, public administrations,
financial and insurance companies, investment banks, funds and other institutional clients, as
well as with non-institutional clients.

In relation to the Group’s operations in derivatives, the positive fair value of trading
derivatives, defined as per the Bank of Italy’s Circular no. 262 of 22 December 2005, as at 30
September 2018 amounted to Euro 3,165 million, down by 5.0 per cent. compared to Euro
3,332 million as at 31 December 2017. As at the same date, the negative fair value of trading
derivatives amounted to Euro 1,304 million overall down by 17.2 per cent. compared to Euro
1,574 million as at 31 December 2017.

As at 30 September 2018, the credit valuation adjustment value was equal to Euro -34.3 million
(Euro -45.8 million as at 31 December 2017).

In relation to operations in repos the Group enters into contracts mainly with institutional
counterparties and to a lower extent, with ordinary clients. As at 30 September 2018, the
Group’s exposure to repos amounted to Euro 4,271 million, recording a 21.2 per cent. decrease
compared to the level of Euro 5,424 million at the end of December 2017. As at 30 September
2018, instead, the exposure to reverse repos amounted to Euro 12,559 million, recording an
increase equal to 22.7 per cent. compared to the value of Euro 10,237 million as at 31 December
2017.

In the context of such operations, the Group uses Italian government securities when dealing
with the central counterparty (Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia S.p.A.), while when dealing
with other institutional counterparties, as well as illiquid securities coming from its own
securitisations it takes the risk that unfavourable variations of market parameters may
determine unfavourable conditions in the determination of contractual conditions (e.g. in terms
of haircut).
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Operations in derivative financial instruments and repos expose the Group, in addition to
market risks and operational risks, also to the risk that the contractual counterparty does not
fulfil the obligations undertaken or becomes insolvent prior to the expiry of the agreements
when the Bank or the Group companies still have credit claims against such counterparty.

Such risk, which became more pronounced after the 2007-2008 financial crisis and the
consequent financial market volatility, may cause an additional prejudice, in case collaterals,
if any, given in favour of the Bank or another Group company are not or may not be realised
or liquidated in the time, manner and size sufficient to cover the exposure to the counterparty.

The possible non-fulfilment by counterparties of the obligations taken pursuant to derivative
contracts and/or repos entered into with the Bank or other Group companies and/or the
realisation or liquidation of the related collaterals (if any) at values lower than those expected,
may cause negative impacts on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial
condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

The Group monitors counterparty risk associated with the operations in derivative and repo
transactions through the definition of guidelines and policies for the differentiated
management, measurement and monitoring thereof depending on the characteristics of the
counterparty. In respect of the operations carried out with financial institutions, the daily
monitoring of the exposure to counterparty risk is effected on the individual credit facilities by
the credit function. Such operations are almost totally supported by netting and collateral
exchange agreements. In respect of operations with retail clients, the process is based on the
distinction of roles and competencies among the different entities in the Group.

It cannot be excluded that the persisting of the international crisis, the possible evolution of
market parameters and the possible deterioration of the creditworthiness of counterparties (with
consequent default and insufficiency of the collateral provided) may have a negative impact on
the valuation of such derivative instruments, with a potential negative impact on the business
and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group

(© Concentration risk

Concentration risk derives from exposures to counterparties and groups of related
counterparties belonging to the same economic sector, exercising the same activity or coming
from the same geographical area.

Specifically, concentration risk may be split into two types:

. single entity concentration risk (concentration of entities belonging to the same
economic group and/or related groups); and

. sectorial concentration risk (concentration of specific economic sectors and/or
geographic areas).

Notwithstanding the fact that concentration risk is monitored on a periodic basis, an excessive
concentration in certain geographical areas or in respect of a certain business sector, in case of
deterioration of the related creditworthiness, may have a negative impact on the economic,
capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.
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2.16  Risk management

The Group is highly focused on the identification, monitoring, measurement and control
process of risks.

Risk management strategies are defined in line with the Group's business model, medium term
objectives of the Restructuring Plan and external legal and regulatory constraints.

The risk appetite process is structured so as to be consistent with the ICAAP and Internal
Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process ("ILAAP") and with the planning and budgeting and
recovery processes, in terms of governance, roles, responsibilities, metrics, stress
methodologies and monitoring of key risk indicators.

The key principles characterising the risk management process within the Group are based on
a clear and strict distinction of roles and responsibilities among the business, control and
internal audit functions.

In particular:

. the Bank's board of directors defines and approves the strategic guidance and
management policies of risks and, at least once a year, expresses the overall level of the
Group's risk appetite under a quantitative point of view. In this context, the board of
directors of the Bank defines the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) for the Group and it
approves at least annually the 'Group Risk Appetite Statement'(RAS). The Risk
Appetite Statement sets out annually a series of risk/revenue objectives and,
simultaneously, a system of limits, which in case of exceeding will determine the start
of some procedures of escalation intended to undertake the necessary managerial
measures.

. the board of statutory auditors and the risk committee assess the degree of efficiency
and adequacy of the internal control system, with specific reference to risk control;

o the chief executive officer and/or the director general guarantees compliance with the
policies and procedures in the matter of risks;

. the director in charge of the internal control and risk management system, set up in
compliance with the corporate governance code, is accountable for setting up and
maintaining an effective internal control and risk management system;

. the risk management committee drafts the policy in the matter of risk management,
assesses the Issuer's risk appetite in accordance with annual and multi-annual targets
and verifies and monitors, also prospectively, the overall dynamic of the risks, both in
ordinary and stress conditions, and the overall compliance with the limits assigned to
the various responsibility levels;

o the finance and liquidity committee of the Group expresses the principles and strategic
guidance in the matter of treasury finance; resolves upon and submits proposals in the
matter of exposures to rate and liquidity risk of the banking portfolio and for the
definition of capital management actions; and
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o the credit committee is structured in two separate offices (Credit and Strategies). The
Credit office resolves upon the perimeter of the significant risks monitoring and
operational plafond, the assignment of the plafonds Paese on the basis of the "matrix"
set out by Foreign Credit Policies office and on performing and non-performing credit
matters: it gives its opinion on the credit procedure. The Strategies office gives its
opinion on the proposals relating to performing credit policies and strategies verifying
the commercial sustainability and the consistency with the risk appetite; it gives an
opinion on the annual proposal relating to the non-performing credit strategies; it
resolves upon the risk adoption, mitigation and monitoring rules, performing and non-
performing, and on the parameters for the classification and valuation of the credit
portfolio.

The Risk Management office, inter alia, is in charge of (i) monitoring the overall functioning
of the risk management system; (ii) verifying the capital adequacy in the context of ICAAP
process and the liquidity adequacy in the context of ILAAP process; (iii) participating in the
set up and assessment of the Risk Appetite Framework; (iv) defining the strategic target on the
receivables portfolio; (v) ensuring to adequately report the top management of the Group.

The Group falls within the Italian banks subject to the ECB Single Supervisory Mechanism.
The Group continues its dialogue with the Joint Supervisory Team ECB-Bank of Italy.

For 2018, the board of directors of Banca Monte Paschi di Siena S.p.A. approved the "Group
Risk Appetite Statement 2018" ("RAS") set out on the basis of a key risk indicators defined at
a Group level, Legal Entity and Business Unit, considering, inter alia, the results of the SREP
Decision 2017. Some figures are not in line with the risk propension expressed by the board of
directors for 2018, in respect of which the actions necessary to be consistent with the targets
have been set out.

Indeed, with reference to the end of 2018, the consistency with the regulatory limitations would
be granted — without considering a further significant increase of the Italian spread — from the
realisation of the actions set out in the Restructuring Plan along with the derisking actions in
relation to the commercial and financial portfolio, in light of the weak market demand for Tier
2 securities.

The findings of previous SREP process, the outcome of which led to the determination of
prudential requirements — as described above — highlighted, inter alia, the need to generate
improvements connected to the risk management system and organisational aspects for which
the Issuer has already undertaken the requested mitigation actions. Such improvement areas —
as described above — had already been required by the ECB and the Bank of Italy after both a
thematic in-depth analysis, "Thematic Review on Risk Governance and Appetite”, and an
ordinary investigation activity, carried out in the period September 2015 to January 2016, on
the Bank’s governance and the Risk management system. This review closed in January 2017
and was formalised by sending, on 28 February 2017, the related "follow-up" letter.

However, (i) should such actions, the policies and procedures of the Group companies aimed
at identifying, monitoring and managing risks prove not to be adequate, or the evaluations and
assumptions on which such policies and procedures are based prove to be incorrect, or (ii)
should the Bank be notified with requests of the supervisory authority in the context of the
SREP process to comply with higher Pillar 11 requirements compared to current ones, (iii)
notwithstanding the existence of the aforementioned internal procedures aimed at identifying
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and managing risk, should the Group’s structures not be able to handle such risks in carrying
out certain activities, exposing the Bank to unexpected or unquantified risks, the Bank and/or
the Group may incur losses, even relevant, with a potential negative impact on the business and
the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group. Finally, it cannot
be excluded that the review of the internal models and procedure could become necessary in
case of changes in the relevant laws and regulations.

2.17 Risks associated with debt restructuring transactions

In exercising the banking activity and, also as a result of the economic/financial crisis that
impacted the countries in which the Group operates, the Group is a party to several debt
restructuring transactions, both bilateral and in pool, involving its clients. The deterioration of
credit quality implies an increased number of debt restructuring transactions (both governed by
the Royal Decree No. 267 of 16 March 1942, as amended (the "Bankruptcy Law") and
contractually dealt with by the Bank without resorting to the procedures provided for by
Bankruptcy Law), which provide for amendments to the originally agreed contractual
provisions in favour of borrowers. Such amendments concern, in particular, the granting of
moratorium periods, the extension of loan amortisation plans, the write-off of a portion of
credits claimed by the Bank, the granting of new finance and/or the conversion of the whole or
a part of the indebtedness in equity interests or other financial, debt or equity instruments.

With specific reference to the taking of equity interests and/or other instruments representing
equity risk through debt conversion, in the context of the aforementioned procedures, the Group
acquired some equity interests, even significant, in finance companies, with a possible
consequent inclusion within the Group's consolidation perimeter. Possible operational or
financial losses or risks, which investee companies may be exposed to, may limit the Group's
ability to sell the aforementioned equity interests and entail the reduction of the value thereof,
even to a considerable extent, with potential negative impacts on the business and the
economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

Among the debt restructuring transactions which are relevant for the Issuer, it should be noted
that the Issuer holds interests in the share capital of Nuova Sorgenia Holding S.p.A.. As at 30
September 2018, the Group's overall credit exposure to the Sorgenia group was equal to Euro
241 million (Euro 220 million by cash and Euro 21 million by accrual), in addition to a portion
of the convertible bond issued by Sorgenia S.p.A. in 2015, equal to Euro 44.2 million, a portion
of the bond convertible into equity financial instruments issued by Sorgenia Power S.p.A. in
2017, equal to Euro 73.6 million and equity financial instruments issued by Nuova Sorgenia
Holding S.p.A. for Euro 88.4 million.

Furthermore, certain entities of the Sorgenia group entered into restructuring agreements with
the Issuer. As at the date of the Prospectus, there is no certainty that the Sorgenia group will be
able to fulfil the undertakings given in the context of such restructuring agreements. Should
the Sorgenia group not be able to fulfil the related obligations undertaken, the economic, capital
and/or financial condition of the Issuer may be negatively affected, by virtue of the exposures
to the Sorgenia group.

Again, among the debt restructuring transactions relevant for the Issuer and within the context
of a credit securitisation transaction pursuant to Law 130 to be realised with one or more SPVs
referred to as "Pillarstone Italy", on 26 June 2017 the assignment of the receivables claimed by
the Group was resolved upon, for a total of Euro 298 million, to the company Rizzo Bottiglieri
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De Carlini Armatori S.p.A. (in composition with creditors procedure pursuant to art.160 and
186-bis of the Bankruptcy Law). On 1 July 2017, BMPS and MPS Capital Services assigned
to the vehicle Norma SPV s.r.l. the receivables due by Rizzo Bottiglieri De Carlini Armatori
S.p.A.. On 21 July 2017, the issue of notes by Norma SPV S.r.l. was carried out. BMPS and
MPS Capital Services purchased the mezzanine and junior notes proportionately to the
receivables assigned, which therefore have not been subject to derecognition within their
respective financial statements.

2.18 Risks associated with the ownership structure

As at the date of the Prospectus — following the execution of the capital enhancement and
precautionary recapitalisation measures — the MEF holds 68.247 per cent. of the Bank's share
capital, and, accordingly, it holds by law control over it.

Furthermore, it has to be considered that the precautionary recapitalisation reserved to MEF
constitutes — pursuant to art. 18 of Decree 180 — a measure adopted on a precautionary and
temporary basis. In this respect, the commitments required by DG Comp provide, inter alia,
for the MEF to dispose of its stake held in the Bank by the end of the Restructuring Plan.
Accordingly, in case of disposal, in whole or in part, of the stake held by the MEF in the Bank,
a consequent variation in the ownership structure and, if the case, even in control over the Bank
would take place.

2.19 Risks associated with the ratings assigned to the Issuer

The risk linked to an issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations, which arise after the issuance of
debt instruments and money market instruments, is in practice defined by way of a reference
to the credit ratings assigned by independent rating agencies.

Such valuations and relating surveys may be of help for investors in analysing credit risks
linked to financial instruments, since they provide indications about issuers’ ability to fulfil
their obligations. The lower the rating assigned on the respective scale the higher the risk,
evaluated by the rating agency, that an issuer will not fulfil its obligations at maturity or that it
will not fully and/or timely fulfil them. On the other hand, the outlook represents the parameter
indicating the expected short-term trend for the ratings assigned to an issuer.

A rating, however, does not represent a recommendation to purchase, sell or retain any bond
issued and may be suspended, reduced or withdrawn at any time by the rating agency which
issued it. A suspension, reduction or withdrawal of a rating assigned may have a negative
impact on the market price of the bonds issued and, furthermore, on the stock price of the same
issuer.

As at the date of the Prospectus, the Issuer has been assigned ratings by international agencies
Moody’s, Fitch and DBRS. Such agencies, on 31 October 2011, obtained registration under
Regulation no. 1060/2009/CE of the European Parliament and the Council of 16 September
2009 relating to credit rating agencies.

The deterioration of the national and international economic landscape together with the
sovereign debt crisis have been crucial factors, starting from 2011, in the negative performance
of the rating assigned to the Republic of Italy, to the most important financial institutions of
the country as well as to the Bank.
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In determining the rating assigned to the Issuer, agencies also take account of and examine
various Group performance parameters, among which are profitability and ability to maintain
its capital ratios within certain levels. Should the Issuer and/or one of the subsidiaries that have
been assigned a rating not achieve or maintain the results measured by one or more parameters
or should the Group not be able to maintain its capital ratios within the pre-identified level, this
may lead to a downgrade of the rating assigned by the agencies, with a consequent higher cost
of funding, restricted access to capital markets, negative repercussions for the Group’s liquidity
and the potential need to supplement collaterals given.

A summary of the most recent comments made by the rating agencies on the Issuer is
reproduced herein below:

DBRS (19 June 2018): confirmation of the ratings takes into account the progress made by the
Bank in the context of the Restructuring Plan in terms of: i) completion of the securitisation of
non-performing loans for an amount equal to Euro 24.1 billion and the other steps aimed at
improving the risk profile, ii) the increased efficiency arising from the exit of 1,800 employees
and from the rationalisation of the branches network, and iii) the stabilisation of funding along
with a reduction in its costs. However, ratings reflect the still considerable stock of Impaired
Loans of the Bank and the consequent adverse effect on capital, as well as the challenges to be
met by the Bank to improve its profitability. For the purposes of an upgrade in ratings, further
improvements are needed in terms of asset quality, profitability and efficiency. A downgrade
in ratings might conversely be due to a decrease in investors' confidence, to a significant
weakening in terms of capital and to difficulties in the further reduction of non-performing
loans;

Fitch (24 July 2018): confirmation of the ratings reflects an improvement in the asset quality
and a reduced pressure on the capital of net Impaired Loans following completion of the
securitisation of the NPLs. The impact of NPLs on overall loans remarkably dropped from late
2016, but it might still be higher than the average of the Italian and international market. The
rating agency holds that the Bank's capitalisation is not proportionate with the risks, even
though pressure on the capital of Impaired Loans should be relieved any time the scheduled
transfers of Impaired Loans are made. The ratings also reflect the belief that funding and
liquidity depend on State-guaranteed instruments and on refinancing transactions performed
by the ECB; for the rating on funding and on the liquidity to be upgraded, the Bank should
further stabilise funding from customers and restore an ordinary and regular access to the
markets. The rating agency holds that further progress is needed for the Bank to completely
restore the trading capacity of its own network, to effectively operate in a competitive sector,
to keep up with market innovations and to reach adequate profitability levels again. The outlook
"Stable" reflects the expectation that the Bank's outlook will remain stable, provided that the
Bank goes on with its own restructuring and the macro-economic and market background does
not deteriorate. The ratings might be upgraded if the Bank reverts to sustainable profitability
levels, keeping at the same time an adequate capitalisation and credit quality control. An
upgrade in ratings further requires evidence of the occurred normalisation of funding and
liquidity levels; and

Moody’s (3 December 2018): the rating agency Moody’s downgraded the long-term senior
unsecured rating of BMPS from ‘B3’ to ‘Caal’, thereby confirming the long-term deposit
rating of ‘B1’ and the standalone baseline credit assessment ("BCA") of ‘Caal’. The outlook
on the long-term deposit rating was changed to ‘negative’ from °‘stable’, in line with the
negative outlook assigned to the senior unsecured debt. The confirmation of BCA of ‘Caal’
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reflects improving but still very high asset risk, pressures on capitalisation and weak
profitability. The stock of Impaired Loans of the Bank remarkably decreased following the
securitisation of NPLs and Moody’s expects that the asset risk will keep on improving
following further disposals of Impaired Loans planned for the next months. The capitalisation
of BMPS is under pressure due to the impact of the widening of spread on Italian Government
bonds. The Bank returned to profitability during the first three quarters of 2018 after many
quarters of heavy losses; however, the rating agency holds that BMPS has yet to demonstrate
that it is able to sustain this profitability, given the residual stock of NPLs and its funding
structure. The downgrade of the long-term senior unsecured rating to “‘Caal’ reflects the limited
stock of senior securities due to the repayment, in recent months, of material amounts not
replaced by new issuances. An upgrade of BMPS' long-term ratings is unlikely in the short
term, given the negative outlooks. The BCA could be upgraded following tangible and
sustainable progress towards the targets set by the Bank's Restructuring Plan, more specifically:
(i) aROA above 0.4 per cent.; (ii) an Impaired Loans ratio below 15 per cent. of loans; and (iii)
increased deposit funding or senior and subordinated debt securities issuances not secured by
way of a Government guarantee. Moody’s could downgrade the senior unsecured debt and
deposit ratings if the stock of senior debt continues to decrease. The BCA could be downgraded
if (i) the Bank failed to return to sustainable profit generation; (ii) capital ratios fell materially;
and (iii) the Bank experienced material deposit outflows.

*khkk

Also considering the Bank's ownership structure, the Issuer’s ratings may furthermore be
affected by the rating of the Italian State which, as at the date of the Prospectus, is higher than
that of the Issuer. Therefore, a potential downgrading of Italy’s sovereign rating may lead to a
further downgrading of the Issuer’s rating, with a consequently negative impact on the business
and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group. For further
information on the Italian State's rating, see paragraph "Risks associated with the Groups
exposure to sovereign debt™ above.

On the Issuer’s creditworthiness depends the possibility for it to access the market to obtain
unsecured loans. A possible reduction of the rating levels assigned to the Issuer or the
withdrawal of one or more of the aforementioned ratings may have an unfavourable impact on
the opportunities for the Bank and the Group to have access to the various liquidity instruments
and on the ability thereof to compete in the market, a circumstance that may cause increased
deposit collection costs or require the creation of additional guarantees for the purpose of
raising liquidity, with consequent negative impacts on the business and the economic, capital
and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

Possible changes to the Issuer’s ratings that may intervene during the validity period of the
Prospectus, or the fact that any such rating becomes subject to review by the rating agencies,
will be disclosed to the public by way of specific press releases published on the Issuer’s
website (www.gruppomps.it).

For further information on the ratings assigned to the Issuer, among which the meaning of the
assessments assigned to the Issuer, reference is made to "Banca Monte dei Paschi S.p.A. -
Ratings" of this Prospectus.
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2.20 Risks associated with the assignment and evaluation of equity interests

As at 30 September 2018, the value of equity interests amounted to Euro 905 million, equal to
0.7 per cent. of the Group’s total assets; the most relevant are AXA MPS Assicurazioni Vita
S.p.A. (Euro 684 million), AXA MPS Assicurazioni Danni S.p.A. (Euro 66 million), Fondo
Etrusco (Euro 71 million), Fondo Minibond Italia (Euro 35 million) and Fidi Toscana S.p.A.
(Euro 22 million). As at 31 December 2017, instead, the value of equity interests amounted to
Euro 1,035 million, equal to 0.7 per cent. of the Group’s total assets; the most relevant were
AXA MPS Assicurazioni Vita S.p.A. (Euro 792 million), Fondo Etrusco (Euro 68 million),
AXA MPS Assicurazioni Danni S.p.A. (Euro 81 million), Fidi Toscana S.p.A. (Euro 22
million) and Fondo Minibond Italia (Euro 38 million).

In accordance with the provisions of international accounting standard 1AS 36, an impairment
test is periodically conducted on equity interests.

As at 30 September 2018, the assessment of equity interests impairment indicators entailed
value adjustments equal to around Euro 6 million, primarily due to the depreciation of equity
interests Trixia S.r.l..

As at 31 December 2017, the assessment of equity interests impairment indicators entailed
value adjustments equal to around Euro 27. million, entirely referred to the equity interests in
Trixia s.r.l., Interporto Toscano Vespucci S.p.A. and Fidi Toscana S.p.A..

Should the Bank be forced to review the value of the equity interests held, also due to
extraordinary and/or assignment transactions as well as changed market conditions, the Bank
may be forced to apply significant write-downs, with potential negative impacts on the business
and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

In the context of the Restructuring Plan and of the undertakings given by the Bank in the
context of the "State aid" procedure, the assignment of non-strategic assets held by the Bank is
provided for, among which the foreign banks, Monte Paschi Banque S.A. and Banca Monte
Paschi Belgio S.A.. As at the date of the Prospectus:

— With respect to Monte Paschi Banque S.A., the Bank resolved upon the start of the
orderly winding down process setting out a plan compliant with the Commitment No.
14 ("Disposal of participations and businesses"): (i) progressive deleverage of the
current portfolio of receivables, (ii) acceptance of deposits only from already existing
customers, (iii) interruption of the business development activities and (iv) prohibition
of new initiatives in new market segments. Also, in order to comply with the
commitment undertaken under the Restructuring Plan, there might be negative impacts
on the capital, economic and financial situation of the Issuer due to the potential costs
of the restructuring of Monte Paschi Banque S.A.;

— With respect to Banca Monte Paschi Belgio S.A., the negotiations for the transfer have
been concluded. On 5 October 2018, the Bank entered into an agreement with a
company controlled by funds managed by Warburg Pincus for the sale of Banca Monte
Paschi Belgio S.A.. As of the date of this Prospectus, the transfer is subject to the
approval of the Belgian national bank and the ECB. The expected loss related to the
transfer has been set out in the Interim Financial Report for the period ending on 30
September 2018.
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2.21  Operational Risk

In carrying out its business, the Group is exposed to the so called operational risk, namely the
risk to incur losses deriving from the inadequacy or malfunctioning of corporate procedures,
errors and shortcomings of human resources, internal processes or IT systems, or external
events. Such type of risk includes losses deriving from frauds, human errors, discontinuation
of operations, unavailability of systems and increasing resorting to atomisation and outsourcing
of corporate functions, contractual non-fulfilments, natural catastrophes, low IT security and
legal risks, while strategic and reputational risks are excluded. Operational risks differ from
other typical risks of the banking and financial business (credit and market risks) because they
are not taken by the Bank based on strategic choices, but are embedded in its operations and
are in all cases present.

The Group, also for the purpose of mitigating the possible negative consequences associated
with such type of risk, adopted an internal model to determine the capital requirement versus
operational risks (Advanced Measurement Approach method - "AMA"), validated by the Bank
of Italy also for reporting purposes starting from June 2008. Such model includes specific rules
governing the identification, measurement, monitoring and mitigation of operational risk
process and methodologies.

After five years from the initial acknowledgement of internal models on operational risks for
the purpose of calculating capital requirements, the AMA has been reshaped to align it with
the market best practices and include requirement reduction techniques within the calculation,
such as the deduction of expected losses and the diversification among risk classes. In January
2014 the Group was authorised to use such operational risk requirement reduction techniques
by the Bank of Italy in respect of data as at 31 December 2013. Starting from 31 December
2014, BMPS has been authorised to adopt methodological amendments concerning both the
quantitative and qualitative integration. Finally, in February 2017 the Group was authorised to
use scaling* techniques of external loss data for the calculation of the requirement starting from
30 June 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the overall capital requirement in respect of operational risks was
equal to Euro 801 million, increased compared to Euro 678 million as at 31 December 2016,
mainly due to the evolution of the models carried out as at 30 June 2017. The overall
operational losses are increasing primarily due to claims made by customers.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group's capital requirement in respect of operational risks was
equal to Euro 778 million, substantially stable compared to 31 December 2017.

As at 30 September 2018, the overall operational losses were reduced compared to operational
losses incurred in 2017.

In relation to the calculation of capital requirements, the Basel committee published a
consultation document with the amendment proposals to the regime of capital requirements in

! The AMA internal model uses both internal loss data and external loss data (system data) to calculate the
requirement. The scaling mechanism allows to assign a different weighting to internal data compared to
external data, for the purpose of avoiding unexpected movements in the requirement as a consequence of
significant external phenomena, deemed inconsistent with the Group's risk profile.
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respect of operational risks. A variation, if any, of calculation criteria may entail increased
requirements and have an impact on the Group's capital adequacy.

Although the Issuer deems the above described organisational and control measures adequate,
there is the risk that certain types of risk may still occur in the future, even due to unforeseeable
events, fully or partially outside the Group's control (including, without limitation, frauds,
scams or losses deriving from employee disloyalties and/or the violation of control procedures,
the attack of IT viruses or the malfunctioning of electrical and/or telecommunication services,
possible terrorist attacks).

2.22 Risks associated with securitisations

Starting from 2000, the Group carried out several securitisation transactions aimed at (i)
optimising its liquidity profile, by placing the asset backed notes on the market and using such
notes in the context of refinancing transactions with the ECB and repo transactions and (ii)
freeing up regulatory capital.

As of the date of this Prospectus there are some on-going securitisation transactions which do
not provide for assets derecognition, for which therefore the Group is holding all the risks and
benefits relating to the ownership of the assigned receivables and two securitisation
transactions providing for the asset derecognition: Casaforte S.r.l., completed in 2010, and
Siena NPL 2018 S.r.l.,, completed in 2017, for which the underlying assets have been
completely derecognised.

The ordinary structure chosen for the securitisation transactions providing for no assets
derecognition provides that the Group transfers the selected assets to a special purpose vehicle
and it subscribes the junior, mezzanine or senior tranches; the assets transferred to the special
purpose vehicle are not written-off from the consolidated financial statement of the Group:
rather, the risk relating to such transactions is set out in the financial statements by accounting
the transferred receivables in the assets column of the balance sheet, which are therefore
evaluated in their entirety.

On the other hand, it should be noted that the main goal of securitisation transactions is to
strengthen the counterbalancing capacity and the liquidity position of the Group, considering
that the asset-backed notes subscribed for can be used as collateral in collateralised financing
transactions; in particular, senior tranches, where eligible, can be used as collateral in the
refinancing transaction with the ECB. In this respect, among the risks relating to these
transactions, the risk of price change of the asset-backed notes issued and not sold to third
parties and/or the risk of downgrading must be considered, on the basis that they might reduce
the Issuer ability of refinancing.

With regard to the Siena NPL transaction, as of 31 December 2017, the asset backed notes
issued by the Siena NPL 2018 S.r.l. vehicle were fully held by the Group.

During the first semester of 2018, BMPS completed (i) on 9 January 2018, the transfer of 95
per cent. of Mezzanine Notes for a nominal amount equal to Euro 847.6 million with Quaestio
SGR on behalf of the Italian Recovery Fund (formerly Atlante Il, a closed-end alternative
investment fund established under Italian law reserved to professional investors and managed
by Quaestio Capital SGR S.p.A.) (the "Italian Recovery Fund") and (ii) on 22 June 2018, the
transfer of 95 per cent. of Junior Notes for a nominal amount equal to Euro 565 million. The
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Senior Notes are currently held by the Assigning Banks (as defined below), which will be able
to assess their potential placing in the market.

Following the sale of 95 per cent. of the Mezzanine Notes and the Junior Notes and the
complete outsourcing of the recovery activities related to the portfolio, on 22 June 2018, the
full derecognition of the NPL Portfolio had been completed. From that date, the Bank accounts
an overall amount of Euro 2,823 million in its financial statements in relation to the exposures
against the tranches issued and not sold.

In light of the above, the Issuer will retain certain exposures to the securitisation, and
accordingly to the performance of collections and recoveries of the securitised portfolio and
will remain exposed to the related risks, in terms of actual yield and recovery possibility of the
investment effected, in case the flows deriving from the securitised assets are lower than those
expected throughout the life of the transaction, with consequent negative impacts on the
economic, capital and financial condition of the Bank and the Group.

The value of each class of asset-backed notes held, on a temporary or permanent basis, by the
assigning banks will depend upon not only the value of and return on the NPL Portfolio, but
also the value, costs, terms and conditions of any other amount the payment of which is, due
pari passu or with priority, compared to each such class of asset-backed notes.

2.23 Risks associated with the Montepaschi Group's asset valuation assumptions and
methodologies

In accordance with the regime laid down by the International Accounting Standards, the Group
prepares evaluations, estimates and hypotheses which affect the application of the same
standards and reflect themselves on assets, liabilities, costs and revenues amounts recorded in
the financial statement. The estimates and relating hypotheses are based on previous
experiences and other factors considered reasonable in the specific circumstances and are
adopted for assets and liabilities the book value of which cannot be easily derived from other
sources.

In particular, the Group adopts estimate processes in support of the book value of the most
important financial statement items. The elaboration of such estimates entails the use of
available information and the adoption of subjective evaluations. By their nature, estimates and
assumptions used may vary from year to year and, accordingly, it cannot be excluded that in
the coming years the values currently recorded in the financial statement may vary, also to a
significant extent, after changes to subjective evaluations used. Such estimates and evaluations
are thus difficult and bring along inevitable uncertainty elements, also in the presence of stable
macroeconomic conditions.

Estimation processes are largely based on the future recoverability of the values recorded in
the financial statement in accordance with the rules laid down by the applicable provisions,
with a view of business continuity, i.e. disregarding cases of forced liquidation of the item
under evaluation.

The estimation uncertainty risk is substantially embedded in the determination of the following
values:

. fair value relating to illiquid items, not listed on active markets;
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. impairment losses on receivables and, in general, financial assets;

. fairness of the value of equity interests, tangible assets, goodwill and other intangible
assets;

. liabilities for the estimate of severance indemnity and other defined benefits due to
employees;

. provisions for risks and charges; and

. recoverability of advanced taxes,

the quantification of which might significantly change due to the evolution of: (i) the national
and international environment, (ii) the financial markets, with consequent impacts on the
performance of rates, the fluctuation of prices, the assumptions of actuarial estimates, (iii) the
real estate market with consequent effects on the real estate assets owned by the Group and
held as collateral and (iv) potential changes in laws and regulations.

The parameters and information used to estimate the abovementioned values are then
significantly impacted by the aforementioned factors, in respect of which it cannot be excluded
that a worsening of the related performance may give rise to negative impacts on the items
under evaluation and, ultimately, on the operating results and the economic, capital and/or
financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

The risks associated with the uncertainties concerning the use of estimates for the assessment
of loans and financial instruments measured at fair value on recurrent basis classified in
correspondence to Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy are shown below.

Loans to customers

As at 30 September 2018, the Group's net loans to customers amounted to Euro 87,465 million
(Euro 86,456 million as at 31 December 2017) and represent one of the valuation items exposed
the most to the choices made in the matter of risk delivery, management and monitoring. In
detail, the Group manages financed counterparties' default risk, by monitoring on an on-going
basis the evolution of relations with customers for the purpose of assessing repayment capacity,
on the basis of their economic-financial condition, and the presumable recoverable value of
real estate properties and collaterals. Such monitoring activity allows to intercept loan
impairment signs and accordingly to assign value adjustments on an analytical or flat-rate basis.
These adjustments are calculated pursuant to the new impairment model provided for by IFRS
9, which introduces the concept of expect credit loss (ECL), defined as the weighted average
of losses on credit, using as "weights" the relevant risks of default. This model is characterised
by the use of forward looking information and macroeconomic variables, entailing a faster
recognition of losses, which are recognised also on performance activities even if not already
incurred. Furthermore the adjustments of value calculation changes on the basis of the stage
allocation of the single asset, determined in relation to the worsening of the credit quality
compared to the initial recording.

Therefore, in assessing loans, not only final data and certain information existing as at the
drafting date of the financial statement are of key relevance, but also other factors such as:
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o the reference context, at macroeconomic and legislative-regulatory level, affecting the
management view in terms of future and rigour expectations in the assessment process.;

. the outcome of the application of cash flow predictive models which it is expected
single debtors (or portfolios of homogeneous debtors under a risk profile) will be able
to pay to fulfil, in whole or in part, the obligations undertaken to the Group; and

. the macroeconomic scenarios and the expected loss estimates calculated for each
scenario considering the PD and LGD specifications.

Finally, it should be noted that the credit assessment depends also on the strategies carried out
by the Group for the relevant recovery on the basis of the provisions of the Restructuring Plan.
Therefore, as to the estimate of the expected loss on non-performing exposure the expected
transfers are considered as well. This entails also the assessment of the exposures potentially
included in these transactions, in the context of the strategies provided for the Restructuring
Plan, considering also this recovery procedure. This measure criterion is applied where the
transfer of the portfolio of receivables is deemed highly probable; therefore such assessment
could significantly affect the capital, economic and financial situation of the Group.

In the context of a range of possible approaches relating to the estimate models permitted by
reference to international accounting standards, resorting to a methodology or selecting certain
estimate parameters may significantly affect the assessment of loans. Such methodologies and
parameters are necessarily subject to an on-going updating process for the purpose of better
representing the presumable recoverable value. In particular, for Impaired Loans the definition
of a different portfolio perimeter to be subjected to flat-rate assessment, typically represented
by exposures of lower amount, may involve the detection of further adjustments compared to
those recorded on the basis of an analytical assessment.

It cannot therefore be excluded that different monitoring criteria or different methodologies,
parameters or assumptions in the estimate process of the recoverable value of the Group's credit
exposures may determine significantly different evaluations compared to those of the interim
financial report for the period ending on 30 September 2018, also after a possible further
worsening of the economic-financial crisis, with consequent impact on the economic and
financial and condition of the Group.

Determination of financial instruments' fair value (financial assets and liabilities)

In the presence of complex or illiquid financial instruments, for which quotations or parameters
observed on active markets are not available, it is necessary to resort to valuation models and
parameters, the selection of which is affected by some margins of subjectivity.

Assets valued at fair value on a recurrent basis and classified in correspondence of Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy as at 30 September 2018 amounted to Euro 821 million (Euro 910
million as at 1 January 2018, including the effects of the reclassification linked to the
implementation of IFRS 9; equal to Euro 336 million as at 31 December 2017); they are assets
for which the measurement of fair value is based to a relevant extent on inputs not coming from
the market, involving estimates and assumptions by the management. As at 30 September 2018,
the impact of financial assets evaluated at fair value and classified within Levels 2 and 3 of the
hierarchy compared to total assets evaluated at fair value on a recurrent basis is equal to 19.0
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per cent. and 3.2 per cent. respectively (17.8 per cent. and 1.4 per cent. as at 31 December
2017).

It cannot, accordingly, be excluded that the selection of alternative models and parameters may
entail negative impacts, even significant once, on the economic, capital and financial condition
of the Group.

For uncertainties linked to the estimates of the provision for risks and charges for legal actions
and tax disputes as well as to the recoverability of advanced tax assets, reference is made to
"Risks relating to DTAs" and "Risks deriving from tax disputes" below.

2.24  Risks relating to DTAs

As at 30 September 2018, deferred tax assets ("DTA™) amounted in aggregate to Euro 2,901
million (compared to Euro 2,937 million as at 31 December 2017), of which Euro 1,002 million
(compared to Euro 1,313 million as at 31 December 2017) is eligible to be converted into tax
credit pursuant to Law of 22 December 2011, No. 214 ("Law 214/2011").

Law 214/2011 provided for the conversion into tax credits of DTAs referred to write-downs
and credit losses, as well as those relating to the value of goodwill and other intangible assets
(so called DTAs eligible for conversion) in case the company records a loss for the period in
its individual financial statement. The conversion into tax credit operates with respect to DTAs
recorded in the financial statement in which the loss is recognised and for a fraction thereof
equal to the ratio between the loss amount and the company's equity.

Law 214/2011 further provided for the conversion of DTAs also in the presence of a tax loss,
on an individual basis; in such case, the conversion operates for the DTAS recognised in the
financial statement versus the tax loss for the portion of the same loss generated by the
deduction of the above illustrated negative income components (write-downs and credit losses,
goodwill and other intangible assets).

In such legislative framework, accordingly, the recovery of DTAs eligible for conversion
seems guaranteed for the Issuer also in case the latter does not generate adequate future taxable
income capable of ordinarily absorbing the deductions correspondent to DTAs recorded. The
tax regime introduced by Law 214/2011, as stated in the Bank of 1taly/CONSOB/ISVAP (now
IVASS) document "Accounting treatment of deferred taxes deriving from Law 214/2011" No.
5 of 15 May 2012, in granting "certainty" to the recovery of DTAs eligible for conversion,
impacts in particular on the recoverability test laid down by accounting standard 1AS12,
basically making it automatically satisfied. Even the regulatory legislation provides for a more
favourable treatment for DTAs eligible for conversion compared to the other types of DTAS;
the first in fact, for the purpose of the capital adequacy requirements the Group shall comply
with, do not constitute negative elements at equity level and are included among RWA with a
100 per cent. weighting.

In relation to DTAs eligible for conversion pursuant to Law 214/2011, article 11 of Law Decree
No. 59/2016 subjected the possibility to continue to apply the above described regime in the
matter of conversion into tax credits of advanced tax assets to the exercise of a specific
irrevocable option and the payment of an annual fee ("DTA fee") to be paid with reference to
each of the financial years starting from 2015 and subsequently, if annual requirements are
met, until 2029. As clarified in the press release of the Council of Ministers of 29 April 2016,
such provision was necessary to overcome the doubts raised by the European Commission on
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the existence of "State aid" components in the legislative framework relating to deferred tax
assets then in force.

In more detail, the fee for a specific financial year is determined by applying the 1.5 per cent.
rate to a "base" obtained by adding to the difference between DTAs eligible for conversion
recorded in the financial statement of such financial year and the corresponding DTASs recorded
in the 2007 financial statement, the overall amount of conversions into tax credits operated
until the relevant financial year, net of taxes, identified in the Decree, paid with respect to the
specific tax periods established in the same Decree. Such fee is deductible for the purpose of
income taxes.

The Bank exercised the aforementioned option by paying the fee, within the set deadline of 31
July 2016, for the amount of Euro 70.4 million, due for 2015.

Subsequently, the article 26-bis of Decree 237 amended the article 11 of Law Decree 59/2016,
substantially moving the DTA fee's reference period from 2015-2029 to 2016-2030.
Consequently, the fee already paid on 31 July 2016 in relation to 2015 is deemed deferred, the
amount remaining unchanged, to 2016; as a consequence of the exercise of the option, the Bank
also proceeded with the payment of the fee due for 2017 and 2018 for the amount of Euro 141.8
million.

In relation to the expected evolution of the amount of DTAs eligible for conversion please note
that, as a consequence of the rules introduced by Law Decree No. 83/2015 (converted by Law
6 August 2015 No. 132), such amount may no longer be increased in the future. Specifically,
from 2016 the pre-requirement for the recognition of DTAs from write-downs and credit losses
ceased, having those negative income items become fully deductible.

In relation to DTAs relating to goodwill and other intangible assets, if recognised in the
Financial Statement from 2015 onwards, they will no longer be eligible for conversion into tax
credits due to the effect of aforementioned Law Decree 83/2015.

Moreover, it should be noted that Law Decree No. 83/2015, by recognising the immediate
deductibility of write-downs and credit losses, entailed for financial years subsequent to 2015
a relevant reduction of corporate income tax ("IRES") (and IRAP, as defined below) taxable
income for the Group, extending, as a result, the time horizon for the absorption of tax losses
and prior economic growth support (aiuto alla crescita economica) ("EGS") surplus and,
accordingly, for the DTAs associated with such losses and surpluses. To the contrary, the failed
recognition among DTAs eligible for conversion of DTAs relating to goodwill and other
intangible assets recorded since 2015, introduced by Law Decree No. 83/2015, had no impact
on the Group.

In light of the above, the main types of deferred tax assets recognised in the Financial Statement
2017 and the Interim Financial Statements as 2018 are highlighted below.

Deferred tax assets relating to write-downs and credit losses as at 30 September 2018 amounted
to Euro 557 million (Euro 734 million as at 31 December 2017) and is naturally destined to
reduce itself over time as a consequence of the progressive conversion thereof from deferred
to current, until its coming to zero in financial year 2025, according with the time mechanism
predefined by the tax provisions in force (Law Decree No. 83/2015).
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Deferred tax assets relating to goodwill and other intangible assets freed up as at 30 September
2018 amounted to Euro 441 million (Euro 576 million as at 31 December 2017), is equally
naturally destined to reduce itself over time as a consequence of the progressive conversion
thereof from deferred to current. The tax amortisation of such assets in fact, takes place on a
straight line basis over more financial years. On the contrary, no possible increases are
currently foreseen, which may exclusively derive from the freeing up of the goodwill recorded
as a consequence of the possible acquisition of new equity interest or business units.

Deferred tax assets relating to administrative costs deductible in financial years subsequent to
those of recognition in the financial statement (allocations to the provision for risks and
charges, costs associated with capital increases, etc.) amount as at 30 September 2018 to Euro
300 million (Euro 312 million as at 31 December 2017).

Deferred tax assets relating to capital losses recorded in the specific equity valuation reserves
are equal to Euro 230 million as at 30 September 2018 (Euro 162 million as at 31 December
2017). Such reserves represent the fair value movements of cash flow hedging derivatives and
securities recorded in the Financial Statement assets under item "Financial activities valued at
fair value affecting the overall profitability".

As at 30 September 2018, DTAs are, furthermore, recognised as tax losses for Euro 1,097
million (Euro 901 million as at 31 December 2017) and EGS surpluses for Euro 177 million
(Euro 146 million as at 31 December 2017). EGS surpluses refer to the portion of tax incentive
known as "Economic Growth Support™” (EGS) introduced by art. 1 of Law Decree No. 201/2011
not used in the prior financial years, due to insufficient taxable income. It has to be noted that
such incentive provides, for companies that have increased their capital resources compared to
the respective size as at 31 December 2010, for the right to operate a downward amendment to
their taxable income by an amount equal to the notional return on the capital increase realised.
This downward amendment is recognised for the financial year in which the capital increase
took place, as well as for each of the subsequent years and, in case of insufficient taxable
income of one of those, may be deducted from the following years' income.

The notional return is valuated, for the tax period current as at 30 September 2018 and for the
subsequent ones, as equal to 1.5 per cent. (measure currently set by article 7 of Law Decree
No. 50/2017). Although the carry forward of tax losses and EGS surpluses is not subject —
according to the tax regime in force — to any time limit, regulatory provisions concerning the
respective DTASs provide for a more unfavourable treatment compared to that of the other
DTAs not eligible for conversion into tax credits pursuant to Law No. 214/2011, since they are
deducted from equity according to the phasing-in percentages without the benefit of the excess
mechanism.

DTAs for tax losses and EGS surpluses, together with the other DTAs not eligible for
conversion into tax credits pursuant to Law No. 214/2011, have been recorded in the Interim
Financial Statements 2018, as well as in Financial Statement 2017, to the extent the existence
of future taxable income has been reasonably proved, as derived from the business plan most
recently approved by the board of directors, sufficient to guarantee their absorption in the
coming financial years (probability test). Furthermore, since the interim financial statement as
at 30 June 2016, the execution methodology of the probability test provided for by IAS 12 for
the recognition of DTAs has been reviewed. The methodological evolution was necessary in
light of unrealised tax losses, the tax loss being created in 2016 and the consequent deviation
compared to expectations, as well as the planned derecognition transaction of Doubtful Loans
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which, in combination, extended the time horizon for the recovery of deferred tax assets. The
decision to update such methodology further derived from the amendments intervened in the
tax regime, such as, specifically, the amendment to the tax regime of loans to customers
adjustments (Law Decree 83/2015), which provided for the full deductibility thereof in the
financial year in which they are recognised.

The methodological evolution introduced in the probability test consists in the application of
an increasing discount factor to future taxable income (the so called risk adjusted profits
approach) so as to reflect with the highest reasonableness possible the probability of its
occurrence. Such complex methodology, applied to the most recent forecasts on the Group's
future profitability as provided for in the new business plan, determines, as at 30 September
2018, the failed recognition of DTAs potentially accrued from tax losses and EGSs for Euro
1,965 million (Euro 1,786 million as at 31 December 2017).

In this respect, where for any reason, currently unpredictable, the aforementioned future taxable
income should result lower than that estimated, and not be sufficient to guarantee the
reabsorption of the DTAs under examination or significant changes should occur to the current
tax regime, negative impacts, even material, could impact on the business and the economic,
capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

2.25 Risks deriving from tax disputes
The Bank and the main Group’s companies are subject to several tax proceedings.

As at the date of this Prospectus, around 60 cases are pending, for an overall amount of around
Euro 130 million for taxes and sanctions. The value of disputes also includes that associated
with tax verifications closed, for which no dispute is currently pending since the tax authority
has not yet formalised any claim or contestation.

Pending disputes with likely unfavourable outcomes are of limited number and amount
(approximately Euro 10 million) and are guarded by adequate allocations to the overall
provision for risks and charges.

On 27 April 2016, the Guardia di Finanza, department of Siena (Tax Police Department),
started a tax audit against the subsidiary Consorzio Operativo Gruppo Montepaschi S.c.p.a.,
for the purpose of direct taxes, value-added tax ("VAT") and Italian regional tax on productive
activities ("IRAP"), for the period between 1 January 2011 and 27 April 2016.

At the end of the verification, on 20 October 2016, contestation minutes were notified to the
company, with which, for financial years 2011 to 2015, higher taxes have been contested for
Euro 17.5 million, for IRES and IRAP purposes, and for Euro 9.1 million for VAT purposes,
plus the relating legal sanctions, not estimated. Following the settlement and the dialogue with
the tax authority, as of the date of this Prospectus the overall charges amount to Euro 3.9 million
of which: Euro 1.2 million for VAT sanctions, Euro 2.2 for higher IRES taxation and Euro 0.5
million for the relevant reduced sanctions.

With reference to the IVA remarks, the Bank challenged the provision imposing sanctions in
relation fiscal year 2011 and it submitted a defensive statement concerning the dispute act
relating to 2012. With respect to the rest of the remarks for the purposes of IRES, relating to
the tax periods between 2013 and 2015, considering that on 15 December 2017 the Bank had
determined through a tax assessment the contestations regarding 2012, depending on the
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discussion with the tax authority and, given the similarity of the findings, it is perfectly
reasonable assuming that similar way of definition will be applied also for the next annuity;
this will allow to close the dispute with a disbursement in the form of taxes for approximately
Euro 2.2 billion, in addition to Euro 450,000 for reduced fines.

The Bank deems that the particular cases subject to contestation in the context of such tax
assessment do not have any recurring effect on the years following 2015.

Finally, it should be noted that, on 10 April 2018, the revenue agency, regional office for
Tuscany, started a control proceeding on the Bank for the 2015 tax period. Following the
conclusion of such controls, on 17 December 2018 a tax police audit report was notified to the
Bank objecting (i) the incorrect calculation with regard to IRES of the benefits deriving from
the provisions of EGS and (ii) with regard to IRAP the non-taxation of certain revenues
recorded under items not relevant for the purpose of the mentioned tax. The higher potential
taxes associated with the EGS finding are equal to Euro 3.3 million, while the findings relating
to IRAP entail higher taxes for approximately Euro 3.9 million. In-depth assessments of the
complaints raised are still on-going in order to identify the appropriate initiatives to be carried
out.

Notwithstanding the evaluations effected by the Bank, the Group companies and the respective
consultants, it cannot be excluded that an unfavourable verdict in pending proceedings and/or
the commencement of new proceedings, even as a result of the aforementioned on-going tax
assessment, may involve increased tax risks for the Bank and/or the Group, with the consequent
need to effect additional provisions or disbursements, with a potential negative impact on the
business and the capital, economic and/or financial conditions of the Bank and/or the Group.

2.26 Risks associated with the organisation and management model pursuant to
Legislative Decree No. 231/2001

The Issuer adopted its own organisation and management model as provided for by Legislative
Decree No. 231/2001, established a set of rules suitable to prevent the adoption of unlawful
behaviours by top managers, managers and/or employees. Furthermore, also considering the
current ownership structure and the participation of the MEF in the share capital of the Bank,
the Issuer supplemented its organisational model to prevent the criminal offences pursuant to
Legislative Decree No. 231/2001 with the guidelines for the prevention of corruption within
the Group. These guidelines supplement the organisational model for the prevention of the
criminal offences provided for by Legislative Decree No. 231/2001 and therefore contain also
the controls provided for by this model. It cannot be excluded that potential illicit offences
could expose the Bank to administrative liability with consequent negative impacts on the
capital, economic and financial position of the Bank.

The adequacy of the model to prevent the crimes contemplated by the legislation is a pre-
condition exempting the Issuer from liability. Such requirement, however, is assessed by the
judicial authority possibly called to verify the single crime cases and not ascertained in
advance. For those reasons and in compliance with the provisions of the aforementioned
decree, the Bank set up a specific supervisory body in charge of supervising the functioning of
and compliance with the model and taking care of its update.

Accordingly, there is no certainty on the exemption from liability for the Bank in case of
material offence pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 231/2001. Should the model not be deemed
suitable, the application of a monetary sanction is in any case provided for in respect of all
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crimes committed, in addition to, for the most serious cases, the possible application of
interdiction sanctions (i.e. the interdiction from the exercise of business, the suspension or
withdrawal of authorisations, licences or concessions, the prohibition to contract with the
public administration, as well as, finally, the prohibition to advertise goods and services).
Furthermore, the current regime provides that — in case of conviction judgment of the entity
pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 231/2001 — the confiscation of the price or profit of the
crime may be ordered, even by equivalent, in addition to the application to the same entity of
monetary and interdiction sanctions, with potential negative impacts on the business and the
economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group. Furthermore
possible convictions of the entity pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 231/2001 may have
reputational impacts even significant on the Bank and/or the Group, with consequent potential
negative impacts on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition thereof.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Bank was indicted (for administrative liability profiles of
entities pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 231/2001) in the context of proceedings initiated
by the public prosecutor’s office at the Courts of Forli against various natural persons and three
legal persons for the crimes of money laundering and obstruction to the supervisory authority.
The Bank was charged with three administrative offences deriving from crimes: (i) of
obstruction to the exercise of the functions of public supervisory authorities (art. 2638 of the
Italian Civil Code); (ii) of money laundering (art.648-bis of the Italian Criminal Code); and
(iii) of criminal association (art. 416 of the Italian Criminal Code), of a transnational nature.
The same Courts of Forli at the hearing of 12 February 2015 declared its incompetence,
deeming competent, in respect of the charges against the Bank, the Courts of Rimini. The
aforementioned Courts of Rimini, by order of 3 March 2015, raised in the matter a negative
conflict of territorial competence referring to the Supreme Court of Cassation the documents
necessary for the decision on the identification of the competent Court to know the proceedings.
The Supreme Court of Cassation deemed that, for the aspects of confirmation of pre-trial
measures submitted for its evaluation, the documents of the proceedings should be transferred
to the competent Courts of Forli. The PHJ of the Courts of Rimini, the venue to continue the
proceedings to be determined, at the hearing of 28 April 2016, denied its territorial competence
to know the merits thereof, in favour of the Courts of Forli, raising a negative conflict of
competence and referring the documents to the Supreme Court of Cassation for the resolution
of the conflict. On 13 December 2016 the hearing was held before the Supreme Court of
Cassation for the resolution of the conflict, and it was determined that the Courts of Forli were
competent, and accordingly the hearing to discuss was held on 1 December 2017 before such
Courts. At the hearing of 1 December 2017, the proceeding were postponed to 5 June 2018 for
the discussion of the preliminary issues; the hearing was postponed to 17 April 2019.

Following the mandatory charge ordered by the judge of the preliminary investigation of Milan
for the crimes of false corporate communications and market manipulation, the Bank has been
included in the register of the suspects for the administrative offences pursuant to art. 25-ter,
lett. b) and art. 25-sexies of Legislative Decree No. 231/01.

In such matter — related to the process of accounting of the Alexandria and Santorini
transactions following the restatement that occurred in 2013 — the public prosecutor’s office at
the Court of Milan requested to drop the charges made in respect of Mr. Profumo, Mr. Viola
and Mr. Salvadori. Such request was not granted. An indictment has been requested against the
abovementioned officers and the Bank has been charged as administrative accountable entity
pursuant to the Legislative Decree 231/2001.
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At the preliminary hearing of 29 September 2017, the pending proceedings against the Bank,
as an administrative accountable entity, was merged with the one pending against the
individuals.

2.27 Risks associated with the possible request to the European Commission by the Italian
State of the authorisation to grant **State aid"* in case of Bank crisis

"State aid" is authorised by the European Commission only if compatible with the laws of the
European Union (see article 107, par. 3, lett. b, of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European
Union).

On 30 July 2013 the "Communication of the European Commission relating to the application,
from 1 August 2013, of the provisions on "State aid" to support measures to banks in the context
of the financial crisis” (the "Communication™) was published on the Official Gazette of the
European Union. Such Communication enhanced the requirements on Burden Sharing, asking
of shareholders and those who have subscribed for subordinated debt or hybrid capital
securities to contribute to the recovery of the Bank prior to the granting of "State aid" (the so-
called burden-sharing). Specifically, "State aid" shall not be granted before equity, hybrid
instruments and subordinated notes have been fully used to set off possible losses of the Bank
(see paragraphs 41-44 of the afore-mentioned Communication).

Furthermore, as a consequence of the introduction of the new legislative framework on the
management of banking crises (the BRRD), public financial support in favour of a bank —
potentially falling within the definition of "State aid" as per article 107, par. 1, of the Treaty on
the Functioning of the European Union — may be granted only after resolution instruments
introduced by the BRRD have been applied.

Specifically, "State aid" notified to the European Commission after 1 January 2016, which
determine the resolution under the BRRD, may be granted only in presence of a bail-in of at
least 8 per cent. of total liabilities of the bank, which may even require the conversion of Tier
1 debt securities and uncovered deposits. The only exception concerns the extraordinary public
financial support, precautionary and temporary, of solvable entities, in the context of which the
European Commission, upon occurrence of strictly defined circumstances and subject to the
prior verification of compliance with the criteria imposed by the Communication, may
authorise the granting of "State aid" outside the scope of the resolution.

In this respect and in accordance with the aforementioned regulatory framework applicable to
"State aid", the European Commission confirmed the compliance of the Restructuring Plan
with the "staid aid" provisions to the Bank and therefore, it was able to start the precautionary
recapitalisation and apply the Burden Sharing. In this respect, should the Bank newly access
measures eligible for qualification as "State aid" pursuant to the EU regime or amend, in whole
or in part, the Restructuring Plan, it shall do it in accordance with the provisions of the above
described legislative framework.

Furthermore, it cannot be excluded that the reference legislative framework in the matter of
"State aid" may in the future be subject to amendments, even if significant.
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3. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE MARKET IN WHICH THE ISSUER
AND THE MONTEPASCHI GROUP OPERATE

3.1  Risks associated with the evolution of the banking and financial sector regulation
and of the additional provisions the Montepaschi Group is subject to

The Group is subject to complex regulations and, in particular, to the supervision of the Bank
of Italy, CONSOB and, in relation to a number of aspects of the bancassurance business, the
Istituto per la Vigilanza sulle Assicurazioni ("I'VASS™). Starting from 4 November 2014,
furthermore, the Group is also subject to the supervision of the ECB, which is entrusted,
pursuant to the regime establishing the Single Supervisory Mechanism, with the duty to, inter
alia, insuring the homogeneous application of the Euro Area legislative provisions.

In particular, the Group is subject to the primary and secondary legislation applicable to
companies with financial instruments listed on regulated markets, the legislation in the matter
of banking and financial services (governing, inter alia, the sale and placement activities of
financial instruments and the marketing thereof), as well as the regulatory regime of the
countries, even other than Italy, in which it operates. The supervision by the aforementioned
authorities covers various sectors of the Issuer business and may concern, inter alia, liquidity,
capital adequacy and financial leverage levels, the prevention and combating of money
laundering, privacy protection, transparency and fairness in the relations with clients, and
reporting and recording obligations.

For the purpose of operating in accordance with such legislations, the Group put in place
specific internal procedures and policies and adopted, pursuant to Legislative Decree No.
231/2001, a complex and constantly monitored organisational model. Such procedures and
policies mitigate the possibility of violations in the various legislations to occur, which may
cause negative impacts on the business, reputation as well as the capital, economic and/or
financial condition of the Bank and/or of the Group.

In general, the international and national legislative structure to which the Group is subject has
the main purpose of safeguarding the stability and soundness of the banking system, through
the adoption of a very complex regime, aimed at containing risk factors. To achieve these goals,
the regime provides for, inter alia:

. a minimum capital holding, adequate to deal with the company's size and the associated
risks;
o quantitative and qualitative limits in the ability to develop certain financial aggregate

data, even depending on the risks associated therewith (i.e. credit, liquidity);
o strict rules in the structure of controls and compliance system; and
. rules on corporate governance.

The above shall also be accompanied by the more demanding rules adopted by international
authorities in the matter of banks’ capitalisation. Starting from 1 January 2014, part of such
laws and regulations has been amended in accordance with the guidelines set out under Basel
111, mainly for the purpose of strengthening the minimum capital requirements, restraining the
leverage ratio and introducing policies and quantitative rules to mitigate the banks' liquidity
risk.
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At EU level, Basel 11l has been transposed in the CRD IV and CRR. In lItaly, the new EU
regime for banks was first transposed by the Bank of Italy, to the extent of competence, in
Circular No. 285 of 17 December 2013 (as subsequently amended from time to time by the
Bank of Italy (the "Circular No. 285™)) which came into force on 1 January 2014, and, more
recently, on 8 May 2015, by the Council of Ministers which approved the legislative decree
amending the Italian Banking Act and the Consolidated Finance Act. Specifically, the CRD IV
contains, inter alia, provisions in the matter of authorisation to the exercise of the banking
business, freedom of establishment and free provision of services, cooperation between
supervisory authorities, prudential control processes, methodologies for the determination of
capital reserves (buffer), regime of administrative sanctions, rules on corporate governance and
remunerations, while the CRR, the provisions of which are directly applied within each
Member State, defines, inter alia, the provisions in the matter of own funds, minimum capital
requirements, limits on large exposures, liquidity risk, leverage and public disclosure.

The EU regulatory framework provides for, inter alia, the adoption by the European
Commission of implementing rules and technical standards. A number of such technical rules
have not been yet adopted.

Specifically, in terms of capital requirements, the new regime provides for: (i) a Common
Equity Tier 1 Ratio of at least at 4.5 per cent. of the overall amount of the Bank’s exposure to
risk; (ii) a Tier 1 Ratio of at least at 6 per cent. of the overall amount of the Bank’s exposure to
risk; and (iii) a Total Capital Ratio of at least at 8 per cent. of the overall amount of the Bank’s
exposure to risk.

In addition to Common Equity Tier 1 (necessary to satisfy the aforementioned capital
requirements), the banks were to maintain a capital conservation buffer equal to 1.875 per cent.
for 2018 and 2.5 per cent. starting from 2019 of the overall exposure to risk.

Furthermore, from 1 January 2016, banks were obliged to create: (i) a countercyclical capital
buffer, to be calculated, with the modalities set out in the same Circular No. 285, on the basis
of each bank’s overall exposure to risk; and (ii) should they be qualified as G-SllIs (the so-
called "Capital Buffer for G-SlIs"); and/or (iii) should they be qualified as O-Slls

On 30 November 2016, the Bank of Italy identified the UniCredit, Intesa Sanpaolo and the
Group as O-SllIs. However, on 30 November 2018, the Bank of Italy announced that the Group
would no longer be considered an O-SII as from 1 January 2019.

With respect to the SREP to which the Group was subject during 2016, it should be noted that
on 19 June 2017, the ECB required the Bank to comply, starting from 1 January 2018, with a
level of TSCR on a consolidated basis equal to 11 per cent., including:

e the minimum Total Capital Ratio requirement of 8 per cent. in line with article 92, first
subsection of the CRR; and

e an additional 3 per cent. requirement (Pillar Il), in line with article 16, second
subsection, lett. (a) of the SSM Regulation, which shall be fully composed of Common
Equity Tier 1.

Furthermore, the ECB notified to the Issuer the expectation for the Group to comply with an
additional 1.5 per cent. threshold (Pillar Il capital guidance) to be fully satisfied with Common
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Equity Tier 1, in addition to (i) the Pillar I, (ii) the Pillar 1l and (iii) the combined capital
requirement.

In relation to the above, it should be noted that failure to comply with such capital guidance
would not be equal to a failure to comply with capital requirements; however, in the event of
capital dropping below the level including the Pillar 1l capital guidance, the supervisory
authority, which shall be promptly informed in detail by the Issuer on the reasons for the failed
compliance with the aforementioned level, will take into consideration, on a case-by-case basis,
possible appropriate and proportional measures (including the possibility to put in place a plan
aimed at restoring compliance with the capital requirements — inclusive of capital enhancement
requests — in accordance with article 16, paragraph 2 of the SSM Regulation).

Furthermore, the Bank is bound to comply with the general limit on the investment in equity
interests and real estate properties, to be contained within the amount of own funds at
consolidated level, and the regulatory limits in the matter of holding of qualifying equity
interests in non-financial enterprises and large exposures. The Bank is also subject to the
regulatory limits provided for by the national legislation in the matter of transactions with
related parties as per the "New Prudential Supervision Provisions" for banks as well as the
specific obligations set forth by the regulation issued by CONSOB.

With regard to liquidity, the CRR provides, inter alia, for compliance with a short-term
indicator (the LCR), aiming at the constitution and retention of a liquidity buffer capable of
allowing the Bank’s survival for 30 days in case of serious stress, and with a structural liquidity
indicator (the NSFR) with a one year time horizon, introduced to ensure that assets and
liabilities show a sustainable maturity structure. In respect of such parameters, please note that:

— forthe LCR parameter, a value of 100 per cent. starting from 1 January 2018 is provided
for; and

— asto the NSFR, the European Union regulation is introduced in the legislative proposal
to amend the CRR - referred to as CRR 1l — by the European Commission, published
on 23 November 2016, whose implementation date and final contents shall depend on
the timing and outcomes of the conclusion of the relevant legislative process. The
mandatory minimum threshold of the ratio shall be equal to 100 per cent..

Furthermore, Basel 111 (as defined below) provides that banks shall monitor their leverage ratio
calculated as the ratio between the Tier 1 capital and the aggregate exposures of the credit
institution, according to the provisions of art. 429 of the CRR, as amended and supplemented
by delegated Regulation of the European Commission no. 62/2015. Such indicator was subject
to reporting obligations by banks starting from 2015; however, to date, the minimum threshold
and the commencement date of the index at hand have not yet been defined. Full
implementation of the leverage ratio as a measurement of the Pillar I in the EU is currently
under consultation as part of the "CRR 11 / CRD V" group of reforms, whose implementation
date and final contents shall depend on the timing and outcome of the conclusion of the relevant
legislative process.

Such regulatory evolution, which continues to aim at a higher system stability, although the
entry into force thereof is provided to be gradual, may in any case have a significant impact on
the Group’s management dynamics.
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The establishment of new rules on liquidity and possibly increased ratios applicable to the
Group based on the laws and/or regulations that will be adopted in the future may have an
impact on the business, financial condition, cash flow and operating results of the Group and
accordingly, directly or indirectly, on the possibility to distribute dividends to shareholders.

In light of the above, the on-going compliance with the several regulations, namely (taking
account of the criteria introduced by Basel 111) the need to increase the capital consistency —
size remaining unchanged — and compliance with liquidity parameters, requires a significant
commitment of resources, as well as the adoption of equally complex internal rules and policies
which may result in higher costs and/or less revenues for the Issuer and the Group.

On 4 November 2014, the Single Supervisory Mechanism was launched. Specifically, the SSM
Regulation assigned to the ECB specific duties in the matter of prudential supervision of credit
institutions, in cooperation with the national supervisory authorities of participating countries,
in the context of the SSM. With this mechanism the ECB, in close cooperation with the national
supervisory authorities, undertook the supervisory competence over all banks of the Euro Area,
on a direct basis in case of "significant” banks and on an indirect basis in relation to the other
banks, which will continue to be supervised by local authorities on the basis of the criteria set
by the same ECB.

Accordingly, the competence for prudential supervision over the Issuer is entrusted to the ECB,
being BMPS qualified as significant bank pursuant to article 39 of Regulation (EU) No.
468/2014 of the ECB of 16 April 2014 (SSM Framework Regulation).

The Issuer is also subject to the provisions applicable to the financial services — governing,
inter alia, the sale and placement activity of financial instruments and marketing ones — and in
this context it is also subject, inter alia, to CONSOB supervision.

Although the Group constantly deploys significant resources and internal policies adequate to
comply with the various applicable legislative and regulatory provisions, it shall be pointed out
that failed compliance therewith, or possible legislative/regulatory amendments or changes
relating to the interpretation and/or application approaches of the legislation applicable by the
competent authorities may entail potential relevant negative impacts on operating results and
the economic, capital and financial condition of the Group. In this respect, as at the date of the
Prospectus, some laws and legislations concerning the sectors in which the Issuer operates have
been recently approved and the relating application approaches are in the process of being
defined.

In order to complete the legislative framework of the provisions applicable to banks, it has to
be underlined the directive of the European Parliament and the Council setting up a recovery
and resolution framework of credit institutions and investment undertakings (BRRD),
identifying the powers and tools national authorities in charge of the resolution of banking
crises may adopt for the resolution of a bank's crisis or collapse situation. This was for the
purpose of guaranteeing continuity of the essential functions of the institution, reducing to a
minimum the collapse impact on the economy and the financial system as well as on costs for
taxpayers. On 9 July 2015, the enabling act for the implementation of the BRRD was approved,
identifying, inter alia, the Bank of Italy, as resolution authority pursuant to article 3 of the
BRRD. On 16 November 2015, contemporaneously with the publication in the Official
Gazette, Legislative Decrees No. 180 and 181 of 16 November entered into force and
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respectively implemented the BRRD and adapted the provisions of the Consolidated Banking
Act to the changed legislative framework.

With specific reference to the bail-in instrument, please also note the introduction through the
BRRD directive of a minimum requirement of liabilities subject to bail-in (MREL), for the
purpose of assuring that a bank, in case of an application of bail-in, has sufficient liabilities to
absorb losses and assure compliance with the Common Equity Tier 1 requirement provided for
the authorisation to exercise the banking business, as well as to generate in the market enough
confidence in it. Regulatory technical standards aimed at specifying the criteria to determine
the MREL requirement are defined in delegate Regulation EU 2015/1450 published in the
Official Gazette of the European Union on 3 September 2016.

On 19 July 2016, the EBA published in consultation an interim report on the MREL, and
subsequently, on 14 December 2016, the final report on the MREL, concerning a number of
relevant aspects for the implementation of the MREL among which, specifically, the proposals
for the harmonisation of the calculation of capital requirements in the various Member States,
the opportunity for the MREL to be satisfied resorting to contractual bail-in tools, the
identification of a minimum requirement level in respect of the business model identified for
institutions and the opportunity to use, as denominator for the MREL requirement, the
institution's risk weighted assets. The Group has not so far been bound to comply with a specific
threshold with reference to the MREL (a target level is currently defined by the Single
Resolution Board for information purposes only).

On 23 November 2016, the European Commission published a set of amendment proposals to
the BRRD (directive 2014/59/EU) in relation to the loss absorption and recapitalisation
capacity of credit institutions and the classification of unsecured debt instruments among the
hierarchy of loans in case of insolvency. The main amendments introduced by the reform
concern, substantially, the structure of the MREL ratio and its level of application, the powers
of the resolution authorities in case of breach of MREL and the banks' disclosure obligations
to resolution authorities and the public. Agreement on the main elements of these proposals
was reached by December 2018, with legislation expected to be finalised and published shortly.

In light of the fact that the reference legislative context is still evolving, it cannot be excluded
that the introduction of the aforementioned criteria may entail the obligation for the Bank to
hold additional resources to own funds and eligible liabilities, with consequent impact on the
Group's financial position, cash flow and operating results and accordingly, either directly or
indirectly, on the possibility to distribute dividends to shareholders.

The "Financial Stability Board" ("FSB") published on 9 November 2015 the final provisions
on the "Total Loss Absorbency Capacity” ("TLAC") standard concerning "Global
Systematically Important Banks" ("G-SIBs") — among which, as at the date of the Prospectus,
the Issuer is not included — and that the European Commission, in the context of the amendment
proposal of the BRRD, published on 23 November 2016, introduces the TLAC requirement
within the MREL requirement already defined by the EU regime and applicable to all banks.
Agreement on the main elements of these proposals was reached by December 2018, with
legislation expected to be finalised and published shortly thereafter.

Furthermore, in 2014 the Basel Committee for banking supervision launched a review process
of the calculation methods of banks' capital held for prudential purposes in respect of credit,
market and operational risks.
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In relation to the review of calculation methods of requirements for the “credit risk™ category,
the Basel committee launched a consultation, respectively in December 2015 and April 2016,
on a second document concerning the review of the standardised approach for the calculation
of RWAs and a document setting out a package of amendments to be applied to the structure
of internal rating-based approaches, for the purpose of reducing the complexity of the
legislative framework, increase the comparability of capital requirements in respect of credit
risk and limit the excessive variability thereof. Furthermore, on 14 November 2016, the EBA
launched a consultation on a document setting out guidelines for the estimate of PD and LGD,
as well as for the treatment of defaulted exposures.

The review processes of the calculation models of requirements for the "market risk" and
"operational risk" categories shall be added to the above. In January 2016, the "Fundamental
Review of the Trading Book™ (FRTB) has been finalised, i.e. the review of the standardised
method and internal model for the calculation of minimum capital requirements in respect of
market risk while in March 2016 the Basel committee launched a consultation providing for
the review of the standard model and the repeal of internal models for the calculation of RWAs
in respect of operational risks.

The replacement project of the transitional capital floor for risk weighted assets (RWA)
established in function of the previously applied provisions pursuant to Basel | with a new
floor, calculated in function of the RWAs determined on the basis of the standardised approach,
as possibly amended as a result of the abovementioned review processes of the various risk
categories, is also relevant.

The finalisation by the Basel Committee of the reform package of the risk weighted assets
prudential treatment occurred at the end of 2017 and will need to be transposed into EU
legislation.

On 23 November 2016, with the first legislative proposal of review of the CRR and the CRD
IV, the EU regulatory process implementing in the European Union the Basel committee
standards in the matter of market risk ("Fundamental Review of the Trading Book"), leverage
ratio, NSFR, TLAC and standardised approach to counterparty risk, started. In the context of
such amendment proposals, the European Commission proposes the introduction of the NSFR,
the calibration phase thereof is preparatory to the definition of parameter calculation rules and
accordingly of minimum requirements to be complied with, and the introduction of a 3 per
cent. leverage ratio. Agreement on the main elements of these proposals was reached by
December 2018. The entry into force of the majority of the proposed amendments will depend
on when the technical details of the legislative process are finalised and the amending directives
published.

The change to the calculation criteria of RWAs as a result of the abovementioned review
processes may have an impact on the Group's capital adequacy. Furthermore, regardless of the
consultations and review processes in progress, it cannot be excluded that regulatory authorities
may, at any other time, review the internal calculation models of RWAs used by the Group and
ask for the application of more stringent criteria, and this would cause potentially increased
RWASs, with a negative impact on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial
condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

Furthermore, on 20 March 2017 the ECB published the "Guidance to banks on non-performing
loans”, and on 15 March 2018 the "Addendum to ECB Guidance to banks on non-performing
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loans”, both addressed to credit institutions, as defined pursuant to article 4, paragraph 1, of
the CRR. These guidances are addressed, in general, to all significant institutions subject to
direct supervision in the context of the SSM, including their international subsidiaries. The
ECB banking supervision identified in the aforementioned guidance a set of practices it deemed
useful to indicate and which should be viewed as expectations of ECB banking supervision.
The documents define the measures, processes and best practices which should be integrated
in the treatment of NPLs by banks, for which this issue should represent a priority. The ECB
expects full adherence by banks to these guidances, in line with the gravity and extent of NPLs
in the respective portfolios. It should be noted that, on 15 March 2018, the ECB published the
addendum to such guidance. In particular, this addendum provides with respect to all the loans
that will be qualified as Impaired Loans from 2018, that it shall be achieved a total coverage
within two years for unsecured loans and within seven years for secured loans at the latest.
Therefore, it cannot be excluded that the Bank shall increase the coverage levels with respect
of loans that may be qualified as Impaired Loans from 2018 for the purposes of complying
with the regulation, with consequent negative impacts on the Group's capital adequacy
indicators.

On 14 March 2018, the European Commission presented an amendment proposal to the
European rules on the prudential requirements of credit institutions in terms of Impaired Loans
("Proposal for a Regulation of the European Parliament and the Council amending the
Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 regarding the minimum coverage of losses on impaired
exposures™).

It should finally be noted that supervisory authorities have the power to bring administrative
and judicial proceedings against the Group, which may translate, inter alia, into the suspension
or revocation of authorisations, warning measures, fines, civil or criminal sanctions or other
disciplinary measures, with potential negative impacts on the business and the economic,
capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

Although the Issuer endeavours to comply with the complex set of rules and regulations, failed
compliance therewith, or possible amendments to legislations and/or interpretation approaches
and/or applications thereof by the competent supervisory authorities, may cause potential
relevant negative impacts on the operating results and the economic, capital and financial
conditions of the Issuer.

3.2 Risks associated with competition in the banking and financial sector

The Bank and Group companies operate in the context of a competitive market and are
accordingly exposed to risks deriving from the competitive pressure which may further
increase in the following months due to the following factors: (i) the implementation of EU
directives aimed at liberalising the EU banking sector; (ii) the deregulation of the banking
sector everywhere in the European Union, and in particular in Italy, which incentivised
competition in the traditional banking area with the effect of progressively reducing the margin
between lending and deposit rates; (iii) the focus of the Italian banking sector on commission
income, which leads to a higher competition in the asset management field and corporate
banking and investment banking activities; (iv) changes in the tax and banking regimes; and
(v) the evolution of services characterised by a strong technological innovation component,
such as internet banking, phone banking and mobile banking.
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Furthermore, such pressure may increase in light of regulatory actions, the behaviour of
competitors, consumers' demand, technological changes, possible aggregation processes
involving financial operators, the entry of new competitors, innovations introduced by fintech
companies and the contribution of other factors not necessarily under the Group's control. In
any case, the worsening of the macroeconomic scenario may give rise to further increased
competitive pressure due to, without limitation, increased pressure on prices and lower business
volumes.

Furthermore, the occurrence of changes in the competitive scenario of the Italian banking
sector cannot be excluded, as a result of possible aggregations among banking institutions,
people's (or former-people's) banks or among such banks and other credit institutions, with
consequent strengthening of the competitive position of the institutions resulting from such
aggregations. The occurrence of such circumstances would further increase the competitive
pressure in the market, already highly competitive, in which the Group operates. Furthermore,
it has to be considered that the net reduction of funding for the Group compared to competitors
may affect negatively the quality of its lending.

Should the Group not be able to cope with the increasing competitive pressure through, inter
alia, the offer of innovative and profitable products and services and to satisfy clients' needs,
it could lose market shares in various business sectors.

Due to such competition, the Group may also not be able, in the absence of appropriate remedial
actions, to re-launch profitability and, therefore, fail in achieving the strategic targets provided
for under the Restructuring Plan, with potential negative impacts on the business and the
economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

3.3  Risks associated with the reduction of the system liquidity support

The financial markets' crisis entailed reduced liquidity available to operators, increased risk
premium and, more recently, greater tensions linked to the sovereign debt of certain countries.
Such factors, together with increased capital and liquidity requirements provided for by Basel
Il and the findings of the comprehensive assessment, gave rise to the need for complex
initiatives in support of the credit system that directly involved both States (also through the
direct intervention in some banks' capital) and central banks (initially mainly through
refinancing transactions upon delivery of suitable collaterals and, at a later stage, also through
repurchase interventions in the financial markets).

In this context, the authorities in charge intervened to guarantee adequate liquidity conditions
to the banking system, such as to overcome the most acute phases of the crisis that affected the
Euro Area, in particular starting from mid-2011, both through the granting of guarantees on
medium-term debt securities issuances, and the broadening of the category of eligible securities
to serve as collateral for the ECB funding.

On 6 September 2012, to contrast the increasing spread between State securities yields, the
"ECB Steering Committee" announced an uncapped State securities purchase programme (the
so called "Outright Monetary Transaction™). In the context of such programme, the ECB
purchased securities with 1 to 3 year maturity in the secondary market without setting ex-ante
limits, save for the compliance with certain conditions.

Furthermore, in its June 2014 meeting, the ECB launched a purchase plan of asset-backed
securities and covered bonds with the purpose of increasing its financial statement assets by
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Euro 1,000 billion by the end of 2016. The purchase plan, which provides for the joint
intervention in the market of the ECB and national central banks, has subsequently been
extended also to other assets, among which government securities, bond securities issued by
local and regional governments, as communicated in the most recent ECB meeting of 2015,
and also to Euro investment grade bonds issued by non-banking companies located in the Euro
Area, as communicated in the meeting of 10 March 2016. This purchase plan ended on
September 2018.

Finally, the ECB, besides proceeding with further cuts of reference rates, a few months prior
to the maturity of the LTROs set up in 2011, launched a series of new long term financing
transactions (4 years), called TLTRO, aimed at inducing banks to increase lending to real
economy. Those auctions started between September and December 2014 and continued for
two years, for amounts correlated with the loans granted by banks to the private sector. At the
meeting of 10 March 2016, as additional intervention, the ECB launched four new long term
financing transactions, called TLTRO Il with 4 year maturity. Such auctions took place
between June 2016 and March 2017 with quarterly frequency.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group refinancing with the ECB was constituted by the TLTRO
Il four-year auctions with maturity on 24 June 2020 and maturity on 30 September 2020, for
an overall exposure, net of accrued interests, equal to Euro 16,689 million.

On the basis of Law Decree 6 December 2011, No. 201, in the first months of 2012, the Issuer
issued Euro 13 billion of Italian state guaranteed liabilities with three year maturity (for Euro
9 billion) and with five year maturity (for Euro 4 billion). Such liabilities have been fully
redeemed.

In the first months of 2017, on the basis of Decree 237, the Issuer issued Euro 11 billion of
Italian state guaranteed liabilities. Specifically, on 25 January 2017, two issuances of state
guaranteed securities were launched for an overall amount of Euro 7 billion; this first issuance
with maturity on 20 January 2018, a coupon of 0.5 per cent. and a nominal amount of Euro 3
billion, the second issuance with maturity on 25 January 2020, a coupon of 0.75 per cent. and
a nominal amount of Euro 4 billion. Subsequently, on 15 March 2017, the Bank executed a
second issuance of state guaranteed securities, with maturity 15 March 2020, a coupon of 0.75
per cent. and a nominal amount of Euro 4 billion. All state guaranteed securities have been
fully subscribed for by the Bank upon issuance and subsequently sold in part on the market
and, used in part as collateral for financing transactions.

There is no certainty in relation to the duration and intensity with which liquidity support
transactions may be re-proposed in the future, depending on the performance of the economic
cycle and market conditions. Furthermore, the liquidity demand support currently offered by
the ECB may in the future be limited or banned to the Bank by virtue of amendments to the
rules governing the access thereto. The amount of liquidity supply provided by the ECB is
linked to the value of collaterals offered to the Bank, which is represented for a significant
portion by Italian government securities or Italian state guaranteed securities. Should the value
of those assets be reduced, the liquidity supply available for the Bank would correspondingly
be reduced.

Furthermore, starting from 1 March 2015, certain restrictions on the use of state guaranteed
securities entered into force.
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Notwithstanding that those limitations have had no impact on the Bank's liquidity situation
(having the Bank sold and/or financed such type of securities in the market), it cannot be
excluded that in the future, should the ECB review the rules relating to the types of eligible
guarantees or the rating requirements imposed thereon, other types of securities held by the
Bank may no longer be admitted as collateral, with consequent increased cost of funding for
BMPS and reduction of its possibility to find liquidity in the market. The inability to obtain
liquidity in the market through the access to the Eurosystem or the significant reduced or ceased
system liquidity support by governments and central authorities may cause greater difficulties
in raising liquidity in the market and/or higher costs associated with the raising of such
liquidity, with potential negative impacts on the business and the economic, capital and/or
financial condition of the Bank and/or the Group.

Equally, in relation to issuances of Italian state guaranteed liabilities pursuant to Decree 237,
being extraordinary measures, there is no certainty that the Issuer may continue to benefit, in
the future, from similar measures and, even if this were possible, it cannot be predicted with
certainty to what extent. Should the impossibility to access such measures have an impact on
the liquidity position of the Bank, it cannot be excluded that such circumstance may have
negative impacts on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the
Bank and/or the Group.

3.4  Risks associated with the uncertainty of future outcomes of stress tests or asset quality
review exercises

On 4 November 2014, the Single Supervisory Mechanism, including the ECB and the
competent national authorities of the participating Member States, among which the Bank of
Italy, started to operate. The SSM is in charge of the prudential supervisory of all credit entities
of the participating Member States and assures that the EU policy in the matter of prudential
supervision of credit institutions is implemented in a consistent and effective manner and credit
institutions are subject to the highest quality supervision.

In the context of such supervisory mechanism, the ECB has been entrusted with specific
prudential supervisory duties on credit institutions providing, inter alia, for the possibility of
the latter to carry out, if the case is in coordination with the EBA, stress tests to ascertain
whether the measures, strategies, processes and mechanisms put in place by credit institutions
and own funds held thereby would allow for a sound management and coverage of risks when
dealing with future but plausible negative events. Depending on the outcomes of such stress
tests, the ECB is also entrusted with the power to impose on credit institutions specific
obligations in the matter of additional own funds, specific disclosure and liquidity
requirements, as well as other measures.

In general, the outcomes of such stress tests are by their nature uncertain and only partially
predictable by the financial institution involved since the evaluation methodologies used by the
ECB aim at adopting an homogeneous risk evaluation within EU member states and,
accordingly, may deviate — even to a significant extent — from the RWAs evaluation methods
adopted by the single credit institutions involved.

In this respect, on 29 July 2016, the outcomes of the EBA's stress test have been disclosed, and
showed for the Bank a very severe impact in the so called adverse scenario, which highlights a
CET1 in 2018 equal to -2.2 per cent., while in the so called baseline scenario CET1 was
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confirmed at 12 per cent.. Specifically, such outcomes are strongly impacted by the high NPL
ratio of the Issuer.

Furthermore, the EBA, in cooperation with the competent supervisory authorities, may in the
future decide to recommend a new asset quality review on the most important European banks
and, among those, also the Issuer, with the purpose of verifying the classifications and
evaluations operated by them on their loans for the purpose of dealing with the worries linked
to the deterioration of asset quality. Such asset quality review exercise may, furthermore,
possibly also be combined with an additional stress test conducted by the ECB in the context
of a new comprehensive assessment exercise, similar to the one closed in October 2014.

Should the ECB, in cooperation with the EBA and the other competent supervisory authorities,
carry out new comprehensive assessment exercises (or stress test or asset quality review
exercises), it cannot be assured that the Issuer will meet the minimum parameters set in the
context of such exercises and that, accordingly, in case of failure, it will not be the addressee
of ECB measures that, inter alia, may impose the implementation of new capitalisation actions
or other measures suitable to replenish the capital insufficiencies found in the Bank's own
funds, with potential negative impacts on the business and the economic, capital and/or
financial conditions of the same and/or the Group.

3.5 Risks associated with the entry into force of the new accounting principles and the
amendment of applicable accounting principles

The Group is exposed, similarly to the other entities operating in the banking sector, to the
effects of the entry into force and subsequent application of new accounting principles or rules
and regulations and/or to the amendment thereof (including those deriving from International
Accounting Standards as homologated and adopted in the EU jurisdiction). Specifically, in the
future the Group may have to review the accounting and regulatory treatment of certain
outstanding assets and liabilities and transactions (and related profits and charges), with
potential negative impacts, even significant, on the estimates contained in the financial plans
for future years and may have to restate previously published financial data.

In this respect, the application of the new International Accounting Standards IFRS 9
"Financial Instruments” ("IFRS 9") and IFRS 15 "Revenues from contracts with customers”
("IFRS 15"), both approved in 2016, should be noted, which replaced, respectively, IAS 39
"Financial Instruments: recognition and measurement™ and IAS 18 "Revenues” with effect
from 1 January 2018.

IFRS 9 amended to the classification and measurement rules of financial assets which will be
based on the business model and cash flows characteristics of the financial instrument.
Furthermore, IFRS 9 provided for a new impairment accounting model based on an “expected
losses™ approach instead of "incurred losses™ as per current I1AS 39, also characterised by the
introduction of the "lifetime" expected loss notion which may lead to an anticipation and a
structural increase of value adjustments, specifically those pertaining to loans.

IFRS 9 also had an impact on "hedge accounting”, rewriting the rules for the designation of a
hedging relation and for the verification of its effectiveness with the purpose of guaranteeing a
better alignment between hedging accounting recognition and underlying management logics.
The Group opted for the option to continue to apply the prior versions of International
Accounting Standard IAS 39 in the matter of "hedge accounting™ (*“carved-out™” version). The
Group exercised the right to apply separately the rules relating to the accounting treatment of
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profits/losses related to its creditworthiness of liabilities in fair value option (FVO) since the
2017 Consolidated Financial Statements.

IFRS 15 has become applicable as of 1 January 2018. Such standard amended the set of
International Accounting Standards replacing the standards and interpretations on "revenue
recognition™ and, specifically, 1AS 18.

IFRS 15 provides for (i) two approaches for revenues recognition (“at point in time™ or "over
time"), (ii) a new transaction analysis model ("Five steps model”) focused on the transfer of
control and (iii) a greater disclosure required to be included in the notes to the financial
statement.

The quantitative impacts following the first application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on the Group
are described in the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 "Leases" ("IFRS 16") will, instead, be applicable from 1 January 2019, after the same
has been homologated by the European Union. IFRS 16 amends the current set of International
Accounting Standards and interpretations on leasing in force, and specifically IAS 17. IFRS 16
introduces a new leasing definition and introduces certain criteria based on the control (right
of use) of an asset in order to distinguish leasing agreements from service agreements, such as:
the identification of the asset, the right to substitute such asset, the right to obtain all the
economic benefits deriving from the use of the asset and the right to control the use of such
asset.

In relation to the accounting model to be applied by the lessee, the new standard provides that,
for all types of leasing, an asset shall be recognised representing right of use of the goods the
subject matter of the leasing and, at the same time, the debt relating to the fees provided for by
the leasing contract.

At the time of the initial recognition, such asset is assessed on the basis of the financial flows
associated with the leasing contract, inclusive of, besides the current value of leasing fees,
initial direct costs associated with the leasing and the possible costs necessary to restoration of
the asset upon expiry of the contract. After the initial recognition, such asset will be assessed
based on the provisions governing tangible assets and, accordingly, at cost net of amortisations
and possible value reductions, at "re-determined value™ or at fair value according to the
provisions of IAS 16 or 1AS 40.

Since the date of entry into force of the aforementioned standard is expected for 1 January
2019, the quantitative effects deriving from its adoption, currently not available, will be subject
to future estimate by the Group. The application of IFRS 16 may determine, for the Issuer
and/or the other Group companies, a review of the accounting modalities of revenues and costs
relating to outstanding transactions as well as the recognition of new assets and liabilities
associated with the signed operating leasing contracts.

Such effects will give rise to the consequent need to consistently and retrospectively review
the prior periods and then amend, even significantly, the opening asset balances as at the
respective dates. On the basis of legislative and/or technological and/or business context
evolutions it is also possible that the Group may have to further review in the future the
operating methodologies for the application of International Accounting Standards, with
possible negative impacts, even significant, on the economic, financial and/or capital position
of the Issuer and/or the Group.
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3.6  Risks associated with ordinary and extraordinary contribution obligations to the
Single Resolution Fund and the Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund (Fondo
Interbancario di Tutela dei Depositi)

Subsequent to the crisis which affected various financial institutions starting from 2008,
various systems aimed at containing the risk of banking crises have been introduced, both at
EU level and at level of single Member States, the implementation of which entails
disbursements, even significant, by credit institutions in favour of the banking system in its
entirety.

Deposit Guarantee Scheme and Single Resolution Fund

In application of: (i) Directive 2014/49/EU (Deposit Guarantee Schemes Directive — DGSD)
of 16 April 2014; (ii) BRRD; and (iii) Regulation (EU) No. 806/2014 of the European
Parliament and the Council establishing, inter alia, the Single Resolution Fund ("SRF"), which
as of 1 January 2016 includes sub-funds at national level to which contributions collected at
national level by Member States through their National Resolution Fund ("NRF") are allocated,
the Issuer is bound to provide the financial resources necessary to finance the Deposit
Guarantee Scheme ("DGS") and the SRF. Such contribution obligations may have a significant
impact on the financial and capital position of the Issuer. The multi-annual costs of the
components of the extraordinary contribution which may be necessary for the management of
any future banking crisis cannot currently be predicted.

Specifically, in respect of the DGS, the Issuer is bound by the following ordinary and
extraordinary contribution obligations:

. ordinary advanced annual contribution to the DGS, from 2015 to 2024, aimed at the
constitution of funds equal to 0.8 per cent. of guaranteed deposits as at the target date.
Should, after the accruing period, the available financial resources drop below the target
level, the collection of contributions is resumed at least until such level is restored.
Furthermore, after the first achievement of the target level and, should the financial
resources drop below two thirds of the target level, such contributions are set at a level
allowing to achieve the target level within a six year period;

) the payment commitment (ex post), in respect of any extraordinary contribution
required in case available financial resources are insufficient to repay depositors: such
extraordinary contributions may never exceed 0.5 per cent. of guaranteed deposits for
each solar year, except for exceptional cases and subject to the prior consent of the
competent Authority, where the DGS may also ask for higher contributions.

As a consequence of such introduction, the "Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund" ("FITD"),
updated its By-Laws through shareholders resolution of 26 November 2015 anticipating the
introduction of the prepayment mechanism (aimed at reaching the aforementioned multi-
annual target with target at 2024). As at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December 2017 the
Group has contributed with Euro 29 million to the DGS’ national schemes in both years. With
respect to 2018, Italian banks will be required to pay the contribution with reference to the
existing contribution base as at 30 September 2018 and, consequently, the verification of the
same contribution for the current year will be made only on such date; as at 30 September 2018,
around Euro 29 million have been allocated as contribution.

Contribution commitments to the SRF are as follows:
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o annual ordinary pre-payment until 2023, aimed at constituting funds equal to 1 per cent.
of guaranteed deposits by the end of 2023. The accrual period may be extended by
further four years in case the funding mechanism has executed disbursements for more
than 0.5 per cent. of guaranteed deposits. Should, after the accruing period, available
financial resources drop below the target level, the collection of contributions is
resumed until such level is restored. Furthermore, after the first achievement of the
target level and, should financial resources drop below two thirds of the target level,
such contributions are set at a level allowing to achieve the target level within a six year
period. The contribution mechanism entails ordinary annual contributions aimed at
allocating costs for contributing banks in a uniform manner over a period of time. A
transitional contribution phase to the SRF’s national sub-funds as well as their gradual
mutualisation is provided for. As at 31 December 2016 the ordinary contribution of the
Group has been equal to Euro 71 million, while as at 30 December 2017 the
contribution has been equal to Euro 62 million. As at 30 September 2018, the Group’s
contribution is equal approximately to Euro 69 million. The annual value of the
contribution is subject to review on the basis of the execution of risk parameters and
guaranteed deposit volumes; and

o payment commitments (ex post), in respect of any additional extraordinary contribution
required, equal to a maximum of three times the scheduled annual contributions, in case
the available financial resources are insufficient to cover for losses and costs relating to
the SRF interventions.

The Bank of Italy, in its capacity as national resolution authority, set up the NFR, which collects
from banks with registered office in Italy ordinary and extraordinary contributions, in
accordance with the provisions of articles 82 and 83 of Decree 180 (as defined above). At the
end of 2015, the NRF called for ordinary and extraordinary contributions; the latter to an extent
of three times the annual amount of ordinary contributions, to fund the resolution measures of
the crises of Banca delle Marche, Banca Popolare dell'Etruria e del Lazio, Cassa di Risparmio
della Provincia di Chieti and Cassa di Risparmio di Ferrara. In the context of the resolution
interventions of the aforementioned banks, four bridge banks (good banks) with the purpose of
maintaining continuity of the essential functions previously carried out by the banks in
resolution and an intermediary (Credit Management REV) in charge of ascertaining the
Doubtful Loans acquired thereby have been set up. The liquidity necessary for the NRF to carry
out the aforementioned interventions has been advanced by a pool of banks, of which the Group
was not a party, through a bridge loan at market rates and with maximum of 18-month maturity,
subsequently partially redeemed through the amounts coming from the aforementioned
ordinary and extraordinary contributions.

As a consequence of the failed disposal of assets provided for by the resolution plan and taking
into account that financial resources proved insufficient to support over time the resolution
interventions carried out, at the end of December 2016, the NRF recalled additional
contributions, equal to two annuities, for an overall amount for the Group equal to Euro 140
million. This was due to Law Decree 183/2015 (the so called "Banks Aid Decree" converted
by Law 208/2015), which provides that, in case the fund's available financial resources are not
sufficient to support over time the resolution interventions carried out, only for the year 2016,
contributions may be increased by two times the annual amount of contributions determined in
accordance with article 70 of Regulation (EU) No. 806/2014 and the implementing regulation
(EU) No. 2015/81.
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The SRF and the NRF may in the future require additional contributions for an amount that
cannot be currently determined, with potentially significant negative impacts on the business
of the Issuer, transaction results and financial conditions.

During 2017 nothing has been paid, while in 2018, according to the provision of article 25
Decree n. 237 — converted by Law 17 February 2017, no.15 — the NRF, considering the
forthcoming financial needs, required some annual contribution under article 1(848), Law n.
208/2015. Specifically, article 25 introduces new integrative provisions in the annual additional
contribution scheme in the NRF regulated by Law 208/2015. In particular, it has been pointed
out that the additional contributions are to be paid to cover every obligation, loss, cost and any
other charge or liability against NRF, originated or linked with the execution of resolution
measures with the purpose of ensuring the efficacy, also as a consequence of potential
modifications. Furthermore, article 25(2) provides that the Bank of Italy may determine the
amount of the additional contributions — after deduction of the contributions required by the
Single Resolution Fund under articles 70 and 71 of Regulation (EU) 806/2014 — within two
years from the initial contribution reference date and it may provide that the same contributions
become due in a period defined by the Bank, nit longer than 5 years.

The reference date for the additional contributions required in the first semester of 2018 is
2016, for an amount of Euro 26 million. It is specified that for the reference year 2016 two
contribution quota remaining to be due within 31 December 2018.

Voluntary scheme

For the purpose of overcoming the negative position taken by the European Commission in
respect of the use of mandatory contributions to support interventions in favour of banks in
crisis, at the end of 2015, in the context of the FITD, a voluntary scheme was established as an
additional tool not subject to the restrictions of the EU regime and of the European Commission
(the "Voluntary Scheme"). After the remodulation of the intervention in Tercas, the
replenishment of the Voluntary Scheme resources was provided for a maximum amount of
Euro 700 million to be used in support interventions in favour of small banks in difficulty and
subject to extraordinary administration procedure, in case of concrete recovery perspectives
and for the purpose of avoiding higher burdens for the banking system consequent to
liquidation or resolution interventions.

Such resources are not immediately paid by adhering banks, which simply undertake to
disburse them upon request on occasion of specific interventions, up to the maximum amount
set. The Group adhered to the Voluntary Scheme and accordingly recorded in the first semester
of 2016 a commitment for its pertaining share of the resolved Euro 700 million, equal to Euro
48 million.

Out of this amount, the management board of FITD at the meeting of 15 June 2016 resolved to
participate in the recapitalisation transaction of Cassa di Risparmio di Cesena. The ECB, with
measure of 15 September 2016, authorised the assumption of the equity interest by the
Voluntary Scheme and on 20 September 2016, all adhering banks paid their pro quota portion
of the overall recalled amount equal to Euro 281 million, of which Euro 280 million for the
Capital Increase and Euro 1 million for expenses associated with the intervention and the
functioning of the VVoluntary Scheme.

For the purposes of raising the necessary funds to finally solve the crisis of Caricesena, Carismi
and Carim and facilitating the assignment of the three banks to Cariparma, which submitted a
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conditional purchase offer, the Voluntary Scheme meeting held on 7 September 2017 resolved
a capital increase by Euro 95 million (from Euro 700 to Euro 795 million). As a consequence
of such increase, the overall commitments of the Group to the Voluntary Scheme, including
quotas already recalled, have been estimated at Euro 55 million.

Following the communications received on 20 September 2017 and 7 December 2017, the
quota required against the Group amounts for a total of Euro 54 million (of which Euro 20
million in 2016 and Euro 34 million in 2017). As a result, the outstanding commitment of the
Group against the VVoluntary Scheme is essentially reduced to zero.

The contribution paid by banks adhering to the VVoluntary Scheme represents an asset, recorded
in the balance sheet of the participating banks (in the previous financial years the item
"financial assets available for sale”, while as of 1 January 2018 under the item "financial assets
compulsorily valued at fair value™ as a consequence of the entry into force of IFRS 9). The
recognition of the asset is also supported by the explicit provision contained in FITD’s By-
Laws relating to the Voluntary Scheme which provides for any realisations deriving from the
purchase of equity interests to be reassigned to the banks participating in the same Voluntary
Scheme.

The Group posted adjustments for an overall amount of Euro 51 million. As at 30 September
2018, the residual value of the adjustments is equal to Euro 2 million.

The abovementioned ordinary contribution obligations contribute to reducing profitability and
negatively impact on the Bank's capital resource level. It cannot be excluded that the level of
ordinary contributions asked of the Issuer is destined to grow in the future in respect of the
evolution of the relative amount of protected deposits and/or of the Group banks' relative risk
compared to all banks bound to pay the same contributions. Furthermore, it cannot be excluded
that, even in the future, as a consequence of non-governable and non-foreseeable events, the
FITD, the SRF and/or the NFR may find themselves in the situation of having to ask for new
and additional extraordinary contributions. This would entail the need to recognise further
extraordinary charges with impacts, even significant, on the Group's asset situation and
economic results.

Subsequently, at the Voluntary Scheme meeting held on 30 November 2018, a new increase in
capital (which had basically become equal to zero due to the actions set out above) was resolved
upon, to be used immediately to underwrite a subordinate Tier 2 loan issued by Banca Carige
S.p.A. ("Carige") as part of the actions provided by the "Capital Conservation Plan", approved
by Carige's board of directors on 29 November 2018, for the purposes of reverting to the capital
requirements as at 31 December 2018 in terms of TSCR and OCR, in line with what was
requested by the ECB.

As part of the action, which provides for an overall issuance of up to Euro 400 million, Euro
318.2 million was underwritten directly through the Voluntary Scheme while Euro 1.8 million
was underwritten by Banco di Desio e della Brianza (which is not included among the
participants in the Voluntary Scheme). Starting from 30 November 2018 and until Carige's
board of directors will have implemented the capital increase that shall be resolved upon by
Carige shareholders' meeting scheduled to take place on 22 December 2018, the subordinate
notes might be offered as private placement up to a maximum amount of Euro 400 million to
professional investors (both shareholders and other investors). In case of requests of amounts
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higher than Euro 80 million, the amount of notes to be underwritten by the Voluntary Scheme
can be reduced.

The notes will be issued at par value (100 per cent. of the face value) and will pay a fixed rate
coupon equal to 13 per cent.; interests will be paid in cash only; and the term will be ten years.
The terms and conditions of the notes include also the provision in accordance with which the
notes can be redeemed by way of set-off of the credit arising out of the redemption of the notes
with the debt arising out of the subscription of the shares (hence with the effect that the
noteholders may receive either shares or money as redemption).

By virtue of the above action, the companies of the Group participating in the Voluntary
Scheme (BMPS, MPS Leasing & Factoring and Banca Widiba) paid an overall amount of Euro
15 million to the latter. Considering that, as explained in the press releases issued by Carige,
the issuance of the subordinated Tier 2 loan will act as a "bridge" to the capital increase up to
Euro 400 million scheduled to take place by April 2019, the Voluntary Scheme might hold a
considerable interest in the share capital of Carige (even though the Voluntary Scheme will not
control Carige due to statutory limits).

3.7 Risks associated with the general economic/financial crisis and the debt crisis of the
Euro Area

The results of the Issuer and the companies belonging to the Group are significantly affected
by general economic conditions and financial markets dynamics and, in particular, by the
performance of the economy in Italy (determined, inter alia, by factors such as the soundness
perceived by investors, expected growth perspectives of the economy and credit reliability) as
the country in which the Bank operates on an almost exclusive basis and to which the Group
has a relevant credit exposure.

As a result of the crisis that has affected them since August 2007, global economies and
financial markets found themselves operating in challenging and unstable conditions such as
to require the intervention of governments, central banks and supernatural bodies in support of
financial institutions, among which the injection of liquidity in the systems and the direct
intervention in the recapitalisation of a number of such entities. This scenario has, in fact,
negatively affected financial markets worldwide.

Such negative context, in addition to having contributed to accelerating the deterioration of the
public finance conditions of EU countries, prejudiced in particular the banking systems more
exposed to sovereign debts (referred to as the sovereign debt crisis) causing a progressive
worsening of the crisis which continued, both at Italian and EU level, for the entire 2012 with
consequent increased credit risk of sovereign States and financial institutions. Despite ECB
interventions, the worries of a possible default of a number of countries of the Euro Area spread
among investors and economic operators, with a consequent general decrease in lending
operations, a higher market volatility and strong criticalities, at international level, in the raising
of liquidity. In this context, the hypothesis of a dissolution of the European Monetary Union or
the exit of single countries has several times been threatened (please see "Risks connected with
political and economic decisions of EU and Eurozone countries and the United Kingdom
leaving the European Union™ below).

The worries of a stagnation phase of the European economy, in a context of high volatility,
increased to such an extent that, at the beginning of 2015, the ECB announced the launch of
the "Public Sector Purchase Programme" (PSPP) within the Quantitative Easing (QE).
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The programme has been subsequently strengthened, with the ECB extending its duration until
December 2017 its expiry, introduced long-term refinancing transactions (TLTRO), further
reduced the deposit rate (to -0.4 per cent.), and broadened the scope of application not only to
securities issued by regions and local authorities but also to corporate securities (investment
grade). Thanks in part to these measures and to a relatively satisfactory global growth, the Euro
Area’s economy closed in 2016 with a 1.7 per cent. growth and recorded a 2 per cent. growth
rate in the first half of 2017. The lower contribution of net exports, as a result of the slowdown
in the growth of foreign trade and of the difficulties found by some emerging countries, has
been set off by a solid dynamic of internal demand. The improvement of the economic
conditions led to the gradual exit from the purchase programme, which will end in December
2018.

With specific reference to Italy, the economic performance of the country has been
significantly impacted by the international crisis and has been characterised by the stagnation
of the national economy, several downgrading actions of the Italian rating and an increased
spread between BTP and Bund.

In the progressive stabilisation scenario in effect since mid-2013, Italy has benefitted, late
compared to the other economies of the Euro Area, from the improved EU economic cycle.

The return to a marginally positive growth in GDP in 2014 (0.1 per cent.) has been followed
by a two-year period of moderate growth (0.9 per cent. and 1.1 per cent. in 2015 and 2016,
respectively). In 2017 there was a satisfactory growth rate (1.6 per cent.). Despite such
recovery, the Italian economy remains at a level of activity lower than the pre-crisis levels.

In the third quarter of 2018, after a phase of progressive deceleration of economic growth, the
dynamics of the Italian economy were stagnant, marking a pause in the expansive trend
experienced in the last three years. The preliminary estimate of GDP for the third quarter of
the year shows a decline in the annual growth rate to 0.8 per cent. from 1.2 per cent. registered
in the second quarter.

Possibilities of a significant acceleration of growth in Italy continue to depend, besides the
uncertain evolution of the international scenario, in the first place with uncertainty about the
impact of the exit process of Great Britain from the EU, upon domestic weakness factors, such
as an internal demand which, although showing signs of relative liveliness, remains fragile, a
labour market improving in the last years but still showing (geographic and demographic) areas
of extreme weakness, a hard confrontation between the Italian government and the European
institutions regarding the approval of the financial manoeuvre, consisting in a deviation from
the original agreement on public finance, to preserve the Italian growth. This could lead to the
loss of control of the balance accounts and consequent sanctions of the markets. Furthermore,
it is not yet clear how the proposed changes in different areas (for example, the revision of tax
policy and labour market legislation) will impact the Italian economic growth.

These uncertainties have led to an increase in the spread BTP-Bund. The spread has gradually
increased since the end of April, fluctuating around 300 basis points, against an average of
around 130 recorded in the first four months of 2018.

The above illustrated scenarios determined, also for the Group, a slowdown of ordinary
business, a substantially increased cost of funding, decreased asset values due to decreased
bond prices, a deteriorated credit portfolio with increased Impaired Loans and insolvency
situations and further costs deriving from write-downs and depreciations of assets, with a
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consequent decreased ability to generate profits. Notwithstanding tensions having recently
lessened, a consistent volatility still remains in the markets and the Italian political condition
remains characterised by instability phenomena. Should the contingent situation further
deteriorate and should the Italian economy, in particular, stagnate, this may determine losses,
even relevant, further slowing down ordinary business and make the raising of liquidity
necessary to carry on the business more difficult and expensive, with a potential negative
impact on the business and the economic, capital and/or financial condition of the Bank and/or
the Group.

3.8 Risks connected with the political and economic decisions of EU and Eurozone
countries and the United Kingdom leaving the European Union (*'Brexit"")

On 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom voted, in a referendum, to leave the European Union
("Brexit"). On 29 March 2017, the British Prime Minister gave formal notice to the European
Council under Article 50 of the Treaty on European Union of the intention to withdraw from
the European Union, thus triggering the two-year period for withdrawal during which the U.K.
is negotiating with the EU the terms of its withdrawal and of its future relationship with the EU
(the "Article 50 Withdrawal Agreement”).

If the parties fail to reach an agreement within this time frame, all EU treaties cease to apply to
the UK, unless the European Council, in agreement with the UK, unanimously decides to
extend this period. As part of those negotiations, a transitional period has been agreed in
principle which would extend the application of EU law and provide for continuing access to
the EU single market, until the end of 2020. Absent such extension and subject to the terms of
any Article 50 Withdrawal Agreement, the UK will withdraw from the EU no later than 29
March 2019. There are a number of uncertainties in connection with such negotiations,
including their timing, and the future of the UK’s relationship with the EU. It therefore remains
uncertain whether the Article 50 Withdrawal Agreement will be finalised and ratified by the
UK and the EU ahead of the 29 March 2019 deadline.

Regardless of the time scale and the term of the United Kingdom’s exit from the European
Union, the result of the referendum in June 2016 created significant uncertainties with regard
to the political and economic outlook of the United Kingdom and the European Union.

The exit of the United Kingdom from the European Union; the possibility that other European
Union countries could hold similar referendums to the one held in the United Kingdom and/or
call into question their membership of the European Union; and the possibility that one or more
countries that adopted the Euro as their national currency might decide, in the long term, to
adopt an alternative currency or prolonged periods of uncertainty connected to these
eventualities could have significant negative impacts on global economic conditions and the
stability of international financial markets. These could include further falls in equity markets,
a further fall in the value of the pound and, more in general, an increase in financial markets'
volatility, reduce global market liquidity with possible negative consequences on the asset
prices, operating results and capital and/or financial position of the Issuer and/or the Group.

In addition to the above and in consideration of the fact that at the date of this Prospectus there
is no legal procedure or practice aimed at facilitating the exit of a Member State from the Euro,
the consequences of these decisions are exacerbated by the uncertainty regarding the methods
through which a Member State could manage its current assets and liabilities denominated in
Euros and the exchange rate between the newly adopted currency and the Euro. A collapse of
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the Eurozone could be accompanied by the deterioration of the economic and financial situation
of the European Union and could have a significant negative effect on the entire financial
sector, creating new difficulties in the granting of sovereign loans and loans to businesses and
involving considerable changes to financial activities both at market and retail level. This
situation could therefore have a significant negative impact on the operating results and capital
and financial position of the Issuer and/or the Group.

3.9 Basel 111 and CRDIV

In the wake of the global financial crisis that began in 2008, the Basel Committee on banking
supervision ("BCBS") approved, in the fourth quarter of 2010, revised global regulatory
standards ("Basel 111") on bank capital adequacy and liquidity, which impose requirements for,
inter alia, higher and better-quality capital, better risk coverage, measures to promote the build-
up of capital that can be drawn down in periods of stress and the introduction of a leverage
ratio as a backstop to the risk-based requirement as well as two global liquidity standards. The
Basel 111 framework adopts a gradual approach, with the requirements to be implemented over
time, with full implementation by 2019.

In January 2013 the BCBS revised its original proposal in respect of the liquidity requirements
in light of concerns raised by the banking industry, providing for a gradual phasing-in of the
Liquidity Coverage Ratio with a full implementation in 2019 as well as expanding the
definition of high quality liquid assets to include lower quality corporate securities, equities
and residential mortgage backed securities. Regarding the other liquidity requirement, the net
stable funding ratio, the BCBS published the final rules in October 2014 which were to be
effective from 1 January 2018. A binding detailed net stable funding ratio was proposed as part
of the CRD Reforms released in November 2016.

The Basel 111 framework has been implemented in the EU through new banking requirements:
the CRD IV and the CRR (together, the "CRD IV Package™). Full implementation began on 1
January 2014, with particular elements being phased in over a period of time (the requirements
will be largely fully effective by 2019 and some minor transitional provisions provide for
phase-in until 2024) but it is possible that in practice implementation under national laws may
be delayed.

National options and discretions under the CRD IV Package that were so far exercised by
national competent authorities will be exercised by the SSM (as defined below) in a largely
harmonised manner throughout the European Banking Union. In this respect, on 14 March
2016, the ECB adopted Regulation (EU) No. 2016/445 on the exercise of options and
discretions. Depending on the manner in which these options/discretions were so far exercised
by the national competent authorities and on the manner in which the SSM will exercise them
in the future, additional/lower capital requirements may result.

In Italy, the Government approved a Legislative Decree No. 72 on 12 May 2015 ("Decree
72/2015") implementing the CRD IV. Decree 72/2015 entered into force on 27 June 2015. The
new regulation impacts, inter alia, on:

. proposed acquirers of holdings in credit institutions, requirements for shareholders and
members of the management body (articles 23 and 91 of the CRD IV);

o competent authorities' powers to intervene in cases of crisis management (articles 64,
65, 102 and 104 of the CRD IV);
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reporting of potential or actual breaches of national provisions (so called
whistleblowing, article 71 of the CRD IV); and

administrative penalties and measures (article 65 of the CRD V).

The Bank of Italy published new supervisory regulations on banks in December 2013 (Circular
No. 285) which came into force on 1 January 2014, implementing the CRD IV Package, and
setting out additional local prudential rules. According to article 92 of the CRR, institutions
shall at all times satisfy the following own funds requirements: (i) a CET1 Capital ratio of 4.5
per cent.; (ii) a Tier 1 Capital ratio of 6 per cent.; and (iii) a Total Capital ratio of 8 per cent..
These minimum ratios are complemented by the following capital buffers to be met with CET1
Capital, reported below as applicable with reference to 30 September 2018:

Capital conservation buffer: The Capital conservation buffer has applied to the Issuer
since 1 January 2014 pursuant to article 129 of the CRD IV and Part I, Title 11, Chapter
I, Section Il of Circular No. 285. According to the 18" updatez to Circular No. 285
published on 4 October 2016, new transitional rules provide for a capital conservation
buffer set at 1.875 per cent. of RWAs in 2018 and 2.5 per cent. of RWAs from 2019;

Counter-cyclical capital buffer: The countercyclical capital buffer applies starting from
1 January 2016. Pursuant to article 160 of the CRD IV and the transitional regime
granted by Bank of Italy for 2017, institutions' specific countercyclical capital buffer
shall consist of Common Equity Tier 1 capital capped to 1.25 per cent. of the total of
the risk-weighted exposure amounts of the institution. As of 30 September 2018 the
specific countercyclical rate of the Montepaschi Group amounted to 0.001 per cent. of
RWASs, equal to Euro 632,267.

Capital buffers for G-Slls: It represents an additional loss absorbency buffer (ranging
from 1.0 per cent. to 3.5 per cent. in terms of required level of additional common equity
loss absorbency as a percentage of risk-weighted assets), determined according to
specific indicators (i.e. size, interconnectedness, complexity). It is subject to phase-in
starting from 1 January 2016 (article 131 of the CRD IV and Part I, Title Il, Chapter I,
Section IV of Circular No. 285) becoming fully effective on 1 January 2019. Based on
the most recently updated list of G-SllIs published by the FSB in November 2016 (to be
updated annually), the Group is not a G-SIB and does not need to comply with a G-SlI
capital buffer requirement; and

Capital buffers for O-Slls: Up to 2.0 per cent. as set by the relevant competent authority
and must be reviewed at least annually from 1 January 2016, to compensate for the
higher risk that such banks represent to the domestic financial system (Article 131 of
the CRD IV and Part I, Title Il, Chapter I, Section IV of Circular No. 285). The Group
will not be considered an O-SII and will have no O-SII Buffer for 2019; In 2018 the
Group had to maintain a capital buffer of 0.06 per cent. of its total risk exposure.

On 6 October 2016, the Bank of Italy published the 18™ update of Circular No. 285 that modifies the capital
conservation buffer requirement. In publishing this update, the Bank of Italy reviewed the decision, made at
the time the CRD IV was transposed into Italian law in January 2014, where the fully loaded Capital
Conservation Buffer at 2.50 per cent. was requested, by aligning national regulation to the transitional regime
allowed by CRD 1V.
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For further details on capital requirements and buffers — also in relation to TSCR and OCR -
please see "Risks associated with the investigations of supervisory authorities”, "Risks
associated with capital adequacyand "Risks associated with the evolution of the banking and
financial sector regulation and of the additional provisions the Group is subject to" above.

In addition to the above listed capital buffers, under article 133 of the CRD IV each Member
State may introduce a systemic risk buffer of Common Equity Tier 1 capital for the financial
sector or one or more subsets of that sector in order to prevent and mitigate long term non-
cyclical systemic or macroprudential risks not otherwise covered by the CRD IV Package, in
the sense of a risk of disruption in the financial system with the potential of having serious
negative consequences on the financial system and the real economy in a specific Member
State. Currently, no provision is included on the systemic risk buffer under article 133 of the
CRD 1V as the Italian level-1 rules for the CRD IV implementation on this point have not yet
been enacted.

Failure to comply with such combined buffer requirements triggers restrictions on distributions
and the need for the bank to adopt a capital conservation plan on necessary remedial actions
(articles 140 and 141 of the CRD 1V).

Following the SREP Decision, it is required that the Bank complies, starting from 1 January
2018, at consolidated level, with a CET1 ratio on a transitional basis equal to 9.44 per cent. and
a total capital ratio, again on a transitional basis, equal to 12.94 per cent.. For more information
on the capital adequacy requirements which shall be complied with by the Bank, reference is
made to "Risks associated with capital adequacy".

In addition, the Issuer is subject to the Pillar Il requirements for banks imposed under the CRD
IV Package, which will be impacted, on an on-going basis, by the SREP. The SREP is aimed
at ensuring that institutions have in place adequate arrangements, strategies, processes and
mechanisms to maintain the amounts, types and distribution of internal capital commensurate
to their risk profile, as well as robust governance and internal control arrangements. The key
purpose of the SREP is to ensure that institutions have adequate arrangements as well as capital
and liquidity to ensure sound management and coverage of the risks to which they are or might
be exposed, including those revealed by stress testing, as well as risks the institution may pose
to the financial system. See "ECB Single Supervisory Mechanism™ below for further details.

The quantum of any Pillar Il requirement imposed on a bank, the type of capital which it must
apply to meeting such capital requirements, and whether the Pillar 11 requirement is "stacked"
below the capital buffers (i.e. the bank's capital resources must first be applied to meeting the
Pillar 11 requirements in full before capital can be applied to meeting the capital buffers) or
"stacked" above the capital buffers (i.e. the bank’s capital resources can be applied to meeting
the capital buffers in priority to the Pillar 11 requirement) may all impact a bank's ability to
comply with the combined buffer requirement.

As set out in the "Opinion of the European Banking Authority on the interaction of Pillar I,
Pillar 11 and combined buffer requirements and restrictions on distributions" published on 16
December 2015, in the EBA's opinion competent authorities should ensure that the Common
Equity Tier 1 Capital to be taken into account in determining the Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
available to meet the combined buffer requirement is limited to the amount not used to meet
the Pillar 1 and Pillar Il own funds requirements of the institution. In effect, this would mean
that Pillar Il capital requirements would be "stacked" below the capital buffers, and thus a firm's

- 106 -



CET1 resources would only be applied to meeting capital buffer requirements after Pillar | and
Pillar Il capital requirements have been met in full.

However, more recently, the EBA and the ECB appear to have adopted a different approach to
Pillar 1. In its publication of the 2016 EU-wide stress test results on 29 July 2016, the EBA
has recognised a distinction between "Pillar Il requirements” (stacked below the capital
buffers) and "Pillar 11 capital guidance” (stacked above the capital buffers). With respect to
Pillar 11 capital guidance, the publication stated that, in response to the stress test results,
competent authorities may (among other things) consider setting capital guidance, above the
combined buffer requirement. Competent authorities have remedial tools if an institution
refuses to follow such guidance. The ECB published a set of "Frequently asked questions on
the 2016 EU-wide stress test”, confirming this distinction between Pillar Il requirements and
Pillar 11 capital guidance and noting that "Under the stacking order, banks facing losses will
first fail to fulfil their Pillar Il capital guidance. In case of further losses, they would next breach
the combined buffers, then Pillar Il requirements, and finally Pillar | requirements".

The CRD Reform Package (as defined below) proposes to legislate this distinction between
"Pillar 11 requirements” and "Pillar 11 capital guidance". Whereas the former are mandatory
requirements imposed by supervisors to address risks not covered or not sufficiently covered
by Pillar I and buffer capital requirements, the latter refers to the possibility for competent
authorities to communicate to an institution their expectations for such institution to hold
capital in excess of its capital requirements (Pillar 1 and Pillar 1) and combined buffer
requirements in order to cope with forward-looking and remote situations. Under the CRD
Reform Package proposals, (and as described above), only Pillar 1l requirements, and not Pillar
Il capital guidance, will be relevant in determining whether an institution is meeting its
combined buffer requirement.

Non-compliance with Pillar Il capital guidance does not amount to failure to comply with
capital requirements, but should be considered as a "pre-alarm warning" to be used in the
Bank's risk management process. If capital levels go below Pillar 1l capital guidance, the
relevant supervisory authorities, which should be promptly informed in detail by the Bank of
the reasons of the failure to comply with the Pillar 11 capital guidance, will take into
consideration appropriate and proportional measures on a case by case basis (including, by way
of example, the possibility of implementing a plan aimed at restoring compliance with the
capital requirements - including capital strengthening requirements).

As part of the CRD IV Package transitional arrangements, regulatory capital recognition of
outstanding instruments which qualified as Tier | and Tier Il capital instruments under the
framework which the CRD IV Package has replaced that no longer meet the minimum criteria
under the CRD IV Package will be gradually phased out. Fixing the base at the nominal amount
of such instruments outstanding on 1 January 2013, their recognition is capped at 80 per cent.
in 2014, with this cap decreasing by 10 per cent. in each subsequent year.

The CRD IV Package introduces a new leverage ratio with the aim of restricting the level of
leverage that an institution can take on to ensure that an institution's assets are in line with its
capital. The Leverage Ratio Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2015/62, adopted on 10 October
2014, and published in the Official Journal of the European Union in January 2015, amends
the calculation of the leverage ratio compared to the current text of the CRR. Institutions have
been required to disclose their leverage ratio from 1 January 2015. Full implementation of the
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leverage ratio as a Pillar I measure is currently under consultation as part of the CRD Reform
Package, as defined below.

The CRD IV Package contains specific mandates for the EBA to develop draft regulatory or
implementing technical standards as well as guidelines and reports related to liquidity coverage
ratio and leverage ratio in order to enhance regulatory harmonisation in Europe through the so
called "single rule book™.

Should the Issuer not be able to implement the approach to capital requirements it considers
optimal in order to meet the capital requirements imposed by the CRD 1V Package, it may be
required to maintain levels of capital which could potentially impact its credit ratings, funding
conditions and which could limit the Issuer's growth opportunities.

3.10 Reform of EURIBOR and other interest rate index and equity, commodity and
foreign exchange rate index ""benchmarks™

The Euro Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR™) and other indices which are deemed
"benchmarks" are the subject of recent national, international and other regulatory guidance
and proposals for reform. Some of these reforms are already effective while others are still to
be implemented. These reforms may cause such "benchmarks" to perform differently than in
the past, or to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any
such consequence could have a material adverse effect on any Covered Bonds linked to a
"benchmark".

Key international reforms of "benchmarks" include IOSCQO’s proposed Principles for Financial
Market Benchmarks (July 2013) (the "IOSCO Benchmark Principles™) and the Regulation
(EU) No. 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016 on indices
used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure the
performance of investment funds and amending Directives 2008/48/EC and 2014/17/EU and
Regulation (EU) No. 596/2014 (the "Benchmarks Regulation™).

The 10SCO Benchmark Principles aim to create an overarching framework of principles for
benchmarks to be used in financial markets, specifically covering governance and
accountability, as well as the quality and transparency of benchmark design and methodologies.
A review published in February 2015 on the status of the voluntary market adoption of the
I0SCO Benchmark Principles noted that, as the benchmarks industry is in a state of change,
further steps may need to be taken by IOSCO in the future, but that it is too early to determine
what those steps should be. The review noted that there has been a significant market reaction
to the publication of the IOSCO Benchmark Principles, and widespread efforts being made to
implement the IOSCO Benchmark Principles by the majority of administrators surveyed.

On 17 May 2016, the Council of the European Union adopted the Benchmarks Regulation. The
Benchmarks Regulation was published in the Official Journal on 29 June 2016 and entered into
force on 30 June 2016. Subject to various transitional provisions, the Benchmarks Regulation
applies from 1 January 2018, except that the regime for “critical” benchmarks has applied from
30 June 2016 and certain amendments to Regulation (EU) No. 596/2014 (the so-called Market
Abuse Regulation) have applied from 3 July 2016. The Benchmarks Regulation applies to the
provision of "benchmarks"”, the contribution of input data to a "benchmark™ and the use of a
"benchmark" within the EU. It will, among other things, (i) require benchmark administrators
to be authorised or registered (or, if non-EU-based, to be subject to an equivalent regime or
otherwise recognised or endorsed) and (ii) prevent certain uses by EU supervised entities (such
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as the Issuer) of "benchmarks™ of administrators that are not authorised or registered (or, if
non-EU based, not deemed equivalent or recognised or endorsed). The scope of the
Benchmarks Regulation is wide and, in addition to applying to so-called “critical benchmark™
indices such as EURIBOR, could also potentially apply to many other interest rate indices, as
well as equity, commodity and foreign exchange rate indices and other indices (including
"proprietary” indices or strategies) which are referenced in listed financial instruments,
financial contracts and investment funds.

The Benchmarks Regulation could also have a material impact on any listed Covered Bonds
linked to a "benchmark™ index, including in any of the following circumstances:

1. an index which is a "benchmark” could not be used as such if its administrator does not
obtain appropriate EU authorisations or is based in a non-EU jurisdiction which (subject to
any applicable transitional provisions) does not have equivalent regulation. In such event,
depending on the particular "benchmark™ and the applicable terms of the Covered Bonds,
the Covered Bonds could be delisted (if listed), adjusted, redeemed or otherwise impacted,;

2. the methodology or other terms of the "benchmark™ related to a series of Covered Bonds
could be changed in order to comply with the terms of the Benchmarks Regulation, and
such changes could have the effect of reducing, increasing or affecting the volatility of the
published rate or level of the relevant "benchmark", and could lead to adjustments to the
terms of the Covered Bonds.

Any of the international, national or other reforms or the general increased regulatory scrutiny
of "benchmarks" could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating
in the setting of a "benchmark™ and complying with any such regulations or requirements.

For example, the sustainability of the London interbank offered rate ("LIBOR™) has been
questioned as a result of the absence of relevant active underlying markets and possible
disincentives (including possibly as a result of regulatory reforms) for market participants to
continue contributing to such "benchmarks".

On 27 July 2017, the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority announced that it will no
longer persuade or compel banks to submit rates for the calculation of the LIBOR "benchmark"
after 2021 (the "FCA Announcement”). The FCA Announcement indicated that the
continuation of LIBOR on the current basis cannot and will not be guaranteed after 2021. The
potential elimination of the LIBOR "benchmark™ or any other "benchmark", or changes in the
manner of administration of any "benchmark™, could require an adjustment to the terms and
conditions, or result in other consequences, in respect of any Covered Bonds referencing such
"benchmark". Such factors may have the effect of discouraging market participants from
continuing to administer or participate in certain "benchmarks", trigger changes in the rules or
methodologies used in certain "benchmarks" or lead to the disappearance of certain
"benchmarks”. Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes as a result of
international or national reforms or other initiatives or investigations, could have a material
adverse effect on the value of and return on any such Covered Bonds.

Investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment about
the potential risks imposed by the Benchmarks Regulation reforms in making any investment
decision with respect to any Covered Bonds referencing a "benchmark™.
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions of any applicable Covered Bonds whose return is
determined by reference to any benchmark, as described in Condition 7 (Benchmark
replacement) if the Issuer or Calculation Agent determines at any time that the Relevant Screen
Page on which the Reference Rate for such Notes appears has been discontinued or following
the adoption of a decision to withdraw the authorisation or registration as set out in Article 35
of the Benchmarks Regulation or any other benchmark administrator previously authorized to
publish any replacement Reference Rate under any applicable laws or regulations, the Issuer
will appoint an Independent Adviser who will determine an Alternative Reference Rate, as well
as any necessary changes to the business day convention, the definition of business day, the
interest determination date, the day count fraction, and any method for obtaining the
Alternative Reference Rate.

These and other changes could significantly affect the performance of an alternative rate
compared to the historical and expected performance of LIBOR or any other relevant
benchmark. There can be no assurance that any adjustment factor applied to any Series of
Covered Bonds will adequately compensate for this impact. This could in turn impact the rate
of interest on, and trading value of, the affected Covered Bonds. Moreover, any holders of such
Covered Bonds that enter into hedging instruments based on the Relevant Screen Page on
which appears the Reference Rate may find their hedges to be ineffective, and they may incur
costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the Alternative Reference Rate

3.11 VAT Group

Italian Law No. 232 of 11 December 2016 (the "2017 Budget Law") has introduced new VAT
rules allowing groups to act as a single taxable person for value added tax purposes (articles
from 70-bis to 70-duodecies of Presidential Decree No. 633 of 26 October 1972) and which, if
so elected by the group head, applies from 1 January 2019. Pursuant to such rules, all entities
included in the relevant VAT group are jointly and severally liable to the Italian Tax Authority
for any VAT payments due by all members of the VAT group.

On 31 October 2018, the Italian Tax Authority issued circular No. 19 specifying that funds, as
pools of segregated assets, would be liable only for the VAT payment obligations specifically
relating to their assets. Although reasonable, it is unclear whether the same limitation would
apply also to the assets held by a covered bond guarantor in the case of non-payment of VAT
by any other member of its VAT group.

the Group has opted into the new VAT regime introduced by the 2017 Budget Law in respect
of the Issuer’s group (including the Guarantor) with effect from 1 January 2019. Pending
further clarifications on the scope of application of the new rules, the Issuer has submitted a
ruling application to the Italian Tax Authority with the effect of excluding the Guarantor from
the VAT group regime.

3.12  Forthcoming regulatory changes

In addition to the substantial changes in capital and liquidity requirements introduced by Basel
111 and the CRD IV Package, there are several other initiatives, in various stages of finalisation,
which represent additional regulatory pressure over the medium term and will impact the EU’s
future regulatory direction. These initiatives include, among others, a revised Markets in
Financial Instruments EU Directive and Markets in Financial Instruments EU Regulation
which are applicable from 3 January 2018, subject to certain transitional arrangements. The
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Basel Committee has also published certain proposed changes to the current securitisation
framework which may be accepted and implemented in due course.

On 9 November 2015, the FSB published its final TLAC Principles and Term Sheet, proposing
that G-SIBs maintain significant minimum amounts of liabilities that are subordinated (by law,
contract or structurally) to liabilities excluded from TLAC, such as guaranteed insured
deposits, derivatives, etc. and which forms a new standard for G-SIBs. The TLAC Principles
and Term Sheet contains a set of principles on loss absorbing and recapitalisation capacity of
G-SIBs in resolution and a term sheet for the implementation of these principles in the form of
an internationally agreed standard. The FSB will undertake a review of the technical
implementation of the TLAC Principles and Term Sheet by the end of 2019. The TLAC
Principles and Term Sheet require a minimum TLAC requirement for each G-SIB at the greater
of (a) 16 per cent. of RWA as of 1 January 2019 and 18 per cent. as of 1 January 2022, and (b)
6 per cent. of the Basel Il Tier 1 leverage ratio requirement as of 1 January 2019, and 6.75 per
cent. as of 1 January 2022. The TLAC standards will be implemented in the EU through
amendments to the CRR to be made as part of the CRD Reform Package and the BRRD as part
of the BRRD Reforms (as defined below).

Based on the most recently updated FSB list of G-SIBs published in November 2016 (to be
updated annually), the Group is not a G-SIB and it will not be subject to the TLAC requirements
when they are implemented into applicable law, provided that at that time the Group will still
not be included in the list of G-SIBs.

On 23 November 2016, the European Commission released a package of proposals amending
CRD 1V, the CRR (the "CRD Reform Package™) and also the BRRD and the SRM Regulation
(as defined below), which is expected to become effective as from the beginning of 2019.
Among other things, these proposals aim to implement a number of new Basel standards (such
as the leverage ratio, the net stable funding ratio, market risk rules and requirements for own
funds and eligible liabilities) and to transpose the FSB’s TLAC termsheet into European law.
These proposals are now largely agreed upon, with technical details and final legislation yet to
be published. Once these proposals are finalised, changes to the CRR will become directly
applicable to the Group. The CRD IV amendments and the amendments to the BRRD will need
to be transposed into Italian law before taking effect. See "The Bank Recovery and Resolution
Directive is intended to enable a range of actions to be taken in relation to credit institutions
and investment firms considered to be at risk of failing. The taking of any such actions (or the
perception that the taking of any such action may occur) could materially adversely affect the
value of any Notes and/or the rights of Bondholders™ below for further details on the
implementation of TLAC in the EEA through changes to the BRRD.

The Basel Committee has embarked on a very significant RWA variability agenda. This
includes the Fundamental Review of the Trading Book, revised standardised approaches
(credit, counterparty credit, market, operational risk), constraints to the use of internal models
as well as the introduction of a capital floor. The regulator’s primary aim is to eliminate
unwarranted levels of RWA variance, to improve consistency and comparability between
banks. The finalisation of the new framework was completed at the end of 2017. Due to the
wide undergoing revision by global and European regulators and supervisors, the internal
models are expected to be subject to either changes or withdrawal in favour of a new
standardised approach, which is also under revision. The regulatory changes will impact the
entire banking system and consequently could lead to changes in the measurement of capital
(although they will become effective after the time frame covered by the strategic plan). In
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2016, the ECB began the TRIM, with the objective of ensuring the adequacy and comparability
of the models given the highly fragmented nature of Internal Ratings-Based systems used by
banks, and the resulting diversity in measurement of capital requirements. The review covers
credit, counterparty and market risks. The TRIM will be ongoing through 2018 and is
structured in two stages, with an institution-specific review commenced in 2016 and a model
specific review in 2017 and 2018.

In March 2015, the EBA undertook the revision of some specific aspects of the RWA internal
models, encouraging a major convergence between European banking supervision practices.
So far, the EBA has finalised the regulatory standards for the Internal Rating Based
methodology and the Guidelines on the new definition of default. The final Guidelines on
Probability of Default and the LGD estimation and treatment of defaulted assets were published
on 20 November 2017. Based on such Guidelines, the rules for internally estimating the LGD
would become significantly tighter. The implementation of all the proposed changes is
expected by the end of 2020.

There can be no assurance that the implementation of the new capital requirements, standards
and recommendations described above will not require BMPS to issue additional securities that
qualify as regulatory capital, to liquidate assets, to curtail business or to take any other actions,
any of which may have adverse effects on the Bank's business, financial condition and results
of operations. Furthermore, increased capital requirements may negatively affect BMPS’s
return on equity and other financial performance indicators.

Prospective investors in the Covered Bonds should consult their own advisers as to the
consequences for them of the application of the above regulations as implemented by each
Member State.

3.13 ECB Single Supervisory Mechanism

In October 2013, the Council of the European Union adopted regulations establishing the SSM
for all banks in the euro area, which have, beginning in November 2014, given the ECB, in
conjunction with the national competent authorities of the eurozone states, direct supervisory
responsibility over "banks of systemic importance™ in the European banking union as well as
their subsidiaries in a participating non-euro area Member State. The SSM Regulation setting
out the practical arrangements for the SSM was published in April 2014 and entered into force
in May 2014. Banks directly supervised by the ECB include, inter alia, any eurozone bank that
has: (i) assets greater than Euro 30 billion; (ii) assets constituting at least 20 per cent of its
home country's gross domestic product; or (iii) requested or received direct public financial
assistance from the European Financial Stability Facility or the European Stability Mechanism.

The ECB is also exclusively responsible for key tasks concerning the prudential supervision of
credit institutions, which includes, inter alia, the power to: (i) authorise and withdraw the
authorisation of all credit institutions in the eurozone; (ii) assess acquisition and disposal of
holdings in other banks; (iii) ensure compliance with all prudential requirements laid down in
general EU banking rules; (iv) set, where necessary, higher prudential requirements for certain
banks to protect financial stability under the conditions provided by EU law; (v) ensure
compliance with robust corporate governance practices and internal capital adequacy
assessment controls; and (vi) intervene at the early stages when risks to the viability of a bank
exist, in coordination with the relevant resolution authorities. The ECB also has the right to
impose pecuniary sanctions.
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National competent authorities will continue to be responsible for supervisory matters not
conferred on the ECB, such as consumer protection, money laundering, payment services, and
branches of third country banks, besides supporting ECB in day-to-day supervision. In order
to foster consistency and efficiency of supervisory practices across the EU, the EBA is
developing a single rule book. The single rule book aims to provide a single set of harmonised
prudential rules which institutions throughout the EU must respect.

The ECB has fully assumed its new supervisory responsibilities of the Montepaschi Group.
The ECB is required under the SSM Regulation to carry out a SREP at least on an annual basis.
In addition to the above, the EBA published on 19 December 2014 its final guidelines for
common procedures and methodologies in respect of the SREP (the "EBA SREP
Guidelines™). Included in these guidelines were the EBA's proposed guidelines for a common
approach to determining the amount and composition of additional Pillar 1l own funds
requirements to be implemented from 1 January 2016. Under these guidelines, national
supervisors should set a composition requirement for the Pillar Il requirements to cover certain
specified risks of at least 56 per cent. CET1 Capital and at least 75 per cent. Tier 1 capital. See
"Risks associated with capital adequacy” for further information regarding the actual
composition of the Bank's TSCR. The guidelines also contemplate that national supervisors
should not set additional own funds requirements in respect of risks which are already covered
by the combined buffer requirements (as described above) and/or additional macro-prudential
requirements. Accordingly, additional capital requirements have been imposed on the
Montepaschi Group by the ECB pursuant to the SREP Decision. For more details on risks
associated with the SREP requirements, please see "Risks associated with capital adequacy"
and "Risks associated with the investigations of supervisory authorities™ above.

3.14 The Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive is intended to enable a range of actions
to be taken in relation to credit institutions and investment firms considered to be at
risk of failing. The taking of any such actions (or the perception that the taking of
any such action may occur) could materially adversely affect the value of any
Covered Bonds and/or the rights of Bondholders

On 2 July 2014 the BRRD entered into force and Member States were expected to implement
the majority of its provisions. On 23 November 2016, the European Commission published a
proposal to amend certain provisions of the BRRD (the "BRRD Reforms™). The proposal
included an amendment to article 108 of the BRRD aimed at further harmonising the creditor
hierarchy as regards the priority ranking of holders of bank senior unsecured debt in resolution
and insolvency. A new class of so called "senior non-preferred debt™ was proposed to be added
that would be eligible to meet the TLAC and MREL requirements.

In October 2017, the EU agreed to fast-track selected parts of the comprehensive package of
reforms to further strengthen the resilience of EU banks. In particular, the European Parliament,
the Council and the Commission agreed on elements of the review of the BRRD and the CRD
IV Package.

An agreement was made on changes to article 108 of the BRRD to create the new asset class
of "non-preferred” senior debt instruments with a lower rank than ordinary senior unsecured
debt instruments in insolvency. In this regard, the Italian Parliament approved on 27 December
2017 Law No. 205/2017, which contains the implementing provisions pertaining to non-
preferred senior debt instruments. The new class of non-preferred senior debt entered into force
on 1 January 2018.
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The BRRD provides resolution authorities with comprehensive arrangements to deal with
failing banks at national level, as well as cooperation arrangements to tackle cross-border
banking failures.

The BRRD sets out the rules for the resolution of banks and large investment firms in all EU
Member States. Banks are required to prepare recovery plans to overcome financial distress.
Competent authorities are also granted a set of powers to intervene in the operations of banks
to avoid them failing. If banks do face failure, resolution authorities are equipped with
comprehensive powers and tools to restructure them, allocating losses to shareholders and
creditors following a specified hierarchy. Resolution authorities have the powers to implement
plans to resolve failing banks in a way that preserves their most critical functions and avoids
taxpayer bail outs.

The BRRD contains four resolution tools and powers which may be used alone (except for the
asset separation tool) or in combination with other resolution tools where the relevant
resolution authority considers that (a) an institution is failing or likely to fail, (b) there is no
reasonable prospect that any alternative private sector measures would prevent the failure of
such institution within a reasonable timeframe, and (c) a resolution action is in the public
interest: (i) sale of business - which enables resolution authorities to direct the sale of the
institution or the whole or part of its business on commercial terms; (ii) bridge institution -
which enables resolution authorities to transfer all or part of the business of the firm to a "bridge
institution” (an entity created for this purpose that is wholly or partially in public control); (iii)
asset separation - which enables resolution authorities to transfer impaired or problem assets to
one or more publicly owned asset management vehicles to allow them to be managed with a
view to maximising their value through eventual sale or orderly wind-down (this can be used
together with another resolution tool only); and (iv) bail-in - which gives resolution authorities
the power to write down certain claims of unsecured creditors of a failing institution and to
convert certain unsecured debt claims into shares or other instruments of ownership (i.e. other
instruments that confer ownership, instruments that are convertible into or give the right to
acquire shares or other instruments of ownership, and instruments representing interests in
shares or other instruments of ownership) (the "general bail-in tool™). Such shares or other
instruments of ownership could also be subject to any future application of the BRRD. For
more details on the implementation in Italy please refer to the paragraphs below.

An SRF (as defined above) was set up under the control of the SRB. It will ensure the
availability of funding support while the bank is resolved. It is funded by contributions from
the banking sector. The SRF can only contribute to resolution if at least 8 per cent. of the total
liabilities including own funds of the bank have been bailed-in.

The BRRD requires all Member States to create a national, prefunded resolution fund, reaching
a level of at least 1 per cent. of covered deposits by 31 December 2024. The national resolution
fund for Italy was created in November 2015 and required both ordinary and extraordinary
contributions to be made by Italian banks and investment firms, including the Issuer. In the
European banking union, the national resolution funds set up under the BRRD were superseded
by the SRF as of 1 January 2016 and those funds will be pooled together gradually. Therefore,
as of 2016, the Single Resolution Board calculates, in line with a Council implementing act,
the annual contributions of all institutions authorised in the Member States participating in the
SSM and the SRM (as defined below). The SRF is financed by the European banking sector.
The SRF is to be built up over eight years, beginning in 2016, to the target level of Euro 55
billion (the basis being 1 per cent. of the covered deposits in the financial institutions of the

- 114 -



European banking union). Once this target level is reached, in principle, the banks will have to
contribute only if the resources of the SRF are exhausted in order to deal with resolutions of
other institutions.

Under the BRRD, the target level of the national resolution funds is set at national level and
calculated on the basis of deposits covered by deposit guarantee schemes. Under the SRM, the
target level of the SRF is European and is the sum of the covered deposits of all institutions
established in the participating Member States. This results in significant variations in the
contributions by the banks under the SRM as compared to the BRRD. As a consequence of this
difference, where contributions will be paid based on a joint target level as of 2016,
contributions of banks established in Member States with high level of covered deposits may
abruptly decrease, while contributions of those banks established in Member States with fewer
covered deposits may abruptly increase. In order to prevent such abrupt changes, the Council
implementing act provides for an adjustment mechanism to remedy these distortions during the
transitional period by way of a gradual phasing in of the SRM methodology.

The BRRD also provides for a Member State as a last resort, after having assessed and applied
the above resolution tools (including the general bail-in tool) to the maximum extent
practicable whilst maintaining financial stability, to be able to provide extraordinary public
financial support through additional financial stabilisation tools. These consist of the public
equity support and temporary public ownership tools. Any such extraordinary financial support
must be provided in accordance with the burden sharing requirements of the EU state aid
framework and the BRRD.

As an exemption from these principles, the BRRD allows for three kinds of extraordinary
public support to be provided to a solvent institution without triggering resolution: 1) a State
guarantee to back liquidity facilities provided by central banks according to the central banks'
conditions; 2) a State guarantee of newly issued liabilities; or 3) an injection of own funds in
the form of precautionary recapitalisation. In the case of precautionary recapitalisation EU state
aid rules require that shareholders and junior bond holders contribute to the costs of
restructuring (referred to as "burden sharing").

In addition to the general bail-in tool and other resolution tools, the BRRD provides for
resolution authorities to have the further power to write-down permanently/convert into equity
capital instruments at the point of non-viability and before any other resolution action is taken
("Non-Viability Loss Absorption”).

For the purposes of the application of any Non-Viability Loss Absorption measure, the point
of non-viability under the BRRD is the point at which the relevant authority determines that
the institution meets the conditions for resolution (but no resolution action has yet been taken)
or that the institution or, in certain circumstances, its group, will no longer be viable unless the
relevant capital instruments are written-down/converted or extraordinary public support is to
be provided and without such support the appropriate authority determines that the institution
and/or, as appropriate, its group, would no longer be viable.

In the context of these resolution tools, the resolution authorities have the power to amend or
alter the maturity of certain debt instruments issued by an institution under resolution or amend
the amount of interest payable under such instruments, or the date on which the interest
becomes payable, including by suspending payment for a temporary period.
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The BRRD has been implemented in Italy through the adoption of the Decree 180 and the
Legislative Decree No. 181/2015 (the "BRRD Decrees"), which were published in the Italian
Official Gazette (Gazzetta Ufficiale) on 16 November 2015. Decree 180 is a stand-alone law
which implements the provisions of BRRD relating to resolution actions, while Legislative
Decree No. 181/2015 amends the existing Consolidated Banking Act and deals principally with
recovery plans, early intervention and changes to the creditor hierarchy. The BRRD Decrees
entered into force on the date of publication on the Italian Official Gazette (i.e. 16 November
2015), save that: (i) the general bail-in tool applied from 1 January 2016; and (ii) a "depositor
preference” granted for deposits other than those protected by the deposit guarantee scheme
and excess deposits of individuals and SME's will apply from 1 January 2019. For further
information on the application of Decree 180, please refer to "Risks associated with the
investment in the Issuer shares and the recovery and resolution mechanisms of failing
enterprises™ above.

It is important to note that, pursuant to article 49 of Decree 180, resolution authorities may not
exercise the write down/conversion powers in relation to secured liabilities, including covered
bonds or their related hedging instruments, save to the extent that these powers may be
exercised in relation to any part of a secured liability (including covered bonds and their related
hedging instruments) that exceeds the value of the assets, pledge, lien or collateral against
which it is secured.

In addition, because (i) article 44(2) of the BRRD excludes certain liabilities from the
application of the general bail-in tool and (ii) the BRRD provides, at article 44(3), that the
resolution authority may in specified exceptional circumstances partially or fully exclude
certain further liabilities from the application of the general bail-in tool, the BRRD specifically
contemplates that pari passu ranking liabilities may be treated unequally. Further, although the
BRRD provides a safeguard in respect of shareholders and creditors upon application of
resolution tools, article 75 of the BRRD sets out that such protection is limited to the incurrence
by shareholders or, as appropriate, creditors, of greater losses as a result of the application of
the relevant tool than they would have incurred in a winding up under normal insolvency
proceedings. It is therefore possible not only that the claims of other holders of junior or pari
passu liabilities may have been excluded from the application of the general bail-in tool, but
also that the safeguard referred to above does not apply to ensure equal (or better) treatment
compared to the holders of such fully or partially excluded claims because the safeguard is not
intended to address such possible unequal treatment but rather to ensure that shareholders or
creditors do not incur greater losses in a bail-in (or other application of a resolution tool) than
they would have received in a winding up under normal insolvency proceedings.

Also, article 108 of the BRRD requires that Member States modify their national insolvency
regimes such that deposits of natural persons and micro, small and medium sized enterprises
in excess of the coverage level contemplated by deposit guarantee schemes created pursuant to
Directive 2014/49/EU have a ranking in normal insolvency proceedings which is higher than
the ranking which applies to claims of ordinary, unsecured, non-preferred creditors. In addition,
the BRRD does not prevent Member States, including Italy, from amending national
insolvency regimes to provide other types of creditors, with rankings in insolvency higher than
ordinary, unsecured, non-preferred creditors. Legislative Decree No. 181/2015 has amended
the creditor hierarchy in the case of admission of Italian banks and investment firms to
liquidation proceedings (and therefore the hierarchy which will apply in order to assess claims
pursuant the safeguard provided for in article 75 of the BRRD as described above), by
providing that, as from 1 January 2019, all deposits other than those protected by the deposit
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guarantee scheme and excess deposits of individuals and SME's (which benefit from the super-
priority required under article 108 of the BRRD) will benefit from priority over senior
unsecured liabilities, though with a ranking which is lower than that provided for
individual/SME deposits exceeding the coverage limit of the deposit guarantee scheme.

Therefore, the safeguard set out in article 75 of the BRRD (referred to above) would not provide
any protection against this result since, as noted above, article 75 of the BRRD only seeks to
achieve compensation for losses incurred by creditors which are in excess of those which would
have been incurred in a winding-up under normal insolvency proceedings.

Legislative Decree No. 181/2015 has also introduced strict limitations on the exercise of the
statutory rights of set-off normally available under Italian insolvency laws, in effect prohibiting
set-off by any creditor in the absence of an express agreement to the contrary.

As the BRRD has only recently been implemented in Italy and other Member States, there is
uncertainty as to the effects of its application in practice.

The powers set out in the BRRD will impact how credit institutions and investment firms are
managed as well as, in certain circumstances, the rights of creditors. The exercise of these, or
any other power, under the BRRD, or any suggestion, or perceived suggestion, of such exercise
could, therefore, materially adversely affect the rights of Bondholders, the price or value of
their investment in any Covered Bond and/or the ability of the Issuer to satisfy its obligations
under any Covered Bond.

In addition to the capital requirements under CRD IV, the BRRD introduces requirements for
banks to maintain at all times a sufficient aggregate amount of the MREL. The aim is that the
minimum amount should be proportionate and adapted for each category of bank on the basis
of their risk or the composition of their sources of funding and to ensure adequate capitalisation
to continue exercising critical functions post resolution. The final draft regulatory technical
standards published by the EBA in July 2015 set out the assessment criteria that resolution
authorities should use to determine the MREL for individual firms. On 23 May 2016, the
European Commission adopted Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/1450
supplementing BRRD that specifies the criteria which further define the way in which
resolution authorities/the SRB shall calculate MREL, as described in article 45(6) of the
BRRD. Atrticle 8 of the aforementioned regulation provides that resolution authorities may
determine an appropriate transitional period for the purposes of meeting the full MREL
requirement.

The BRRD does not currently foresee an absolute minimum, but attributes the competence to
set a minimum amount for each bank to national resolution authorities (for banks not subject
to supervision by the ECB) or to the Single Resolution Board (the "SRB") for banks subject to
direct supervision by the ECB. The EBA has issued its final draft regulatory technical standards
which further define the way in which national resolution authorities/the SRB shall calculate
MREL. As from 1 January 2016, the resolution authority for the Bank is the SRB and it is
subject to the authority of the SRB for the purposes of determination of its MREL requirement.
The SRB has indicated that it took core features of the TLAC standard into account in its 2016
MREL decisions and also that it may make decisions on the quality (in particular a
subordination requirement) for all or part of the MREL. The SRB has targeted the end of 2017
for calculating binding MREL targets (applicable from 2019) at the consolidated level of all
banking groups under its remit. MREL decisions for subsidiaries will be made in a second
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stage, based on, among other things, their individual characteristics and the consolidated level
which has been set for the group. The draft regulatory technical standards published by the
EBA contemplate that a maximum transitional period of 48 months may be applied for the
purposes of meeting the full MREL requirement.

The BRRD Reforms, among other things aim to implement TLAC and to ensure consistency,
where appropriate, of MREL with TLAC. These proposals introduce a minimum harmonised
MREL requirement (also referred to as a "Pillar | MREL requirement'") applicable to G-Slls
only. In addition, resolution authorities will be able, on the basis of bank-specific assessments,
to require that G-Slls comply with a supplementary MREL requirement (a "Pillar 11 MREL
requirement’). Banks will be allowed to use certain additional types of loss absorbent
liabilities to comply with their Pillar 11 MREL requirement.

In order to ensure compliance with MREL requirements, and in line with the FSB standard on
TLAC, the BRRD Reforms propose that in case a bank does not have sufficient eligible
liabilities to comply with its MREL, the resultant shortfall is automatically filled up with CET1
Capital that would otherwise be counted towards meeting the combined capital buffer
requirement. However, the BRRD Reforms envisage that a six-month grace period may apply
before restrictions to discretionary payments to the holders of regulatory capital instruments
and employees take effect due to a breach of the combined capital buffer requirement.

3.15 As of 2016, the Montepaschi Group is subject to the provisions of the Regulation
establishing the Single Resolution Mechanism

After having reached an agreement with the Council, in April 2014, the European Parliament
adopted the Regulation establishing a Single Resolution Mechanism (respectively, the "SRM
Regulation™ and the "SRM"). The SRM became fully operational on 1 January 2016. Certain
provisions, including those concerning the preparation of resolution plans and provisions
relating to the cooperation of the SRB with national resolution authorities, entered into force
on 1 January 2015. On 23 November 2016, the European Commission published a proposal to
amend certain provisions of the SRM. In particular the main objective of such proposal is to
implement the TLAC standard and to integrate the TLAC requirement into the general MREL
rules by avoiding duplication by applying two parallel requirements.

The SRM, which complements the ECB Single Supervisory Mechanism, applies to all banks
supervised by the ECB Single Supervisory Mechanism. It mainly consists of the SRB and an
SRF "The Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive is intended to enable a range of actions to
be taken in relation to credit institutions and investment firms considered to be at risk of failing.
The taking of any such actions (or the perception that the taking of any such action may occur)
could materially adversely affect the value of the Covered Bonds and/or the rights of
Bondholders" for details.

Decision-making is centralised with the SRB, and involves the European Commission and the
Council (which will have the possibility to object to the SRB's decisions) as well as the ECB
and national resolution authorities.

The establishment of the SRM is designed to ensure that supervision and resolution is exercised

at the same level for countries that share the supervision of banks within the ECB Single
Supervisory Mechanism.

- 118 -



3.16 Risks related to Sanctioned Countries

The Issuer and the Group have many customers and partners who are located in various
countries around the world. Some of the countries in which such customers and partners are
located and/or otherwise operate are, or may become, subject to comprehensive country-wide
or territory-wide sanctions issued by the United States of America, the European Union and/or
the United Nations ("Sanctioned Countries”). Such sanctions may limit the ability of the
Issuer and/or the Group to continue operating with such customers and partners moving
forward.

In particular, since January 2016, the Bank has undertaken and, as at the date of this Prospectus,
continues to undertake certain commercial transactions (being commercial payments, the
making of documentary credits, and the creation of guarantees) involving a limited number of
private and state-owned banks having registered addresses in Iran, Cuba and Syria. Such
commercial transactions have all been, and are, carried out in full compliance with all sanctions
laws applicable to the Bank and the Bank’s internal sanctions-related policies and procedures
for the purpose of supporting the Bank’s selected Italian customers. The relevant revenues
generated by the Bank from this business currently represent less than 1 per cent. of the Bank's
total revenues. Neither the Bank nor the Group maintains any physical presence in Iran, Cuba
and/or Syria, and the Bank’s existing activities as described above are undertaken solely
through the use of correspondent banking relationships. The Bank and/or the Group do not
otherwise conduct any other material business in or with any Sanctioned Country. As at the
date of this Prospectus, it is also not expected that this position will materially change moving
forward.

All of the activities described in the preceding paragraph have been, and are, conducted in
compliance with all laws applicable to the Bank, and are not believed to have caused any person
to violate any sanctions (except to the extent that such activities breach or would breach
Council Regulation (EC) No 2271/96 of 22 November 1996 (as amended or supplemented
from time to time) or any law or regulation implementing such Regulation in any member state
of the European Union or the United Kingdom). Nor are they expected to result in the Bank
and/or any member of the Group themselves becoming the subject of sanctions. However,
following the unilateral decision of the United States to exit from the Joint Comprehensive
Plan of Action ("JCPOA") — agreement entered into between Iran and EU — and the following
provision of new extraterritorial sanctions, which were suspended pursuant to JCPOA there
may be prejudicial effects on these operations as well as on the reputation of the Issuer and/or
the Group. This, in turn, could result in negative impacts on the capital, financial and economic
situation of the Issuer and/or the Group

4. INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO THE GUARANTOR AND
THE COVER POOL

4.1  Guarantor only obliged to pay Guaranteed Amounts when they are Due for Payment

Following service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice on the Issuer and the Guarantor, under
the terms of the Guarantee the Guarantor will only be obliged to pay Guaranteed Amounts as
and when the same are Due for Payment, provided that, in the case of any amounts
representing the Final Redemption Amount due and remaining unpaid as at the original
Maturity Date, the Guarantor may pay such amounts in accordance with the applicable Priority
of Payments on any Guarantor Payment Date thereafter, up to (and including) the Extended
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Maturity Date. Such Guaranteed Amounts will be paid subject to and in accordance with the
Guarantee Priority of Payments or the Post-Enforcement Priority of Payments, as applicable.
In such circumstances, the Guarantor will not be obliged to pay any other amounts in respect
of the Covered Bonds which become payable for any other reason.

Subject to any grace period, if the Guarantor fails to make a payment when Due for Payment
under the Guarantee or any other Guarantor Event of Default occurs, then the Representative
of the Bondholders will accelerate the obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee by
service of a Guarantor Default Notice, whereupon the Representative of the Bondholders will
have a claim under the Guarantee for an amount equal to the Guaranteed Amounts. Following
service of a Guarantor Default Notice, the amounts due from the Guarantor shall be applied by
the Representative of the Bondholders in accordance with the Post-Enforcement Priority of
Payments, and Bondholders will receive amounts from the Guarantor on an accelerated basis.
If a Guarantor Default Notice is served on the Guarantor, then the Covered Bonds may be
repaid sooner or later than expected or not at all.

In accordance with article 7-bis of Law 130, prior to and following a winding up of the
Guarantor and an Issuer Event of Default or Guarantor Event of Default causing the Guarantee
to be called, proceeds of the Cover Pool paid to the Guarantor will be exclusively available for
the purpose of satisfying the obligations owed to the Bondholders, to the Other Guarantor
Creditors and to any other creditors exclusively in satisfaction of the transaction costs of the
Programme. The Cover Pool may not be seized or attached in any form by creditors of the
Guarantor other than the entities referred to above, until full discharge by the Guarantor of its
payment obligations under the Guarantee or cancellation thereof.

4.2 Limited resources available to the Guarantor

Following the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice on the Issuer and on the Guarantor,
the Guarantor will be under an obligation to pay the Bondholders and shall procure the payment
of the Guaranteed Amounts when they are due for payment. The Guarantor's ability to meet its
obligations under the Guarantee will depend on (a) the amount of interest and principal
generated by the Cover Pool and the timing thereof, (b) amounts received from the Swap
Providers and (c) the proceeds of any Eligible Investments. The Guarantor will not have any
other source of funds available to meet its obligations under the Guarantee.

If a Guarantor Event of Default occurs and the Guarantee is enforced, the proceeds of
enforcement may not be sufficient to meet the claims of all the secured creditors, including the
Bondholders. If, following enforcement and realization of the assets in the Cover Pool,
creditors have not received the full amount due to them pursuant to the terms of the Programme
Documents, then they may still have an unsecured claim against the Issuer for the shortfall.
There is no guarantee that the Issuer will have sufficient funds to pay that shortfall.

Each Other Guarantor Creditor has undertaken in the Intercreditor Agreement not to petition
or commence proceedings for a declaration of insolvency (nor join any such petition or
proceedings) against the Guarantor at least until one year and one day after the date on which
all Series and Tranches of Covered Bonds issued in the context of the Programme have been
cancelled or redeemed in full in accordance with their Conditions and the relevant final Terms.
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4.3  Reliance of the Guarantor on third parties

The Guarantor has entered into agreements with a number of third parties, which have agreed
to perform services for the Guarantor. In particular, but without limitation, the Principal
Servicer has been appointed, and upon accession to the Programme, each Additional Servicer
will be appointed to carry out the administration, management, collection and recoveries
activities relating to the Assets comprised in the relevant Portfolios sold to the Guarantor and
(i) the Issuer has been appointed as Pre-lssuer Default Test Calculation Agent for any
calculations in respect of the Mandatory Tests and the Asset Coverage Tests to be performed
during the period prior to a Guarantee Enforcement Notice; (ii) the Guarantor Calculation
Agent has been appointed as Post-Issuer Default Test Calculation Agent for any calculation in
respect of the Mandatory Tests to be performed during the period following a Guarantee
Enforcement Notice.

In the event that any of these parties fails to perform its obligations under the relevant
agreement to which it is a party, the realisable value of the Cover Pool or any part thereof or
pending such realization (if the Cover Pool or any part thereof cannot be sold) the ability of the
Guarantor to make payments under the Guarantee may be affected. For instance, if the Principal
Servicer and/or any Additional Servicer(s) has failed to administer the Mortgage Loans
adequately, this may lead to higher incidences of non-payment or default by Borrowers. The
Guarantor is also reliant on the Swap Providers to provide it with the funds matching its
obligations under the Guarantee, as described in the following two investment considerations.

If a Servicer Termination Event occurs pursuant to the terms of the Master Servicing
Agreement, then the Guarantor and/or the Representative of the Bondholders will be entitled
to terminate the appointment of the Servicer and appoint a new servicer in its place. In addition,
the Servicer may resign from the Master Servicing Agreement, within 12 months from the
relevant Execution Date, by giving not less than a 6 months prior written notice to the
Representative of the Bondholders, the Rating Agencies, the Asset Swap Provider and Joint-
Arrangers. There can be no assurance that a substitute servicer with sufficient experience of
administering mortgages of residential or commercial properties would be found who would
be willing and able to carry out the administration, management, collection and recovery
activities relating to the Assets on the terms of the Master Servicing Agreement. The ability of
a substitute servicer to perform fully the required services would depend, inter alia, on the
information, software and records available at the time of the appointment. Any delay or
inability to appoint a substitute servicer may affect the realisable value of the Cover Pool or
any part thereof, and/or the ability of the Guarantor to make payments under the Guarantee.

The Servicer has no obligation to advance payments if the Borrowers fail to make any payments
in a timely fashion. Bondholders will have no right to consent to or approve of any actions
taken by the Servicer under the Master Servicing Agreement.

The Representative of the Bondholders is not obliged in any circumstances to act as the
Servicer or the Additional Servicer (as the case may be) or to monitor the performance by the
Servicer or the Additional Servicer (as the case may be) of its obligations.

4.4  Reliance on Swap Providers

To mitigate possible variations in the performance of the Cover Pool, the Guarantor may, but
it is not obliged to, enter into one or more Asset Swap Agreements with one or more Asset
Swap Providers. In addition, to mitigate interest rate, currency and/or other risks in respect of
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each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds issued under the Programme, the Guarantor is
expected to enter into one or more Covered Bond Swap Agreements with one or more Covered
Bond Swap Providers in respect of each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

A Swap Provider is (unless otherwise stated in the relevant Swap Agreement) only obliged to
make payments to the Guarantor as long as the Guarantor complies with its payment
obligations under the relevant Swap Agreement. In circumstances where non-payment by the
Guarantor under a Swap Agreement does not result in a default under that Swap Agreement,
the Swap Provider may be obliged to make payments to the Guarantor pursuant to the Swap
Agreement as if payment had been made by the Guarantor.

If a Swap Provider is not obliged to make payments or if it defaults in its obligations to make
payments of under the relevant Swap Agreement, the Guarantor may be exposed to changes in
the relevant currency exchange rates to Euro and to any changes in the relevant rates of interest
and/or to the performance of the Cover Pool. In addition, subject to the then current ratings of
the Covered Bonds not being adversely affected, the Guarantor may hedge only part of the
possible risk and, in such circumstances, may have insufficient funds to meet its payment
obligations, including under the Covered Bonds or the Guarantee.

If a Swap Agreement terminates, then the Guarantor may be obliged to make a termination
payment to the relevant Swap Provider. There can be no assurance that the Guarantor will have
sufficient funds available to make a termination payment under the relevant Swap Agreement,
nor can there be any assurance that the Guarantor will be able to enter into a replacement swap
agreement with an adequately rated counterparty, or if one is entered into, that the credit rating
of such replacement swap provider will remain sufficiently high to prevent a downgrade by the
Rating Agencies of the then current ratings of the Covered Bonds. In addition, the Swap
Agreements may provide that notwithstanding the downgrading of a Swap Provider and the
failure by such Swap Provider to take the remedial action set out in the relevant Swap
Agreement, the Guarantor may not terminate the Swap Agreement until a replacement swap
provider has been found.

Following the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, payments (other than principal
payments) by the Guarantor (including any termination payment) under the Covered Bond
Swap Agreements and Asset Swap Agreements will rank pari passu and pro rata to interest
amounts due on the Covered Bonds under the Guarantee. Accordingly, the obligation to pay a
termination payment may adversely affect the ability of the Guarantor to meet its obligations
under the Covered Bonds or the Guarantee.

45  Differences in timings of obligations under the Covered Bond Swaps

It is expected that pursuant to the Covered Bond Swap Agreements, the Guarantor will pay on
each quarterly Guarantor Payment Date, a floating rate option such as, for Series or Tranches
of Covered Bonds denominated in Euro, a floating rate linked to EURIBOR. Each Covered
Bond Swap Provider is expected to make corresponding swap payments to the Guarantor on
the Interest Payment Date of the relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds, which could be
monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual.

Due to the mismatch in timing of payments under the Covered Bond Swap Agreements, on
many Guarantor Payment Dates, the Guarantor will be required to make a payment to the
Covered Bond Swap Provider without receiving a payment in return and therefore there can be
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no netting of payments except on the date when the Covered Bond Swap Provider is required
to make a payment to the Guarantor.

4.6  No gross up on withholding tax

In respect of payments made by the Guarantor under the Guarantee, to the extent that the
Guarantor is required by law to withhold or deduct any present or future taxes of any kind
imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Republic of Italy from such payments, the Guarantor
will not be under an obligation to pay any additional amounts to Bondholders, irrespective of
whether such withholding or deduction arises from existing legislation or its application or
interpretation as at the relevant Issue Date or from changes in such legislation, application or
official interpretation after the Issue Date.

4.7  Change of counterparties

The parties to the Programme Documents who receive and hold monies pursuant to the terms
of such documents (such as the Italian Account Bank, the English Account Bank or the
Principal Servicer and, upon accession to the Programme, each Additional Servicer(s)) are
required to satisfy certain criteria in order to continue to receive and hold such monies.

These criteria include, inter alia, requirements in relation to the short-term and long-term,
unguaranteed and unsecured ratings ascribed to such party by the Rating Agencies. If the party
concerned ceases to satisfy the ratings criteria, then the rights and obligations of that party
(including the right or obligation to receive monies, or to effect payments, on behalf of the
Guarantor) may be required to be transferred to another entity which does satisfy the applicable
criteria. In these circumstances, the terms agreed with the replacement entity may not be as
favourable as those agreed with the original party pursuant to the Programme Documents.

In addition, should the applicable criteria cease to be satisfied, then the parties to the relevant
Programme Document may agree to amend or waive certain of the terms of such document,
including the applicable criteria, in order to avoid the need for a replacement entity to be
appointed. The consent of Bondholders may not be required in relation to such amendments
and/or waivers.

4.8 Limited description of the Cover Pool

Bondholders will not receive detailed statistics or information in relation to the Assets in the
Cover Pool, because it is expected that the constitution of the Cover Pool will frequently change
due to, for instance:

. the Issuer, or any Additional Seller(s), selling further Assets (or types of Assets, which
are of a type that have not previously been comprised in the Cover Pool) to the
Guarantor; and

. the Issuer, or any Additional Seller(s), repurchasing or substituting Assets in
accordance with the Master Assets Purchase Agreement.

However, each Eligible Asset Loan will be required to meet the Eligibility Criteria and to
conform with the representations and warranties set out in the Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement — see "Description of the Programme Documents — Warranty and Indemnity
Agreement". In addition, the Asset Coverage Test is intended to ensure that the Adjusted
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Aggregate Asset Amount is an amount equal to or in excess of the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Covered Bonds for so long as Covered Bonds remain outstanding and
the Pre-Issuer Default Test Calculation Agent will provide monthly reports that will set out
certain information in relation to the Asset Coverage Test.

Nonetheless, the main composition details of the Cover Pool are available on the Issuer's
website (www.mps.it) by the publication of the Payment Report and updated on a quarterly
basis pursuant to article 129, paragraph 7, of the CRD IV Regulation.

4.9  No due diligence on the Cover Pool

None of the Joint-Arrangers, any Dealer, the Guarantor or the Representative of the
Bondholders has undertaken or will undertake any investigations, searches or other actions in
respect of any of the Eligible Assets or other Receivables. Instead, the Guarantor will rely on
the Common Criteria, the Specific Criteria, the Additional Criteria and the relevant
representations and warranties given by the relevant Seller(s) and, upon accession to the
Programme, each Additional Seller(s), in the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement. The remedy
provided for in the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement for breach of representation or
warranty is for the relevant Seller(s) to indemnify and hold harmless the Guarantor in respect
of losses arising from such breach and for the Guarantor to exercise an option right to retransfer
the Assets in respect of which a breach of the representation or warranty has occurred which
were previously assigned to it by the relevant Seller in accordance with the terms and
conditions set out in the Warranty and Indemnity Agreement. Such obligations are not
guaranteed by nor will they be the responsibility of any person other than the relevant Seller
and neither the Guarantor nor the Representative of the Bondholders will have recourse to any
other person in the event that the relevant Seller, for whatever reason, fails to meet such
obligations. However, pursuant to the Cover Pool Management Agreement the assets which
are not Eligible Assets comprised in the Cover Pool are excluded by the calculation of the Tests
on the Portfolio and in case of breach of a Test due to such exclusion, either the Principal Seller
and/or the Additional Seller(s) or, failing the latter to do so, the Issuer are obliged to integrate
the Cover Pool.

410 Maintenance of the Cover Pool

Pursuant to the terms of the Master Assets Purchase Agreement, the Principal Seller has agreed
(and the Additional Seller(s) upon their accession to the Master Assets Purchase Agreement)
to transfer New Portfolios to the Guarantor and the Guarantor has agreed to purchase New
Portfolios in order to ensure that the Cover Pool is in compliance with (i) prior to delivery of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Mandatory Tests and the Asset Coverage Test, and (ii)
following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Mandatory Tests and the
Amortisation Test. The Initial Portfolio Purchase Price was funded through the proceeds of the
Term Loan granted under the Subordinated Loan Agreement between the Guarantor and BMPS
and the New Portfolio Purchase Price will be funded through (A) (i) any Guarantor Available
Funds available in accordance with the Pre-Issuer Default Principal Priority of Payments; (ii)
to the extent the Guarantor Available Funds are not sufficient to pay the relevant New Portfolio
Purchase Price, the proceeds of a Term Loan granted under the Subordinated Loan Agreements,
for an amount equal to the portion of the New Portfolio Purchase Price not paid in accordance
with item (i); (B) in certain circumstances, entirely by means of a Term Loan granted under
the Subordinated Loan Agreements.
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Under the terms of the Cover Pool Management Agreement, the Issuer has undertaken (and the
Additional Seller(s) will undertake upon their accession to the Cover Pool Management
Agreement) to ensure that on each Test Calculation Date the Cover Pool is in compliance with
(i) prior to delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Mandatory Tests and the Asset
Coverage Test, and (ii) following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the
Mandatory Tests and the Amortisation Test. If on any Test Calculation Date, the Cover Pool is
not in compliance with the relevant Tests, then the Guarantor will require the Principal Seller
and/or the Additional Seller to grant further Term Loans for the purposes of funding the
purchase of New Portfolios, Top-Up Assets and/or other Eligible Assets, representing an
amount sufficient to allow the relevant Tests to be met on the next following Test Calculation
Date. If the Cover Pool is not in compliance with the relevant Tests on the next following Test
Calculation Date, the Representative of the Bondholders will serve a Breach of Tests Notice
on the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Representative of the Bondholders shall revoke the Breach
of Tests Notice if on any Test Calculation Date, the relevant Tests are subsequently satisfied,
unless any other Segregation Event has occurred and is outstanding and without prejudice to
the obligation of the Representative of the Bondholders to serve a Breach of Tests Notice in
the future. If, following the delivery of a Breach of Test Notice, the relevant Tests are not met
on, or prior to, the Test Calculation Date falling at the end of the Test Remedy Period, the
Representative of the Bondholders will serve a Guarantee Enforcement Notice on the Issuer
and the Guarantor, unless a Programme Resolution is passed resolving to extend the Test
Remedy Period.

If the aggregate collateral value of the Cover Pool has not been maintained in accordance with
the terms of the Tests, that may affect the realisable value of the Cover Pool or any part thereof
(both before and after the occurrence of a Guarantor Event of Default) and/or the ability of the
Guarantor to make payments under the Guarantee. Failure to satisfy the Amortisation Test on
any Test Calculation Date following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice will cause
all Covered Bonds becoming immediately Pass Through Series.

Subject to receipt of the relevant information from the Issuer, the Asset Monitor will perform
specific agreed upon procedures set out in the Asset Monitor Engagement Letter entered into
with the Issuer on 18 June 2010 relating, inter alia, to (i) the fulfilment of the eligibility criteria
set out under Decree No. 310 with respect to the Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets included
in the Cover Pool; (ii) the calculation performed by the Issuer in respect of the Mandatory
Tests; (iii) the compliance with the limits to the transfer of the Eligible Assets set out under
Decree No. 310; and (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk protection provided by any
Swap Agreement entered into in the context of the Programme. In addition, the Asset Monitor
will, pursuant to the terms of the Asset Monitor Agreement, (i) prior to delivery of a Guarantee
Enforcement Notice, verify, on behalf of the Issuer, the calculations performed by the Pre-
Issuer Default Test Calculation Agent in respect of the Mandatory Tests and the Asset
Coverage Test, and (ii) following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, verify, on
behalf of the Guarantor, the calculations performed by the Post-Issuer Default Test Calculation
Agent in respect of the Amortisation Test. See further "Description of the Programme
Documents — Asset Monitor Agreement”.

411 Sale of the Eligible Assets and the Top-Up Assets following the delivery of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice

Following a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Guarantor shall use its best effort to sell the
Eligible Assets and/or Top-Up Assets (selected on a random basis) included in the Cover Pool
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(the "Selected Assets”) in order to make payments to the Guarantor's creditors including
making payments under the Guarantee, see "Description of the Programme Documents - Cover
Pool Management Agreement”.

There is no guarantee that a buyer will be found to acquire the Selected Assets at the times
required and there can be no guarantee or assurance as to the price which may be obtained for
such Selected Assets, which may affect payments under the Guarantee.

In any case, after the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice the Guarantor (or the
Principal Servicer on behalf of the Guarantor) shall use its best efforts to sell the Selected
Assets in an amount as close as possible to the amount necessary to (i) redeem in full the Pass
Through Series and/or the Earliest Maturing Covered Bonds (if maturating in the next
succeeding six months), and (ii) to pay any interest amount due in respect of the Covered
Bonds, net of any amounts standing to the credit of the Programme Accounts, provided that:
(A) prior to and following the sale of such Selected Assets, the Amortisation Test is complied
with; and (B) the Guarantor and the Portfolio Manager shall use their best effort to sell the
Selected Assets, at the first attempt, at a price that ensures that the ratio between the aggregate
Outstanding Principal Balance of the Cover Pool and the Outstanding Principal Amount of all
Series of Covered Bonds remains unaltered following the sale of the relevant Selected Assets
and repayment of the Pass Through Series and/or Earliest Maturing Covered Bonds (as the case
may be).

If the proceeds of the sale of Selected Assets raised on the first attempt are insufficient to pay
the amounts referred to above, the Guarantor shall repeat its attempt to sell Selected Assets
every sixth months thereafter until the earlier of (i) the date on which the Pass Through Series
of Covered Bonds have been redeemed in full and (ii) the date on which a Guarantor Default
Notice is delivered.

If, on any Test Calculation Date following the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice (and,
in case of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice delivered as a result of an Article 74 Event, prior
to the service of an Article 74 Event Cure Notice), the Calculation Agent notifies, through the
Test Performance Report, the Issuer, the Sellers, any Additional Seller and the Guarantor that
the Amortisation Test is not met, the Guarantor shall use its best effort (but shall not be obliged)
to sell all Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets included in the Cover Pool, on a semi-annual
basis starting from the date falling 30 calendar days after the date of the relevant Test
Performance Report, provided that the proceeds of the sale (net of any costs connected
thereto), together with any amount standing to the credit of the Accounts, are sufficient to
redeem in full the Pass Through Series. For further details, see section headed "Disposal of the
Assets included in the Cover Pool following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
and the breach of the Amortisation Test".

4.12 Liquidation of assets following the occurrence of a Guarantor Event of Default

If a Guarantor Event of Default occurs and a Guarantor Default Notice is served on the
Guarantor, then the Representative of the Bondholders will be entitled to enforce the Guarantee
and use the proceeds from the liquidation of the Cover Pool towards payment of all secured
obligations in accordance with the "Post-Enforcement Priority of Payments” described in the
section entitled "Cashflows™ below.

There is no guarantee that the proceeds of the liquidation of the Cover Pool will be in an amount
sufficient to repay all amounts due to creditors (including the Bondholders) under the Covered
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Bonds and the Programme Documents. If a Guarantor Default Notice is served on the
Guarantor then the Covered Bonds may be repaid sooner or later than expected or not at all.

4.13 Factors that may affect the realisable value of the Cover Pool or the ability of the
Guarantor to make payments under the Guarantee

Following the occurrence of certain Issuer Event of Default and the corresponding service of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice on the Issuer and on the Guarantor, the realisable value of the
Eligible Assets and the Top-Up Assets comprised in the Cover Pool may be reduced (which
may affect the ability of the Guarantor to make payments under the Guarantee) by:

. default by Borrowers in the payment of amounts due on their Mortgage Loans;
. an insolvency event or another event contractually indicated as event of default has

occurred in respect to the issuer, of any Asset Backed Securities comprised in the Cover
Pool pursuant to the relevant terms and conditions;

. changes to the lending criteria of the Issuer;
. set-off risks in relation to some types of Mortgage Loans in the Cover Pool;
. limited recourse to the Guarantor;

. possible regulatory changes by the Bank of Italy, CONSOB and other regulatory

authorities;
. timing of a relevant sale of assets;
. regulations in Italy that could lead to some terms of the Mortgage Loans being

unenforceable; and
. status of real estate market in the areas of operation of the Issuer.

Each of these factors is considered in more detail below. However, it should be noted that the
Mandatory Tests, the Amortisation Test, the Asset Coverage Test and the Eligibility Criteria
are intended to ensure that there will be an adequate amount of Eligible Assets and Top-Up
Assets in the Cover Pool to enable the Guarantor to repay the Covered Bonds following an
Issuer Event of Default, service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice on the Issuer and on the
Guarantor and accordingly it is expected (although there is no assurance) that assets comprised
in the Cover Pool could be realised for sufficient values to enable the Guarantor to meet its
obligations under the Guarantee.

4.14 Value of the Cover Pool

The Guarantee granted by the Guarantor in respect of the Covered Bonds will be backed by the
Cover Pool and the recourse against the Guarantor will be limited to such assets. Since the
economic value of the Cover Pool may increase or decrease, the value of the Guarantor's assets
may decrease (for example if there is a general decline in property values). The Issuer makes
no representation, warranty or guarantee that the value of a Real Estate Asset will remain at
the same level as it was on the date of the origination of the related Mortgage Loan or at any
other time. If the residential property market in Italy experiences an overall decline in property
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values, the value of the Mortgage Loan could be significantly reduced and, ultimately, may
result in losses to the Bondholders if such security is required to be enforced.

4.15 No representations or warranties to be given by the Guarantor or the relevant Seller
if Assets and their related Security Interests are to be sold

After the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice on the Guarantor, but prior to service of
a Guarantor Default Notice, the Guarantor shall, if necessary in order to effect timely payments
under the Covered Bonds, sell the Assets and their related Security Interests included in the
Cover Pool, subject to a right of pre-emption granted to the relevant Seller pursuant to the terms
of the Master Assets Purchase Agreement and of the Cover Pool Management Agreement. In
respect of any sale of Assets and their related Security Interests to third parties, however, the
Guarantor will not provide any warranties or indemnities in respect of such Assets and related
Security Interests and there is no assurance that the relevant Seller would give or repeat any
warranties or representations in respect of the Assets and related Security Interests or if it has
not consented to the transfer of such warranties or representations. Any representations or
warranties previously given by the relevant Seller in respect of the Mortgage Loans in the
Portfolios may not have value for a third party purchaser if the relevant Seller is then insolvent.
Accordingly, there is a risk that the realisable value of the Assets and related Security Interests
could be adversely affected by the lack of representations and warranties which in turn could
adversely affect the ability of the Guarantor to meet its obligations under the Guarantee.

416 Claw-back of the sales of the Receivables

assignments executed under Law 130 are subject to revocation on bankruptcy under article 67
of the Bankruptcy Law but only in the event that the declaration of bankruptcy of the relevant
Seller is made within three months of the covered bonds transaction (or of the purchase of the
Cover Pool) or, in cases where paragraph 1 of article 67 applies (i.e. if the payments made or
the obligations assumed by the bankrupt party exceed by more than one-fourth the
consideration received or promised), within six months of the covered bonds transaction (or of
the purchase of the Cover Pool).

4.17 Default by borrowers in paying amounts due on their Mortgage Loans

Borrowers may default on their obligations due under the Mortgage Loans for a variety of
reasons. The Mortgage Loans are affected by credit, liquidity and interest rate risks. Various
factors influence mortgage delinquency rates, prepayment rates, repossession frequency and
the ultimate payment of interest and principal, such as changes in the national or international
economic climate, regional economic or housing conditions, changes in tax laws, interest rates,
inflation, the availability of financing, yields on alternative investments, political developments
and government policies. Other factors in borrowers' individual, personal or financial
circumstances may affect the ability of borrowers to repay the Mortgage Loans. Loss of
earnings, illness, divorce and other similar factors may lead to an increase in default by and
bankruptcies of borrowers, and could ultimately have an adverse impact on the ability of
borrowers to repay the Mortgage Loans. In addition, the ability of a borrower to sell a property
given as security for a Mortgage Loan at a price sufficient to repay the amounts outstanding
under that Mortgage Loan will depend upon a number of factors, including the availability of
buyers for that property, the value of that property and property values in general at the time.

The recovery of amounts due in relation to Defaulted Receivables will be subject to the
effectiveness of enforcement proceedings in respect of the Cover Pool which in Italy can take
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a considerable time depending on the type of action required and where such action is taken
and on several other factors, including the following: proceedings in certain courts involved in
the enforcement of the Mortgage Loans and Mortgages may take longer than the national
average; obtaining title deeds from land registries which are in process of computerising their
records can take up to two or three years; further time is required if it is necessary to obtain an
injunction decree (decreto ingiuntivo) and if the relevant Debtor raises a defence to or
counterclaim in the proceedings; and it takes an average of six to eight years from the time
lawyers commence enforcement proceedings until the time an auction date is set for the forced
sale of any Real Estate Asset.

Law number 302 of 3 August 1998 allowed notaries, accountants and lawyers to conduct
certain stages of the enforcement procedures in place of the courts in order to reduce the length
of enforcement proceedings by between two and three years.

4.18 Insurance coverage

All Mortgage Loan Agreements provide that the relevant Real Estate Assets must be covered
by an Insurance Policy issued by leading insurance companies approved by the relevant Seller.
There can be no assurance that all risks that could affect the value of the Real Estate Assets are
or will be covered by the relevant Insurance Policy or that, if such risks are covered, the insured
losses will be covered in full. Any loss incurred in relation to the Real Estate Assets which is
not covered (or which is not covered in full) by the relevant Insurance Policy could adversely
affect the value of the Real Estate Assets and the ability of the relevant Debtor to repay the
relevant Mortgage Loan. There is no concentration of insurance policies that are material to the
transaction.

4.19 Changes to the lending criteria of the relevant Seller

Each of the Mortgage Loans originated by the relevant Seller will have been originated in
accordance with its lending criteria at the time of origination. Each of the Mortgage Loans sold
to the Guarantor by the relevant Seller, but originated by a person other than the relevant Seller
(@"Third Party Originator™), will have been originated in accordance with the lending criteria
of such Third Party Originator at the time of origination. In the event of the sale or transfer of
any Mortgage Loans to the Guarantor, the Issuer will warrant that (a) such Mortgage Loans as
were originated by it were originated in accordance with the Issuer's lending criteria applicable
at the time of origination and (b) such Mortgage Loans as were originated by a Third Party
Originator, were originated in accordance with the relevant Third Party Originator's lending
criteria applicable at the time of origination. The Issuer retains the right to revise its lending
criteria from time to time subject to the terms of the Master Assets Purchase Agreement. Other
Third Party Originators may additionally revise their lending criteria at any time. However, if
such lending criteria change in a manner that affects the creditworthiness of the Mortgage
Loans, that may lead to increased defaults by Borrowers and may affect the realisable value of
the Cover Pool and the ability of the Guarantor to make payments under the Guarantee.
However, Defaulted Receivables having Instalments not paid for more than 180 calendar days
in the Cover Pool will be given a zero weighting for the purposes of the calculation of the
Mandatory Tests, the Amortisation Test, the Asset Coverage Test and the Amortisation Test.

4.20 Legal risks relating to the Mortgage Loans

The ability of the Guarantor to recover payments of interest and principal from the Mortgage
Loans is subject to a number of legal risks. These include the risks set out below.
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4.20.1

4.20.2

Set-off risks

The assignment of receivables under Law 130 is governed by article 58, paragraph 2, 3
and 4, of the Consolidated Banking Act. According to such provision, such assignment
becomes enforceable against the relevant debtors as of the later of (i) the date of the
publication of the notice of assignment in the Official Gazette of the Republic of Italy
(Gazzetta Ufficiale della Repubblica Italiana), and (ii) the date of registration of the
notice of assignment in the local Companies' Registry. Consequently, the rights of the
Guarantor may be subject to the direct rights of the Borrowers against the Issuer
including rights of set-off on claims arising existing prior to notification in the Official
Gazette and registration at the local companies' registry. The notification in the Official
Gazette and the registration at the local companies' registry would be not sufficient to
assure that such assignment becomes enforceable against Debtors which are not
resident in ltaly.

The exercise of set-off rights by Borrowers may adversely affect any sale proceeds of
the Cover Pool and, ultimately, the ability of the Guarantor to make payments under
the Guarantee.

Usury Law

The interest payments and other remuneration paid by the Borrowers under the
Mortgage Loans are subject to Italian law No. 108 of 7 March 1996 (the "Usury Law"),
which introduced legislation preventing lenders from applying interest rates equal to,
or higher than, rates (the "Usury Rates") set every three months on the basis of a decree
issued by the Italian Treasury (the last such decree having been issued on 21 December
2018). In addition, even where the applicable Usury Rates are not exceeded, interest
and other benefits and/or remuneration may be held to be usurious if: (a) they are
disproportionate to the amount lent (taking into account the specific situations of the
transaction and the average rate usually applied for similar transactions); and (b) the
person who paid or agreed to pay them was in financial and economic difficulties. The
provision of usurious interest, benefits or remuneration has the same consequences as
non-compliance with the Usury Rates.

The Italian Government, with law decree No. 394 of 29 December 2000, converted into
law by law No. 24 of 28 February 2001 (the "Usury Law Decree" and, together with
the Usury Law, the "Usury Regulations"), has established, inter alia, that interest is to
be deemed usurious only if the interest rate agreed by the parties exceeds the Usury
Rate applicable at the time the relevant agreement is reached. The Usury Law Decree
also provides that, as an extraordinary measure due to the exceptional fall in interest
rates in the years 1998 and 1999, interest rates due on instalments payable after 31
December 2000 on loans already entered into on the date on which the Usury Law
Decree came into force (such date being 31 December 2000) are to be substituted with
a lower interest rate fixed in accordance with parameters determined by the Usury Law
Decree.

The Italian Constitutional Court has rejected, with decision No. 29/2002 (deposited on
25 February 2002), a constitutional exception raised by the Court of Benevento (2
January 2001) concerning article 1, paragraph 1, of the Usury Law Decree (now
reflected in article 1, paragraph 1 of the abovementioned conversion law No. 24 of 28
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4.20.3

February 2001). In so doing, it has confirmed the constitutional validity of the
provisions of the Usury Law Decree which hold that interest rates may be deemed to
be void due to usury only if they infringe Usury Regulations at the time they are agreed
between the borrower and the lender and not at the time such rates are actually paid by
the borrower.

According to recent court precedents, the remuneration of any given financing must be
below the applicable Usury Rates from time to time applicable. Based on this recent
evolution of case law on the matter, it might constitute a breach of the Usury
Regulations if the remuneration of a financing is lower than the applicable Usury Rates
at the time the terms of the financing were agreed but becomes higher than the
applicable Usury Rates at any point in time thereafter (see, for instance, Cassazione of
11 January 2013 No. 603). However, it is worth mentioning that, by more recent
decisions, the Italian Supreme Court has clearly stated that, in order to establish if the
interest rate exceeds the Usury Rate, it has to be considered the interest rate agreed
between the parties at the time of the signing of the financing agreement, regardless of
the time of the payment of such interest (see, for instance, Cassazione 27 September
2013, No. 22204; Cassazione 25 September 2013, No. 21885; Cassazione 19 October
2017, No 24675).

In addition, several recent court precedents have stated that default interest rates are
relevant and must be taken into account when calculating the aggregate remuneration
of any given financing for the purposes of determining its compliance with the
applicable Usury Rates (see, for instance, Cassazione 9 January 2013 No. 350).

Compounding of interest (Anatocismo)

Pursuant to article 1283 of the Italian Civil Code, in respect of a monetary claim or
receivable may be capitalised after a period of not less than six months only (a) under
an agreement subsequent to such accrual or (b) from the date when any legal
proceedings are commenced in respect of that monetary claim or receivable. Article
1283 of the Italian civil code allows derogation from this provision in the event that
there are recognised customary practices (usi) to the contrary.

Banks and financial companies in the Republic of Italy have traditionally capitalised
accrued interest on a quarterly basis on the grounds that such practice could be
characterised as a customary practice (uso normativo). However, a number of recent
judgments from Italian courts (including judgments from the Italian Supreme Court
(Corte di Cassazione) No. 2374/99, No. 2593/2003, No. 21095/2004, No. 4094/2005
and No. 10127/2005) have held that such practices are not uso normativo.
Consequently, if customers of the relevant Seller were to challenge this practice and
such interpretation of the Italian civil code were to be upheld before other courts in the
Republic of Italy, there could be a negative effect on the returns generated from the
Mortgage Loans.

In this respect, it should be noted that article 25, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree No.
342 of 4 August 1999 ("Law No. 342"), enacted by the Italian Government under a
delegation granted pursuant to law No. 142 of 19 February 1992, has considered the
capitalisation of accrued interest (anatocismo) made by banks prior to the date on which
it came into force (19 October 1999) to be valid. After such date, the capitalisation of
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accrued interest is no longer possible upon the terms established by a resolution of the
CICR issued on 22 February 2000. Law No. 342 has been challenged and decision No.
425 of 17 October 2000 of the Italian Constitutional Court has declared as
unconstitutional under the provisions of Law No. 342 regarding the validity of the
capitalisation of accrued interest made by banks prior to the date on which Law No.
342 came into force.

As a consequence thereof, to the extent the Seller(s) were to capitalise interests in
violation of the principle stated by article 1283 of the Italian civil code, a Debtor could
challenge such practice and this could have a negative effect on the returns generated
from the contracts.

Recently, article 31 of Law Decree Competitivita, has amended article 120, paragraph
2, of the Consolidated Banking Act by providing that interest shall not accrue on
capitalised interests. In addition, on 8 August 2016, the decree No. 343 of 3 August
2016 issued by the Minister of Economy and Finance, in his quality of President of the
CICR, implementing article 120, paragraph 2, of the Banking Law, has been published.

However, prospective bondholders should note that under the terms of the Warranty
and Indemnity Agreement, the Seller has represented that the Mortgage Loan
Agreements have been executed and performed in compliance with the provisions of
article 1283 of the Italian civil code and has furthermore undertaken to indemnify the
Issuer from and against all damages, loss, claims, liabilities, costs and expenses
incurred by it arising from the non-compliance of the terms and conditions of any
Mortgage Loan Agreement with the Italian law provisions concerning the capitalisation
of accrued interest.

Furthermore, there have been two rulings of Italian Courts that have held that the
calculations applicable to the instalments under certain mortgage loan agreements that
were based upon the amortisation method known as "French amortisation” (i.e.
mortgage loans with fixed instalments, made up of an amount of principal (that
progressively increases) and an amount of interest (that decreases as repayments are
calculated with a specific formula)), triggered a violation of the Italian law provisions
on the limitations on the compounding of interest (divieto di anatocismo). However, it
should be pointed out that these were isolated judgements, still under appeal, and more
recently various court rulings on the same matter have declared that the "French
amortisation” method does not entail an illegal compounding element. However the
Issuer is not able to exclude the risk that in the future other judgments may follow the
two isolated decisions described above.

Consumer Credit Legislation

In September 2002, the European Commission published a proposal for a directive of
the European Parliament and of the Council on the harmonisation of the laws,
regulations and administrative provisions of the Member States concerning credit for
consumers and surety agreements entered into by consumers.

There was significant opposition from the European Parliament to the original form of
the proposed directive, and to an amended form of the proposed directive published in
October 2004. In October 2005, the European Commission published a second revised
proposal for the directive.
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On 23 April 2009 the European Parliament and the Council issued the 2008/48/EC (the
"Consumer Credit Directive").

During the course of 2010 Member States have implemented the relevant provisions
through law and / or regulations.

On 4 September 2010 the Republic of Italy adopted the Legislative Decree No. 141 of
13 August 2010 published in the Official Gazette No. 207, which was introduced in
order to implement the Consumer Credit Directive and on 9 February 2011 the Bank of
Italy issued the relevant implementing regulations.

The new legislation covers consumer loans between €200 and €75,000 which are not
required to be repaid within a month. It only covers credit contracts, not guarantors and
other aspects of credit agreement law. The legislation applies only to loan contracts on
which interest is paid, and not products such as deferred payment cards (charge cards)
and does not cover the granting of credit secured on land or made to finance the
acquisition or retention of property rights.

The legislation provides for the right of withdrawal for the consumers; this right can be
exercised within 14 days after the conclusion of the contract or, if later, from the
moment the consumer receives all the conditions and contract information. In addition,
the consumer has the right to repay early at any time in whole or in part the amount
financed; thus, being entitled to a reduction of the total credit amount equal to interest
and costs due for the residual life of the contract. Furthermore, in relation to loans
granted for the purpose of financing agreements for the supply of goods and services,
the consumer, in the event that there is a failure (which classifies as a considerable
breach under Italian law) of the supplier of goods and/or services, has the right to
terminate the loan agreement and the contract for supply of goods and / or services.

It is not certain what effect the adoption and implementation of the directive would
have on the Issuer (or any Additional Seller(s)) and its respective businesses and
operations.

Law No. 3 of 27 January 2012

Law No. 3 of 27 January 2012, published in the Official Gazette of the Republic of Italy
No. 24 of 30 January 2012 (the "Over Indebtedness Law") has become effective as of
29 February 2012 and introduced a new procedure, by means of which, inter alia,
debtors who (i) are in a state of over indebtedness (sovraindebitamento), and (ii) cannot
be subject to bankruptcy proceedings or other insolvency proceedings pursuant to the
Italian Bankruptcy Law, may request to enter into a debt restructuring agreement
(accordo di ristrutturazione) with their respective creditors, further provided that (iii)
in respect of future proceedings, the relevant debtor has not made recourse to the debt
restructuring procedure enacted by the Over Indebtedness Law during the preceding 3
years.

The Over Indebtedness Law provides that the relevant debt restructuring agreement,
subject to the relevant court approval, shall entail, inter alia (i) the renegotiation of the
payments' terms with the relevant creditors; (ii) the full payment of the secured
creditors; (iii) the full payment of any other creditors which are not part of the debt
restructuring agreement (provided that the payments due to any creditors which have
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not approved the debt restructuring agreement, including any secured creditors, may be
suspended for up to one year); and (iv) the possibility to appoint a trustee for the
administration and liquidation of the debtor's assets and the distribution to the creditors
of the proceeds of the liquidation.

Should any Debtors enter into such debt restructuring agreement (be it with the Issuer
or with any other of its creditors), the Issuer could be subject to the risk of having the
payments due by the relevant Debtor suspended for up to one year.

Mortgage Credit Directive

Directive 2014/17/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 February
2014 on credit agreements for consumers relating to residential immovable property
and amending Directives 2008/48/EC and 2013/36/EU and Regulation (EU) No
1093/2010 (the "Mortgage Credit Directive") sets out a common framework for
certain aspects of the laws, regulations and administrative provisions of the Member
States concerning agreements covering credit for consumers secured by a mortgage or
otherwise relating to residential immovable property. The Mortgage Credit Directive
provides for, amongst other things:

. standard information in advertising, and standard pre-contractual information;

. adequate explanations to the borrower on the proposed credit agreement and
any ancillary service;

. calculation of the annual percentage rate of charge in accordance with a
prescribed formula;

. assessment of creditworthiness of the borrower;

. a right of the borrower to make early repayment of the credit agreement; and

. prudential and supervisory requirements for credit intermediaries and non-bank
lenders.

The Mortgage Credit Directive came into effect on 20 March 2014 and was required to
be implemented in Member States by 21 March 2016.0n 1 June 2015, in accordance
with article 18, article 20(1) and article 28 of the Mortgage Credit Directive, the EBA
published its final Guidelines on creditworthiness assessment, as well as its final
Guidelines on arrears and foreclosure, that support the national implementation by
Member States of the Mortgage Credit Directive.

In Italy, the Government has approved the Legislative Decree No. 72 of 21 April 2016,
implementing the Mortgage Credit Directive and published on the Official Gazette of
the Republic of Italy on 20 May 2016 (the "Mortgage Legislative Decree™), which
introduced article 120-quinquesdecies of the Consolidated Banking Act.

The Mortgage Legislative Decree applies to (i) residential mortgage loans and (ii) loans
relating to the purchase or preservation of the property right on a real estate asset.
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The Mortgage Legislative Decree sets forth a regulatory framework of protection for
consumers, including certain rules of correctness, diligence, information undertakings
and transparency applicable to lenders and intermediaries which offer and disburse
loans to consumers.

Furthermore, under the Mortgage Legislative Decree, the parties to a loan agreement
may agree, at the time the relevant loan agreement is entered into, that should the
borrower fail to repay an amount at least equal to eighteen loan instalments, the transfer
of the title to the lender either over the mortgaged real estate asset or the proceeds
deriving from the sale of such real estate asset extinguishes in full the repayment
obligation of the borrower under the relevant loan agreement even if the value of the
relevant real estate asset or the amount of proceeds deriving from the sale of such real
estate asset is lower than the remaining amount due by the borrower under the loan
agreement.

On the other hand, if the value of the real estate asset or the proceeds deriving from the
sale of the real estate asset are higher than the remaining amount due by the borrower
under the loan agreement, the excess amount shall be paid or returned to the borrower.

On 29 September 2016, the Ministry of Economy and Finance issued the decree No.
380 implementing the provisions of the Mortgage Legislative Decree.

Given the novelty of this new legislation and the absence of any jurisprudential

interpretation, no assurance can be given that Mortgage Legislative Decree will not
adversely affect the ability of the Guarantor to make payments under the Guarantee.
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SUPPLEMENTS, FINAL TERMS AND FURTHER PROSPECTUSES

The Issuer and the Guarantor have undertaken that, for the duration of the Programme, (i) in
the event that a significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to the
information included in the Prospectus arises or is noted which is capable of affecting the
assessment of any Covered Bonds which may be issued under the Programme, and/or (ii) on
or before each anniversary of the date of this Prospectus, it shall prepare a supplement to this
Prospectus (following consultation with the Joint-Arrangers which will consult with the
Dealer(s)) or, as the case may be, publish a replacement Prospectus for use in connection with
any subsequent offering of the Covered Bonds and shall supply to each Dealer any number of
copies of such supplement as a Dealer may reasonably request.

In addition, the Issuer and the Guarantor may agree with the Dealer(s) to issue Covered Bonds
in a form not contemplated in the section entitled "Form of Final Terms". To the extent that
the information relating to that Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds constitutes a significant
new factor in relation to the information contained in this Prospectus, a separate prospectus
specific to such Series or Tranche ("Drawdown Prospectus™) will be made available and will
contain such information.

The terms and conditions applicable to any particular Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds will
be the conditions set out in the section entitled "Conditions of the Covered Bonds", as
completed in the relevant Final Terms or amended and/or replaced to the extent described in
the Drawdown Prospectus. In the case of a Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds which is the
subject of a Drawdown Prospectus, each reference in this Prospectus to information being
completed in the relevant Final Terms shall be read and construed as a reference to such
information being specified or identified in the relevant Drawdown Prospectus unless the
context requires otherwise.

Each Drawdown Prospectus will be constituted either (1) by a single document containing the
necessary information relating to the Issuer and the Guarantor and the relevant Covered Bonds
or (2) by a registration document containing the necessary information relating to the Issuer
and/or the Guarantor, a securities note containing the necessary information relating to the
relevant Covered Bonds and, if applicable, a summary note.
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STRUCTURE OVERVIEW

The information in this section is an overview of the structure relating to the Programme and
does not purport to be complete. The information is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety
by, the remainder of this Prospectus. Words and expressions defined elsewhere in this
Prospectus shall have the same meanings in this overview. An index of certain defined terms
used in this document is contained at the end of this Prospectus.

Structure Diagram
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Notes:

1) Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. acting as Principal Seller. Additional Seller might be any other
bank which is a member of the Group and wishes to sell Assets to the Guarantor within the scope of the
Programme, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and which, for such purpose, shall enter into,
inter alia, the Master Asset purchase Agreement and any other required Programme document.

(2) One or more suitably rated entities for the relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

Structure Overview

. Programme: Under the terms of the Programme, the Issuer will issue Covered Bonds
to Bondholders on each Issue Date. The Covered Bonds will be direct, unsubordinated,
unsecured and unconditional obligations of the Issuer guaranteed by the Guarantor
under the Guarantee.
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Guarantor: the Guarantor is a corporate entity separate and distinct from the Issuer and
maintains corporate records and books of account separate from those of the Issuer. The
authorised and issued quota capital of the Guarantor is €10,000.00 and is held by Banca
Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A., as to 90 per cent. and SVM Securitisation Vehicles
Management S.r.1. as to 10 per cent. The Guarantor has issued no voting securities other
than its quotas. For further details, see section "The Guarantor™ below.

Guarantee: In accordance with the provisions of the Law 130 and Decree No. 310, the
Guarantor has provided a first demand, unconditional, autonomous and irrevocable
guarantee, for the benefit of the Bondholders in accordance with the Programme
Documents, for the purpose of guaranteeing the payments owed by the Issuer to the
Bondholders. Under the terms of the Guarantee, the Guarantor has agreed to pay an
amount equal to the Guaranteed Amounts when the Guaranteed Amounts become Due
for Payment. The obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee constitute direct,
unconditional, unsubordinated and limited recourse obligations of the Guarantor,
collateralised by the Cover Pool as provided under Law 130. The recourse to the
Guarantor under the Guarantee will be limited to the Cover Pool. Payments made by
the Guarantor under the Guarantee will be made subject to, and in accordance with, the
relevant Priority of Payments, as applicable (each as defined below).

Subordinated Loan Agreements: Under the terms of the relevant Subordinated Loan
Agreements, the Principal Seller and the Additional Seller(s), in their capacity,
respectively, as Principal Subordinated Lender and Additional Subordinated Lender,
will from time to time grant to the Guarantor one or more Term Loans in the form of
(i) a Programme Term Loan, or (ii) a Floating Interest Term Loan, or (iii) a Fixed
Interest Term Loan, for the purposes of funding the payments described in the
paragraph headed "The proceeds of Term Loans" below. Prior to service of a Breach of
Tests Notice or a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, each Term Loan may be repaid by
the Guarantor on each Guarantor Payment Date according to the Pre-Issuer Default
Principal Priority of Payments within the limits of the then Guarantor Available Funds.
Following the service of a Breach of Tests Notice, there shall be no further payments
to any Subordinated Lender under any relevant Term Loan(s) as long as a Breach of
Tests Cure Notice is delivered in accordance with the Programme Documents (other
than where necessary for the purpose of complying with the 15% Limit in accordance
with the provisions of Decree 310 and the Bank of Italy Regulations as better specified
in the Cover Pool Management Agreement (and to the extent that no purchase of
Eligible Assets is possible to this effect in accordance with the provisions of the Master
Assets Purchase Agreement and the Cover Pool Management Agreement and/or in
compliance with the limits set out in the Bank of Italy Regulations)). Following the
service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Term Loans shall be repaid within the
limits of the then Guarantor Available Funds subject to the repayment in full (or, prior
to the service of a Guarantor Default Notice, the accumulation of funds sufficient for
the purpose of such repayment) of all Covered Bonds. Each Term Loan that has been
repaid pursuant to the terms of the Subordinated Loan Agreement will be available for
redrawing during the Subordinated Loan Availability Period within the limits of the
Total Commitment. Payments by the Issuer of amounts due under the Covered Bonds
are not conditional upon receipt by the Issuer of payments from the Guarantor pursuant
to the Subordinated Loan Agreement. Amounts owed by the Guarantor under the
Subordinated Loan Agreement will be subordinated to amounts owed by the Guarantor
under the Guarantee.
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. The proceeds of Term Loans: Each Programme Term Loan will be granted for the
purpose of, inter alia, (i) funding the purchase price of the Eligible Assets included in
the Initial Portfolio and in any New Portfolios to be transferred to the Guarantor
pursuant to the Master Assets Purchase Agreement, and/or (ii) remedying any breach
of the Tests and complying with the 15% Limit with respect to the Top-Up Assets,
and/or (iii) funding the purchase price of the Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets to be
transferred to the Guarantor pursuant to the Master Assets Purchase Agreement for
overcollateralisation purposes and/or (iv) funding the redemption of a Floating Interest
Term Loan or Fixed Interest Term Loan at the Maturity Date (or Extended Maturity
Date, if applicable) of the Corresponding Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

Each Floating Interest Term Loan or Fixed Interest Term Loan will be granted for the purpose
of, inter alia, (i) funding the purchase price of the Eligible Assets included in any New
Portfolios to be transferred to the Guarantor in connection with the issue of a Corresponding
Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds to be issued under the Programme, and/or (ii) reimbursing
(also in part) any Term Loan for an amount equal to the Corresponding Series or Tranche of
Covered Bonds.

. Cashflows: Prior to service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice on the Guarantor and
provided that no Breach of Tests Notice has been served and has not been revoked
through the delivery of a Breach of Tests Cure Notice, the Guarantor will:

. apply Interest Available Funds to pay interest and/or Premium on the relevant
Term Loans, but only after payment of certain items ranking higher in the Pre-
Issuer Default Interest Priority of Payments (including, but not limited to,
certain expenses and any amount due and payable under the Swap Agreements).
For further details of the Pre-Issuer Default Interest Priority of Payments, see
"Cashflows" below; and

. apply Principal Available Funds towards repaying Term Loans but only after
payment of certain items ranking higher in the relevant Pre-lssuer Default
Principal Priority of Payments. For further details of the Pre-Issuer Default
Principal Priority of Payments, see "Cashflows™ below.

After the service of a Breach of Tests Notice, payments due under the Covered Bonds
will continue to be made by the Issuer until a Guarantee Enforcement Notice has been
delivered, and the Guarantor will make payments in accordance with the Pre-lssuer
Default Interest Priority of Payments and the Pre-Issuer Default Principal Priority of
Payments, provided that there shall be no further payments (whether of interest or
principal) to a Subordinated Lender under any relevant Term Loan and the purchase
price for any Eligible Assets or Top-Up Assets to be acquired by the Guarantor shall be
paid only by using the proceeds of a Term Loan.

Following service on the Issuer and on the Guarantor of a Guarantee Enforcement
Notice (but prior to a Guarantor Event of Default and service of a Guarantor Default
Notice on the Guarantor) the Guarantor will use all Guarantor Available Funds to pay
Guaranteed Amounts when the same shall become Due for Payment, subject to paying
certain higher ranking obligations of the Guarantor in the Guarantee Priority of
Payments. In such circumstances, the Principal Seller and the Additional Seller(s), will
only be entitled to receive payment from the Guarantor of interest, Premium (if any)
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and repayment of principal under the relevant Term Loans after all amounts due under
the Guarantee in respect of the Covered Bonds have been paid in full or have otherwise
been provided for.

Following the occurrence of a Guarantor Event of Default and service of a Guarantor
Default Notice on the Guarantor, the Covered Bonds will become immediately due and
repayable at their Early Termination Amount and the Representative of the
Bondholders, on behalf of the Bondholders, shall have a claim against the Guarantor
under the Guarantee for an amount equal to the Early Termination Amounts, together
with accrued interest and any other amount due under the Covered Bonds (other than
additional amounts payable as gross up) and any Guarantor Available Funds will be
distributed according to the Post-Enforcement Priority of Payments, as to which see
section "Cashflows" below.

Mandatory Tests: The Assets of the Guarantor have characteristics that demonstrate
capacity to produce funds to service any payments due and payable on the Covered
Bonds. The Programme provides that the Assets of the Guarantor are subject to certain
tests intended to ensure that the Guarantor can meet its obligations under the Guarantee
as set out under article 3 of Decree No. 310 and to demonstrate their capacity to produce
funds to service any payments due and payable under the Covered Bonds upon
enforcement of the Guarantee. Accordingly, until the delivery of a Guarantee
Enforcement Notice, the Issuer, the Principal Seller, the Additional Seller(s), and in any
case the Issuer, must always ensure that the following tests are satisfied on each
Quarterly Test Calculation Date:

. Nominal Value Test: the aggregate Outstanding Principal Balance of the Cover
Pool shall be higher than or equal to the Principal Amount Outstanding of all
Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds issued under the Programme and not
cancelled or redeemed in full in accordance with their Conditions as at the
relevant Test Calculation Date, provided that, prior to the delivery of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice, such test will always be deemed met to the
extent that the Asset Coverage Test (as defined below) is met as of the relevant
Quiarterly Test Calculation Date;

. Net Present Value Test: the Net Present Value Test is intended to ensure that
the net present value of the Cover Pool (including the payments of any nature
expected to be received by the Guarantor with respect to any Swap Agreement),
net of the transaction costs to be borne by the Guarantor (including the payments
of any nature expected to be borne or due with respect to any Swap Agreement)
shall be higher than or equal to the net present value of all Series or Tranche of
Covered Bonds issued under the Programme and not cancelled or redeemed in
full in accordance with their Conditions as at the relevant Quarterly Test
Calculation Date;

. Interest Coverage Test: the Interest Coverage Test is intended to ensure that the
amount of interest and other revenues generated by the assets included in the
Cover Pool, (including the payments of any nature expected to be received by
the Guarantor with respect to any Swap Agreement) net of the costs borne by
the Guarantor (including the payments of any nature expected to be borne or
due with respect to any Swap Agreement), shall be higher than the amount of
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interest due on all Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds issued under the
Programme and not cancelled or redeemed in full in accordance with their
Conditions as at the relevant Quarterly Test Calculation Date.

For a more detailed description, see section "Credit structure - Tests" below.

Asset Coverage Test: In addition to the Mandatory Tests, the Programme provides that
until the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the Issuer, the Principal Seller,
any Additional Seller(s), and in any case the Issuer, must always ensure the Asset
Coverage Test is satisfied on each Test Calculation Date. The Asset Coverage Test is
intended to ensure that on the relevant Test Calculation Date, the Adjusted Aggregate
Asset Amount (as defined in section "Credit Structure™ below) is at least equal to the
aggregate Principal Amount Outstanding of the Covered Bonds. The Adjusted
Aggregate Asset Amount is the amount calculated pursuant to the formula set out in the
Cover Pool Management Agreement. For a more detailed description, see section
"Credit structure - Tests" below.

Amortisation Test: Following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the
Amortisation Test is intended to ensure that, on each Test Calculation Date, the
outstanding principal balance of the Cover Pool (which for such purpose is considered
as an amount equal to the Amortisation Test Aggregate Asset Amount (as defined in
section "Credit structure - Tests" below)) is higher than or equal to the Euro Equivalent
of the Principal Amount Outstanding of all Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds issued
under the Programme and not cancelled or redeemed in full in accordance with their
Conditions at the relevant Test Calculation Date. Failure to satisfy the Amortisation
Test on any Test Calculation Date following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement
Notice will cause all Covered Bonds becoming immediately Pass Through Series. For
a more detailed description, see section "Credit structure - Tests" below.

Extendable obligations under the Guarantee: If (i) a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
has been served on the Issuer and the Guarantor as a result of the Issuer having failed
to pay, in whole or in part, the Guaranteed Amounts on the Maturity Date for such
Series of Covered Bonds and, on the relevant Extension Determination Date, the
Guarantor has insufficient funds to pay, in accordance with the Guarantee Priority of
Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in respect of such Series of Covered Bonds; or (ii)
a Guarantee Enforcement Notice has been served on the Issuer and the Guarantor
following the occurrence of an Issuer Event of Default (other than the Issuer Event of
Default referred to in paragraph (i) above) and, on the Maturity Date for such Series of
Covered Bonds, the Guarantor has insufficient funds to pay, in accordance with the
Guarantee Priority of Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in respect of such Series of
Covered Bonds, then the relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds shall become a
Pass Through Series.

Furthermore, if, on any Test Calculation Date following the service of a Guarantee
Enforcement Notice (and, in case of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice delivered as a
result of an Article 74 Event, prior to the service of an Article 74 Event Cure Notice),
the Calculation Agent notifies, through the Test Performance Report, the Issuer, the
Sellers, any Additional Seller and the Guarantor that the Amortisation Test is not met,
then all Series of Covered Bonds shall become Pass Through Series.
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However, any amount representing the Guaranteed Amounts (as defined below) due
and remaining unpaid on the Extension Determination Date or the Maturity Date (as
the case may be) may be paid by the Guarantor on any Guarantor Payment Date
thereafter, up to (and including) the relevant Extended Maturity Date in accordance
with the applicable Priority of Payments. Interest will continue to accrue on any unpaid
amount during such extended period and be payable on each Guarantor Payment Date
up to the Extended Maturity Date in accordance with Condition 9 (Redemption and
Purchase).

Servicing: Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. (in its capacity as Principal Servicer)
has entered into the Master Servicing Agreement with the Guarantor, pursuant to which
(1) the Principal Servicer has agreed to provide administrative services in respect of the
Mortgage Loans and to act as the soggetto incaricato della riscossione dei crediti ceduti
e dei servizi di cassa e di pagamento pursuant to article 2, sub-paragraph 3, of Law 130,
(ii) the parties thereto agreed that, should any Additional Seller(s) enter into the
Programme, such Additional Seller will be appointed as Additional Servicer for the
administration, management, collection and recovery activities relating to the Assets
from time to time assigned by it to the Guarantor; and (iii) the Guarantor has appointed
a Back-up Servicer Facilitator who used its best effort to identify an entity suitable to
act as Back-Up Servicer upon the rating of the Principal Servicer's long term
unguaranteed, unsubordinated and unsecured obligation fell below Baa3 by Moody's.
For further details, see sections "lIssuer, Principal Seller, Principal Servicer, Italian
Account Bank, Pre-Issuer Default Test Calculation Agent and Principal Subordinated
Lender" and "Credit and Collection Policy" below.

Asset Monitor Engagement Letter: Pursuant to an engagement letter entered into on 18
June 2010, the Issuer has appointed the Asset Monitor in order to perform, subject to
receipt of the relevant information from the Issuer, specific monitoring activities
concerning, inter alia, the control of (i) the fulfilment of the eligibility criteria set out
under Decree No. 310 with respect to the Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets included
in the Cover Pool; (ii) the calculation performed by the Issuer in respect of the
Mandatory Tests; (iii) the compliance with the limits to the transfer of the Eligible
Assets set out under Decree No. 310; and (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
protection provided by any Swap Agreement entered into in the context of the
Programme.

Asset Monitor Agreement: Pursuant to the Asset Monitor Agreement, (i) the Issuer has
appointed the Asset Monitor to perform, prior to the delivery of a Guarantee
Enforcement Notice, certain verification activities with respect to the Mandatory Tests
and the Asset Coverage Test and (ii) the Guarantor has appointed the Asset Monitor to
perform, following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, certain verification
activities with respect to the Amortisation Test and carry out certain monitoring and
reporting services with respect to the Cover Pool in accordance with the terms provided
in the Asset Monitor Agreement.

Further Information: For a more detailed description of the transactions summarised
above relating to the Covered Bonds, see, amongst other relevant sections of this
Prospectus, "Overview of the Programme”, "Conditions of the Covered Bonds",
"Description of the Programme Documents”, "Credit Structure”, and "Cashflows",
below.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

This section constitutes a general description of the Programme for the purposes of article
22(5) of Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004. The following overview does not purport
to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the remainder of this
Prospectus and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Series or Tranche of
Covered Bonds, the applicable Final Terms. Words and expressions defined elsewhere in this
Prospectus shall have the same meaning in this overview.

PARTIES

Issuer Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. a bank operating
in Italy as a joint stock company (societa per azioni),
having its registered office at Piazza Salimbeni, 3, 53100
Siena, ltaly, fiscal code and enrolment with the companies
register of Siena number 00884060526 and enrolled under
number 5274 in the register of banks held by the Bank of
Italy pursuant to article 13 of the Consolidated Banking
Act ("BMPS" or the "lIssuer”).

For a more detailed description of the Issuer, see section
"Issuer, Principal Seller, Principal Servicer, Italian
Account Bank, Pre-Issuer Default Test Calculation Agent
and Principal Subordinated Lender".

Guarantor MPS Covered Bond S.r.l., a special purpose entity
incorporated as limited liability company (societa a
responsabilita limitata) under the laws of Italy pursuant to
article 7-bis of Law 130, having its registered office at Via
V. Alfieri 1, 31015, Conegliano (TV), Italy, fiscal code
and enrolment with the companies register of Treviso No.
04323680266, enrolled under number 41746 in the general
register held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to article 106
of the Consolidated Banking Act and part of the
Montepaschi Group and subject to guidance and
coordination of Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A,
having as its sole purpose the ownership of the Cover Pool
and the granting to holders of the Covered bonds of the
Guarantee (the "Guarantor").

For a more detailed description of the Guarantor, see
section "The Guarantor".

Principal Seller BMPS, pursuant to the terms of the Master Assets
Purchase Agreement. For a more detailed description of
BMPS, see section "lIssuer, Principal Seller, Principal
Servicer, Italian Account Bank, Pre-Issuer Default Test
Calculation Agent and Principal Subordinated Lender".

Additional Seller(s) Any other bank which is a member of the Montepaschi
Group and wishes to sell Assets to the Guarantor within

- 143 -



Principal Servicer

Additional Servicer(s)

Back-Up Servicer Facilitator

the scope of the Programme, subject to satisfaction of
certain conditions and which, for such purpose, shall enter
into, inter alia, the Master Assets Purchase Agreement
with the Guarantor and any other Programme Document.

On 27 May 2011, Banca Antonveneta S.p.A. ("BAV")
acceded to the Master Assets Purchase Agreement and to
the Programme in the capacity as Additional Seller.
Following the merger by way of incorporation of BAV in
BMPS with effect as of 28 April 2013 (the "Merger"),
BMPS assumed all rights and obligations of BAV in the
capacity as Additional Seller under the Programme and
any reference to BAV in the Programme Documents shall
be deemed to be referred to BMPS, which takes over any
and all activities and roles previously carried out by BAV.

Pursuant to the terms of the Master Servicing Agreement,
BMPS will act as Principal Servicer.

For a more detailed description of the Principal Servicer,
see section "Issuer, Principal Seller, Principal Servicer,
Italian Account Bank, Pre-Issuer Default Test Calculation
Agent and Principal Subordinated Lender".

Any Additional Seller that, subject to satisfaction of
certain conditions, wishes to act as Additional Servicer for
the administration, management and collection activities
relating to the Eligible Assets from time to time assigned
by it to the Guarantor and, for such purpose, has acceded
to the Master Servicing Agreement.

On 27 May 2011, BAV acceded to the Master Servicing
Agreement and to the Programme in the capacity as
Additional Servicer. Following the Merger, BMPS
assumed all rights and obligations of BAV in the capacity
as Additional Servicer under the Programme and any
reference to BAV in the Programme Documents shall be
deemed to be referred to BMPS, which takes over any and
all activities and roles previously carried out by BAV.

Securitisation Services S.p.A., a company incorporated
under the laws of the Republic of Italy as societa per
azioni, having its registered office at Via Vittorio Alfieri
1, 31015 Conegliano (TV), Italy, fiscal code and
enrolment with the companies register of Treviso number
03546510268, enrolled under number 31816 in the elenco
generale held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to article 106
of the Consolidated Banking Act, subject to direction and
coordination activities (soggetta all'attivita di direzione e
coordinamento) of Banca Finanziaria Internazionale
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Back-up Servicer

Principal Subordinated
Lender

Additional Subordinated
Lender(s)

Cash Manager

Principal Paying Agent

Guarantor Calculation Agent

Test Calculation Agent

S.p.A., further to its accession to the Master Servicing
Agreement and to the Programme on 3 April 2012.

Securitisation Services S.p.A. or any eligible counterparty
appointed upon downgrading of the Servicer below
"Baa3" by Moody's, "BBB-" Fitch and BBB(low) by
DBRS, pursuant to the Servicing Agreement.

BMPS, pursuant to the Subordinated Loan Agreement.

For a more detailed description of the Principal
Subordinated Lender, see section "Issuer, Principal Seller,
Principal Servicer, Italian Account Bank, Pre-Issuer
Default Test Calculation Agent and Principal
Subordinated Lender",

Each Additional Seller will act as Subordinated Lender in
respect of the Assets transferred by itself to the Guarantor.

On 27 May 2011, BAV became a Subordinated Lender
following the execution of a Subordinated Loan
Agreement with the Guarantor. Following the Merger,
BMPS assumed all rights and obligations of BAV in the
capacity as Additional Subordinated Lender under the
Programme and any reference to BAV in the Programme
Documents shall be deemed to be referred to BMPS,
which takes over any and all activities and roles previously
carried out by BAV.

Pursuant to the Cash Allocation, Management and
Payments Agreement, Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena
S.p.A.

The Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A.,
Italian Branch, a bank incorporated under the laws of
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, having its registered office
at Vertigo Building - Polaris — 2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert -
L-2453, Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,
acting through its Milan branch with offices at Diamantino
Building — 5 Floor - via Mike Bongiorno 13, 20124
Milan, Italy, fiscal code and enrolment with the companies
register of Milan number 05694250969 and registered
with the register held by the Bank of Italy pursuant to
article 13 of the Consolidated Banking Act as a "filiale di
banca estera" under number 5662 and with ABI code
3351.4.

Securitisation Services S.p.A.

Prior to an Issuer Event of Default, Banca Monte dei
Paschi di Siena S.p.A., in its capacity as Pre-Issuer Default
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Pre-lIssuer Default Test
Calculation Agent

Post-Issuer Default Test
Calculation Agent

Italian Account Bank

Payments Account Bank
Italian Back-Up Account
Bank

English Back-Up Account
Bank

English Account Bank

Asset Monitor

Test Calculation Agent and, after an Issuer Event of
Default, the Guarantor Calculation Agent, which will act
in its capacity as Post-Issuer Default Test Calculation
Agent.

Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A.

Securitisation Services S.p.A.

Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. subject to it being
an Eligible Institution.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Italian Back-Up
Account Bank has succeeded to Banca Monte dei Paschi
di Siena S.p.A., and is acting in the capacity of Italian
Account Bank pursuant to the provisions of the Cash
Allocation Management and Payments Agreement.

The Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A.,
Italian Branch, subject to it being an Eligible Institution.

The Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A.,
Italian Branch, subject to it being an Eligible Institution.

The Bank of New York Mellon S.A./N.V., London
Branch, a public limited liability credit institution
incorporated under the laws of Belgium with company
number 0806.743.159, having its registered office at 46
Rue Montoyerstraat, B-1000 Brussels, Belgium, acting
through its London branch with offices at 160 Queen
Victoria Street, London EC4V 4LA, United Kingdom,
subject to it being an Eligible Institution.

Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A., subject to it being
an Eligible Institution.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the English Back-Up
Account Bank has succeeded to Banca Monte dei Paschi
di Siena S.p.A. and is acting in the capacity of English
Account Bank pursuant to the provisions of the English
Account Bank Agreement.

Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. a company incorporated under
the laws of Italy, enrolled with the Companies' Register of
Milan under number 03049560166 and with the special
register of accounting firms held by the CONSOB
pursuant to the Consolidated Finance Act, having its
registered office at via Tortona 25, 20144 Milan, Italy.
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Asset Swap Provider(s)

Covered Bond Swap
Providers

Guarantor Corporate
Servicer

Guarantor Quotaholders

Representative of the
Bondholders

Luxembourg Listing and

Paying Agent

Joint-Arrangers

Dealer(s)

No Asset Swap Provider has been appointed as of the date
of this Prospectus.

One or more suitably rated entities as may be appointed
for each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

Securitisation Services S.p.A.

Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. and SVM
Securitisation Vehicles Management S.r.l. a company
incorporated under the laws of Italy as societa per azioni
con socio unico, having its registered office at Via Vittorio
Alfieri 1, 31015, Conegliano (TV), Italy, fiscal code and
enrolment with the companies register of Treviso No.
03546510268 and subject to guidance and coordination of
Finanziaria Internazionale Holding S.p.A..

BNY Mellon Corporate Trustee Services Limited, a
limited liability company incorporated under the laws of
England and Wales, having its registered office at One
Canada Square, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom.

The Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A., a
bank incorporated under the laws of Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg, having its registered office at Vertigo
Building - Polaris — 2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert - L-2453,
Luxembourg.

BMPS

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc, a public limited
company incorporated under the laws of England, acting
through its branch at 25 Cabot Square, Canary Wharf,
London E14 4QA, United Kingdom; and

NatWest Markets Plc, a public limited company
incorporated under the laws of Scotland, acting through its
office at 250 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 4AA, United
Kingdom.

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc, a public limited
company incorporated under the laws of England, acting
through its branch at 25 Cabot Square, Canary Wharf,
London E14 4QA, United Kingdom; MPS Capital
Services Banca per le Imprese S.p.A., a joint stock
company (societa per azioni) incorporated under the laws
of the Republic of Italy, having its registered office at Via
Pancaldo, 4, 50127 Firenze, Italy, fiscal code and
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THE PROGRAMME

Programme description

Programme Limit

THE COVERED BONDS

Form of Covered Bonds

Denomination of Covered
Bonds

enrolment with the companies register of Firenze number
00816350482;

NatWest Markets Plc, a public limited company
incorporated under the laws of Scotland, acting through its
office at 250 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 4AA, United
Kingdom;

and any other Dealer(s) appointed in accordance with the
Programme Agreement.

Under the terms of the Programme, the Issuer has issued
and will issue Covered Bonds (Obbligazioni Bancarie
Garantite) to Bondholders on each Issue Date. The
Covered Bonds will be direct, unsubordinated, unsecured
and unconditional obligations of the Issuer guaranteed by
the Guarantor under the Guarantee.

The aggregate nominal amount of the Covered Bonds at
any time outstanding will not exceed Euro 20,000,000,000
(or its equivalent in other currencies to be calculated as
described in the Programme Agreement subject to any
increase thereof). The Issuer may however increase the
aggregate nominal amount of the Programme in
accordance with the Programme Documents.

Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Terms and
Conditions and Final Terms, the Covered Bonds will be
issued in bearer and dematerialised form and held on
behalf of their ultimate owners by Monte Titoli for the
account of Monte Titoli Account Holders and title thereto
will be evidenced by book entries. Monte Titoli will act as
depository for Euroclear and Clearstream. No physical
document of title will be issued in respect of any such
bearer and dematerialised Covered Bonds.

The Covered Bonds will be issued in such denominations
as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory
and/or central bank requirements and save that the
minimum denomination of each Covered Bond admitted
to trading on a regulated market within the European
Economic Area or offered to the public in a member state
of the European Economic Area in circumstances which
require the publication of a prospectus under the
Prospectus Directive will be €100,000 (or where the
relevant Series or Tranche is denominated in a currency
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Status of the Covered Bonds

Specified Currency

Maturities

Redemption

other than euro, the equivalent amount in such other
currency).

The Covered Bonds will constitute direct, unconditional,
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer
and will rank pari passu without preference among
themselves and (save for any applicable statutory
provisions) at least equally with all other present and
future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer from time to time outstanding.

Subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions,
each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds will be issued in
such currency or currencies as may be agreed from time to
time by the Issuer, the relevant Dealer(s), the Principal
Paying Agent and the Representative of the Bondholders,
subject to prior notice to the Rating Agencies (as set out in
the applicable Final Terms) subject to compliance with all
applicable legal, regulatory and/or central bank
requirements.

The Covered Bonds will have such Maturity Date as may
be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s)
and indicated in the applicable Final Terms, subject to
such minimum or maximum maturities as may be allowed
or required from time to time by any relevant central bank
(or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable
to the Issuer or the relevant Specified Currency.

The applicable Final Terms relating to each Series or
Tranche of Covered Bonds will indicate either that the
Covered Bonds of such Series or Tranche of Covered
Bonds cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity
(other than in specified instalments if applicable, or for
taxation reasons or if it becomes unlawful for any Covered
Bond to remain outstanding or following a Guarantor
Event of Default) or that such Covered Bonds will be
redeemable at the option of the Issuer upon giving notice
to the Bondholders on a date or dates specified prior to the
specified Maturity Date and at a price and on other terms
as may be agreed between the Issuer and the Dealer(s) as
set out in the applicable Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms may provide that the Covered
Bonds may be redeemable in two or more instalments of
such amounts and on the dates indicated in the Final
Terms. For further details, see Condition 9 (Redemption
and purchase).
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Redemption at the option of
Bondholders

Extended Maturity Date and
Pass Through Series

If the relevant Final Terms of the Covered Bonds provide
for a put option to be exercised by the Bondholders prior
to an Issuer Event of Default, the Issuer shall, at the option
of any Bondholder, redeem such Covered Bonds held by
it on the date which is specified in the relevant put option
notice at a price (including any interest (if any) accrued to
such date) and on other terms as may specified in, and
determined in accordance with, the relevant Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms relating to each Series or
Tranche of Covered Bonds issued will indicate, in the
interest of the Guarantor, that the Guarantor's obligations
under the Guarantee to pay Guaranteed Amounts equal to
the Final Redemption Amount of the applicable Series or
Tranche of Covered Bonds on their Maturity Date may be
deferred until the Extended Maturity Date.

Such deferral will occur automatically: (A) in respect of a
Series of Covered Bonds (each such Series, a "Pass
Through Series™) if (i) a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
has been served on the Issuer and the Guarantor as a result
of the Issuer having failed to pay, in whole or in part, the
Guaranteed Amounts on the Maturity Date for such Series
of Covered Bonds and, on the relevant Extension
Determination Date, the Guarantor has insufficient funds
to pay, in accordance with the Guarantee Priority of
Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in respect of such
Series of Covered Bonds, or (ii) a Guarantee Enforcement
Notice has been served on the Issuer and the Guarantor
following the occurrence of an Issuer Event of Default
(other than the Issuer Event of Default referred to in
paragraph (i) above) and, on the Maturity Date for such
Series of Covered Bonds, the Guarantor has insufficient
funds to pay, in accordance with the Guarantee Priority of
Payments, the Guaranteed Amounts in respect of such
Series of Covered Bonds; and (B) in respect of all Series
of Covered Bonds, which all become Pass Through Series,
if, on any Test Calculation Date following the service of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice (and, in case of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice delivered as a result of an
Article 74 Event, prior to the service of an Article 74 Event
Cure Notice), the Calculation Agent notifies, through the
Test Performance Report, the Issuer, the Sellers, any
Additional Seller and the Guarantor that the Amortisation
Test is not met.

Payment of all unpaid amounts shall be deferred
automatically until the applicable Extended Maturity
Date, provided that any amount representing the Final
Redemption Amount due and remaining unpaid on the
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Extension Determination Date or the Maturity Date (as the
case may be) may be paid, in accordance with the
Guarantee Priority of Payments, by the Guarantor on any
Guarantor Payment Date thereafter, up to (and including)
the relevant Extended Maturity Date for such Pass
Through Series.

The Guarantor will be obliged to (A) apply on each
Guarantor Payment Date any Guarantor Available Funds
towards redemption in full of all Pass Through Series in
accordance with the Guarantee Priority of Payments; and
(B) prior to a breach of the Amortisation Test, use its best
efforts to sell, in accordance with the provisions of the
Cover Pool Management Agreement, Selected Assets, on
a semi-annual basis, for an amount as close as possible to
the amount necessary (i) to redeem in full (a) the Pass
Through Series and/or (b) only on the Earliest Maturing
Sale Date, the Earliest Maturing Covered Bonds and (ii) to
pay any interest amount due in respect of the Covered
Bonds, net of any amounts standing to the credit of the
Programme Accounts, provided that, prior to and
following the sale of such Selected Assets, the
Amortisation Test is complied with.

If, on any Test Calculation Date following the service of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice (and, in case of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice delivered as a result of an
Article 74 Event, prior to the service of an Article 74 Event
Cure Notice), the Calculation Agent notifies, through the
Test Performance Report, the Issuer, the Sellers, any
Additional Seller and the Guarantor that the Amortisation
Test is not met, the Guarantor shall use its best effort (but
shall not be obliged) to sell all Eligible Assets and Top-Up
Assets included in the Cover Pool, on a semi-annual basis
starting from the date falling 30 calendar days after the
date of the relevant Test Performance Report, provided
that the proceeds of the sale (net of any costs connected
thereto), together with any amount standing to the credit
of the Accounts, are sufficient to redeem in full the Pass
Through Series. For further details, see section headed
"Disposal of the Assets included in the Cover Pool
following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
and the breach of the Amortisation Test".

For the avoidance of doubt, failure by the Guarantor to sell
Selected Assets (or, following the breach of the
Amortisation Test, all Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets
included in the Cover Pool) in accordance with the Cover
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Issue Price

Interest

Fixed Rate Covered Bonds

Floating Rate Covered Bonds

Pool Management Agreement shall not constitute a
Guarantor Event of Default.

Interest will continue to accrue and be payable on the
unpaid amount (to the extent permitted by Italian law) on
each Guarantor Payment Date up to the Extended Maturity
Date, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of
the relevant Final Terms.

For further details, see Condition 9 (Redemption and
Purchase).

Covered Bonds may be issued at par or at a premium or
discount to par on a fully-paid or partly-paid basis (as set
out in the relevant Final Terms).

Covered Bonds may be interest bearing or non interest
bearing. Interest (if any) may accrue at a fixed rate or a
floating rate and the method of calculating interest may
vary between the Issue Date and the Maturity Date of the
relevant Series or Tranche. Covered Bonds may also have
a maximum rate of interest, a minimum rate of interest or
both (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms). Interest
on Covered Bonds in respect of each Interest Period, as
agreed prior to issue by the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s), will be payable on such Interest Payment Dates,
and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count
Fraction, in each case as may be agreed between the Issuer
and the relevant Dealer(s).

Any series of Covered Bonds becoming a Pass Through
Series will accrue the interest rate provided under the
relevant Final Terms for the period from the Maturity Date
to the Extended Maturity Date.

Fixed Rate Covered Bonds will bear interest at a fixed rate,
which will be payable on the date or dates as may be
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) and
on redemption and will be calculated on the basis of such
day count fraction as may be agreed between the Issuer
and the relevant Dealer(s) (as set out in the applicable
Final Terms).

Floating Rate Covered Bonds will bear interest at a rate
determined:

@ on the same basis as the floating rate under a
notional interest rate swap transaction in the
relevant Specified Currency governed by an
agreement incorporating the ISDA Definitions; or
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Zero Coupon Covered Bonds

Amortising Covered Bonds

Taxation

Cross default provisions

(b) on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the
agreed screen page of a commercial quotation
service; or

in each case, as set out in the applicable Final Terms.

The Margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) for
each issue of Floating Rate Covered Bonds, as set out in
the applicable Final Terms.

Zero Coupon Covered Bonds, bearing no interest, may be
offered and sold at a discount to their nominal amount, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Covered Bonds may be issued with a predefined,
prescheduled amortisation schedule where, in addition to
interest, the Issuer will pay, on each relevant Interest
Payment Date, a portion of principal up to the relevant
Maturity Date (as set out in the applicable Final Terms) in
instalments.

All payments in relation to Covered Bonds will be made
without tax deduction or withholding except where
required by law. If any tax deduction is made, the Issuer
shall be required to pay additional amounts in respect of
the amounts so deducted or withheld, subject to a number
of exceptions including deductions on account of Italian
substitute tax pursuant to Decree No. 239.

Under the Guarantee, the Guarantor will not be liable to
pay any such additional amounts to any Bondholders in
respect of the amount of such withholding or deduction.

For further details, see Condition 11 (Taxation).

Each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds will cross
accelerate as against each other Series or Tranches, but
will not otherwise contain a cross default provision.
Accordingly, neither an event of default under any other
indebtedness of the Issuer (including other debt securities
of the Issuer) nor any acceleration of such indebtedness
will of itself give rise to an Issuer Event of Default (except
where such events constitute an Insolvency Event in
respect of the Issuer).

In addition, an Issuer Event of Default will not
automatically give rise to a Guarantor Event of Default,
provided however that, where a Guarantor Event of
Default occurs and the Representative of the Bondholders
serves a Guarantor Default Notice upon the Guarantor,
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Notice to the Rating Agencies

Listing and admission to
trading

Issue Ratings

Governing Law

such Guarantor Default Notice will accelerate each Series
or Tranche of outstanding Covered Bonds issued under the
Programme.

For further details, see Condition 12 (Segregation Event
and Events of Default).

The issue of any Series or Tranche of Covered Bond
(including, for the avoidance of doubt, Fixed Rate
Covered Bonds, Floating Rate Covered Bonds, Zero
Coupon Covered Bonds and Amortisation Covered
Bonds) in each case as specified in the applicable Final
Terms shall be subject to prior notice to the Rating
Agencies.

Application has been made for Covered Bonds issued
under the Programme during the period of 12 months from
the date of this Prospectus to be admitted to the official list
and to trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange. The Programme also permits Covered
Bonds to be issued on the basis that (i) they will be
admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by such other
or further competent authorities, stock exchanges and/or
quotation systems as may be agreed with the Issuer or (ii)
they will not be admitted to listing, trading and/or
guotation by any competent authority, stock exchange
and/or quotation system.

Each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds may or may not
be assigned a rating by one or more Rating Agencies. Each
Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds, if rated, is expected
to be assigned the following ratings on the relevant Issue
Date unless otherwise stated in the applicable Final Terms:

Moody's Fitch DBRS
AAl A+ AA (low)

The issuance of any Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds
(including any unrated Covered Bonds) shall be subject to
prior notice to the Rating Agencies.

The Covered Bonds and the related Programme
Documents will be governed by Italian law, except for the
Swap Agreements, the Deed of Charge and the English
Account Bank Agreement which will be governed by
English law.
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SEGREGATION EVENTS, ISSUER EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND GUARANTOR

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Segregation Events

A Segregation Event will occur upon the notification by
the relevant Test Calculation Agent that:

(i)

(i)

a breach of one of the Mandatory Tests on the
relevant Quarterly Test Calculation Date; and/or

prior to the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement
Notice, a breach of the Asset Coverage Test on the
relevant Test Calculation Date,

has not been remedied within the applicable Test Grace

Period.

Upon the occurrence of a Segregation Event, the
Representative of the Bondholders will serve notice (the
"Breach of Tests Notice™) on the Issuer and the
Guarantor that a Segregation Event has occurred.

In such case:

(@)

(b)

(©)

no further Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds
may be issued by the Issuer;

there shall be no further payments to the
Subordinated Lender under any relevant Term
Loan, other than where necessary for the purpose
of complying with the 15% Limit in accordance
with the provisions of Decree 310 and the Bank of
Italy Regulations as better specified in the Cover
Pool Management Agreement (and to the extent
that no purchase of Eligible Assets is possible to
this effect in accordance with the provisions of the
Master Assets Purchase Agreement and the Cover
Pool Management Agreement and/or in
compliance with the limits set out in the Bank of
Italy Regulations);

the purchase price for any Eligible Assets or Top-
Up Assets to be acquired by the Guarantor shall
be paid using the proceeds of a Term Loan or,
with respect to Eligible Assets only, to the extent
necessary to comply with the 15% Limit in
accordance with the provisions of Decree 310 and
the Bank of Italy Regulations as better specified
in the Cover Pool Management Agreement, the
Guarantor Available Funds; and
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Issuer Event of Default

(d) payments due under the Covered Bonds will
continue to be made by the Issuer until a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice has been
delivered.

If the relevant Mandatory Tests and Asset Coverage Test
islare met within the Test Remedy Period, the
Representative of the Bondholders will promptly deliver
to the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Asset Monitor a
notice informing such parties that the Breach of Tests
Notice then outstanding has been revoked (the "Breach
of Tests Cure Notice").

For further details, see section "Description of the
Programme Documents - Cover Pool Management
Agreement".

An Issuer Event of Default will occur if:

(i) Non-payment (also as a result of claw-back): the
Issuer fails to pay any amount of interest and/or
principal due and payable on any Series or
Tranche of Covered Bonds and such breach is not
remedied within 15 calendar days, in case of
amounts of interest, or 7 calendar days (other than
in case of non-payment as at the Maturity Date),
in case of amounts of principal, as the case may
be;

(i) Breach of obligation (other than non-payment): a
material breach by the Issuer of any obligation
under the Programme Documents occurs and such
breach is not remedied within 30 calendar days
after the Representative of the Bondholders has
given written notice thereof to the Issuer; or

(iii)  Insolvency: an Insolvency Event occurs in respect
of the Issuer;

(iv)  Article 74 Event: a resolution pursuant to Article
74 of the Consolidated Banking Act is issued in
respect of the Issuer;

(v) Cessation of business: a Cessation of Business
occurs in respect of the Issuer; or

(vi)  Breach of Tests: following the delivery of a
Breach of Tests Notice, one of the relevant
Mandatory Tests and Asset Coverage Test is/are
not met on, or prior to, the Test Calculation Date
falling at the end of the Test Remedy Period
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unless a resolution of the Bondholders is passed
resolving to extend the Test Remedy Period.

If any of the events set out in points (i), (iii) - to the extent
that it is an Insolvency Event consisting in a procedure of
liquidazione coatta amministrativa of the Issuer, - (iv) or
(vi) above occurs and is continuing, then the
Representative of the Bondholders shall serve to the
Issuer and the Guarantor a notice to demand payments
under the Guarantee (a "Guarantee Enforcement
Notice"), specifying in case of the Issuer Event of Default
referred to under item (iv) above, that the Issuer Event of
Default may be temporary and the relevant Guarantee
Enforcement Notice may be revoked accordingly.

Upon the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice:

@) no further Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds
may be issued by the Issuer;

(b) there shall be no further payments to the
Subordinated Lender under any relevant Term
Loan;

(©) the purchase price for any Eligible Assets or Top-
Up Assets to be acquired by the Guarantor shall
be paid using the proceeds of a Term Loan;

(d) Guarantee: (i) interest and principal falling due on
the Covered Bonds will be payable by the
Guarantor at the time and in the manner provided
under the Conditions and the Final Terms of the
relevant Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds,
subject to and in accordance with the terms of the
Guarantee and the Guarantee Priority of
Payments; then (ii) the Guarantor (or the
Representative of the Bondholders pursuant to the
Intercreditor Agreement) shall be entitled to
request from the Issuer an amount up to the
Guaranteed Amounts and any sum so received or
recovered from the Issuer will be used to make
payments in accordance with the Guarantee;

(e) Pass Through Series: to the extent that the
Guarantor does not have sufficient funds to pay
the Final Redemption Amount on a Series of
Covered Bonds (also taking into account amounts
referred under letter (ii) of paragraph (b) above (if
any)), such Series shall become a Pass Through
Series in accordance with Condition 8(b);
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() Disposal of Assets: the Guarantor shall use its best
effort to sell the Eligible Assets and/or Top-Up
Assets included in the Cover Pool in accordance
with the provisions of the Cover Pool
Management Agreement,

provided that, in case of the Issuer Event of Default
determined by a resolution issued in respect of the Issuer
pursuant to article 74 of the Consolidated Banking Act
(referred to under item (iv) (Article 74 Event) above) (the
"Article 74 Event"), the effects listed in items (a)
(Application of the Segregation Event provisions), (b)
(Guarantee) and (d) (Disposal of Assets) above will only
apply for as long as the suspension of payments pursuant
to Article 74 of the Consolidated Banking Act will be in
force and effect (the "Suspension Period™). Accordingly
(A) the Guarantor, in accordance with Decree No. 310,
shall be responsible for the payments of the amounts due
and payable under the Covered Bonds during the
Suspension Period and (B) at the end of the Suspension
Period, the Issuer shall be again responsible for meeting
the payment obligations under the Covered Bonds.

For the avoidance of doubt (i) in case of delivery of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice further to a non- payment
of interest on a Series of Covered Bonds the relevant
Series becomes a Pass-Though Series on the relevant
Maturity Date if and only to the extent that, on the
Extension Determination Date, the Guarantor does not
have sufficient funds to redeem the Final Redemption
Amount of such Series and (ii) in case of delivery of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice further to an Insolvency
Event of the Issuer - consisting in a procedure of
liguidazione coatta amministrativa - or further to an
Article 74 Event, if the Guarantor does not have sufficient
funds pay the Final Redemption Amount due on a Series
of Covered Bond on the relevant Maturity Date, such
Series becomes a Pass-Though Series on such Maturity
Date.

If any of the events set out in points (ii), (iii) other than in
case of Insolvency Event consisting in a procedure of
liquidazione coatta amministrativa of the Issuer, (v) or
(vi) above occurs and is continuing, then the
Representative of the Bondholders shall serve a notice to
the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Principal Seller and any
Additional Seller (if any), the Principal Servicer and any
Additional Servicer (if any), the Asset Monitor, the
Rating Agencies, the Guarantor Calculation Agent, the
Swap Counterparties, the Post-Issuer Default Test
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Guarantor Event of Default

Calculation Agent and the Rating Agencies (an "lssuer
Default Notice").

Upon the service of an Issuer Default Notice the
provisions governing the Segregation Event from item (a)
to (d) shall apply.

Please also see Condition 12.2 (Issuer Event of Default).

Following the occurrence of an Issuer Event of Default
and delivery of the relevant Guarantee Enforcement
Notice (to the extent not revoked), a Guarantor Event of
Default will occur if:

(1) Non-payment: the Guarantor fails to pay any
interest and/or principal due and payable under
the Guarantee and such breach is not remedied
within the next following 7 Business Days; or

(i) Insolvency: an Insolvency Event occurs in respect
of the Guarantor; or

(ili)  Breach of other obligation: a material breach of
any obligation under the Programme Documents
by the Guarantor occurs (other than payment
obligations referred to in item (i) (Non-payment)
above) which is not remedied within 30 calendar
days after the Representative of the Bondholders
has given written notice thereof to the Guarantor.

If any of the events set out in points from (i) to (iii) above
(each, a "Guarantor Event of Default™) occurs and is
continuing then the Representative of the Bondholders
shall serve a Guarantor Default Notice to the Issuer, the
Guarantor, the Principal Seller and any Additional Seller
(if any), the Principal Servicer and any Additional
Servicer (if any), the Asset Monitor, the Guarantor
Calculation Agent, the Italian Account Bank, the English
Account Bank, the Back-up English Account Bank, the
Principal Paying Agent and the Guarantor Corporate
Servicer and the Rating Agencies, unless the
Representative of the Bondholders, having exercised its
discretion, resolves otherwise or a resolution of the
Bondholders is passed resolving otherwise.

Upon the delivery of a Guarantor Default Notice:

(i) Acceleration of Covered Bonds: the Covered
Bonds shall become immediately due and payable
at their Early Termination Amount together, if
appropriate, with any accrued interest and will
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Breach of Mandatory Tests
and /or Asset Coverage Test

rank pari passu among themselves in accordance
with the Post-enforcement Priority of Payments;

(i)  Guarantee: subject to and in accordance with the
terms of the Guarantee, the Representative of the
Bondholders, on behalf of the Bondholders, shall
have a claim against the Guarantor for an amount
equal to the Early Termination Amount, together
with accrued interest and any other amount due
under the Covered Bonds (other than additional
amounts payable as gross up) in accordance with
the Priority of Payments;

(i)  Disposal of Assets: the Guarantor shall
immediately sell all Assets included in the Cover
Pool in accordance with the provisions of the
Cover Pool Management Agreement; and

(iv)  Enforcement: the Representative of the
Bondholders may, at its discretion and without
further notice, take such steps and/or institute
such proceedings against the Issuer or the
Guarantor (as the case may be) as it may think fit
to enforce such payments, but it shall not be bound
to take any such proceedings or steps unless
requested or authorised by a resolution of the
Bondholders.

Please also see Condition 12.3 (Guarantor Event of
Default).

If on any Test Calculation Date or Quarterly Test
Calculation Date, as the case may be, a Test Performance
Report specifies that the Cover Pool is not in compliance
with the relevant Test, then the Principal Seller and/or any
Additional Seller(s) in respect of each relevant New
Portfolio transferred to the Guarantor will either (i) sell
additional Eligible Assets and/or Top-Up Assets to the
Guarantor for an amount sufficient to allow the relevant
Test to be met on the next following Test Calculation
Date as determined in the immediately following Test
Performance Report, in accordance with the Master
Assets Purchase Agreement and the Cover Pool
Management Agreement, to be financed through the
proceeds of Term Loans to be granted by the Principal
Seller and/or any Additional Seller(s), (ii) substitute any
relevant assets in respect of which the right of repurchase
can be exercised under the terms of the Master Assets
Purchase Agreement with new Eligible Assets, for an
amount sufficient to allow the relevant Test to be met on
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Breach of the Amortisation
Test

15% Limit

THE TESTS

the next following Test Calculation Date as determined in
the immediately following Test Performance Report or
(iii) take any other action deemed appropriate to allow the
relevant Tests to be cured on the next Test Calculation
Date.

If, within the Test Grace Period the relevant breach of
the Tests is not remedied in accordance with the terms of
the Cover Pool Management Agreement, the
Representative of the Bondholders will deliver a Breach
of Test Notice.

If, after the delivery of a Breach of Test Notice, the
relevant breach of the Tests is not remedied, within the
Test Remedy Period, in accordance with the terms of the
Cover Pool Management Agreement, the Representative
of the Bondholders will deliver a Guarantee Enforcement
Notice.

If, after the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
(and, in case of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
delivered as result of an Article 74 Event, prior to the
delivery of an Article 74 Event Cure Notice), a breach of
the Amortisation Test occurs:

o Pass Through Series: any and all Series of
Covered Bonds will become immediately Pass
Through Series in accordance with Condition
8(b); and

o Disposal of Assets: the Guarantor shall use its best
effort to sell the Eligible Assets and/or Top-Up
Assets included in the Cover Pool in accordance
with the provisions of the Cover Pool
Management Agreement.

The aggregate amount of Top-Up Assets included in the
Cover Pool may not be in excess of 15 per cent. of the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Cover
Pool, other than as otherwise permitted by law or
applicable regulation.

For an overview of the Tests, see paragraphs "Mandatory
Tests" and "Asset Coverage Test", "Amortisation Test" of
section "Structure Overview" below.

For a detailed description of the Tests, see paragraph
"Tests" of section "Credit Structure” below.
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THE GUARANTOR AND THE GUARANTEE

Guarantee

Cover Pool

Limited recourse

Payments of Guaranteed Amounts in respect of the
Covered Bonds when Due for Payment will be
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Guarantor. The obligations of the Guarantor to make
payments in respect of such Guaranteed Amounts when
Due for Payment are subject to the conditions that an
Issuer Event of Default has occurred, and a Guarantee
Enforcement Notice has been served on the Issuer and on
the Guarantor.

The obligations of the Guarantor will accelerate once a
Guarantor Default Notice has been delivered to the
Guarantor. The obligations of the Guarantor under the
Guarantee  constitute  direct, unconditional and
unsubordinated obligations collateralised by the Cover
Pool and recourse against the Guarantor is limited to such
assets.

For further details, see "Description of the Programme
Documents - Guarantee".

The Guarantee will be collateralised by the Cover Pool
constituted by (i) the Portfolio comprised of (a) Mortgage
Loans and the related collateral and (b) Asset Backed
Securities, assigned to the Guarantor by the Principal
Seller and/or the Additional Seller(s) in accordance with
the terms of the Master Assets Purchase Agreement (ii)
any proceeds arising from the Swap Agreements and (iii)
any other Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets held by the
Guarantor with respect to the Covered Bonds and the
proceeds thereof which will, inter alia, comprise the
funds generated by the Portfolio, the other Eligible Assets
and the Top-Up Assets including, without limitation,
funds generated by the sale of assets from the Cover Pool
and funds paid in the context of a liquidation of the Issuer.

The Asset Backed Securities to be comprised in the Cover
Pool will comply with the relevant eligibility criteria set
out under the ECB Guidelines.

For further details, see "Description of the Cover Pool".

The obligations of the Guarantor to the Bondholders and,
in general, to the Seller and/or any Additional Seller(s)
and other creditors will be limited recourse obligations of
the Guarantor. The Bondholders, the Seller and /or any
Additional Seller(s) and such other creditors will have a
claim against the Guarantor only to the extent of the
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Term Loans

Excess Assets and support for
further issues

Guarantor Available Funds subject to the relevant
Priorities of Payments, in each case subject to, and as
provided for in, the Guarantee and the other Programme
Documents.

Under the terms of the Subordinated Loan Agreements,
the Principal Seller and the Additional Seller(s), in their
capacity, respectively, as Principal Subordinated Lender
and Additional Subordinated Lender, will from time to
time grant to the Guarantor Term Loans in the form of (i)
a Programme Term Loan, or (ii) a Floating Interest Term
Loan, or (iii) a Fixed Interest Term Loan.

The Programme Term Loan will be granted for the
purpose of, inter alia (i) funding the purchase price of the
Eligible Assets and Top Up Assets included in the Initial
Portfolio and in any New Portfolios to be transferred to
the Guarantor pursuant to the Master Assets Purchase
Agreement, and/or (ii) remedying any breach of the Tests
and complying with the 15% Limit with respect to the
Top-Up Assets, and/or (iii) repayment of any other
Floating Interest Term Loan or Fixed Interest Term Loan
as necessary.

Each Floating Interest Term Loan or Fixed Interest Term
Loan will be granted for the purpose of, inter alia (i)
funding the purchase price of the Eligible Assets and Top-
Up Assets included in any New Portfolios to be
transferred to the Guarantor in connection with the issue
of a Corresponding Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds
to be issued under the Programme, and/or (ii) reimbursing
(also in part) any Term Loan for an amount equal to the
Corresponding Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

Amounts owed to each Subordinated Lender by the
Guarantor under the Subordinated Loan Agreements will
be subordinated to amounts owed by the Guarantor under
the Guarantee.

For further details, see "Description of the Programme
Documents - Subordinated Loan Agreements".

Any Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets forming part of
the Cover Pool which are in excess of the value of the
Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets required to satisfy the
Tests may be (i) purchased by the Seller in accordance
with the provisions of the Cover Pool Management
Agreement and the Master Assets Purchase Agreement or
(i) retained in the Cover Pool, also to be applied to
support the issue of new Series or Tranche of Covered
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Segregation of Guarantor's
rights and collateral

Cross-collateralisation

Claims under Covered Bonds

Bonds or ensure compliance with the Tests, provided
that in each case any such disposal or retention shall
occur in accordance with any relevant law, regulation or
interpretation of any authority (including, for the
avoidance of doubts, the Bank of Italy or the Minister of
Economy and Finance) which may be enacted with
respect to Law 130, the Bank of Italy Regulation and the
Decree No. 310 and no disposal under item (i) above may
occur if it would cause the Tests to be breached.

For further details, see "Description of the Programme
Documents - The Cover Pool Management Agreement".

The Covered Bonds benefit from the provisions of article
7-bis of Law 130, pursuant to which the Cover Pool is
segregated by operation of law from the Guarantor's other
assets.

In accordance with article 7-bis of Law 130, prior to and
following a winding up of the Guarantor and an Issuer
Event of Default or Guarantor Event of Default causing
the Guarantee to be called, proceeds of the Cover Pool
paid to the Guarantor and amounts standing to the credit
of the accounts opened in the name of the Guarantor will
be exclusively available for the purpose of satisfying the
obligations owed to the Bondholders, to the Swap
Providers under the Swap Agreements and to any other
creditors exclusively in satisfaction of the transaction
costs of the Programme.

The Cover Pool may not be seized or attached in any form
by creditors of the Guarantor other than the entities
referred to above, until full discharge by the Guarantor of
its payment obligations under the Guarantee or
cancellation thereof.

All Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets transferred from
the Seller(s) to the Guarantor from time to time or
otherwise acquired by the Guarantor and the proceeds
thereof, any proceeds arising from the Swap Agreements
and any funds generated by the sale of assets included in
the Cover Pool form the collateral supporting the
Guarantee in respect of all Series or Tranche of Covered
Bonds.

The Representative of the Bondholders, for and on behalf
of the Bondholders, may submit a claim to the Guarantor
and make a demand under the Guarantee in case of an
Issuer Event of Default or Guarantor Event of Default.
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Disposal of the Assets
included in the Cover Pool
following the delivery of a
Guarantee Enforcement
Notice

After the service of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice, the
Guarantor (or the Principal Servicer on behalf of the
Guarantor) shall use its best effort to sell the Eligible
Assets and/or Top-Up Assets in the Cover Pool (any such
Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets, the "Selected
Assets") in accordance with the provisions of the Cover
Pool Management Agreement.

The Guarantor shall use its best effort to sell the Selected
Assets, on a semi-annual basis, at least within (provided
that the Guarantor may commence before) the date
falling (i) 30 calendar days after the service of a
Guarantee Enforcement Notice following a non-payment
referred under Condition 11.2(a) or (ii) in any other case
of Guarantee Enforcement Notice delivered other than for
a non payment on a Series of Covered Bonds, six months
prior to the Maturity Date of the Earliest Maturing
Covered Bonds (the "Earliest Maturing Sale Date") and
up to the earlier of (a) the date on which a breach of the
Amortisation Test occurred, (b) the date on which the
Pass Through Series of Covered Bonds have been
redeemed in full and (c) the date on which a Guarantor
Default Notice is delivered.

The Guarantor shall use its best effort to sell the Selected
Assets, in accordance with the provisions of the Cover
Pool Management Agreement, in an amount as close as
possible to the amount necessary (i) to redeem in full (a)
the Pass Through Series and/or (b) only on the Earliest
Maturing Sale Date, the Earliest Maturing Covered
Bonds and (ii) to pay any interest amount due in respect
of the Covered Bonds, net of any amounts standing to the
credit of the Programme Accounts, provided that, prior
to and following the sale of such Selected Assets, the
Amortisation Test is complied with.

Any such sale shall be subject to the right of pre-emption
in favour of the Issuer (other than in case of liquidazione
coatta amministrativa of the Issuer), as Principal Seller,
or any Additional Seller(s) in respect of such Selected
Assets.

The proceeds from any such sale will be credited (net of
the cost connected to the sale of such Selected Assets) to
the Main Programme Account and applied as set out in
the Guarantee Priority of Payments to (i) pay interest on
the relevant Series of Covered Bonds and (ii) redeem any
relevant Pass Through Series.
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Disposal of the Assets
included in the Cover Pool
following the delivery of a
Guarantee Enforcement
Notice and the breach of the
Amortisation Test

Disposal of the Assets

included in the Cover Pool
following the delivery of a
Guarantor Default Notice

SALE AND DISTRIBUTION

Distribution

Purchase of Covered Bonds
by the Issuer

Certain restrictions

The Selected Assets to be sold will be selected from the
Cover Pool on a random basis by the Principal Servicer
on behalf of the Guarantor.

Following the delivery of a Guarantee Enforcement
Notice (and, in case of a Guarantee Enforcement Notice
delivered as result of an Article 74 Event, prior to the
delivery of an Article 74 Event Cure Notice), in case a
Test Performance Report specifies that a breach of the
Amortisation Test occurred, the Guarantor shall use its
best effort to sell all Eligible Assets and/or Top-Up Assets
included in the Cover Pool, on a semi-annual basis
starting from the date falling 30 calendar days after the
date of the relevant Test Performance Report.

The Guarantor shall use its best effort to sell the Eligible
Assets and/or Top-Up Assets in an amount as close as
possible to the amount necessary (i) to redeem in full the
Pass Through Series and (ii) to pay any interest amount
due in respect of the Covered Bonds net of any amounts
standing to the credit of the Programme Accounts.

After the service of a Guarantor Default Notice, the
Guarantor shall immediately sell all Eligible Assets
and/or Top-Up Assets included in the Cover Pool in
accordance with the procedures described in the Cover
Pool Management Agreement, subject to the right of pre-
emption in favour of the Issuer (other than in case of
liquidazione coatta amministrativa of the Issuer), as
Principal Seller, or the Additional Seller provided that
the Guarantor will instruct the Portfolio Manager to use
all reasonable endeavours to procure that such sale is
carried out as quickly as reasonably practicable taking
into account the market conditions at that time.

For further details, see Condition 12.3 (Guarantor Event
of Default).

Covered Bonds may be distributed by way of private or
public placement and in each case on a syndicated or non
syndicated basis, subject to the restrictions set forth in the
Programme Agreement.

The Issuer or any such subsidiary may at any time
purchase any Covered Bonds in the open market or
otherwise and at any price.

Each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds issued will be
denominated in a currency in respect of which particular
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laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply and will only be issued in
circumstances which comply with such laws, guidelines,
regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements from
time to time. There are restrictions on the offer, sale and
transfer of Covered Bonds in the United States, the
European Economic Area (including the Republic of
Italy), the United Kingdom and Japan. Other restrictions
may apply in connection with the offering and sale of a
particular Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

For further details, see section "Subscription and Sale™
below.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents,
which have been previously published, or are published simultaneously with this Prospectus or
filed with the CSSF, together, in each case, with the audit reports (if any) thereon:

@ the press release dated 11 January 2019;
(b) the press release dated 28 December 2018;

(©) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Issuer as at and for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 including the relevant auditors'
reports;

(d) the unaudited half-yearly consolidated financial report of the Issuer as at and for the
period ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2018 including the relevant auditors' review
report;

(e the consolidated unaudited interim financial report of BMPS as at 30 September 2017
and 30 September 2018;

()] the financial statements of the Guarantor as at and for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2017;

(9) the auditors' report for the Guarantor for financial statements as at and for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017.

Such documents shall be incorporated by reference into, and form part of, this Prospectus, save
that any statement contained in a document which is incorporated by reference herein shall be
modified or superseded for the purpose of this Prospectus to the extent that a statement
contained herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether expressly, by
implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so
modified or superseded, constitute a part of this Prospectus.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference into this Prospectus may be obtained from the
registered office of the Issuer or, for the audited consolidated annual financial statements of
the Issuer as at and for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017, the auditor's
report for the Issuer for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017,
the unaudited half-yearly consolidated financial report of the Issuer as at and for the period
ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2018 and the consolidated unaudited interim financial report
of the Issuer as at 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2018, on the Issuer's website
(http://www.mps.it). This Prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference will also be
available on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's web site (http://www.bourse.lu).

The Issuer declares that only the English language versions, which represent a direct translation
from the Italian language documents (including the audit reports), are incorporated by reference
in this Prospectus.
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Cross-reference List

The following table shows where the information incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus, including the information required under Annex I1X of Commission Regulation
(EC) No. 809/2004, can be found in the above-mentioned financial statements incorporated by

reference into this Prospectus.

Annual and Semiannual consolidated financial

Guarantor

Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004, Annex IX, paragraph 11.1.

Audited annual financial statements of the Issuer

statements of the

2016

Issuer and the

2017

Balance Sheet

Income Statement

Cash flow statement

Notes to Financial Statements
Audit report

Unaudited consolidated half-yearly financial report

Pages 99 - 100
Pages 101 — 102
Pages 108- 109
Pages 111 - 465
Pages 469 - 472

Pages 133- 134
Pages 135 - 136
Pages 142 - 143
Pages 147 - 501
Pages 505 - 517

of the Issuer 30 June 2017 30 June 2018
Balance Sheet Pages 21- 22 Pages 19 - 20
Income Statement Page 23 Page 21 - 22
Statement of comprehensive income Page 24 Page 22
Statement of changes in equity Pages 25 - 28 Pages 23 - 26
Cash flow statement Pages 29 - 30 Pages 27 - 28

Explanatory Notes
Auditors' review report

30 September 2017 Unaudited consolidated interim
financial report

Pages 31 - 107
Pages 110 - 112

of the Issuer Pages
Consolidated Balance Sheet Pages 23- 24
Consolidated Income Statement Page 25
Consolidated Statement of comprehensive income Page 26
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity Pages 27 — 30
Consolidated Cash flow statement Pages 31 — 32
Consolidated Reports on Operations Pages 3 - 20

Notes to the interim reports of operations
Independent Auditor's Report

30 September 2018 Unaudited consolidated interim
financial report

Pages 33 - 119
Pages 121 - 123

of the Issuer Pages
Results in brief Pages 4 — 6
Executive Summary Pages 7 - 8
Shareholders Page 9
Information on the BMPS share Page 10
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Pages 29 - 144
Pages 145 - 146



Reference context Page 11
Significant events in the first nine months of 2018 Pages 12 - 14
Significant events after 30 September 2018 Page 14
Strategy Pages 15 - 17
Explanatory Notes Pages 18 - 19
Income Statement and balance sheet reclassification principles  Pages 20 - 22
Reclassified income statement Pages 23 - 30
Reclassified balance sheet Pages 31 - 43
Disclosure on risks Pages 44 - 47
Results by operating segment Pages 48 - 61
Prospects and outlook on operations Pages 62 - 63
Annex Pages 64 - 66
Declaration of the financial reporting officer Page 67
Financial statements of the Guarantor 2016 2017
Balance Sheet Page 11 Page 11
Income Statement Page 11 Page 11
Cash flow statement Pages 14 - 15 Pages 14 - 15
Statements of changes in the Shareholders' Equity accounts Page 13 Page 13
Notes to the Financial Statements Pages 16 - 82 Page 16 - 80

Audit report

Press Release 28 December 2018

Separate document

Separate document

Entire document

Press Release 11 January 2019

Entire document

The information incorporated by reference that is not included in the cross-reference list, is
considered as additional information and is not required by the relevant schedules of the

Prospectus Regulation.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE COVERED BONDS

The following is the text of the terms and conditions of the Covered Bonds (the "Conditions"
and, each of them, a "Condition™). In these Conditions, references to the "holder" of Covered
Bonds and to the "Bondholders™ are to the ultimate owners of the Covered Bonds, bearer and
dematerialised and evidenced by book entries with Monte Titoli in accordance with the
provisions of (i) article 83-bis of the Financial Laws Consolidation Act and (ii) the joint
regulation of CONSOB and the Bank of Italy dated 13 August 2018 and published in the
Official Gazette No. 201 of 30 August 2018, as subsequently amended and supplemented from
time to time.

The Bondholders are deemed to have notice of and are bound by, and shall have the benefit of,
inter alia, the terms of the Rules of the Organisation of the Bondholders attached to, and
forming part of, these Conditions. In addition, the applicable Final Terms in relation to any
Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the
extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the Conditions, complete the Conditions
for the purpose of such Series or Tranche.

1. INTRODUCTION

@ Programme: Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. (the "Issuer™) has
established a covered bond programme (the "Programme™) for the issuance of
up to €20,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of covered bonds
(Obbligazioni Bancarie Garantite) (the "Covered Bonds™) guaranteed by MPS
Covered Bond S.r.l. (the "Guarantor™). Covered Bonds are issued pursuant to
article 7-bis of Law No. 130 of 30 April 1999 (as amended, the "Law 130"),
Ministerial Decree No. 310 of the Ministry for the Economy and Finance of 14
December 2006 (the "Decree No. 310") and the regulation of the Bank of Italy
of 17 May 2007 (the "Bank of Italy Regulations").

(b) Final Terms: Covered Bonds are issued in series or tranches (each, respectively,
a "Series" or "Tranche"). Each Series or Tranche is the subject of final terms
(the "Final Terms") which complete these Conditions. The terms and
conditions applicable to any particular Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds are
these Conditions as completed by the relevant Final Terms.

(©) Guarantee: Each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds is the subject of a
guarantee dated 18 June 2010 (the "Guarantee") entered into between the
Guarantor and the Representative of the Bondholders for the purpose of
guaranteeing the payments due from the Issuer in respect of the Covered Bonds
of all Series or Tranches issued under the Programme. The Guarantee will be
backed by the Cover Pool (as defined below). The recourse of the Bondholders
to the Guarantor under the Guarantee will be limited to the assets of the Cover
Pool. Payments made by the Guarantor under the Guarantee will be made
subject to, and in accordance with, the relevant Priority of Payments.

(d) Programme Agreement and Subscription Agreements: The Issuer and the
Dealer(s) have agreed that any Covered Bonds of any Series or Tranche which
may from time to time be agreed between the Issuer and the Dealer(s) to be
issued by the Issuer and subscribed for by such Dealer(s) shall be issued and
subscribed for on the basis of, and in reliance upon, the representations,
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(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

warranties, undertakings and indemnities made or given or provided to be made
or given pursuant to the terms of a programme agreement (the "Programme
Agreement") entered into, on 18 June 2010, between the Issuer, the Guarantor,
the Representative of the Bondholders and the Dealer(s). In addition, in relation
to each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds the Issuer, and the relevant Dealer(s)
will enter into a subscription agreement on or about the date of the relevant Final
Terms (the "Subscription Agreement”). According to the terms of the
Programme Agreement, the Issuer has the faculty to nominate any institution as
a new Dealer in respect of the Programme or nominate any institution as a new
Dealer only in relation to a particular Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds upon
satisfaction of certain conditions set out in the Programme Agreement.

Monte Titoli Mandate Agreement: In a mandate agreement with Monte Titoli
S.p.A. ("Monte Titoli") (the "Monte Titoli Mandate Agreement”), Monte
Titoli has agreed to provide the Issuer with certain depository and
administration services in relation to the Covered Bonds issued in bearer and
dematerialised form.

Master Definitions Agreement: In a master definitions agreement (the "Master
Definitions Agreement") between, inter alios, the Issuer, the Guarantor, the
Representative of the Bondholders and the Other Guarantor Creditors (as
defined below), the definitions of certain terms used in the Programme
Documents have been agreed.

The Covered Bonds: Except where stated otherwise, all subsequent references
in these Conditions to "Covered Bonds" are to the Covered Bonds which are
the subject of the relevant Final Terms, but all references to "each Series or
Tranche of Covered Bonds" are to (i) the Covered Bonds which are the subject
of the relevant Final Terms and (ii) each other Series or Tranche of Covered
Bonds issued under the Programme which remains outstanding from time to
time.

Rules of the Organisation of the Bondholders: The rules of the organisation of
bondholders (the "Rules™) are attached to, and form an integral part of, these
Conditions. References in these Conditions to the Rules include such rules as
from time to time modified in accordance with the provisions contained therein
and any agreement or other document expressed to be supplemental thereto.

Summaries: Certain provisions of these Conditions are summaries of the
Programme Documents and are subject to their detailed provisions.
Bondholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by and are deemed to have
notice of all the provisions of the Programme Documents applicable to them.
Copies of the Programme Documents are available for inspection by
Bondholders during normal business hours at the registered office of the
Representative of the Bondholders from time to time and, where applicable, at
the Specified Office(s) of the Paying Agents.
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(@)

INTERPRETATION
Definitions:
In these Conditions the following expressions have the following meanings:

"15% Limit" means the limit of 15 per cent. (of the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Cover Pool) of Top-Up Assets that may be included in the Cover Pool
unless otherwise permitted by law or applicable regulation.

"Accrual Yield" has the meaning given in the relevant Final Terms.

"Accrued Interest” means, as of any Valuation Date and in relation to any Eligible
Asset to be assigned as at that date, the portion of the Interest Instalment accrued, but
not yet due, as at such date.

"Additional Seller" means any entity being part of the Montepaschi Group that may
transfer one or more New Portfolios to the Guarantor following the accession to the
Programme pursuant to the Programme Documents.

"Additional Servicer" means each Additional Seller which has been appointed as
servicer in relation to the Assets transferred to the Guarantor, following the accession
to the Programme and to the Master Servicing Agreement, pursuant to the Programme
Documents.

"Additional Subordinated Lender" means each Additional Seller in its capacity as
additional subordinated lender, pursuant to the relevant Subordinated Loan Agreement.

"Adjustment Purchase Price" means the purchase price adjusted on the basis of
calculations carried out pursuant to clause 7 of the Master Assets Purchase Agreement.

"Amortisation Test" means the Test as indicated in clause 4 of the Cover Pool
Management Agreement.

"Assets" means, collectively, the Eligible Assets and the Top-Up Assets.

"Asset Backed Securities” means, pursuant to article 2, sub-paragraph 1, of Decree
No. 310 the asset backed securities for which a risk weight not exceeding 20 per cent.
is applicable in accordance with the Bank of Italy's prudential regulations for banks -
standardised approach - provided that at least 95 per cent. of the relevant securitised
assets are:

Q) Residential Mortgage Loans;

(i)  Commercial Mortgage Loans;

(iii)  Public Entity Receivables or Public Entity Securities,

and, in any case, complying with the requirements of the ECB Guidelines.

"Asset Coverage Test" has the meaning as indicated pursuant to clause 3 of the Cover
Pool Management Agreement.
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"Asset Monitor" means Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. in its capacity as asset monitor
pursuant to the Asset Monitor Engagement Letter and the Asset Monitor Agreement.

"Asset Monitor Agreement™ means the agreement entered on 18 June 2010 between,
inter alios, the Asset Monitor, the Issuer and the Guarantor, as amended from time to
time.

"Asset Monitor Engagement Letter" means the engagement letter entered into, on 18
June 2010, between the Issuer and the Asset Monitor in order to perform specific agreed
upon procedures concerning, inter alia, (i) the fulfilment of the eligibility criteria set
out under Decree No. 310 with respect to the Eligible Assets and Top-Up Assets
included in the Cover Pool; (ii) the compliance with the limits to the transfer of the
Eligible Assets set out under Decree No. 310; and (iii) the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk protection provided by any Swap Agreement entered into in the context of
the Programme.

"Asset Swap Agreement” means any asset swap agreement which may be entered into
between an Asset Swap Provider and the Guarantor.

"Asset Swap Provider" means any entity acting as swap counterparty under an Asset
Swap Agreement.

"Back-Up Account Bank™ means any of the Italian Back-Up Account Bank and the
English Back-Up Account Bank.

"Back-Up Servicer" means Securitisation Services S.p.A. or any other entity that will
be appointed in such capacity by the Guarantor, together with the Representative of the
Bondholders, pursuant to clause 10.1 of the Master Servicing Agreement.

"Bank of Italy Regulations™ means the regulations No. 285 issued by the Bank of Italy
on 17 December 2013, as supplemented from time to time.

"Bankruptcy Law" means Royal Decree No. 267 of 16 March 1942, as subsequently
amended and supplemented.

"Base Interest” has the meaning given to the term "Interesse Base™ pursuant to the
Subordinated Loan Agreement.

"English Back-Up Account Bank" means The Bank of New York Mellon S.A\\N.V.,
London Branch or any other entity appointed to act as such pursuant to the Cash
Allocation, Management and Payments Agreement.

"BMPS" means Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A..

"Bondholders" means the holders from time to time of the Covered Bonds included in
each Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds.

"Breach of Tests Cure Notice™ means the notice delivered by the Representative of
the Bondholders in accordance with the terms of the Cover Pool Management
Agreement.
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"Breach of Test Notice"” means the notice delivered by the Representative of the
Bondholders in accordance with the terms of the Cover Pool Management Agreement
following the infringement of one of the Tests prior to an Issuer Event of Default and/or
a Guarantor Event of Default.

"Business Day" means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are
generally open for business in Milan, Luxembourg and London and on which the Trans-
European Automated Real Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer System (TARGET
2) (or any successor thereto) is open.

"Business Day Convention", in relation to any particular date, has the meaning given
in the relevant Final Terms and, if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, may have
different meanings in relation to different dates and, in this context, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

() "Following Business Day Convention” means that the relevant date shall be
postponed to the first following day that is a Business Day;

(i)  "Modified Following Business Day Convention™ or "Modified Business Day
Convention” means that the relevant date shall be postponed to the first
following day that is a Business Day unless that day falls in the next calendar
month in which case that date will be the first preceding day that is a Business
Day;

(iti)  "Preceding Business Day Convention" means that the relevant date shall be
brought forward to the first preceding day that is a Business Day;

(iv)  "FRN Convention”, "Floating Rate Convention" or "Eurodollar
Convention" means that each relevant date shall be the date which numerically
corresponds to the preceding such date in the calendar month which is the
number of months specified in the relevant Final Terms as the Specified Period
after the calendar month in which the preceding such date occurred provided,
however, that:

(A) ifthere is no such numerically corresponding day in the calendar month
in which any such date should occur, then such date will be the last day
which is a Business Day in that calendar month;

(B) if any such date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business
Day, then such date will be the first following day which is a Business
Day unless that day falls in the next calendar month, in which case it
will be the first preceding day which is a Business Day; and

(C)  if the preceding such date occurred on the last day in a calendar month
which was a Business Day, then all subsequent such dates will be the
last day which is a Business Day in the calendar month which is the
specified number of months after the calendar month in which the
preceding such date occurred; and

(v) "No Adjustment” means that the relevant date shall not be adjusted in
accordance with any Business Day Convention.
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"Calculation Amount" is the amount used for the calculation of interest amounts and
redemption amounts for the relevant covered bonds as specified in the relevant Final
Terms.

"Calculation Period" means the period from one Guarantor Calculation Date
(included) to the next Guarantor Calculation Date (excluded).

"Call Option™ has the meaning given in the relevant Final Terms.

"Cash Allocation, Management and Payments Agreement” means the cash
allocation, management and payments agreement entered on 18 June 2010 between,
inter alios, the Guarantor, the Representative of the Bondholders, the Paying Agent(s),
the Italian Account Bank and the English Account Bank, as amended from time to time.

"Cash Manager" means BMPS acting in such capacity pursuant to the Cash
Allocation, Management and Payments Agreement or any other entity acting in such
capacity pursuant to the Cash Allocation, Management and Payments Agreement.

"Cash Manager Report" means the report produced by the Cash Manager pursuant to
the Cash Allocation, Management and Payments Agreement.

"Cessation of Business" means, with respect to the Issuer, the loss of the banking
licence.

"Civil Code" means the Italian civil code, enacted by Royal Decree No. 262 of 16
March 1942, as subsequently amended and supplemented.

"Clearstream™ means Clearstream Banking société anonyme, Luxembourg with
offices at 42 avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg.

"Collateral Account(s)" means any other cash and/or securities account (different from
the Guarantor's Accounts) opened by the Guarantor pursuant to clause 7.4 of the
Intercreditor Agreement.

"Collateral Security" means any security (including any loan mortgage insurance and
excluding Mortgages) granted to the Principal Seller (or any Additional Seller(s), if
any) by any Debtor in order to guarantee the payment and/or redemption of any
amounts due under the relevant Mortgages Loan Agreement.

"Collection Date" means (i) prior to the service of a Guarantor Default Notice, the first
calendar day of each month; and (ii) following the service of a Guarantor Default
Notice, each date determined by the Representative of the Bondholders as such.

"Collection Period" means the Monthly Collection Period and/or the Quarterly
Collection Period, as applicable.

"Collections" means all amounts received or recovered by the Servicer in respect of the
Assets included in the Cover Pool.

"Commercial Mortgage Loan" means, pursuant to article 2, sub-paragraph 1, of
Decree No. 310 a commercial mortgage loan in respect of which the relevant amount
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outstanding added to the principal amount outstanding of any higher ranking mortgage
loans secured by the same property does not exceed 60 per cent. and for which the
hardening period with respect to the perfection of the relevant mortgage has elapsed.

"CONSOB" means Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e la Borsa.

"Consolidated Banking Act™" means Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1 September 1993,
as subsequently amended and supplemented.

"Corporate Services Agreement” means the corporate services agreement entered on
18 June 2010 between, inter alios, the Guarantor and the Guarantor Corporate Servicer.

"Corresponding Interest" has the meaning given to the term "Interesse Collegato™ in
the Subordinated Loan Agreement.

"Corresponding Series or Tranche of Covered Bonds™ means, in respect of a Fixed
Interest Term Loan or a Floating Interest Term Loan, the Series or Tranche of Covered
Bonds issued or to be issued pursuant to the Programme and notified by the
Subordinated Lender to the Guarantor in the relevant Term Loan Proposal.

"Cover Pool" means the cover pool constituted by (i) Receivables; (ii) any other
Eligible Assets; and (iii) any Top-Up Assets.

"Cover Pool Management Agreement” means the Cover Pool management
agreement entered on 18 June 2010 between, inter alios, the Issuer, the Guarantor, the
Principal Seller, the Pre-Issuer Default Test Calculation Agent, the Post-Issuer Default
Test Calculation Agent, the Guarantor Calculation Agent and the Representative of the
Bondholders, as amended from time to time.

"Covered Bond Swap Agreement" means each International Swaps and Derivatives
Association ("ISDA™) 1992 Master Agreement (Multicurrency Cross Border) (together
with the Schedule and credit support annex thereto and the confirmations evidencing
interest rate swap transactions thereunder) entered into from time to time between the
Guarantor and a Covered Bond Swap Provider, as amended from time to time.

"Covered Bond Swap Provider" means any entity acting as covered bond swap
provider under a Covered Bond Swap Agreement to the Guarantor and "Covered Bond
Swap Providers" means more than one of them.

"Covered Bonds" means the Covered Bonds (Obbligazioni Bancarie Garantite) of
each Series or Tranche issued or to be issued by the Issuer in the context of the
Programme.

"Day Count Fraction" means, in respect of the calculation of an amount for any period
of time (the "Calculation Period™), such day count fraction as may be specified in the
Terms and Conditions or the relevant Final Terms and:

() if "Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is so specified, means:

(A)  where the Calculation Period is equal to or shorter than the Regular
Period during which it falls, the actual number of days in the Calculation
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Period divided by the product of (1) the actual number of days in such
Regular Period and (2) the number of Regular Periods in any year; and

(B)  where the Calculation Period is longer than one Regular Period, the sum
of:

1) the actual number of days in such Calculation Period falling in
the Regular Period in which it begins divided by the product of
(@) the actual number of days in such Regular Period and (b) the
number of Regular Periods in any year; and

(@) the actual number of days in such Calculation Period falling in
the next Regular Period divided by the product of (a) the actual
number of days in such Regular Period and (b) the number of
Regular Periods in any year,;

if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" is so specified, means the actual number of days in
the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of the Calculation
Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that
portion of the Calculation Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B)
the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a
non-leap year divided by 365);

if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is so specified, means the actual number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 365;

if "Actual/360" is so specified, means the actual number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 360;

if "30/360" is so specified, the number of days in the Calculation Period divided
by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows

[360X(Y2 _Yl)] + [30X(M 2 Ml)] + (Dz ~ D1)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

"Y2" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

"M1" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of
the Calculation Period falls;

"M2" is the calendar month, expressed as number, in which the day immediately
following the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

"D1" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period,
unless such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and
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(vi)

(vii)

"D2" is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last
day included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31 and D1
is greater than 29, in which case D2 will be 30™;

if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is so specified, the number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:
[360X(Y2 _Yl)] + [30X(M 2 Ml)] + (Dz — D1)

360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

"Y2" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

"M1" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of
the Calculation Period falls;

"M2" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day
immediately following the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

"D1" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period,
unless such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

"D2" is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last
day included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31, in
which case D2 will be 30; and

if "30E/360 (ISDA)" is so specified, the number of days in the Calculation
Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360X(Y2 _Yl)] + [30X(M2 — Ml)] + (Dz — D1)

Day Count Fraction =
360

where:

"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

"Y2" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

"M1" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of
the Calculation Period falls;

"M2" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day
immediately following the last day included in the Calculation Period fa